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This year’s design for the Frasers Centrepoint group 
of companies’ annual reports comprises a series that 
prominently features the Frasers Centrepoint logo.
 
All four annual reports (Frasers Centrepoint Limited, 
Frasers Centrepoint Trust, Frasers Commercial Trust and 
Frasers Hospitality Trust) can be positioned together to 
form the complete corporate logo.
 
The Frasers Centrepoint logo symbolically personifies 
its brand essence of being a property group that builds 
upon trust and care.
 
In the form of a structured yet dynamic diamond shape, 
the logo reflects Frasers Centrepoint’s strength, stability 
and trustworthiness as an integrated real estate group. 
The eight contoured strokes represent progression and 
continuity in its business activities.
 
The red strokes represent a strong business foundation, 
while the warm grey strokes represent its business 
partners, investors and customers. Together, they form  
a complete diamond which represents success.
 
The colour red symbolises warmth, vibrancy and 
passion while grey reflects dignity, trustworthiness and 
professionalism.
 
Integration, progression and continuity are exemplified 
by the coming together of the four entities.

At Frasers Hospitality Trust, we believe in staying 
focused to stay ahead of the game. We are committed 
to our diversified portfolio strategy by expanding our 
geographical presence and reducing reliance on a single 
asset or country. This will in turn propel us to strengthen 
our performance and chart strategic growth to benefit 
stapled securityholders.
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ABOUT FRASERS HOSPITALIT Y TRUST

Frasers Hospitality Trust (“FHT”) is a 
global hotel and serviced residence 
trust established with the principal 
strategy of investing globally (except 
Thailand) on a long-term basis, 
directly or indirectly, in a diversified 
portfolio of income-producing real 
estate and real estate-related assets 
used predominantly for hospitality 
purposes.

FHT is a stapled group comprising 
Frasers Hospitality Real Estate 
Investment Trust (“FH-REIT”) and 
Frasers Hospitality Business Trust 
(“FH-BT”). It is managed by Frasers 
Hospitality Asset Management 
Pte. Ltd., the manager of FH-
REIT, and Frasers Hospitality Trust 
Management Pte. Ltd., the trustee-
manager of FH-BT.

Listed on the Main Board of the 
Singapore Exchange (“SGX-ST”) on 
14 July 2014, FHT provides investors 
with exposure to one of the largest 

InterContinental Singapore, Club Lounge

global hospitality portfolios by 
number of rooms. The current 
portfolio comprises over 3,200 
rooms in 13 properties – 7 hotels and 
6 serviced residences. 

FHT’s investment properties are 
valued at SGD1.96 billion in total 
as at 30 September 2015. They 
are located across Asia, Australia 
and the United Kingdom (“UK”) in 
prime locations of key gateway 
cities – namely, Singapore, Kuala 
Lumpur (“KL”), Kobe, Sydney, 
London, Edinburgh and Glasgow. 
The portfolio is managed by well-
known and experienced international 
hotel chains such as Starwood 
Hotels & Resorts, Accor Hotels, 
InterContinental Hotels Group as 
well as Frasers Hospitality, one of the 
largest serviced residence operators 
globally. 

With a global mandate, FHT 
enjoys full flexibility in sourcing 

for acquisitions. Within a year of 
its listing, it completed its maiden 
acquisition of Sofitel Sydney 
Wentworth, a 436-room luxury hotel 
in the heart of Sydney’s Central 
Business District (“CBD”). FHT is 
sponsored by Frasers Centrepoint 
Limited (“FCL”), a full-fledged 
international real estate company 
and one of Singapore’s top property 
companies with total assets above 
SGD23 billion as at 30 September 
2015. FCL’s four core businesses 
focus on residential, commercial, 
hospitality and industrial properties 
spanning 77 cities across Africa, 
North Asia, Southeast Asia, Australia, 
Europe and the Middle East. FCL 
and FHT’s strategic partner, the 
TCC Group, one of Southeast 
Asia’s largest conglomerates have 
also granted FHT a right-of-first-
refusal (“ROFR”) to their hospitality 
assets, which provides FHT with 
further access to future acquisition 
opportunities.
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V I S I O N 

To be the leading owner of quality hospitality 

assets in key cities globally 

M I S S I O N

To deliver stable and sustainable distributions  
to our stapled securityholders

To build a strong and balanced portfolio of  
quality hospitality assets

To create and unlock value of our existing portfolio 
through active asset management and asset 
enhancement initiatives

To be a fair and responsible owner, working with 
international hotel and serviced residence operators 
operators to adopt best practices in governance and 
social responsibility 
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OUR STRATEGY 

ACQUISITION GROWTH

The REIT Manager will actively 
source for and pursue asset 
acquisitions that will provide 
attractive cash flows and yields to 
satisfy its investment mandate, so 
as to enhance returns to stapled 
securityholders and improve 
potential opportunities for future 
income and capital growth. 

The REIT Manager will seek 
opportunities in key cities with 
sound economic fundamentals, 
favourable hospitality market 
conditions, and a good business 
and leisure guest mix. FHT’s global 
mandate allows the REIT Manager 
maximum flexibility in scanning 
various regions for opportunities 
in both hotels and serviced 
residence asset classes. 

In addition, FHT’s acquisition 
strategy is complemented by the 
ROFR granted by its sponsor, FCL 
and its strategic partner, the TCC 
Group, which will provide it with 
access to future opportunities 
to acquire income-producing 
properties that are primarily used 
for hospitality and/or hospitality-
related purposes.

ACTIVE ASSET MANAGEMENT 
AND ENHANCEMENT STRATEGY

The REIT Manager will 
continuously identify opportunities 
and implement strategies to 

improve the operational cash 
flow of the properties. Working 
closely with the hotel and serviced 
residence operators, the REIT 
Manager focuses on the areas of 
revenue optimisation, cost control 
and operating efficiency, prioritising 
strategies that have the highest 
impact on the overall performance 
of the properties.

In addition to active asset 
management of the properties, 
the REIT Manager actively seeks 
opportunities to undertake 
asset enhancement initiatives 
that successfully reposition the 
properties, generate incremental 
cash flows and increase the value of 
the properties.

CAPITAL AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
STRATEGY 

The REIT Manager will endeavour 
to maintain a strong balance sheet 
and manage exposure to risks 
prudently by employing various 
strategies and measures to optimise 
returns to stapled securityholders. 
These measures may involve the 
following: employing an appropriate 
mix of debt and equity in financing 
acquisitions; securing diversified 
funding sources to access both 
financial institutions and capital 
markets; and utilising interest rate 
and foreign exchange hedging 
strategies, where appropriate, in 
order to minimise exposure to 
market volatility. 
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Sofitel Sydney Wentworth

InterContinental Singapore, Man Fu Yuan
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Sofitel Sydney Wentworth, Club Lounge

Sofitel Sydney Wentworth, Soirée Bar
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O U R  P R E S E N C E

At FHT, our investment focus centres on key cities 

globally. Our dynamic portfolio includes the Sofitel 

Sydney Wentworth, an iconic luxury hotel located in 

Sydney’s vibrant CBD. Through this yield-enhancing 

acquisition, we were able to strengthen our market 

position and grow our portfolio from SGD1.67 billion 

to SGD1.96 billion.
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NET ASSET VALUE  
PER STAPLED SECURITY

SGD 86.4 cents

TOTAL ASSETS

SGD2.03 billion

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Sofitel Sydney Wentworth, Lobby

Fraser Suites Queens Gate, London
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GROSS REVENUE  

SGD128.7 million

NET PROPERTY INCOME 

SGD105.7 million

DISTRIBUTABLE INCOME 

SGD93.7 million

DISTRIBUTION PER  

STAPLED SECURITY

SGD
 7.56 cents

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Note: Figures are for financial period 14 July 2014 to 30 September 2015 (“FY2015”)
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InterContinental Singapore

 LET TER TO STAPLED SECURIT YHOLDERS
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DPS EXCEEDED IPO FORECAST 
BY 2.6%

We are pleased to inform that for 
its first reporting period from 14 
July 2014 to 30 September 2015, 
(“FY2015”) Distribution Per Stapled 
Security (“DPS”) of SGD7.56 cents 
beat forecast by 2.6% on the back of 
an increase in Distributable Income 
(“DI”) of 1.2% to SGD93.7 million. 
Gross Revenue (“GR”) and Net 
Property Income (“NPI”) performed 
largely in line with forecast at 
SGD128.7 million and SGD105.7 
million respectively. 

This performance was supported 
by a well-diversified portfolio with 
continued strong showings by 
the properties in Australia, Japan 
and the UK, which balanced the 
softer performance in Malaysia and 
Singapore. In addition, all of FHT’s 
properties have a minimum rent 
under the master lease structure to 
provide downside protection while
the rent structures allow FHT to 
benefit from performance upside. 
We believe that FHT, with its well-
balanced and resilient portfolio of 
quality hospitality assets, flexible 
independent platform and strong 
acquisition pipeline, coupled with 
support from our committed 
sponsor FCL, is well positioned to 
continue to deliver value to our 
stapled securityholders. 
 
ACTIVE ASSET MANAGEMENT AND 
ACQUISITION

Since our listing on 14 July 2015, 
we have had an active year. We 
commenced an asset enhancement 
initiative at InterContinental 
Singapore and completed our 
maiden acquisition of Sofitel Sydney 
Wentworth in Australia. 

Unveiling the new InterContinental 
Singapore
Located in the unique Bugis heritage 
precinct, the well-established 
InterContinental Singapore is 
in the midst of a SGD26 million 
transformation. Come February 
2016, the hotel will offer totally new 
guest rooms refining its Peranakan 
theme, an all-new dining concept 
restaurant, Ash and Elm, and a 
revitalised lobby lounge. We are 
excited about the rejuvenated 
InterContinental Singapore and are 
confident that it will command a 
stronger position within the luxury 
accommodation segment offering 
fresh appeal to discerning business 
and leisure travellers.

Acquisition of Sofitel Sydney 
Wentworth
In July 2015, FHT successfully 
acquired a 75-year leasehold interest 
in the 436-room luxury Sofitel 
Sydney Wentworth. The iconic 
hotel, strategically located in the 
heart of Sydney’s CBD, is FHT’s first 
acquisition post-IPO and its third 
asset in the city. Within walking 
distance of the hotel are most of 
Sydney’s premium commercial 
office buildings, which are home to 
the most prominent domestic and 
international tenants from across 
the finance, legal and government 
sectors. Going forward, we expect 
FHT to benefit from the hotel’s 
full-year contribution in the strong 
Sydney hospitality market. 

MARKET OVERVIEW 

In Australia, the demand for 
accommodation is supported 
strongly by increasing corporate and 
leisure arrivals, both international 
and domestic, especially in Sydney, 
its key gateway city. The Australian 

Dear Stapled Securityholders,

It is our pleasure to present FHT’s 
inaugural annual report. FHT 
debuted on the Main Board of 
the SGX-ST on 14 July 2014 as 
the first global hotel and serviced 
residence hospitality trust listed 
in Singapore. The Initial Public 
Offering (“IPO”) received strong 
demand from cornerstone, 
institutional and retail investors, 
who were attracted to FHT’s 
portfolio of quality hospitality 
assets in prime locations of 
key gateway cities across 
Asia, Australia and the UK. The 
offering was approximately 19.0 
times subscribed, raising gross 
proceeds of SGD367.9 million 
at SGD0.88 per stapled security. 
FHT’s IPO was named Singapore’s 
“Equity Issue of the Year” at the 
International Financing Review 
Awards Asia 2014 for winning 
investors’ full support and 
boosting Singapore’s IPO market.
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tourism industry is expected to 
receive a further boost following the 
signing of the Free Trade Agreement 
between China and Australia, while 
the completion of the Sydney 
International Convention, Exhibition 
and Entertainment Precinct 
(“SICEEP”) and the Barangaroo 
Development is also expected to 
drive demand. We are optimistic 
that Sydney’s hospitality market will 
continue to grow given its strong 
performance against a benign room 
supply pipeline. 

For Japan, international visitor 
arrivals continued to grow strongly 
in 2015, reaching an all-time high of 
12.9 million from January to August 
2015, up 49.1%1 year-on-year. The 
strong growth was driven by the 
weakening Japanese yen as well 
as by the Japanese government’s 
continued efforts to facilitate visa 
approvals. Kobe City, as part of the 
Kansai region (Osaka, Kyoto, Kobe), 
has benefited from the heightened 
interest from regional and 
international tourists. As the build-
up to the 2020 Olympics gathers 
momentum, the growth in tourists 
to the region is expected  
to continue.

FHT’s UK properties recorded a 
stable performance with strong 
demand from the corporate business 
segment. London continued to draw 
a record number of international 
arrivals as a major business hub and 
tourist destination. For 1Q 2015, 
international arrivals to London 
reached 3.4 million, up 0.16% year-
on-year.2 The strong demand for 
London’s accommodation came 
from a broad base of corporate, 
MICE and leisure travellers as well 
as visitors arriving in London for 
medical services and education. The 
lodging markets of both Edinburgh 
and Glasgow also performed well. 

As at June year-to-date, revenue per 
available room was up year-on-year 
by 3% and 9% respectively.3 

In Singapore, the hospitality industry 
faced some headwinds as a result 
of competition from other tourism 
markets on top of the increased 
supply of hotel rooms. Recognising 
the challenges, Singapore Tourism 
Board has been active in promoting 
a full events calendar with marketing 
campaigns to target leisure, business 
and MICE travellers from more 
than 15 markets worldwide. A 
new Singapore Stopover Premium 
package has also been planned to 
target premium leisure and business 
travellers. In July 2015, Singapore 
Botanic Gardens was accorded the 
UNESCO World Heritage Site status, 
and this is expected to support the 
country’s tourism initiatives.

In Malaysia, the twin aviation 
tragedies involving the national 
carrier Malaysia Airlines as well as the 
recent soft oil and gas industry, led 
to weak leisure and corporate visitor 
arrivals. In addition, the introduction 
of Goods and Services Tax of 6% in 
the country further contributed to a 
lacklustre performance all-round in 
the KL hospitality market. However, 
we are confident of the long-term 
prospects of The Westin Kuala 
Lumpur, as we see opportunities for 
it to continue capturing a good base 
of guests with its strong branding 
and strategic location in Bukit 
Bintang in the heart of KL. 

PRUDENT CAPITAL AND RISK 
MANAGEMENT 

In managing its capital structure and 
financial risks, FHT aims to maintain 
a strong balance sheet through 
prudent and dynamic capital and 
financial management, so as to 
ensure continuous access to funding 

at optimal cost and to maintain 
stable distributions to our stapled 
securityholders.

During the IPO, Moody’s Investors 
Service accorded FHT a Baa2 rating. 
This rating helped FH-REIT to secure 
unsecured bank loans at favourable 
rates. During the year, the REIT 
Manager also secured diversified 
sources of funding to support FH-
REIT’s growth aspirations. 

FHT’s financial position remained 
strong in FY2015. Total assets as at  
30 September 2015 was SGD2.03 
billion, an increase of 16.9% compared 

ANA Crowne Plaza Kobe

1 Japan National Tourism Organisation
2 VisitBritain 
3 Savills Market Review, September 2015
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to that of the initial portfolio. This was 
mainly attributable to the acquisition 
of Sofitel Sydney Wentworth in 
July 2015 as well as the improved 
valuation of its portfolio. 

The acquisition of Sofitel Sydney 
Wentworth was financed by a 
combination of equity raised in a 
private placement and Australian 
dollar debt, to take advantage of 
the relatively low cost of Australian 
dollar debt during that time. 

The REIT Manager achieved a good 
amount of natural hedge for FH-
REIT’s foreign assets by borrowing 

in Australian dollar, Japanese yen 
and Malaysian ringgit. FH-REIT’s 
all-in cost of borrowings for FY2015 
was 2.4% per annum. FH-REIT’s 
exposure to rising interest rates 
in the near term remains low. As 
at 30 September 2015, its loan 
portfolio comprised 96% unsecured 
borrowings, with 73.0% of our 
borrowings on fixed rates. In fixing 
those interest rates, FH-REIT entered 
into interest rate swaps and a cross 
currency swap to fix the borrowing 
costs for the floating-rate loans 
over the entire tenure of the loans. 
FHT’s gearing was 38.9% as at 30 
September 2015.

The REIT Manager hedges the 
foreign exchange risk arising  
from income from foreign  
assets using suitable derivative 
financial instruments on an  
ongoing basis. This ensures that the 
income available for distribution  
will be less exposed to volatility in  
exchange rates. 

On an ongoing basis, the REIT 
Manager continues to actively 
manage the capital structure and the 
financial risks of FH-REIT in order to 
meet the stated objectives.

ANA Crowne Plaza Kobe
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LOOKING AHEAD

We are optimistic that FHT’s 
properties in Japan, Australia and 
the UK will continue to benefit from 
the favourable hospitality markets 
in these countries. In Singapore, we 
are excited about InterContinental 
Singapore’s potential rate uplift 
following the completion of its asset 
enhancement initiatives. Over in 
Malaysia, while the tourism industry 
could still experience softer demand 
from leisure and corporate travellers, 
we believe The Westin Kuala 
Lumpur’s central location will allow 
it to attract a strong clientele base 
over the longer run.

Moving ahead, we will continue 
to explore ways to optimise value 
for our stapled securityholders. By 
working closely with our property 
operators, the REIT Manager will 
proactively review and identify 
potential asset enhancement 
opportunities across FHT’s portfolio 
to extract greater value for each 
asset. Capitalising on our flexible 
platform and global acquisition 
mandate, we will also continue to 
actively pursue suitable acquisitions, 

both from the ROFR pipeline from 
FHT’s sponsor, FCL, its strategic 
partner, The TCC Group and from 
third-party owners.

SUSTAINABILITY DEVELOPMENT

FHT is proud to be among 
the first real estate investment 
trusts in Singapore to present a 
sustainability report in accordance 
with the requirements of the Global 
Reporting Initiative (“GRI”). This 
report, from page 81 onwards, 
highlights key sustainability issues 
and how we have managed them 
with our sustainability framework.

We believe that our sustainability 
commitment will help us achieve 
long-term growth for our stapled 
securityholders. 

Balancing economic, environmental 
and social development is increasingly 
part of our active management of FHT. 
In carrying out an assessment of 
the most material issues within 
the first few months of FHT’s 
operations, we evaluated FHT’s risks 
and opportunities beyond financial 
risk. We strongly believe that this 

focus on material issues will give us 
long-term value creation through 
good governance and focus on the 
interest of our stakeholders. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

In conclusion, we wish to express 
our gratitude to the REIT Manager’s 
Board of Directors for their wise 
counsel and dedication. We also like 
to thank FHT’s business partners, 
advisers, bankers and stapled 
securityholders for their continued 
support since the public offering. 

Thank you. 

Mr Law Song Keng
Chairman

Ms Eu Chin Fen
Chief Executive Officer

Park International London, Junior Suite
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE

STAPLED
SECURITYHOLDERS

TRUSTEE-
MANAGER

INTERCONTINENTAL
SINGAPORE

AUSTRALIA
PROPERTIES(1)

ANA CROWNE
PLAZA KOBE

FRASER SUITES
SINGAPORE

INTERMEDIATE COMPANIES/ENTITIES IN SINGAPORE, 
AUSTRALIA, MALAYSIA, JERSEY AND JAPAN

UK
PROPERTIES(2)

THE WESTIN 
KUALA LUMPUR

REIT 
MANAGER

REIT 
TRUSTEE

FH-REIT FH-BT(3)

Stapling
Deed

Acts on behalf 
of the FH-REIT 
Unitholders

Management 
Services

Distributions Distributions

Holding of  
FH-REIT Units

Holding of  
FH-BT Units

Notes:

(1) “Australia Properties” refer to Novotel Rockford Darling Harbour, Fraser Suites Sydney and Sofitel Sydney Wentworth.
(2) “UK Properties” refer to Park International London, Best Western Cromwell London, Fraser Place Canary Wharf, Fraser 

Suites Queens Gate, Fraser Suites Glasgow and Fraser Suites Edinburgh.
(3) Dormant as at 30 September 2015. In the event that FH-BT is appointed as master lessee for any of the properties, the 

Trustee-Manager intends to appoint a hotel operator or serviced residence operator (as the case may be) to manage and 
operate the property.
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Novotel Rockford Darling Harbour

Fraser Suites Edinburgh
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I D E N T I F Y I N G 
N E W  G R O W T H 
O P P O R T U N I T I E S

We will continue to seek growth 

avenues through asset enhancement 

initiatives which we believe will unlock 

value for our stapled securityholders.
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Novotel Rockford Darling Harbour, Pumphouse Bar & Restaurant 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REIT Manager:
Date of appointment as Director  : 10 Jun 2014
Length of service as Director (as at 30 Sep 2015) : 1 year 3 months

Trustee-Manager:
Date of appointment as Director  : 10 Jun 2014
Length of service as Director (as at 30 Sep 2015) : 1 year 3 months

Board committees served on
• Nominating Committee (Chairman) of REIT Manager
• Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee (Chairman) of 

REIT Manager

Academic & Professional Qualifications
• Bachelor of Science in Mathematics (First Class Honours), 

University of Singapore 
• Master of Science in Actuarial Science, Northeastern 

University, Boston, USA
• Advanced Management Program at Harvard University 
• Fellow of the Society of Actuaries, USA

Present Directorships (as at 30 September 2015)
Listed companies
• IFS Capital Ltd
• Great Eastern Holdings Ltd

Others
• Asia Capital Reinsurance Company Pte Ltd
• ACR Capital Holdings Pte Ltd
• Concord Insurance Company Limited 
• ECICS Ltd

Major Appointments (other than Directorships)
Nil

Past Directorships in listed companies held over the 
preceding 3 years (from 01 October 2012 to 30 September 
2015)
Nil

Others
• Previously Managing Director and CEO, Overseas 

Assurance Corporation Ltd
• Former Deputy Managing Director (Administration and 

Insurance) and Insurance Commissioner, Monetary 
Authority of Singapore 

• Former Chairman of Singapore Insurance Institute, 
and former President of Singapore Actuarial Society, 
Life Insurance Association and the General Insurance 
Association

• Previous Board Member of Inland Revenue Authority of 
Singapore, Singapore Deposit Insurance Corporation, Central 
Provident Fund Board and Manulife (Singapore) Pte Ltd

• Awarded Public Service Star (BBM)

REIT Manager:
Date of appointment as Director  : 10 Jun 2014
Length of service as Director (as at 30 Sep 2015) : 1 year 3 months

Trustee-Manager:
Date of appointment as Director  : 10 Jun 2014
Length of service as Director (as at 30 Sep 2015) : 1 year 3 months

Board committee served on
Nil

Academic & Professional Qualifications
• Bachelor of Science in Mathematics (First Class Honours), 

Nanyang University 
• Master of Science in Actuarial Science, Northeastern 

University, Boston, USA

Present Directorships (as at 30 September 2015)
Listed companies
• Perennial Real Estate Holdings Limited

Others
• Temasek Life Sciences Laboratory Limited

Major Appointments (other than Directorships)
Nil

Past Directorships in listed companies held over the 
preceding 3 years (from 01 October 2012 to 30 September 
2015)
• Industrial Bank Co., Ltd. listed on Shanghai Stock 

Exchange

Others
• Former Executive Director for finance, risk management, 

IT and corporate services, Wilmar International Ltd
• Board Member, Wilmar International 
• Former Independent Director, Eltech Electronics Limited
• Former Chief Financial Officer and Chief Risk Officer, 

Keppel TatLee Bank
• Former Executive Vice President, Tat Lee Bank
• Former Director of Securities Industry, Monetary Authority 

of Singapore

MR LAW SONG KENG, BBM, 70
Chairman and Independent Director

MR CHUA PHUAY HEE, 62
Independent Director
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REIT Manager:
Date of appointment as Director  : 10 Jun 2014
Length of service as Director (as at 30 Sep 2015) : 1 year 3 months

Trustee-Manager:
Date of appointment as Director  : 10 Jun 2014
Length of service as Director (as at 30 Sep 2015) : 1 year 3 months

Board committees served on
• Nominating Committee of REIT Manager
• Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee of REIT Manager

Academic & Professional Qualifications
• Fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified 

Accountants 
• Chartered Accountant of Singapore

Present Directorships (as at 30 September 2015)
Listed companies
• Halycon Agri Corporation Ltd 

Others
• Kuok (Singapore) Ltd, Chairman, Internal Audit Committee

Major Appointments (other than Directorships)
Nil

Past Directorships in listed companies held over
the preceding 3 years (from 01 October 2012 to
30 September 2015)
Nil

Others
• Retired Partner of Ernst & Young Singapore. Head of Ernst 

& Young’s Real Estate Industry Group 

REIT Manager:
Date of appointment as Director  : 10 Jun 2014
Length of service as Director (as at 30 Sep 2015) : 1 year 3 months

Trustee-Manager:
Date of appointment as Director  : 10 Jun 2014
Length of service as Director (as at 30 Sep 2015) : 1 year 3 months

Board committee served on
• Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee of REIT Manager

Academic & Professional Qualifications
• Bachelor of Business Administration, University of Singapore 
• Master of Science in Investment Management, Hong Kong 

University of Science and Technology
• Doctor in Transformational Leadership from Bethel Bible 

Seminary
• Financial Industry Certified Professional, Institute of 

Banking and Finance, Singapore

Present Directorships (as at 30 September 2015)
Listed companies
Nil

Others
Nil

Major Appointments (other than Directorships)
• Chairman, Halftime Limited, Hong Kong
• Finance Management Committee Member of the Hong 

Kong Management Association, Hong Kong

Past Directorships in listed companies held over the 
preceding 3 years (from 01 October 2012 to 30 September 
2015)
Nil

Others
• Deputy Chief Executive, Bank of China (Hong Kong) 

Group 
• Director of BOC Group Life Assurance Company Limited
• BOC International- Prudential Trustee Limited, Chairman
• BOCHK Asset Management Limited, Chairman
• Held various senior positions in ABN AMRO Bank, 

including Corporate Executive Vice President and Country 
Executive; Regional Head of Financial Markets; Country 
Executive in Singapore, and Managing Director of the 
Hong Kong Branch

• Board Member, Civil Service College, Singapore 
• Board Member, Energy Market Authority 

MR LIEW CHOON WEI, 61
Independent Director

DR DAVID WONG SEE HONG, 62
Independent Director

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REIT Manager:
Date of appointment as Director  : 10 Jun 2014
Length of service as Director (as at 30 Sep 2015) : 1 year 3 months

Trustee-Manager:
Date of appointment as Director  : 13 Jan 2014
Length of service as Director (as at 30 Sep 2015) : 1 year 8 months

Board committee served on
Nil

Academic & Professional Qualifications
• Bachelor of Engineering (Civil Engineering), University of 

Singapore
• Master of Science (Project Management), National 

University of Singapore
• Fellow, Singapore Institute of Directors
• Member, The Institution of Engineers Singapore

Present Directorships (as at 30 September 2015)
Listed companies
Nil

Listed REITs/Trusts
• Frasers Centrepoint Asset Management Ltd, Manager of 

Frasers Centrepoint Trust
• Frasers Centrepoint Asset Management (Commercial) 

Limited, Manager of Frasers Commercial Trust

Others
• Frasers Property Australia Pty Limited
• Vacaron Company Sdn Bhd

Major appointments (other than Directorships)
• Group Chief Executive Officer, Frasers Centrepoint Limited
• 2nd Vice-President, Real Estate Development Association 

of Singapore

Past Directorships in listed companies held over
the preceding 3 years (from 01 October 2012 to
30 September 2015)
• Gemdale Properties and Investment Corporation Limited 

Others
• Awarded Public Service Star (BBM)
• Former Board member of the Building and Construction 

Authority of Singapore
• Former Council member of the Singapore Chinese 

Chamber of Commerce and Industry
• Previously Managing Director, MCL Land Limited
• Previously General Manager (Property Division), First 

Capital Corporation Ltd
• Previously Project Manager, Singapore Land Ltd

MR LIM EE SENG, BBM, 64
Non-Executive Director

REIT Manager:
Date of appointment as Director  : 10 Jun 2014
Length of service as Director (as at 30 Sep 2015) : 1 year 3 months

Trustee-Manager:
Date of appointment as Director  : 10 Jun 2014
Length of service as Director (as at 30 Sep 2015) : 1 year 3 months

Board committee served on
Nominating Committee of REIT Manager 

Academic & Professional Qualifications
• Bachelor of Science in Manufacturing Engineering, Boston 

University, USA
• Master of Science in Analysis, Design and Management of 

Information Systems, London School of Economics and 
Political Science, UK

• Certificate in Industrial Engineering and Economics, 
Massachusetts University, USA 

Present Directorships (as at 30 September 2015)
Listed companies
• Berli Jucker Public Company Limited
• Frasers Centrepoint Limited
• Golden Land Property Development Public Company 

Limited
• Siam Food Products Public Company Limited
• Thai Beverage Public Company Limited
• Univentures Public Company Limited

Others
• Beer Thip Brewery (1991) Co., Ltd.
• Blairmhor Distillers Limited
• Blairmhor Limited
• Frasers Property Australia Pty Limited
• InterBev (Singapore) Limited
• International Beverage Holdings (China) Limited
• International Beverage Holdings Limited
• International Beverage Holdings (UK) Limited
• Sura Bangyikhan Group of Companies

Major appointments (other than Directorships)
• Univentures Public Company Limited (Executive Director, 

Chief Executive Officer and Chairman, Executive Board of 
Directors)

Past Directorships in listed companies held over
the preceding 3 years (from 01 October 2012 to
30 September 2015)
• Fraser and Neave, Limited

MR PANOTE SIRIVADHANABHAKDI, 38
Non-Executive Director

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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REIT Manager:
Date of appointment as Director  : 20 Nov 2013
Length of service as Director (as at 30 Sep 2015) : 1 year 10 months

Trustee-Manager:
Date of appointment as Director  : 13 Jan 2014
Length of service as Director (as at 30 Sep 2015) : 1 year 8 months

Board committee served on
Nil

Academic & Professional Qualifications
• Bachelor of Science with Distinction, Cornell University, 

Ithaca, New York, USA
• President’s Honor Roll, Washington State University
• Executive Development Programme, International College 

of Hospitality Administration, BRIG, Switzerland

Present Directorships (as at 30 September 2015)
Listed companies
Nil

Others
Nil

Major appointments (other than Directorships)
• Chief Executive Officer, Frasers Hospitality, Frasers 

Centrepoint Limited
• Chairman, Board of Directors, Crest Secondary School
• Board Member, Council of Private Education, Singapore
• Governing Council Member, Singapore Quality Awards, 

Spring Singapore
• Singapore’s business representative to ASEAN in the East 

Asia Business Council 
• Layperson Member of the Complaints Panel for the 

Singapore Pharmacy Council

Past Directorships in listed companies held over
the preceding 3 years (from 01 October 2012 to
30 September 2015)
Nil

Others
• Built Fraser and Neave, Limited’s hospitality arm in 1996
• Held senior management positions with Shangri-La 

Singapore and The Portman Shangri-La Shanghai, China 

MR CHOE PENG SUM, 54
Non-Executive Director

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

MS EU CHIN FEN
Chief Executive Officer

Ms Eu is Chief Executive Officer of the 
Managers, responsible for FHT’s overall 
business, investment and operational 
strategies. 

Prior to her current appointment, 
she was Chief Investment Officer 
at Frasers Hospitality Pte. Ltd., 
responsible for business development 
and investments relating to FCL’s 
hospitality division and for setting 
strategic directions together with the 
division’s Chief Executive Officer. 

Before joining FCL group, Ms Eu 
was Senior Vice President of the 
Asset-Backed Securitisation team 
at DBS Bank Ltd, responsible for the 
origination and listings of real estate 
investment trusts and business trusts in 
Singapore. She was involved in various 
IPOs and secondary fundraising 
projects, including the IPOs of Frasers 
Centrepoint Trust, Pacific Shipping 
Trust, Perennial China Retail Trust and 
Mapletree Industrial Trust, the re-
capitalisation of Frasers Commercial 
Trust via a rights issue and issuance of 
convertible perpetual preferred units, 
as well as the secondary fundraising 
for CapitaMall Trust, Mapletree 

Logistics Trust and CDL Hospitality 
Trust, among others.

Previously, Ms Eu was a Relationship 
Manager with DBS Bank and held the 
position of Assistant Vice President 
with Incofood Management Services 
Pte Ltd where she was responsible 
for acquisitions of businesses for the 
Incofood group in Singapore.

A Chartered Financial Analyst, Ms 
Eu holds a Bachelor of Business 
in Financial Analysis degree from 
Nanyang Technological University, 
Singapore. 

MS VALERIE FOO MEEI FOON
Chief Financial Officer

Ms Foo is Chief Financial Officer 
of the REIT Manager, responsible 
for FHT’s financial and capital 
management. She has more than 15 
years of financial experience. Before 
her current appointment, she was 
Regional Financial Controller at Frasers 
Hospitality Pte. Ltd., responsible for 
the financial accounting and reporting 
of the Frasers Hospitality group of 
companies. She also provided strategic 
financial input for decisions on issues 
affecting the companies. 

Prior to that, she was Regional 
Financial Manager at Frasers 
Hospitality Pte. Ltd., in charge of the 
full spectrum of financial, accounting 
and management reporting activities 
for Singapore investment holding 
companies and overseas subsidiaries. 
She also oversaw the treasury 
activities of the properties under FCL’s 
hospitality division, including cash-
flow management and management 
of gearing within optimised levels.

Earlier, Ms Foo was Finance Manager 
at Infineon Technologies Asia Pacific 
Pte Ltd, overseeing the financial 
systems of seven companies in 
the Asia-Pacific region (Singapore, 
Indonesia, India, Hong Kong, Taiwan, 
Korea and Australia). At Singapore 
Airlines Limited, she held various 
positions, namely Assistant Manager, 
Overseas Accounting (Regional), 
Regional Accountant for South East 
Asia, and Interline Accountant.

Ms Foo holds a Bachelor of 
Accountancy (Honours) degree from 
Nanyang Technological University, 
Singapore, and a Master of Business 
Administration (International 
Management) from Royal Melbourne 
Institute of Technology. She is a 
Chartered Accountant of Singapore.

(From top left) Mr Colin Low Hsien Yang, Mr Mark Rohner, Ms Josephine Lee Woan Chiou, 
Ms Lim Wai Quan, Mr Jason Leong Say Boon, Ms Caris Ang Kai Hui, Ms Eu Chin Fen, Ms Valerie Foo Meei Foon
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

MS JOSEPHINE LEE 
WOAN CHIOU
Financial Controller

Ms Lee is Financial Controller of 
the REIT Manager, responsible 
for financial matters of the REIT 
Manager and FHT. She has 12 years 
of commercial financial and regional 
internal audit experience and 5 years 
of experience in Big Four audit firms. 
Before her current appointment, 
she was Finance Director at Venture 
Corporation Limited, responsible for 
the full spectrum of finance functions 
for a significant Business Unit with 
manufacturing plants in Singapore, 
Malaysia and China. 

In Venture Corporation Limited, Ms 
Lee had spent the initial 6 years in 
Shanghai in the capacity of Financial 
Controller, where she built up the 
local finance team’s capabilities and 
provided operational and strategic 
support to the General Manager. 

Ms Lee also led audit and non-audit 
engagements with exposure to 
different industries during her 5 years 
in Big Four audit firms where she had 
experience in the Business Consulting 
practice and Transactional Advisory 
Services team for IPO engagements.

Ms Lee holds a Bachelor of 
Accountancy (Honours) degree from 
Nanyang Technological University, 
Singapore, and is a Chartered 
Accountant of Singapore.

MR COLIN LOW HSIEN YANG 
Senior Director, Head of Investment 

and Investor Relations

Mr Low is Senior Director, Head of 
Investment, responsible for identifying 
and evaluating potential acquisitions 
of hotels and serviced residences. He 
has over 14 years of experience in real 
estate.

Mr Low is also the key contact 
for maintaining relations with the 
investment and research community, 
stapled securityholders and the media.

Prior to his current appointment, 
he was Director of Business 
Development at Frasers Hospitality 
Pte. Ltd., overseeing its business 
development and investments across 
the Asia-Pacific region. Earlier, he 
was responsible for investments and 
business development at CapitaLand 
Malls Asia Limited, AIG Global Real 
Estate Investments and The Ascott 
Group within the hospitality, retail 
and other real estate asset classes. Mr 
Low first started his career at United 
Overseas Bank, focusing on real estate 
corporate banking. 
 

Mr Low holds a Bachelor of Social 
Science (Honours) in Economics from 
the National University of Singapore.

MR JASON LEONG SAY BOON
Director, Investment

Mr Leong is Director, Investment, 
responsible for growing FHT’s portfolio 
size through acquisition of new 
hospitality assets.

Prior to his current appointment, 
he was Deputy Director of Business 
Development at Frasers Hospitality 
Pte. Ltd., heading its business 
development and investments across 
the Southeast Asia and Australia 
regions. Mr Leong also has extensive 
overseas working experience. He 
was stationed in New York, USA with 
the Overseas Singaporean Unit at 
the National Population and Talent 
Division, Prime Minister’s Office. 
Before that, he worked for The Ascott 
Group in business development and 
investment, which involved a stint in 
Moscow, Russia. He started his career 
with International Enterprise Singapore 
(IE Singapore) and was based in Manila, 
Philippines. 

Mr Leong holds a Bachelor of Social 
Science (Honours) in Economics from 
the National University of Singapore.

MR MARK ROHNER 
Senior Director, Head of Asset 

Management

Mr Rohner is Senior Director, Head of 
Asset Management, responsible for the 
asset management of FHT’s portfolio. 
His role includes working with the 
hotel management teams to optimise 
and improve overall operating 
performance as well as identifying 
and executing asset enhancement 
initiatives that will have an accretive 
effect on the cash flows generated by 
the properties. 

Prior to his current appointment, Mr 
Rohner was Vice President, Finance, 
at Shangri-La Asia Ltd, in charge of 
acquisitions and asset management 
of the group’s owned hotel portfolio. 
During his time with Shangri-La, he 
actively asset managed the group’s 
key hotel properties in Asia Pacific 
and Europe, and completed hotel and 
land acquisitions in Australia, Hong 
Kong, Italy and Mauritius totalling over 
USD800 million.

Mr Rohner joined Shangri-La from 
Government of Singapore Investment 
Corporation (“GIC”), where he worked 
in both its London and Singapore 
offices. He was responsible for the 
asset management of the fund’s 
hotel properties in Europe, Japan and 

Australia, and for debt investments and 
restructurings in Japan. Prior to GIC, 
Mr Rohner held corporate positions 
in revenue management and strategic 
marketing at Hyatt Hotels & Resorts in 
Chicago and Lausanne. 

Mr Rohner holds a Bachelor of Science 
from Ecole hôtelière de Lausanne 
(Honours) and an MBA from INSEAD. 

MS CARIS ANG KAI HUI
Deputy Director, Asset Management

Ms Ang is Deputy Director, Asset 
Management, responsible for the asset 
management of FHT’s portfolio. Her 
role includes optimizing and executing 
asset management strategies to 
improve the income for the portfolio, 
through working with the various 
hotels and service residence operators. 
She is also responsible for identifying 
and implementing asset enhancement 
initiatives that are yield accretive. 

Prior to her current appointment, 
she was Senior Manager of Business 
Development at Frasers Hospitality 
Pte. Ltd., responsible for its business 
development and investments across 
the Asia-Pacific region. Previously at 
Mapletree Logistics Trust Management 
Ltd, the manager of SGX-listed 
Mapletree Logistics REIT, Ms Ang was 
the asset manager for a portfolio of 
logistics properties in Singapore and 
Malaysia. She started her career at City 
Developments Limited, focusing on 
property management of commercial 
assets.

Ms Ang holds a Bachelor of Science 
(Honours) in Building from the 
National University of Singapore.

MS LIM WAI QUAN
Finance Manager

Ms Lim is Finance Manager of the REIT 
Manager, responsible for financial 
matters of the REIT Manager and FHT. 

Prior to her current appointment, 
she was Finance Manager at Internet 
Technology Group Limited (formerly 
listed with Singapore Exchange 
Securities Trading Limited). Ms 
Lim was responsible for financial 
and management reporting, and 
accounting operations for the group. 
Previously, Ms Lim was an Audit 
Manager with Ernst & Young LLP, 
Singapore. 

Ms Lim is a Chartered Accountant with 
the Institute of Singapore Chartered 
Accountants and a fellow member 
of Association of Chartered Certified 
Accountants. She holds a Bachelor of 
Accountancy (Honours) degree from 
University of Hertfordshire, United 
Kingdom.
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C R E A T I N G 
S U S T A I N A B L E 
V A L U E

FHT remains committed to enhancing our growth 

potential via acquisitions, organic growth, AEI value 

creation and prudent capital management. With 

exposure to two distinct asset classes in hotels and 

serviced residences, as well as access to different 

hospitality brands, we are well-positioned to seize new 

opportunities and generate sustainable value for the 

years ahead.

The Westin Kuala Lumpur, Presidential Suite

Fraser Suites Queens Gate, Two Bedroom Apartment

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •



26

A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 2
0

15
F

R
A

S
E

R
S

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L
IT

Y
 T

R
U

S
T

OVERVIEW OF PROPERTIES

PROPERTIES

13

TOTAL PORTFOLIO VALUE

SGD1.96 billion

CITIES

7
KEYS

3,206

JAPAN
Kobe

Glasgow

Edinburgh

London 

SINGAPORE

MALAYSIA
Kuala Lumpur

AUSTRALIA
Sydney

UNITED KINGDOM
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L
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N

Park International 
London

Best Western 
Cromwell London

Fraser Place  
Canary Wharf London

Fraser Suites  
Queens Gate London

S
IN

G
A

P
O

R
E

InterContinental 
Singapore

Fraser Suites 
Singapore

S
Y

D
N

E
Y

Fraser Suites  
Sydney

Sofitel Sydney 
Wentworth

Novotel Rockford 
Darling Harbour

OVERVIEW OF PROPERTIES
K

U
A

L
A

 L
U

M
P

U
R The Westin 

Kuala Lumpur

K
O

B
E

ANA Crowne  
Plaza Kobe

G
L

A
S

G
O

W

Fraser Suites 
Glasgow

E
D

IN
B

U
R

G
H

Fraser Suites  
Edinburgh
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PORTFOLIO SUMMARY

Property Purchase 
Price (mil) 

Occupancy 
(%)

Gross Revenue for 
FY2015 (mil)

Vendor Master Lessee

InterContinental 
Singapore

SGD497.1 83.5% SGD22.5 BCH Hotel 
Investment Pte Ltd

BCH Hotel 
Investment Pte 
Ltd

Fraser Suites Singapore SGD327.0 84.0% SGD17.4 River Valley 
Apartments Pte 
Ltd, River Valley 
Shopping Centre 
Pte Ltd and River 
Valley Tower  
Pte Ltd

River Valley 
Apartments Pte 
Ltd

The Westin Kuala Lumpur MYR455.0 71.7% MYR29.8 JBB Hotels Sdn 
Bhd

JBB Hotels Sdn 
Bhd

ANA Crowne Plaza Kobe JPY11,200.0 84.1% JPY1,612.7 Excellence 
Prosperity 
(Singapore) Pte. 
Ltd

Hotel: K.K. 
Shinkobe Holding

Retail: Y.K. 
Toranomon 
Properties

Sofitel Sydney 
Wentworth1

AUD224.0 88.4% AUD4.3 Frasers Sydney 
Wentworth Trust

Ananke Holdings 
Pty Ltd

Novotel Rockford  
Darling Harbour

AUD66.0 90.5% AUD6.8 Viewgrand Trust B Frasers Sydney ML 
Hotel Pty Ltd2

Fraser Suites Sydney AUD103.5 92.5% AUD11.7 Frasers Townhall 
Residences Pty Ltd

Frasers Townhall 
Residences 
Operations Pty Ltd

Park International 
London

GBP39.3 85.9% GBP3.5 Global-Link 
Investments 
Limited

P I Hotel 
Management 
Limited

Best Western Cromwell 
London

GBP17.0 88.2% GBP1.5 Global-Link 
Investments 
Limited

P I Hotel 
Management 
Limited

Fraser Place  
Canary Wharf London

GBP31.5 84.6% GBP4.2 Fairdace Limited Fairdace Limited

Fraser Suites  
Queens Gate London

GBP46.3 90.9% GBP5.1 Queensgate 
Garden (C.I.) 
Limited

39QGG 
Management 
Limited

Fraser Suites Glasgow GBP7.5 87.9% GBP1.3 Fairdace Limited Fairdace Limited

Fraser Suites Edinburgh GBP11.5 84.0% GBP1.5 Frasers  
(St Giles Street, 
Edinburgh) 
Limited

Frasers  
(St Giles Street) 
Management 
Limited

1 Sofitel Sydney Wentworth was acquired on 7 July 2015. Occupancy and Gross Revenue is from period 7 July 2015 to 30 September 2015.
2 The original master lessee was Viewgrand Trust C. On 1 April 2015, the master lessee agreement was novated, with Frasers Sydney ML Hotel Pty Ltd 

taking over as the master lessee. Frasers Sydney ML Hotel Pty Ltd is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Sponsor.

[G4-17]
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Best Western Cromwell London
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ASSET PROFILE

30

INTERCONTINENTAL SINGAPORE

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

InterContinental Singapore is nestled 
in a retail and commercial area 
comprising Bugis Junction Shopping 
Mall, Bugis+ Shopping Mall and 
other commercial complexes 
along Victoria Street, Middle Road 
and North Bridge Road. Situated 
approximately 2 km from the CBD, 
the hotel is close to key tourist hubs 
such as Orchard Road, Chinatown 

and Marina Bay. It sits above the 
Bugis Mass Rapid Transit station, 
which provides convenient access 
to attractions around Singapore.

InterContinental Singapore is the 
only luxury hotel in Singapore to 
have preserved Peranakan heritage 
in a shophouse-style setting. 
The 16-storey hotel offers 406 

guest rooms and has facilities 
such as a gym, swimming pool, 
an all-day-dining restaurant, a 
Chinese restaurant and a Japanese 
restaurant. The hotel also has 
ample parking, which is a shared 
facility within the Bugis Junction 
development.
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ASSET PROFILE

INTERCONTINENTAL SINGAPORE

KEY FACTS

Location
80 Middle Road, Singapore 188966

Market Segment
Luxury

No. of Rooms
406

F&B Facilities
3 restaurants; 1 bar; 1 lobby lounge

Meeting Facilities
3 ballrooms; 6 meeting rooms

Gross Floor Area
49,987 sqm

Valuation as at 30 September 2015 
(SGD)
535.0 million

AWARDS AND ACCREDITATIONS

Description of Award Awarder Year

2015 Certificate of Excellence –  
InterContinental Singapore

TripAdvisor 2015

Trackchef Competition – Hospitality Suite Menu 
Planning Category

- Best Main Course (Action Station)
- Best Buffet Main Course
- Best Menu Composition
- Overall Winner  

(Teamed with Marina Mandarin Singapore)

2015 Formula 
1 Singapore 
Grand Prix

2015

Singapore Top Restaurants Guide 2015  
for Man Fu Yuan

Wine & Dine 2015

Forbes Travel Guide 2015 Four-Star Rating Forbes Travel 
Guide

2015

Singapore Green Hotel Award 2015 Singapore Hotel 
Association

2015

2014 Travellers' Choice® Award for "Top 10 
Hotels with Exceptional Service - Singapore"

TripAdvisor 2014

Forbes Travel Guide 2014 Four-Star Rating Forbes Travel 
Guide

2014

ASEAN Green Hotel Award 2014 Singapore Hotel 
Association

2014

Shophouse King Room

Swimming Pool

VICTORIA ST

BUGIS 
JUNCTION

NATIONAL
LIBRARY

SINGAPORE

INTERCONTINENTAL
SINGAPORE

BUGIS

BRAS
BASAH

BUGIS  +

CHIJMES

CHURCH OF  
ST PETER & PAUL

FORT CANNING 
PARK

NATIONAL 
MUSEUM OF
SINGAPORE

SINGAPORE ART MUSEUM

ST JOSEPH’S 
CHURCH

M
ID

D
LE

 R
D

WATERLOO ST

QUEEN ST

NORTH BRIDGE RD

B
R

A
S B

A
SA

H
 R

D
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PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

Situated in River Valley, a prime 
residential district, Fraser Suites 
Singapore is approximately 2 km 
from the Orchard Road shopping 
belt and approximately 3.5 km from 
the CBD. The serviced residence 
is also close to the Dempsey, 
Boat Quay and Clarke Quay 
entertainment areas.

Its unit sizes range from 50 sqm 
for a one-bedroom to 350 sqm 
for a penthouse. Each unit is fully 
furnished with separate living, 
dining, kitchen and bedroom  
areas, as well as a state-of-the 
art home entertainment system, 
bathroom amenities and high-speed 
wireless internet access.

Fraser Suites Singapore offers a wide 
range of recreational and business 
facilities, including an extensive 
indoor and outdoor playzone, a 24-
hour fully equipped gym, a jet pool, 
a swimming pool, steam and sauna 
facilities.

FRASER SUITES SINGAPORE

ASSET PROFILE
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FRASER SUITES 
SINGAPORE

BRITISH HIGH 
COMMISSION 
SINGAPORE

EMBASSY OF 
PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC 
OF CHINA

EMBASSY OF 
REPUBLIC OF 
INDONESIA

HIGH COMMISSION 
OF BRUNEI

HIGH  
COMMISSION  
OF MALAYSIA

TIONG BAHRU

CLARKE QUAY

FORT 
CANNING 
HILL

NATIONAL MUSEUM 
OF SINGAPORE

DHOBY  
GHAUTSOMERSET

TAKASHIMAYA

PARAGON

ION 
ORCHARD

ORCHARD

CINELEISURE

PLAZA 
SINGAPURA

RIVER VALLEY RD

GANGES AVE

ORCHARD RD

KEY FACTS

Location
491A River Valley Road, 
Singapore 248372

Market Segment
Upper upscale

No. of Rooms
255

F&B Facilities
1 restaurant

Meeting Facilities
1 meeting room

Gross Floor Area
27,018 sqm

Valuation as at 30 September 2015 
(SGD)
310.0 million

AWARDS AND ACCREDITATIONS

Description of Award Awarder Year

Certificate of Excellence TripAdvisor 2014 & 2015

Asia’s Leading Serviced Apartments World Travel Awards 2014

Excellence Service Award SPRING Singapore 2014

Penthouse Apartment

Swimming Pool

FRASER SUITES SINGAPORE

HAVELOCK RD

4 KM TO
CITYHALL 
& CLARKE 
QUAY 
STATIONS

ASSET PROFILE
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THE WESTIN KUAL A LUMPUR

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

The luxury Westin Kuala Lumpur, 
located in the bustling Golden 
Triangle, offers convenient access to 
the city’s shopping malls and nightlife. 
The hotel is directly opposite Pavilion 
KL, which has more than 500 retail 
shops. It is also in close proximity 
to Kuala Lumpur City Centre, where 
multinational corporations and 
leading financial institutions are 
located.

The 35-storey hotel offers 380 
hotel rooms and 63 residential 
suites. It has a wide range of 
recreational and business facilities, 
including a gym, swimming pool, 
F&B outlets serving Chinese, Italian, 
Cuban cuisines, and a bar. 

The Westin Kuala Lumpur has 25 
meeting rooms and conference 
facilities, all equipped with state-
of-the-art audio-visual equipment 

and broadband facilities. The hotel’s 
grand ballroom can accommodate 
up to 50 round tables. In 2014, 
the hotel renovated the Westin 
Executive Club Lounge, which has 
two small meeting rooms catering 
to corporate travellers.

Five Sen5es

Westin Suite

ASSET PROFILE
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JA
LA

N
 SU

LTA
N

 ISM
A

IL

JALAN BUKIT BINTANG

JALAN KIA PENG

LOT 10

KLCC

FAHRENHEIT88

PAVILION 
KL

STARHILL 
GALLERY

LOW YAT PLAZA

JALAN RAJA CHULAN

JALAN
 PU

D
U

THE WESTIN
KUALA LUMPUR

THE WESTIN KUAL A LUMPUR

KEY FACTS

Location
199, Jalan Bukit Bintang, 
Kuala Lumpur, 55100, Malaysia

Market Segment
Upper upscale

No. of Rooms
443

F&B Facilities
5 restaurants; 1 club lounge; 1 lounge

Meeting Facilities
25 meeting rooms and 1 executive 
boardroom

Gross Floor Area
79,593 sqm

Valuation as at 30 September 2015 
(MYR)
443.0 million

AWARDS AND ACCREDITATIONS

Description of Award Awarder Year

Best Service Excellence Award Expatriate Lifestyle 2015

Award of Excellence – Most 
Outstanding Restaurant Wine List in 
the World for Prego

Wine Spectator 2015

Malaysia’s Best Restaurant – Prego Malaysia Tatler 2015

Certificate of Excellence – Prego 
Restaurant

TripAdvisor 2015

Malaysia’s Best Restaurants - QBa Tatler’s Best Restaurant 
Guide

2015

Malaysia’s Leading Business Hotel World Travel Awards 2014

Deluxe Room

JALAN ALOR

Five Sen5es

Westin Suite

KL CITY PARK

UOA 
CENTRE

EMBASSY OF 
THE REPUBLIC 

OF PHILIPPINES

RAJA 
CHULAN

BUKIT 
BINTANG

ASSET PROFILE
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ANA CROWNE PL AZA KOBE

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

ANA Crowne Plaza Kobe is located 
close to the centre of Kobe City, the 
biggest city in Hyogo Prefecture. 
Situated above Shin-Kobe Subway 
Station, one subway stop from 
downtown Kobe, the hotel also 
has direct access to JR Shin-Kobe 
Shinkansen Station, which offers 
easy access to Tokyo and Osaka. It 
is approximately 8 km from Kobe 
Airport and 71 km from Kansai 
International Airport.

ANA Crowne Plaza Kobe offers a 
variety of room options, ranging 
from 15 sqm single-bed rooms 

to 125 sqm club suites. The guest 
rooms are equipped with amenities 
such as complimentary high-speed 
internet, cable/satellite television 
and a mini-bar. 

ANA Crowne Plaza Kobe offers 
a wide range of recreational and 
business facilities, including a health 
and fitness centre and a business 
services centre. The health and 
fitness centre is equipped with a 
gym and features an all-season 
indoor swimming pool and a sauna 
bath.

ANA Crowne Plaza Kobe has 
event spaces covering 3,298 sqm 
and includes exhibit areas and 
a ballroom. The ballroom can 
accommodate up to 2,000 persons. 
The hotel has 11 restaurants and a 
bar, offering a wide range of dining 
options and a total seating capacity 
of 968 persons. It also offers a 70-
seat chapel, spa facilities, a beauty 
salon, a florist and a gift shop on its 
premises.

Deluxe Bedroom

Angsana Spa Treatment Room

ASSET PROFILE
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ANA CROWNE PL AZA KOBE

A
R

IM
A

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

SANYO SHINKANSEN

ROPEWAY

HARBOR  
LAND

KOBE 
MARUI

MINT 
KOBE

KOBE  
TOWER

KOBE CHINATOWN

KOBEROSAI
HOSPITAL

ANA CROWNE
PLAZA KOBE

SANNOMIYAMOTOMACHI

KASUGANOMICHI

SHIN KOBE JR

KOBE LINE OF THE HANSHIN
EXPRESSWAY

KEY FACTS

Location
1-Chome, Kitano-Cho Chuo-Ku, 
Kobe, 650-0002, Japan

Market Segment
Upper upscale

No. of Rooms
593

F&B Facilities
11 restaurants; 1 bar; 1 lobby lounge; 
1 club lounge

Meeting Facilities
23 function / meeting rooms

Gross Floor Area
136,657 sqm  
(Hotel: 66,256 sqm, Retail: 70,401 sqm)

Valuation as at 30 September 2015 
(JPY)
14.0 billion

AWARDS AND ACCREDITATIONS

Description of Award Awarder Year

Certificate of Excellence TripAdvisor 2015

Award of Excellence Booking.com 2014

Rurubu Travel (JTB) Bronze Award JTB Travel 2014

Main Lobby

Deluxe Bedroom

Angsana Spa Treatment Room

SOGO

ASSET PROFILE
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SOFITEL SYDNEY WENTWORTH

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

Sofitel Sydney Wentworth is an 
iconic heritage-listed hotel located 
in the heart of Sydney’s CBD. It is 
nestled among the city’s prominent 
buildings, retail and commercial 
spaces, including the Australian 
Stock Exchange and Chifley Tower. 
The hotel is also within walking 
distance of major tourist attractions 
such as the Royal Botanic Gardens, 
Sydney Opera House, Sydney 
Harbour Bridge, Circular Quay, Hyde 
Park and Pitt Street Mall.

Built in 1966, Sofitel Sydney 
Wentworth was the city’s first 
international hotel. Its distinctive 
horseshoe design is a familiar and 
significant architectural landmark 
in Sydney. Its huge copper canopy 
over the entrance was one of the 
largest completely fabricated copper 
awnings in the world, at the time of 
its construction.

Sofitel Sydney Wentworth also offers 
easy access to public transport. 
Located approximately 200 metres 

away is Martin Place train station, 
which provides services to Bondi 
Junction, Town Hall, and Central 
Station. The Circular Quay bus, rail, 
and ferry terminuses are also within 
walking distance. 

Sofitel Sydney Wentworth features 
436 guest rooms and suites, a lobby 
bar, restaurant, club lounge and 
substantial conference facilities, 
including one of the largest pillarless 
ballrooms in Sydney.

ASSET PROFILE
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DARLING 
HARBOUR

BARANGAROO
DEVELOPMENT

CIRCULAR
QUAY

ROYAL 
BOTANIC 
GARDENS

CHIFLEY 
TOWER

PITT 
STREET 
MALL

THE 
STRAND 
ARCADE

WESTFIELD SYDNEY 
CENTRAL PLAZA

PARLIAMENT 
OF NEW 
SOUTH 
WALES

SUPREME 
COURT

SICEEP

SOFITEL SYDNEY
WENTWORTH

ST JAMES

WYNYARD

P
H

ILIP
 ST

SOFITEL SYDNEY WENTWORTH

KEY FACTS

Location
61-101 Phillip Street, Sydney, NSW 
2000, Australia

Market Segment
Luxury

No. of Rooms
436

F&B Facilities
1 restaurant; 1 bar; 1 club lounge

Meeting Facilities
11 meeting rooms

Gross Floor Area
33,589 sqm

Valuation as at 30 September 2015 
(AUD)
227.0 million

AWARDS AND ACCREDITATIONS

Description of Award Awarder Year

Second Runner Up – Luxury 
Upscale Brands of Accor Sustainable 
Performance Award 2015

Accor 2015

Garden Court Restaurant

Luxury Club King Room

1 KM TO
SYDNEY 
OPERA 
HOUSE, 
THE ROCKS 
& SYDNEY 
HARBOUR 
BRIDGE

DAVID JONES 
MARKET STREET

G
EO

R
G

E
 ST

P
IT

T
 ST MARTIN PLC

ASSET PROFILE
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PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

Novotel Rockford Darling Harbour 
is situated at the corner of Harbour 
and Little Pier streets, on the edge of 
the CBD’s Chinatown and opposite 
Sydney Entertainment Centre. The 
hotel is also within walking distance 
of many shops and restaurants at 
Darling Harbour, Cockle Bay and 
King Street Wharf and the Sydney 
Convention and Exhibition Centre.

The hotel’s Pumphouse Bar & 
Restaurant, with a capacity for 417 
guests, is housed in a refurbished 
heritage-listed building. It features 
an outdoor terrace, ottoman-style 
seating areas and an open kitchen 
serving wood-fired pizzas and 
modern Australian cuisine. The 
Brew Café is located in the hotel’s 
lobby and provides the setting for 
corporate lunches, small business 
meetings and private functions. 

Ceezens is a restaurant located 
next to the lobby lounge on the 
hotel’s ground floor and is open for 
breakfast daily.

NOVOTEL ROCKFORD DARLING HARBOUR

ASSET PROFILE
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NOVOTEL 
ROCKFORD
DARLING 
HARBOUR

QUEEN VICTORIA 
BUILDING

MARKET 
CITY

CHINATOWN

SICEEP

FRASER  
SUITES SYDNEY

DARLING 
HARBOUR

HYDE PARK

G
EO

R
G

E
 ST

P
IT

T
 ST

E
LIZ

A
B

E
T

H
 ST

MUSEUM

8 KM TO
SYDNEY 
AIRPORT

TOWN HALL

KEY FACTS

Location
17 Little Pier Street, Darling Harbour, 
NSW 2000, Australia

Market Segment
Mid-scale

No. of Rooms
230

F&B Facilities
2 restaurants; 1 bar

Meeting Facilities
5 meeting rooms

Gross Floor Area
12,128 sqm

Valuation as at 30 September 2015 
(AUD)
73.0 million

AWARDS AND ACCREDITATIONS

Description of Award Awarder Year

Top Spot to Indulge Your Inner 
Foodie in Australia

Hotel Club Awards 2012

NOVOTEL ROCKFORD DARLING HARBOUR

Pumphouse Bar & RestaurantSwimming Pool

Deluxe King Room

ASSET PROFILE
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FRASER SUITES SYDNEY

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

Fraser Suites Sydney is situated 
within the western corridor of 
the city’s CBD in close proximity 
to Sydney Town Hall, Chinatown, 
Darling Harbour and World Square 
retail/office and entertainment 
precinct. The serviced residence 
is also within walking distance 
of Cockle Bay Wharf, which 
features the IMAX theatre, SICEEP 
and numerous restaurants and 
entertainment facilities.  

Sydney’s Kingsford Smith Airport is 
approximately a 20-minute drive 
away. The serviced residence is 
designed by the internationally 
renowned architects Foster and 
Partners and it is directly connected 
to Regent Place, a three-storey 
retail plaza with a myriad of F&B 
outlets. The unit sizes in Fraser 
Suites Sydney range from 26 sqm 
for a studio apartment to 191 sqm 
for a penthouse. Each unit is fully 
furnished with spacious living areas 
and affords panoramic views of the 
city’s skyline.

Fraser Suites Sydney offers a wide 
range of recreational and business 
facilities. Its leisure centre features 
a gym, a heated lap pool, and spa 
and sauna facilities. Conference 
facilities include conference rooms 
with internet access and secretarial 
services. The serviced residence also 
has a secure covered car park.

Main Lobby

ASSET PROFILE
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CHINESE
GARDEN

AUSTRALIA
MUSEUM

SEA LIFE 
SYDNEY 

AQUARIUM

COCKLE  
BAY WHARF

SYDNEY  
TOWN HALL

WESTFIELD SYDNEY
CENTRAL PLAZA

SYDNEY  
TOWER EYE

DARLING 
HARBOUR

HYDE PARK

P
IT

T
 ST

MUSEUM
8 KM TO
SYDNEY
KINGSFORD 
SMITH 
AIRPORT

TOWN  
HALL

QUEEN VICTORIA 
BUILDING

E
LIZ

A
B

E
T

H
 ST

G
EO

R
G

E
 ST

IMAX THEATRE
SYDNEY 

FRASER  
SUITES SYDNEY

FRASER SUITES SYDNEY

KEY FACTS

Location
488 Kent Street, Sydney, 
NSW 2000, Australia

Market Segment
Upper upscale

No. of Rooms
201

F&B Facilities
1 restaurant

Meeting Facilities
5 meeting rooms

Gross Floor Area
12,137 sqm

Valuation as at 30 September 2015 
(AUD)
109.6 million

AWARDS AND ACCREDITATIONS

Description of Award Awarder Year

Certificate of Excellence TripAdvisor 2015

Hall of Fame TripAdvisor 2015

Best Apartment / Suite Hotel Australian Hotels 
Association

2015

Best Serviced Apartments HM Awards for Hotel 
& Accommodation 
Excellence

2015

Australasia’s Leading Serviced 
Apartments

World Travel Awards 2014

Serviced Apartment Property of the 
Year

HM Awards for Hotel 
& Accommodation 
Excellence

2014

Main Lobby

One Bedroom Deluxe

Deluxe King Room

ASSET PROFILE
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PARK INTERNATIONAL LONDON

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

Park International London is an 
elegant hotel with 171 guest rooms. 
Set in a Victorian-style building 
in the heart of Kensington and 
Chelsea, it is in close proximity to 
London’s leading tourist attractions 
such as the Natural History Museum, 
Royal Albert Hall, South Kensington, 
and Earls Court Exhibition Centre. 

The Gloucester Road Underground 
Station is also nearby. The hotel’s 
strategic location allows it to 
capture demand from both business 
and leisure travellers.

Park International London offers a 
variety of room options, from single 
rooms to Heritage Junior Suites. 

The hotel also offers a wide range of 
recreational and business facilities, 
including a gym and a business 
centre, and provides high-speed 
wireless internet access.

ASSET PROFILE



45

A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 2
0

15
F

R
A

S
E

R
S

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L
IT

Y
 T

R
U

S
T

PARK INTERNATIONAL LONDON

KEY FACTS

Location
117-129 Cromwell Road,  
South Kensington, London, 
SW7 4DS, United Kingdom

Market Segment
Mid-scale

No. of Rooms
171

F&B Facilities
2 restaurants; 1 bar

Meeting Facilities
1 meeting room

Gross Floor Area
6,825 sqm

Valuation as at 30 September 2015 
(GBP)
40.7 million

AWARDS AND ACCREDITATIONS

Description of Award Awarder Year

Certificate of Excellence TripAdvisor 2014

Certificate of Excellence  
(Checkmate Bar & Restaurant)

TripAdvisor 2014

Award of Excellence Booking.com 2014

Checkmate Bar & Restaurant

Heritage Junior Suite 
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ROYAL 
ALBERT HALL

NATIONAL
HISTORY
MUSEUM

VICTORIA 
AND ALBERT
MUSEUM

HARRODSSAINSBURY’S 
LOCAL

IMPERIAL
COLLEGE

FRASER 
SUITES
QUEENS GATE

SCIENCE 
MUSEUM

SOUTH
KENSINGTON

25KM TO 
LONDON 
HEATHROW 
AIRPORT

PARK 
INTERNATIONAL 
LONDON

BEST WESTERN 
CROMWELL 

LONDON

GLOUCESTER
ROAD
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PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

Best Western Cromwell London 
is a hotel with 85 guest rooms. It 
is set in a Victorian-style building 
on Cromwell Road in the South 
Kensington borough, with the 
Gloucester Road Underground 
Station served by the Piccadilly, 
Circle and District lines in close 
proximity. Nearby attractions include 
the Science Museum, Natural 

History Museum, and Victoria & 
Albert Museum, as well as shopping 
destinations such as Harrods and 
Harvey Nichols. 

Best Western Cromwell London’s 
strategic location allows it to 
capture demand from both business 
and leisure travellers.

Best Western Cromwell London 
offers a variety of room options, 
ranging from single rooms to 
executive rooms. 

BEST WESTERN CROMWELL LONDON

Studio Apartment Balcony

ASSET PROFILE
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KEY FACTS

Location
108, 110 and 112 Cromwell Road, 
London, SW7 4ES, United Kingdom

Market Segment
Mid-scale

No. of Rooms
85

F&B Facilities
1 restaurant; 1 bar

Meeting Facilities
1 meeting room

Gross Floor Area
2,512 sqm

Valuation as at 30 September 2015 
(GBP)
18.6 million

AWARDS AND ACCREDITATIONS

Description of Award Awarder Year

Bronze in the Green Tourism 
Business Scheme

Green Tourism 2014

BEST WESTERN CROMWELL LONDON

Studio Apartment

Façade
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LONDON

ROYAL 
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KENSINGTON
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ROAD

25KM TO 
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HEATHROW 
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PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

Fraser Place Canary Wharf is 
located by the River Thames in 
Canary Wharf, London’s modern 
financial centre and a hotspot of 
chic restaurants, bars and shops. 
It is a five-minute stroll from the 
lively Canary Wharf shopping and 
entertainment complex, as well as a 
ten-minute walk from Canary Wharf 
Underground Station (Jubilee Line) 
and Docklands Light Railway. The 
London City Airport is also within an 
easy 10 minutes ride.

The 14-storey serviced residence 
offers 108 rooms ranging from 21 
sqm for a studio apartment to 200 
sqm for a penthouse. Each unit is 
fully furnished with spacious living 
areas and all units afford views of 
Canary Wharf, the River Thames and 
The O2 in Greenwich.
 
 
 
 
 

Fraser Place Canary Wharf offers 
a wide range of recreational and 
business facilities, including a 24-
hour gym and a full-service business 
centre.

FRASER PL ACE CANARY WHARF LONDON

Studio Apartment

Two Bedroom Apartment

ASSET PROFILE
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FRASER PLACE 
CANARY WHARF 
LONDON

THE 02

R
IV

ER
 T

H
A

M
ES

CANARY WHARF

CABOT SQUARE
MALL WEST  

& EAST

BARCLAYS 
BUILDING

ONE CANADA
SQUARE

HARBOUR
QUAY

HERON QUAYS

BILLINGSGATE MARKET

KEY FACTS

Location
80 Boardwalk Place, 
London E14 5SF, United Kingdom

Market Segment
Upper upscale

No. of Rooms
108

F&B Facilities
1 restaurant

Meeting Facilities
-

Gross Floor Area
5,659 sqm

Valuation as at 30 September 2015 
(GBP)
41.6 million

AWARDS AND ACCREDITATIONS

Description of Award Awarder Year

Certificate of Excellence TripAdvisor 2015

Hall of Fame TripAdvisor 2015

FRASER PL ACE CANARY WHARF LONDON

EntranceStudio Apartment

Two Bedroom Apartment

5KM TO 
LONDON 
CITY 
AIRPORT

ASSET PROFILE
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FRASER SUITES QUEENS GATE LONDON

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

Fraser Suites Queens Gate is 
conveniently situated within 
walking distance of Knightsbridge, 
Chelsea, Hyde Park, Royal Albert 
Hall and Harrods. It is located close 
to Gloucester Road Underground 
Station (Piccadilly, District and Circle 
lines) and about 23 km from London 
Heathrow Airport.

The seven-storey serviced residence 
is housed in a preserved 19th-
century historical building and 
offers 105 rooms. It features elegant 
interiors and a dining conservatory. 

The unit sizes in Fraser Suites 
Queens Gate range from studio 
deluxe units to two-bedroom deluxe 
units. 

Fraser Suites Queens Gate offers 
a range of recreational and 
business facilities, such as a gym 
and a meeting room that can 
accommodate up to 30 people. 
There is also a guest laundry at the 
lower ground floor and a business 
zone with internet workstations.

ASSET PROFILE
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FRASER SUITES 
QUEENS GATE 
LONDON

ROYAL 
ALBERT HALL

NATIONAL
HISTORY
MUSEUM

VICTORIA 
AND ALBERT
MUSEUM

HARRODSSAINSBURY’S 
LOCAL

IMPERIAL
COLLEGE

PARK 
INTERNATIONAL 
LONDON

BEST WESTERN 
CROMWELL 

LONDON

SCIENCE 
MUSEUM

SOUTH
KENSINGTON

GLOUCESTER
ROAD

23KM TO 
LONDON 
HEATHROW 
AIRPORT

FRASER SUITES QUEENS GATE LONDON

KEY FACTS

Location
39B Queens Gate Gardens, London 
SW7 5RR, United Kingdom

Market Segment
Upper upscale

No. of Rooms
105

F&B Facilities
1 restaurant

Meeting Facilities
1 meeting room

Gross Floor Area
6,416 sqm

Valuation as at 30 September 2015 
(GBP)
60.8 million

AWARDS AND ACCREDITATIONS

Description of Award Awarder Year

Certificate of Excellence TripAdvisor 2015

Two Bedroom Apartment

Two Bedroom Apartment Living Room
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PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

Fraser Suites Glasgow in Merchant 
City, Glasgow’s historic centre, offers 
convenient access to restaurants, 
boutiques, theatres and pavement 
cafes. It is also in close proximity to 
George Square, Glasgow Cathedral, 
Gallery of Modern Art, and the 
shopping destinations of Buchanan 
Street and St Enoch Centre.

The serviced residence is set in a 
restored 1850s building, once the city 
bank, which has a classic Victorian 
Scottish façade. It comprises five 
storeys and offers 98 rooms.

The unit sizes range from 41 sqm for 
a studio apartment to 59 sqm for a 
two-bedroom and each unit is fully 
furnished with a kitchenette. The 
serviced residence has a 24-hour 
gym and meeting facilities.

FRASER SUITES GL ASGOW

ASSET PROFILE
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KEY FACTS

Location
No 1-19 Albion Street, Glasgow G1 
1LH, Scotland, United Kingdom

Market Segment
Upper upscale

No. of Rooms
98

F&B Facilities
1 restaurant

Meeting Facilities
1 meeting room

Gross Floor Area
7,386 sqm

Valuation as at 30 September 2015 
(GBP)
9.5 million

AWARDS AND ACCREDITATIONS

Description of Award Awarder Year

Certificate of Excellence TripAdvisor 2014 & 2015

Hall of Fame TripAdvisor  2015

Serviced Apartments Hospitality 
Award

Scottish Hotel Awards 2014

Serviced Apartments of the Year Scottish Hotel Awards 2014

Two Bedroom ApartmentOne Bedroom Apartment

Studio Apartment

FRASER SUITES GL ASGOW

UNIVERSITY OF 
STRATHCLYDE

MERCHANT
CITY

CITY HALLS & OLD 
FRUITMARKETGLASGOW

CENTRAL

15KM TO 
GLASGOW 
AIRPORT

ARGYLE
STREET
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ASSET PROFILE
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PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

Set in a 1750s sandstone building, 
Fraser Suites Edinburgh is located 
on the historic St Giles Street, off 
the Royal Mile in Edinburgh’s Old 
Town and within walking distance of 
Princes Street and Edinburgh Castle. 
It is surrounded by restaurants, bars, 

cafes and shops, and is in close 
proximity to attractions such as 
Holyrood Palace, National Gallery 
of Art, National Museum of Scotland 
and Arthur’s Seat. The serviced 
residence is located about 13 km 
from Edinburgh Airport.

It comprises eight storeys and offers 
75 rooms. The unit sizes range 
from 24 sqm for a studio apartment 
to 47 sqm for an executive suite. 
The serviced residence also has a 
fitness suite and a meeting room 
overlooking the city centre.

FRASER SUITES EDINBURGH

ASSET PROFILE
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13KM TO 
EDINBURGH 
AIRPORT

FRASER SUITES 
EDINBURGH

PRINCES ST

MARKET ST

HIGH ST

EDINBURGH
WAVERLEY

PRINCES MALL 
SHOPPING CENTRE

SCOTTISH 
NATIONAL GALLERY

NATIONAL 
MUSEUM
SCOTLAND

THE WRITERS’ 
MUSEUM

EDINBURGH 
CASTLE

ROYAL 
SCOTTISH ACADEMY

ST GILES
CATHEDRAL

PRINCES  
STREET GARDEN

KEY FACTS

Location
12-26 St Giles Street, Edinburgh EH1 1 
PT, Scotland, United Kingdom

Market Segment
Upper upscale

No. of Rooms
75

F&B Facilities
1 restaurant

Meeting Facilities
-

Gross Floor Area
3,952 sqm

Valuation as at 30 September 2015 
(GBP)
13.9 million

AWARDS AND ACCREDITATIONS

Description of Award Awarder Year

Scotland's Leading Serviced 
Apartments

World Travel Awards  2014 & 2015

Silver Award Green Tourism Business 
Scheme

2014

Serviced Apartments Special 
Commendation Award

Scottish Hotel Awards 2014

FRASER SUITES EDINBURGH

Classic Deluxe

Bespoke Suite

ASSET PROFILE
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

In FY2015, FHT achieved DI of 
SGD93.7 million, representing 
SGD7.56 cents, exceeding its DPS of 
IPO forecast by 2.6%.

GR was marginally below forecast 
in FY2015. NPI was 0.6% better than 
forecast in FY2015 due to savings in 
owner’s expenses. In addition, other 
income and lower trust expenses 
contributed to a DI that is 1.2% higher 
than forecast.

The properties in Japan, Australia and 
UK performed better than forecast 
due to the buoyant tourism markets 
and strong demand from corporate 
customers. The higher GR was driven 
by higher revenue per available room 
(“RevPAR”) in general.

For FY2015, Japan, Australia and 
the UK properties turned in strong 
performance which balanced the 
softer Singapore and KL markets. 
The Singapore portfolio registered 
lower GR and NPI of 6.2% and 
6.1% respectively compared to 
its full year forecast. During the 

FINANCIAL REVIEW

FY2015 
Actual  

(SGD mil)

FY2015  
Forecast

(SGD mil)
Variance 

(%)

Gross Revenue 128.7 129.7 (0.7)

Net Property Income 105.7 105.1 0.6

Distributable Income 93.7 92.6 1.2

DPS (cents) 7.56 7.37 2.6

reporting period, Fraser Suites 
Singapore faced headwinds with 
the softer long stay rental market 
amid increased competition from 
new accommodation supply. 
Due to the rescheduling of the 
asset enhancement project to 
a more appropriate timeframe, 
InterContinental Singapore 
experienced more out of inventory 
rooms than previously budgeted 
during FY2015.

GR and NPI of The Westin Kuala 
Lumpur dipped 17.3% and 19.5% 
respectively compared to its forecast. 
Since the aircraft incidents, the KL 
market continued to face resistance 
as a result of a slower economy, 
softer consumer spending and weak 
corporate travel demand with a 
lacklustre oil and gas market. With 
national carrier Malaysia Airlines’ 
reduction of international long haul 
flights to and from the country, 
occupancy contracted across KL. 
Introduction of Goods and Services 
Tax in April 2015, increasing supply 
of hotels in KL and the continued 
political uncertainty also weighed 
negatively on the KL hospitality 
market.

GR and NPI of the ANA Crowne Plaza 
Kobe was 12.3% and 13.6% better 
than forecast. The high occupancy 
rate and average daily rate (“ADR”) 
trend continued throughout FY2015, 
especially during the peak travel 
months of October and November 
in 2014, as well as May and August 
in 2015. During FY2015, increased 
revenue from a full conference 
calendar was also a notable revenue 
contributor.

GR and NPI of the Australia 
properties, including the acquisition 
of Sofitel Sydney Wentworth in July 
2015, achieved strong performance, 
exceeding forecast by 16.0% and 
20.4% respectively. During the year, 
international leisure and corporate 
visitor arrivals into Sydney saw strong 
growth and domestic travel remained 
robust. 

The UK properties recorded a 
strong performance due to high 
occupancies in FY2015 as the 
properties continued to see strong 
demand in the corporate and leisure 
segments. Overall GR and NPI 
exceeded forecast by 7.5% and 12.3% 
respectively in FY2015.

The composition of GR and NPI of 
FHT’s diversified portfolio for FY2015 
is shown in the charts below.

PRUDENT CAPITAL AND  
RISK MANAGEMENT

In managing its capital structure and 
financial risks, FHT’s key objectives 

FY2015 GROSS REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHY

n	 Singapore 31%
n	 Malaysia   8%
n	 Japan  14%

n	 Australia 19%
n	 United Kingdom 28%

n	 Singapore 31%
n	 Malaysia 10%
n	 Japan  14%

n	 Australia 18%
n	 United Kingdom 27%

FY2015 NET PROPERTY INCOME BY GEOGRAPHY
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

are to maintain a strong balance 
sheet through prudent and proactive 
capital and financial management, to 
ensure continuous access to funding 
at optimal cost and to maintain 
stable distributions to its stapled 
securityholders.

Underpinning these objectives, 
the REIT Manager has developed a 
framework of policies and guidelines 
for FH-REIT to actively manage its 
capital structure and loan portfolio 
mix, which has a direct impact on 
gearing and distributions to stapled 
securityholders. When funding 
acquisitions, the REIT Manager 
considers the most appropriate mix 
of debt and equity and manages the 
cost of funds by ensuring that FH-
REIT has access to diversified sources 
of funding in both the debt and 
capital markets.

The policies and guidelines also 
ensure that the REIT Manager is 
prudent in managing the interest 
rate risk arising from FH-REIT’s 
borrowings and foreign exchange risk 
arising mainly from foreign sourced 
income. By hedging the interest 
rate risk and foreign exchange risk 
using suitable derivative financial 
instruments, the income available 
for distribution will be less exposed 
to fluctuations in interest rates and 
exchange rates. 

During the IPO, Moody’s Investors 
Service had accorded FHT with a 
Baa2 rating. This rating helped FH-
REIT to secure unsecured bank loans 
at more favourable rates.

The REIT Manager proactively 
manages the capital structure and 
debt currency mix of FH-REIT to 
achieve a balance between natural 
hedge for FH-REIT’s foreign assets 
and lower cost of borrowing. With 
Singapore assets at 43.1% of total 
portfolio value as at 30 September 
2015, FH-REIT skewed its borrowing 
to SGD loan which was taken up 
at relatively low interest rate. To 
have natural hedge for its Malaysia 
and Japan assets, FH-REIT issued 

medium term notes in Malaysia 
(denominated in Malaysian ringgit) 
and TMK bonds in Japanese yen to 
partially finance the acquisition of 
these assets. 

To manage interest rate exposure, 
shortly after the IPO, FH-REIT entered 
into a cross currency swap to convert 
a portion of its Singapore dollar 
floating-rate loans to JPY fixed-
rate debt and entered into interest 
rate swaps to fix interest rates for a 
significant portion of its borrowings. 

In July 2015, FH-REIT acquired the 
Sofitel Sydney Wentworth, financed 
by a combination of equity raised 
through a private placement and 
Australian dollar debt. With reduced 
interest rate in Australia, FH-REIT 
was able to bring in natural hedge 
for its Australian assets through 
debt financing of Sofitel Sydney 
Wentworth at lower cost of 
borrowing.

As at 30 September 2015, FH-
REIT has achieved a balanced loan 
portfolio mix providing natural hedge 
for its foreign assets and achieved 
an all-in-cost of borrowings at 
2.4% per annum in FY2015. As of 30 
September 2015, the proportion of 
fixed rate loans stood at 73.0% and 
FHT’s gearing was 38.9%.

On an ongoing basis, the REIT 
Manager will continue to actively 
manage the capital structure and the 
financial risks of FH-REIT in order to 
meet the stated objectives.

USE OF THE IPO PROCEEDS

In July 2014, gross proceeds of 
SGD367.9 million was raised from the 
IPO. 

We have utilised the proceeds and the 
amounts allocated as outlined in the 
IPO Prospectus dated 30 June 2014.

As at 31 December 2014, additional 
consideration of SGD3.7 million was 
paid for the acquisition of Excellence 
Prosperity TMK Pte. Ltd., Kobe 

Excellence TMK and Excellence 
Prosperity (Japan) K.K. based on the 
final net asset value of the completion 
accounts as at 13 July 2014. The 
additional consideration was partially 
settled by the savings from issue-
related costs during IPO, attributed 
to lower professional fees, lower 
spending on prospectus production, 
road show and other expenses.

The remaining proceeds from the IPO 
of approximately SGD280,000 were 
fully disbursed towards the payment 
of professional fees by 31 March 2015. 

USE OF THE EQUITY FUND RAISING 
PROCEEDS

On 25 June 2015, FHT announced 
the launch of a private placement of 
150.0 million new stapled securities 
of FHT to raise gross proceeds of 
approximately SGD123.0 million to 
partially fund the acquisition of Sofitel 
Sydney Wentworth. The private 
placement of 150.0 million new 
stapled securities of FHT closed on 26 
June 2015 and the 150.0 million new 
stapled securities were issued and 
listed on 6 July 2015.

The proceeds of approximately 
SGD120.0 million had been utilised 
to part finance the purchase 
consideration of Sofitel Sydney 
Wentworth. Out of the SGD2.9 
million raised for the professional and 
other fees and expenses incurred 
in connection with the acquisition, 
SGD500,000 remains unpaid as at 
30 September 2015. The proceeds of 
approximately SGD100,000 was used 
for working capital purposes and was 
fully disbursed as at 30 September 
2015.

Such use of proceeds from the 
private placement is in accordance 
with the intended use of proceeds 
from the private placement is in 
accordance with the intended use 
of proceeds previously disclosed in 
FHT’s announcements dated 25 and 
26 June 2015 in relation to, among 
other things, the private placement.
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n	 As at acquisition 

ASSET PORTFOLIO VALUATION

FHT has a portfolio of 7 hotels and 
6 serviced residences with a total of 
3,206 rooms in Singapore, Malaysia, 
Japan, Australia, and UK. As at 30 
September 2015, the portfolio’s 
valuation was SGD1.96 billion, 3.9% 
higher than that as at the date of 
acquisition of the properties.

Park International London

n	 As at 30 September 2015

SINGAPORE 
(SGD)

824.1

845.0

MALAYSIA
(MYR)

455.0

443.0

JAPAN
(JPY)

11,200.0

14,000.0

AUSTRALIA
(AUD)

393.5
409.6

UNITED KINGDOM
(GBP)

153.1
185.1

ASSET PORTFOLIO VALUATION – LOCAL CURRENCY (MIL)
As at 30 September 2015

In local currency terms, the total 
valuation was lifted by that of the 
properties in Japan, UK, Australia 
and Singapore, which increased 
by 25.0%, 20.9%, 4.1% and 2.5% 
respectively. 

In Malaysia, however, due to the 
softer trading performance brought 
about by political uncertainty and 
the aircraft incidents involving 
Malaysia Airlines, valuation 
decreased marginally by 2.6%.
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n	 Actual  
FY2015

OPERATIONS REVIEW

Arrivals to Singapore were impacted 
by the strong Singapore dollar. The 
city received fewer visitors from its 
top four feeder markets (Indonesia, 
China, Malaysia and Australia) and 
a noticeable drop was recorded for 
visitors from China. Total arrivals 
as at year-to-date (“YTD”) August 
2015 saw a year-on-year decrease 
of 0.6%. 
 
The decline in arrivals coupled with 
supply growth led to a market-wide 
decline in occupancy in January to 
June 2015 (“1H2015”) by 0.6% year-
on-year to 85.3%. The ADR declined 
by 5.4% year-on-year to SGD242.50, 
while market RevPAR declined by 
6.1% year-on-year to SGD207.10.

Amid softening market conditions, 
FHT’s Singapore portfolio 
performed well relative to its peers.

InterContinental Singapore is on 
track to complete the renovation 
of its guest rooms by February 
2016. The fully renovated all-day-
dining, Ash & Elm, opened its 
doors on 15 September 2015. The 
renovation of the Lobby Lounge will 
be completed by end November 

SINGAPORE

315.0

82.8

261.0

304.0

83.7

254.0

ADR (SGD)

AVE OCC (%)

REVPAR (SGD)

InterContinental Singapore

2015. The reduced inventory 
during the renovation contributed 
to a decrease in occupancy 
and consequently RevPAR. 
InterContinental Singapore’s ADR 
against forecast was maintained 
throughout the renovation, 
compared to a decline for the 
market. 

Fraser Suites Singapore, on the 
other hand, was affected by the 
continued softness in the residential 
market. The property’s full year ADR 
declined 8.9% against forecast.

The Singapore portfolio’s overall 
GR decreased by 6.2% to SGD39.9 
million and NPI decreased by 6.1% 
to SGD32.9 million, relative to 
forecast.

n	 Forecast
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MAL AYSIA

International arrivals in Malaysia 
were down year-on-year by 8.6% for 
the first three months of 2015. The 
slowdown in activity in the country’s 
oil and gas industry as a result of 
low oil prices led to a reduction of 
corporate travel. In addition, the 
aviation incidents involving Malaysia 
Airlines as well as more recent 
political uncertainty resulted in fewer 
leisure arrivals from the country’s key 
source markets (Singapore, China, 
Australia and Japan). As at July 2015, 
occupancy in KL declined by 11.1% 
year-on-year to 63.9% while ADR 
declined by 4.9% year-on-year to 
MYR362. 

For FY2015, The Westin Kuala 
Lumpur recorded a decrease of 9.6% 
in RevPAR compared to forecast. 
The introduction of Goods and 
Service Tax in April 2015 impacted 
both room and F&B revenues. GR 
decreased by 17.3% to MYR29.8 
million and NPI decreased by 19.5% 
to MYR27.4 million, relative to 
forecast.

The Westin Kuala Lumpur, Prego
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JAPAN

International arrivals in Japan 
continued to grow strongly in 
2015, reaching an all-time high 
of 12.9 million as at YTD August 
2015 (up 49.1% year-on-year). 
The strong growth was driven by 
the weakened yen as well as the 
Japanese government’s continued 
efforts to facilitate visa approvals. 
Kobe City, as part of the Kansai 
region (Osaka, Kyoto, Kobe), 
benefited from heightened interest 
from regional tourists. Overnight 
visitors to Kobe increased 11.8% 
year-on-year as at YTD July 2015. 
The share of foreign visitors, while 
still relatively low at 13.7%, recorded 
a year-on-year growth of 71.3%. 
For 1H2015, occupancy was 82.7% 
and ADR was JPY12,363, up 9% 
and 10% respectively. As the Kansai 
region becomes more popular 
with international visitors and the 
build-up to the 2020 Olympics 
gains momentum, the growth in 
tourists to the region is expected to 
continue.

In line with the overall market 
performance, ANA Crowne Plaza 
Kobe recorded a strong result in 
FY2015. RevPAR increased by 11.1% 
against forecast driven by gains 
in both occupancy and ADR. In 
addition to room revenue, the hotel 
also increased its share of the MICE 
market in Kobe. The strong increase 
in trading led to an increase of 
12.3% in GR at JPY1.6 billion and an 
increase of 13.6% in NPI at JPY1.3 
billion relative to forecast.

ANA Crowne Plaza Kobe, Club Deluxe Twin

12,216.0
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9,481.0

12,522.0
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AUSTRALIA

Within the Australian lodging market, 
Sydney continues to be one of 
the best performing cities. For the 
year ended June 2015, overnight 
visitors increased by 6.1% to more 
than 30.5 million, of which 3.1 
million were international visitors. 
Resilient corporate demand and the 
weakened Australian dollar led to an 
increase in occupancy in Sydney to 
84.6% in 1H2015, up 2.3% year-on-
year. As at 1H2015, ADR increased to 
AUD207.0, up 4.5% year-on-year.

The Sydney market is expected 
to continue to record a strong 
performance going forward. 
Growth in the city is supported by 
the weakened Australian dollar as 
well as the pending completion 
of the SICEEP and Barangaroo 
Development.

FHT’s initial Australia portfolio of 
Novotel Rockford Darling Harbour 
and Fraser Suites Sydney performed 
well in FY2015. Both properties 
closed the year with occupancies 
above 90%. In July 2015, FHT 
completed the acquisition of the 
436-room luxury Sofitel Sydney 
Wentworth in the heart of Sydney’s 

CBD, bringing its Australian portfolio 
to two hotels and one serviced 
residence. With this acquisition, 
FHT has significantly strengthened 
its foothold in Sydney, an attractive 
lodging market with strong growth 
prospects. Since acquisition, Sofitel 
Sydney Wentworth has performed 
well. For the Australia portfolio, 
GR increased by 16.0% to AUD22.8 
million and NPI increased by 20.4% 
to AUD18.3 million, relative to 
forecast.

Fraser Suites Sydney, Two Bedroom Apartment
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UNITED KINGDOM

As a major business hub and tourist 
destination, London continued 
to draw a record number of 
international arrivals. For 1Q 2015, 
international arrivals reached 3.4 
million, up 0.16% year-on-year. 
For 1H2015, London’s occupancy 
increased to 80.9%, up 1% year-
on-year. Supported by a wide 
base of visitor arrivals, London 
continues to be one of Europe’s 
strongest performing cities. The 
strong demand for accommodation 
in London was underpinned by a 
broad base of corporate, MICE and 
leisure travellers as well as visitors 
seeking medical and education 
services. 

FHT’s six properties in the UK 
performed well in FY2015, recording  
increases in RevPAR against 
forecast. Growth was particularly 
strong for the newly renovated 
properties, Fraser Suites Queens 
Gate and Fraser Place Canary Wharf, 
which were able to deepen their 
market share further following their 
renovations.

The lodging markets of both 
Edinburgh and Glasgow performed 
well. The UK portfolio as a whole 
recorded a year-on-year growth in 
RevPAR. GR increased by 7.5% to 
GBP17.0 million and NPI increased 
by 12.3% to GBP13.6 million relative 
to forecast. 
 

Fraser Suites Queens Gate, Executive Studio
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INTERCONTINENTAL SINGAPORE

Significant progress was made in 
FY2015 towards re-positioning the 
InterContinental Singapore firmly 
among the city’s luxury hotels.

A comprehensive refurbishment 
programme of the guest rooms 
is currently underway. Following 
completion of all guest rooms in 
February 2016, guests will be able 
to stay in newly fitted-out rooms 
that benefit from the latest in-room 

technology while preserving the 
Peranakan heritage for which the 
hotel is known for. The hotel’s ADR 
is expected to increase as a result of 
the higher positioning of the guest 
rooms in the Singapore lodging 
market.

The re-positioning of the hotel 
encompasses the F&B areas as 
well. The hotel’s all-day-dining was 
completely refurbished and opened 
on 15 September 2015 as Ash & Elm. 
With an attractive, modern brasserie 

concept which featuring a charcoal 
grill and wood-fired oven, the new 
restaurant is expected to appeal 
to the tastes of today’s clientele. 
The new lobby lounge of the hotel 
will be ready for guests by end of 
November 2015. The works on the 
lounge are expected to result in an 
increase in covers during tea-time 
and throughout the day.

GROWTH VIA ASSET ENHANCEMENT INITIATIVES

InterContinental Singapore, Main Lobby (Artist’s Impression)

Premier Suite Ash & Elm
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MARKET OVERVIEW

SINGAPORE

Tourism Market 
Singapore continues to be a popular 
tourist destination for both business 
and leisure with a busy MICE 
calendar, tourist attractions suitable 
for the whole family, shopping 
and gaming facilities amongst 
others. It is a safe, cosmopolitan 
and progressive East meets West 
society. In addition, Singapore is also 
a dynamic business hub, a favoured 
regional headquarter location 
for Asia Pacific MNCs while also 
maintaining its position as a regional 
education hub.

In YTD August 2015, Singapore 
received 10.2 million visitors, a 
decline of 0.6% from the same 
period in 2014 according to the 
Singapore Tourism Board (“STB”).

For YTD August 2015, Asia remained 
the major visitor source, accounting 
for 77.1% of total international 
visitor arrivals (“IVA”). European 
countries, being the second largest 
share, comprised 10.6% of total 
IVA. Oceania countries contributed 
7.5%, followed by the Americas, 
representing 4.4% of total IVA.

Changi Airport is recognised as one 
of the busiest airports in the world. 
By YTD August 2015, there were 
36.5 million passenger movements, 
a 1.8% increase from the same 
period in 2014. For the past decade, 
there has been an average annual 
increase of 5.4% and this trend is 
expected to continue.

Tourism revenue has increased 1.5% 
over the past four years. Despite 
the decline in international visitor 
arrivals, tourism receipts remained 
at S$23.5 billion (USD16.7 billion) 
in 2014, a 0.4% increase over 2013. 
This was mainly due to the increased 
expenditure on accommodation 
as well as sightseeing and 
entertainment, by 0.2% and 6.5% 
respectively. 2014 expenditure on 
accommodation was recorded at 
S$5.2 million (USD3.7 million). This 
represented a 5.5% increase from 
2011 to 2014. In 2014, revenue for 
shopping declined by 8.6%, largely 
affected by the decrease of Chinese 
tour groups and reduced shopping 
expenditure from neighbouring 
Indonesian visitors due to Rupiah 
depreciation.

The success of milestone events 
such as the Formula One Grand Prix 
held since 2008 and the Women’s 
Tennis Association Tournament, 
first hosted in 2014 and planned 
to continue for the next five years, 
marked a turning point for Singapore 
as a tourist destination. Apart from 
the regular events calendar, other 
notable events for 2015 included the 
28th Southeast Asian Games held 
during the first two weeks of June, 
followed by the Jubilee Weekend 
Celebration (7-10 August) which was 
a historic time for Singaporeans to 
celebrate 50 years of independence.

In mid-2015, the Singapore Botanic 
Gardens was designated as an 
UNESCO World Heritage Site at 
the 39th session of the World 
Heritage Committee (WHC) in Bonn, 
Germany.

New attractions expected to open 
this year include the Art Gallery 
which is planned to open in Q3, 
located in the downtown core of 
Singapore, which will house the 
world’s largest public collection 
of Singaporean and Southeast 
Asian art, consisting of over 8,000 
artworks. 
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In 2015, the STB has taken initiatives 
to ramp up marketing efforts across 
10 key markets to drive attendance 
to business travel and MICE events, 
those markets include China, India, 
Indonesia, Thailand, Vietnam, 
Malaysia, Philippines, Australia, Hong 
Kong and Japan.

Hospitality Industry Performance
Singapore’s hospitality market is one 
of the fastest growing in Asia Pacific, 
with RevPAR increasing at a CAGR 
of 5.6% over the past ten years from 
2005 to 2014.

According to the Singapore Tourism 
Board (STB), by YTD August 2015, 
8.61 million rooms were sold, out 
of a registered total available room 
nights of 10.5 million. This resulted 
in an overall market occupancy 
of 85.3%, a slight drop of 0.6% 
compared to the same period 
in 2014. Broken down by hotel 
categories, only midscale witnessed 
a growth of 0.9% from the same 
period of last year, the other classes 
have all declined; 4.4% for the luxury, 
1.6% for upscale and 1.9% for the 
economy segment for 1H 2015.

Total revenue for hotels in Singapore 
was a registered SGD2.1 billion 
(USD1.5 billion) for YTD August 2015, 
a 0.2% decrease from the same 
period last year in local currency 
terms. The ADR was S$242.47 
(USD173.63), a 5.4% decrease 
from 1H 2014 in local currency 
terms. ADR for luxury hotels was 
a recorded S$443.4 (USD317.52), 
approximately 69.5% higher than 
upscale, 1.6 times higher than 
midscale and 3.3 times higher than 
the economy segment.

RevPAR was S$207.1 (USD148.30) 
for YTD August 2015, declining by 
6.1% from the same period last year, 
affected by the weakened ADR and 
occupancy.

With significant decreases in trading 
performance, even with the major 
events hosted by Singapore in 2H 
2015, such as F1 and the upcoming 
Christmas holiday season, it is 
uncertain whether Singapore’s hotel 
performance will improve to finish 
the year on par with 2014 results.

Existing Supply
The hotel market had a relatively 
stable supply for many years. 
Notably, due to the opening of two 
integrated resorts (IRs), the hotel 
market saw a significant increase 
in supply in 2010, registering 4% 
year-on-year growth. Riding on 
the positive sentiment, hotel room 
supply expansion continued in 
2011 with a growth rate of 9.9% but 
moderated in 2012 with a 0.81% 
increase. In 2013 and 2014, there 
was significant growth in supply with 
5.6% and 7.8% respectively.   

By year end 2014, a total of 392 
hotels with approximately 57,172 
rooms were recorded by STB, an 
increase of 5.1% and 4.0% from 2013 
in terms of the number of hotels and 
rooms supply respectively.

Notable new hotels openings in 
H1 2015 include the Genting Hotel 
Jurong with 557 rooms, the Park 
Hotel Alexandra with 442 rooms and 
the Hotel Grand Chancellor Orchard 
with 488 rooms. 

Future Supply
According to STB, as of 1H 2015, 
there will be 10,967 rooms in the 
supply pipeline, 9,517 rooms under 
construction and 1,450 rooms for 
planned development.

Several major hotel developments 
are expected to complete in 2H 
2015, such as the 701-room luxury 
South Beach hotel in Beach road, 
the 157-room luxury hotel, Patina in 
City Hall, and the 264-room Hotel 
Grand Central in Orchard.

Singapore will experience a supply 
boom in 2016 and 2017. A total of 
approximately 24 hotels with 8,881 
rooms will be added to the market, 
of which, 39% are in the luxury or 
upscale segments, 40% are in the 
midscale segment and the rest are in 
the economy segment. 

Examples of 2016 hotel openings 
include the 300 room midscale 
Premier Inn on Beach Road, the 
131 room Hotel Indigo Katong on 
Joo Chiat, the Holiday Inn Express 
Katong with 451 rooms, as well as 
the second InterContinental hotel 

in Singapore which is scheduled to 
open at Robertson Quay which will 
offer 225 rooms.

Hospitality Market Outlook
Looking ahead, challenges will 
include economic uncertainties, 
regional competition and currency 
movements. Hotel demand in 
Singapore continues to grow from 
key source markets in Asia, as 
reflected in the increase of tourism 
arrivals over the last five years. 
The ASEAN economic community 
initiatives will also have a positive 
impact to tourism across the region.

An increase in efforts by the 
Singapore Government to diversify 
their tourism offerings by production 
and promotion of leisure and 
business events, attractions, medical 
facilities, gaming facilities, shopping, 
exhibitions and conventions in an 
effort to increase visitor arrivals, 
who are extending their length 
of stay. The STB continues to 
develop tourism products and 
experiences, and seeks to market 
existing cultural heritage to a wider 
audience. The controlled increases 
in supply will accommodate the rise 
of tourist arrivals, and the lodging 
industry is not expected to face 
great oversupply in the short term, 
which will aid in keeping Singapore 
occupancy and ADR at its current 
high level for the near future.

This June, Singapore hosted the 
SEA Games but despite this major 
sporting event, tourist arrivals and 
hotel room nights declined. For 
the rest of 2015, the Lion City will 
continue to absorb the short term 
impact of additional room inventory 
and a slow down of arrivals from 
its major Asian source markets 
experiencing political instability (e.g. 
Indonesian presidential elections, 
Bersih demonstrations) and the 
associated economic slowdowns. 
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KUAL A LUMPUR

Tourism Market  
Malaysia was ranked the 11th most 
visited country in 2014 according to 
the United Nations World Tourism 
Organisation (UNWTO). The Malaysia 
Tourism Transformational Plan aims 
to increase international arrivals to 
36 million by 2020. There were 27.4 
million international tourist arrivals in 
2014, a 6.7% increase on 2013. This 
was a slower rate of growth than the 
6.1% growth rate of 2013, a year in 
which 10.4% of all Asia Pacific tourist 
arrivals were visitors to Malaysia. 
International Tourism Receipts 
was USD21.8 billion or 6.8% of all 
International Tourism Receipts in Asia 
Pacific, representing a 1.5% increase 
on 2013. 

For the first three months of 2015, 
visitor arrivals are down 8.6% year 
on year to 6.5 million visitors, due 
to a decrease in visitors from China, 
Japan, Singapore and Australia. 
However some inbound source 
markets saw growth with Korean 
visitors increasing by 11.2% in the first 
quarter of 2015.

Arrivals from ASEAN countries 
accounted for 74.3% of total tourist 
arrivals. 68.4% or 13.9 million arrivals 
were Singaporean, which reflects the 
deep cultural and economic links of 
these two countries.

Top inbound source markets in 
descending order are: Singapore 
(13.9 million), Indonesia (2.8 million), 
China (1.6 million), Thailand (1.3 
million), Brunei (1.2 million), India 
(0.8 million), Philippines (0.6 million), 
Australia (0.6 million), Japan (0.5 
million) and the United Kingdom (0.4 
million).

Kuala Lumpur has strong corporate 
demand with robust weekday 
occupancy. The MICE segment 
is also a key business area as 
the government offers financial 
incentives for organisers to hold 
events in the capital. Last year, 
the opening of the 93,000 sqm 
MATRADE Centre improved MICE 
infrastructure.

Kuala Lumpur’s Islamic heritage 
draws visitors from across the 
Muslim world. Muslim visitors are 
draw to Malaysia’s availability of halal 
food outlets, public prayer rooms 

at hotels and touristic sites, rich 
Islamic culture, Islamic festivals 
and its reputation as a stable and 
moderate Muslim country. The 
government promote these aspects 
in the ‘Muslim-friendly Malaysia’ 
campaign. 

The high-speed rail (HSR) project 
connecting Singapore and Kuala 
Lumpur will be a major demand 
generator. Expected completion 
date is 2020 although a Japanese 
railway consortium bidding on the 
project has commented that 2020 
may be optimistic. The line will have 
seven stops in Malaysia, namely 
Kuala Lumpur, Putrajaya, Seremban, 
Ayer Keroh, Muar, Batu Pahat and 
Nusajaya.

There is a need to improve 
connectivity between the two 
countries, as currently traffic 
congestion is acute and far exceeds 
the capacity of the Causeway, 
an overland bridge connecting 
Singapore and Johor Bahru. At 
present, passenger traffic on the 
Causeway exceeds capacity by 33%.
The project will be a major catalyst 
for economic growth for both Kuala 
Lumpur and Singapore.

MARKET OVERVIEW
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Hospitality Industry Performance
Kuala Lumpur has experienced very 
little hotel performance indicator 
growth in past years. 

The picture in 2015 is similar as 
occupancy decreased by 11.1% 
to 63.9% for 1H 2015, from 71.8% 
in 1H 2014. This pronounced 
decrease has been due to various 
factors including underperforming 
resources markets as Malaysia is an 
oil exporting nation. Negative media 
coverage related to the Malaysia 
Airlines twin tragedies has impacted 
confidence in the nation’s aviation 
and stopover demand. Thirdly, 
political instability such as the 
Bersih demonstration at the end of 
August and smaller demonstrations 
throughout 2015 have also 
discouraged potential visitors. 

There was a 3.7% decrease in ADR 
to MYR390.66 (USD90.60) in 2014 
from MYR381.65 (USD88.51) in 2013. 
Comparing 1H 2015 with 1H 2014, 
there was a decrease of 4.9% in ADR 
from MYR381.01 (USD116.78) to 
MYR362.24 (USD98.94). Room rates 
have been stagnant in Kuala Lumpur 
for the past eight years.

There was a 1% increase in RevPAR 
to MYR284.19 (USD65.91) in 2014 
from MYR281.06 (US$65.18) in 
2013. For 1H 2015, with a decline in 
both occupancy and ADR, RevPAR 
was MYR231.37 (USD63.19), a 
15.5% decrease from MYR273.70 
(USD83.89) for 1H 2014.The 
hotel market in Kuala Lumpur 
is extremely competitive, with 
serviced apartments often having no 
minimum stay restrictions.

At the end of 1H 2015, the decreases 
in key performance indicators are 
even more pronounced in US dollars 
terms with decreases of 15.3% in 
ADR and 24.7% in RevPAR. This is 
the worst loss for any major market 
in the Asia Pacific region in 1H 2015 
according to STR.

Existing Supply
As of 2014, there are 80 hotels in 
the 3 to 5 star categories totalling 
27,456 rooms. The largest portion of 
current hotel room supply is in the 

5 star category, 24 hotels with 41% 
of room supply or 11,238 rooms. 4 
star hotels are the second highest 
with 26 hotels with 8,555 rooms, 
representing 31% of supply. There 
are 30 hotels with 7,663 rooms or 
28% of supply in the 3 star category. 

Future Supply
There are 3,700 total rooms in the 
pipeline, representing 13% of current 
supply although not all of these may 
progress to completion. 

The majority of future developments 
to 2017 are in the 5 star category. 
There are 6 hotels with 1,536 rooms 
in the KL Golden Triangle and 4 
hotels with 812 rooms within the 
decentralised areas.

There are four pipeline hotels in the 
4 star category, two hotels with 403 
rooms in the Golden Triangle, one 
hotel with 198 rooms in the Central 
Business District and one hotel with 
275 rooms in the decentralised 
areas. 

Notable future openings include the 
50 room Banyan Tree Signatures 
Pavilion Hotel, the 208 room St. 
Regis Hotel, the 253 room RuMa 
Hotel, the 312 room Clermont 
Hotel Damansara Heights, 150 
room W Hotel & Residences, the 
231 room Four Seasons Place, and 
the Harrods Hotel Bukit Bintang, 
details unavailable. There are a very 
high number of pipeline serviced 
apartments; most of the hotels 
mentioned above also have a 
serviced apartment component. 
The high number of upscale and 
luxury pipeline rooms are due to 
the strength of Kuala Lumpur’s 
corporate demand. Although, 
compared to other Southeast Asian 
cities such as Bangkok and Jakarta, 
future supply is low.  

Hospitality Market Outlook
Malaysia is a high economic growth 
country, surrounded by similar 
emerging economies with increasing 
propensity to travel. The long term 
outlook for hotels is positive but 
at present, consumer and investor 
confidence in the Malaysian 
economy is extremely low. 

In the short term, if hoteliers 
can ride through the remainder 
of 2015 unscathed while the 
political situation improves, hotel 
performance may return to 2014 
levels by the second half of 2016. 
This depends on Malaysia’s ability to 
increase visitor confidence. Malaysia 
should swiftly implement the 
mooted visa changes for Chinese 
tourists, a significant potential 
demand generator. It may also seek 
to improve its reputation in security 
among East Asian tourists.

The government has designated 
2015 as the “Malaysian year of 
festivals”, many events such as 
the Indian Film Academy Awards, 
the International Craft Festival, 
and the 37th World Arm Wrestling 
Championship were held. Malaysia is 
also the chair of ASEAN in 2015. 
The ruling party ETP intends to 
transform Malaysia into a high-
income, fully developed economy 
by 2020. Kuala Lumpur already 
contributes 30% of Malaysia’s GDP 
and it is a key pillar of the economic 
plan. There are many infrastructure 
projects which may generate 
demand in new areas. Construction 
projects include the KL118 Tower, 
scheduled for completion in 2019. 

Transport projects including the HSR 
service between Kuala Lumpur and 
Singapore, which would reduce the 
journey to 90 minutes, are eagerly 
anticipated and may improve 
occupancy and ADR in some areas. 

There has been little room rate 
growth in Kuala Lumpur over 
the past eight years. Although 
international brands would like to 
enter the market, there is serious 
concern over future growth given 
the lacklustre trading performance. 
Of all the major Asian cities, 
Kuala Lumpur has the lowest 3 
to 5 star ADR rates. Given the 
macroeconomic difficulties in 
Malaysia this year, it is likely that 
we will continue to see depressed 
occupancy, ADR and RevPAR for 
remainder of 2015.
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KOBE

Tourism Market 
As the capital city of Hyogo 
Prefecture, Kobe is the fifth largest 
city in Japan with a population 
of 1.5 million. It is a government 
designated economic growth city 
which retains an important role in 
the nation’s economy. Currently 
the tourism market of Kobe is riding 
the wave of dramatically increasing 
foreign visitation to Japan, including 
the Kansai Region where Kobe is 
located. 

Mainly driven by the Japanese 
government’s currency policy and 
visa facilitation efforts, the number 
of foreign visitors in Japan has 
continuously achieved new records. 
According to Japan National 
Tourism Organisation (JNTO), for 
YTD August 2015, a historical high of 
12.9 million visitors were recorded, 
up by 49.1% from the same period 
in 2014. The Japanese government 
aims to attract 20 million annual 
foreign visitors by 2020, when Tokyo 
hosts the Summer Olympics and 
Paralympics, but it is expected that 
this goal will be achieved ahead of 
the target year.

Meanwhile, the Kansai region, 
which contains the three major 
cities of Osaka, Kyoto, and Kobe, 
is well known as the second most 
popular destination after Tokyo. 
It is experiencing an even sharper 
increase in international tourists 
compared to the capital, partially 
due to Kansai International Airport’s 
efforts to attract more low cost 
carriers (LCCs). Currently Kansai 
Airport has 150 LCC flights a week, 
the highest number of LCC flights 
among all Japanese airports. In 
2014, Kansai Airport welcomed 7 
million inbound arrivals, becoming 
the first major airport in Japan with 
higher international arrivals volume 
than Japanese outbound tourists. In 
order to increase handling capacity, 
the airport has announced that they 
will build a new terminal dedicated 
for international LCCs by 2017. 

Under such favourable 
circumstances, most tourism 
statistics are showing improvements 
for Hyogo Prefecture and Kobe 
City. According to the Japan 
Tourism Agency (JTA), the number 
of overnight visitors in Hyogo 
Prefecture recorded 13.4 million in 
2014 with a 2.8% growth over 2013. 

For the same period the prefectural 
capital, Kobe, welcomed 3.6 million 
over night visitors, 4.5% less than 
2013. Among all overnight visitors, 
4.9% were international arrivals, 
representing a 34.3% increase for 
Hyogo Prefecture. For Kobe City, 
8.4% were international visitors 
representing an impressive 13.8% 
annual increase. 
 
In 2015, the tourism market has seen 
very strong visitor arrival growth. In 
YTD July 2015, Kobe City welcomed 
2.2 million overnight visitors, up 
by 11.8% compared to the same 
period in 2014, while foreign visitors 
increased drastically to 305,000 with 
a 71.3% growth on the same period 
last year, and expanded the share 
of total visitors to 13.7%. However, 
compared with the foreign visitor 
numbers to Osaka (2 million) and 
Kyoto (934,000), the volume of 
foreign visitation is still low and has 
potential to improve further.  

Among the foreign visitors in Hyogo 
Prefecture, approximately 80% are 
from nearby Asian countries. In 
2014, the top five countries with the 
most number of visitors were Taiwan 
(30.9%), China (19.9%), Hong Kong 
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(12.2%), South Korea (11.9%), and 
the U.S. (4.8%). The surge of foreign 
visitors is backed mostly by the 
increase in the number of tourists 
from Asia, as the top four countries 
account for 74.9% of the total 
inbound tourists in Hyogo. 

Famous for its unique culture and 
exotic streetscape, Kobe has gained 
high recognition and has maintained 
a competitive position in the nation. 
Because of its long history of trading 
with the West since the end of the 
closed-door policy in 1853, Kobe is 
regarded as a modern city that fuses 
together Western and Japanese 
cultures. Even now, many foreigners 
reside in Kobe. The city is attracting 
more domestic and inbound visitors 
with its international atmosphere 
and varied attractions including Kobe 
Port and Chinatown. Kobe’s skyline 
and views of the city’s landscape 
by night are also praised as one of 
Japan’s three greatest night views.

Furthermore, Kobe is one of Japan’s 
top destinations for MICE. Plenty of 
attractions and convenient access 
through Kansai Airport, Kobe Airport 
and Kobe Port, provide Kobe with 
an advantage to host participants 
from all over the world. In 2014, 
Kobe was ranked as the seventh city 
in Japan in terms of the number 
of international MICE organised 
(15 meetings in total) according 
to the International Congress and 
Convention Association (ICCA). 

Hospitality Industry Performance
Both Kobe and Japan’s hotel 
markets have been performing 
well due to a sharp increase 
in the number of international 
tourists. According to STR, 1H 2015 
occupancy for Kobe was 82.7%, an 
impressive 9% increase on 1H 2014. 
For the full year of 2014, occupancy 
was 80.3% in 2014, up by 3.6% from 
2013.

ADR in 1H 2015 was ¥$12,363 
(USD103.13), an impressive 10% 
increase on 1 H 2014. For the 
full year of 2014, ADR achieved a 
2.2% increase, reaching ¥$11,929 
(USD99.29).

With these robust increases in both 
occupancy and ADR, RevPAR in 1H 
2015 was ¥$10,224 (USD 85.29). 
For the full year of 2014, RevPAR 
improved to ¥$9,050 (USD75.33), 
5.9% higher than 2013.

Mainly driven by the growing room 
business, most hotels have seen 
improvements in both revenue 
and profits. However, with the 
shrinking population and the young 
generation’s budget-conscious 
mood, the wedding business is 
struggling to expand.

In 2014, the number of marriages 
in Kobe was 7,767, a 2.9% decrease 
from the previous year according 
to the Ministry of Health, Labour 
and Welfare (MHLW). Compared 
to 2000, the number of marriages 
decreased by 18%, and the number 
is expected to keep declining. The 
wedding business is a shrinking 
industry all over Japan, and Kobe is 
not an exception. The competition 
among hotels and wedding houses 
is becoming fierce, more unique and 
value-added weddings are necessary 
in order to stay in the market.
 
Existing Supply
The international tourism boom 
has been positive for the most 
part; however, domestic business 
travellers have found difficulties 
booking rooms for business trips. 
There are occasions, especially in 
the Kansai Area, where the ADR 
for budget hotels in Osaka and 
Kyoto are too high for business 
travellers who usually have 
limited company budgets for their 
accommodation. Even for travellers 
with a generous budget, there are 
room shortages in some cases due 
to block reservations for inbound 
group tourists. In some cities, 
hotel demand is growing much 
faster than supply, and more hotel 
developments are needed to meet 
the influx of tourists. 

According to MHLW, there are 128 
hotels and 12,655 rooms in Kobe 
as of 2013. The number of hotels in 
Kobe has been steadily increasing 
over the past 13 years. Since the year 
2000, 22 hotels and 2,222 rooms 

were added to the inventory. The 
number of hotel rooms peaked in 
2008 at 13,077 rooms; however, 
after the financial crisis affected 
Japan, the number of rooms 
dropped to 12,307 rooms in 2009. 
Since then, the number of rooms 
has been gradually increasing, and 
the trend is expected to continue 
as Kobe receives more recognition 
among international tourists.

Hospitality Market Outlook
Kobe has set a goal of welcoming 
1 million international tourists per 
year by the end of 2015. In order 
to achieve this goal and attract 
more inbound travellers, the city 
has started providing multi-lingual 
guidance and free wi-fi services 
throughout the city. In June 
2013, Kobe was selected as the 
Global MICE Strategic City by the 
government as part of an initiative 
to strengthen Japan’s promotional 
power to cope with the intensifying 
competition of MICE promotions on 
an international scale. 

Though the growth rates of the 
tourism and hotel markets are not 
as robust as Osaka and Kyoto, Kobe 
is gaining more popularity as one of 
the major destinations in Kansai. The 
growth is expected to accelerate 
as inbound tourists start to explore 
beyond the Golden Route, the most 
common route for tourists passing 
through the six cities from Tokyo to 
Osaka. 
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SYDNEY

Tourism Market
For year ended (YE) June 2015, 
Sydney remained number one 
for visitor arrivals, nights and 
expenditure among all of the state 
capital cities of Australia.

Sydney received over 30.5 million 
over night and day trip visitors for 
YE June 2015, including 3.1 million 
international visitors, an increase of 
6.1% from the same period of last 
year. Total international visitor nights 
have increased from 62.9 million 
in YE June 2014 to 67.3 million in 
YE June 2015. Tourism expenditure 
was A$6.8 billion (USD5.3 billion) by 
YE June 2015, an increase of 10.6% 
compared to the same period of 
2014.

There were 9.02 million domestic 
overnight trip visitors and 18.4 
million domestic day trip visitors 
recorded in YE June 2015, 
representing 10.8% and 35.0% 
of total visitors respectively. 
Total tourism expenditure is 
approximately A$8.3 billion (USD6.5 
billion) for both overnight and day 
trip visitors.

In terms of the purpose of visit, 
for international visitors, ‘holiday’ 
(56.2%) was the main purpose of 
visit, followed by ‘visiting friends and 
relatives (VFR)’ (24.7%) and ‘business’ 
(12.2%). Compared to the 12 months 
to March 2014, visitors who travelled 
for ‘holiday’ grew by 9.7% and ‘VFR’ 
increased by 3.5% while ‘business’ 
grew by 0.7%. 

The top 10 geographic origins of 
visitors to Sydney for YE March 
2015 are Mainland China (16.1%), 
New Zealand (11.2%), USA (10.1%), 
United Kingdom (10.0%), South 
Korea (4.9%), Japan (4.3%), Germany 
(3.7%), Singapore (3.4%), India (3.2%) 
and Hong Kong (3.2%). These top 10 
markets totalled 70.1% of visitation.

The top three most common 
activities as voted by international 
tourists visiting Sydney who were 
allowed to vote multiple activities, 
therefore the total does not add 
to 100%, are as follows: 90% of 
visitors dine at restaurants; 77.5% go 
shopping and 72% go sightseeing. 

Visitor nights in Sydney are forecast 
to continue to reach record highs 
for the next decade. During the 
2014/2015 financial year, visitor 
nights are predicted to increase by 
7.9% to reach 92.5 million nights, 
representing approximately 54.1% 
of the total visitor arrivals to the 
state of New South Wales (NSW). By 
the 2022/2023 financial year, total 
visitor nights in Sydney is targeted at 
131.4 million nights, approximately 
60% of total NSW visitor nights, 
representing a 5.0% forecast average 
annual growth over 10 years 
(2012/13-2022/23).

For the whole of Australia, for YTD 
July 2015, there were 7.1 million 
visitor arrivals, an increase of 6.2 % 
relative to the previous year.

Hospitality Industry Performance
According to STR, 1H 2015 
occupancy was 84.6%, up 2.3% from 
1H 2014. Occupancy for Sydney 
hotels has remained steady at above 
80% since 2012, finishing 2014 at an 
annual occupancy of 83.7%, which 
is a y-o-y growth of 1.1% from 2013.  
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ADR for 1H 2015 was A$207.27 
(USD160.92), 4.5% higher than the 
same period of 2014 according to 
STR. Due to currency fluctuations, 
this is a steep 11.3% decrease in US 
dollar terms.

Driven by occupancy and 
particularly strong ADR growth, 
the RevPAR for Sydney for 1H 2015 
was A$175.34 (USD 136.013), a 6.9% 
increase from the same period of 
2014. However, again, in US dollar 
terms this is a 9.3% decrease on 1H 
2014.  

From 2013 to 2014, there was a 1.1%, 
3% and 3.2% increase in occupancy, 
ADR and RevPAR respectively in 
local currency terms. Compared to 
this, 1H 2015 growth of 2.3%, 4.5% 
and 6.9% is encouraging.

Existing Supply
According to Destination NSW 
statistics for YTD June 2015, 
there are approximately 349 
accommodation properties 
including hotels, motels and 
serviced apartments with 38,124 
rooms, totalling 3.5 million room 
nights available in the Greater 
Sydney area, of which there are 144 
hotels with 22,352 rooms, totalling 
2.03 million room nights available in 
Sydney City.

Notable rebranding and reopenings 
include the 98 rooms and suites 
Langham Sydney at the Rocks 
in December 2014 (previously 
the Observatory Hotel). The 
InterContinental Sydney Double 
Bay also opened its doors after a 
multi-million dollar refurbishment 
of the former Ritz Carlton property. 
The Amora Hotel Jamison Sydney 
completed a A$12 million (USD8.5 
million) refurbishment of the 5-star 
hotel. 

As an investment landscape 
Australian hotel assets remain 
increasingly attractive to overseas 
investors as the AUD continues to 
fall. In the past two years, there has 
been an active change of ownership 

amongst the existing 5 star hotel 
properties including Sheraton on the 
Park, Westin, Four Seasons, Sofitel 
Wentworth and Taj Blue. 

Future Supply
Looking ahead to 2015, the designer 
hotel, QT Bondi Beach set to open 
in Q3 2015 will offer boutique 
apartments on iconic Bondi Beach. 
Australia continues to attract foreign 
direct investments including those 
in Sydney’s redevelopment projects. 
There are approximately 21 hotel 
investments in the pipeline which 
have been announced and are 
either under construction, have 
development approvals or under 
planning due to be delivered in the 
next five years to 2020 with a total 
of 3,147 rooms. This represents 
an increase of 8.3% to the existing 
room stock in Sydney.  

Hotels currently in development 
include the 350 room Crown 
Sydney, covering 77,500 sqm as part 
of the large scale Barangaroo South 
development; the Sofitel Sydney 
Darling Harbour opening in 2017 
as part of the Sydney International 
Convention Centre and the 
expansion of the Four Points Sydney; 
to smaller re-development sites 
including Greenland’s acquisition 
in Sydney’s CBD which will see the 
large Chinese developer opening its 
first hotel in Australia under its own 
brand, Primus.

Hospitality Market Outlook
The Australian dollar (“AUD”) has 
fallen 28% since the end of March 
2013 when it was at parity to the US 
dollar and since the end of March 
2015, in October 2015 USD1 is 
A$0.720. At this level the AUD is now 
19.4% below the long-term average 
(Jul-69 to Mar-15) of $0.893.

Given this currency depreciation 
over the past three years, consumers 
travelling to Australia are finding 
more value and are benefiting from 
lower fuel prices, lower airfares 
and an increase of flight frequency 
and routes. Fuel has continued to 

fall since 2014 and was at A$70.30 
(USD49.67) a barrel as of March 
2015. The domestic travel market is 
buoyant as a result of this continued 
currency depreciation; Australians 
are less likely to travel overseas with 
a weaker currency. China will remain 
a key inbound tourist market for 
Sydney both for leisure and business 
travel, especially given the new Free 
Trade Agreement between Australia 
and China which was announced at 
the G20 in 2014, and planned to take 
effect in 2015. 

Looking forward, the hotel demand 
outlook for Sydney remains positive. 
Forecast growth in international 
tourist arrivals remains robust and 
Sydney benefits significantly as the 
key gateway city. For the next few 
years hotel occupancy is forecast 
to remain above 80% with minimal 
downward pressure as new hotel 
developments will not be fully 
operational until 2017-2018.  

Given the current trends and market 
dynamics, ADR for Sydney hotels 
is forecast to continue above the 
A$200 (USD141.32) mark in the next 
few years, at an anticipated annual 
RevPAR growth of 3%. 

In making comparisons across 
major international cities (Hong 
Kong, Singapore, New York, 
London and Dubai), it is observed 
that despite the high occupancies 
and hotel operating costs, Sydney 
room rates have not reached the 
same levels achieved in other 
major cities around the world. This 
suggests there is scope for further 
ADR growth among the new hotel 
developments and refurbished 
products in the market.  
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Tourism Market
The UNWTO ranks the UK eighth 
in their international tourist arrivals 
league. A destination in itself and 
a gateway city to the rest of the 
UK, London was ranked first in the 
MasterCard Global Cities Index, 
an indicator of a destination’s 
popularity.

There were a record 35 million visits 
in YE July 2015, the highest rolling 
twelve month period on record for 
visitors to the UK according to the 
International Passenger Survey of the 
Office of National Statistics. For the 
whole of the UK, 3.7 million visitors 
entered the UK in July 2015, the 
highest figures for July on record.

According to VisitBritain, in the 
first quarter of 2015, 3.4 million 
international arrivals visited London, 
a 0.16% increase on the same period 
of 2014, a slower growth rate than 
0.96% for the rest of the UK. London 
international arrivals represent 51.3% 
of total international arrivals to the 
UK.

LONDON

Tourism receipts for the first quarter 
were GBP2.11 billion (USD3.2 billion), 
at a significant decrease of 12.2% on 
the same period last year. Leisure 
spending was the main depressor 
with a 7.15% decrease while business 
spending increased by 1.88%. 

Domestic travel is increasing as 
in YTD June 2015, VisitEngland’s 
domestic travel survey indicated 
London experienced double digit 
growth in all surveyed performance 
indicators. Trips increased by 18% 
to 6.3 million trips, overnight stays 
increased by 20% to 12.6 million 
nights and expenditure increased by 
17% to GBP1.5 billion compared to 
the YTD June 2014.

In 2014, a record 34.4 million 
overseas visitors visited the UK and 
spent GBP21.8 billion (USD33.5), a 
5% increase in volume compared to 
2013. London accounted for 54% of 
all UK inbound visitor expenditure.

Given the political and economic 
volatility around the world, many 
businesses are investing in stable 
economies. London continues to 
be a world class business hub due 
to its transparent legal system and 
maintains its ‘safe haven’ status. 

In 2014, the top three inbound 
source markets in descending order 
were France, Germany and the USA, 
representing nearly one third of total 
arrivals. The top three markets for 
tourism receipts in descending order 
were USA, Germany and France, 
representing just over a quarter of all 
tourism receipts to the UK.  

According to VisitBritain, the average 
length of stay returned to 2009 
levels in 2014 at 7.7 nights. The 
average spend per visit was GBP636 
(USD977). The ratio of domestic 
visitors to international was 40:60.

A major victory for tourism 
stakeholders is the visa facilitation 
changes allowing Chinese visitors 
to enter the UK without applying for 
a separate visa to mainland Europe. 
The policy change sends a more 
welcoming message to potential 
Chinese tourists, ameliorating 
Chinese visitor perception regarding 
the difficulty of obtaining a tourist 
visa.
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Hospitality Industry Performance
London is the best performing city 
in Europe for hotel performance 
indicators. According to STR data, 1H 
2015 occupancy was 80.9%, a small 
increase from 80.1% in 1H 2014. For 
the whole year of 2014, occupancy 
was 82.9%, the highest of the major 
European cities. In 2005 occupancy 
was 74%, since then occupancy 
has risen in a fluctuating trend to 
2010. For the past five years hotel 
occupancy has remained consistent 
at around 80%. 

1H 2015, there was no significant 
change in ADR which remained at 
GBP137 (USD200.45). ADR is also 
one of the highest in Europe. For 
the full year of 2014, ADR finished 
at GBP141 (USD221), a 3% increase 
on 2013. From 2012 to 2015, ADR 
growth has ranged from 1 to 3%. 

There has been a RevPAR decrease 
of 1% to GBP109 (USD171) in 1H 
2015 compared to 1H 2014. 2014 
was the fifth consecutive year of 
RevPAR growth. 

Strong hotel performance is 
supported by a wide base of visitor 
arrivals and varied motives for 
visitation. London benefits from 
multi-purpose tourism including 
leisure, business, medical, visiting 
friends and relatives (VFR) and 
educational tourism. Other 
factors giving London its tourism 
competitiveness include historical 
ties to commonwealth and other 
countries, a variety of international 
diasporas, a thriving education 
system with a high number of 
international students, as well as 
strong events and MICE tourism. 

Existing Supply
There are approximately 1,510 
hotels in London with 138,000 
rooms. Notable openings include 
the Shangri-La at the Shard and the 
Mondrian London at Sea Containers 
both in 2014. 2015 openings 
include the Hilton London Bankside, 
InterContinental at the 02, and East 
London’s second Citizen M at Tower 
of London. By the end of 2015, 2,970 
rooms will have entered the hotel 
market.

Future Supply
58 hotels representing approximately 
6,200 rooms will enter the market by 
the beginning of 2016. Half of these 
are in the budget sector. By 2018, 
17,500 new rooms are expected to 
enter the market. 

Hospitality Market Outlook
Strong hotel performance and a 
transparent property investment 
environment will continue to attract 
international investors, and London 
will continue to be a favourite safe 
haven for cross border capital. We 
expect cash rich Asian buyers from 
China, HK, Singapore, Thailand and 
Malaysia to continue investment. 
Paris and London are the top 
European investment destinations in 
Europe and are likely to retain that 
title for the near future. Past years 
saw many portfolio deals and we 
expect more of the same in 2015, 
especially amongst private equity 
investors and to a lesser extent, 
owner-operators.

London accounts for 12% of total 
European transaction volumes; it 
is the most liquid European hotel 
market. 2014 saw a slow down in 
investment due to a lack of available 
stock, the market is extremely 
compressed with high interest from 
domestic and international buyers.

Many existing hotel owners are 
seeking to enlarge existing portfolios 
to gain economies of scale by 
purchasing adjacent assets. Lack of 
appropriate sites may push capital 
flows outside of London and toward 
fringe locations in the capital.

The headline demand generating 
event is the Rugby World Cup in 
September and October. The 2011 
Rugby World Cup was attended by 
nearly 1.5 million people over 48 
matches. Attendees and extra visitors 
to the UK are forecast to inject 
GBP869 million (USD1.34 billion) into 
the UK economy. 

Major redevelopments such as 
Battersea Power Station due in 2023 
and One Nine Elms due in 2018 are 
expected to revitalise and increase 
footfall to lesser known areas.
Transport demand generators 
include the Thameslink programme 

due in 2018 and Cross Rail due 
in 2018 which will link areas of 
Berkshire and Buckinghamshire, via 
central London, to Essex and South 
East London by a high frequency 
service. Travellers from Europe 
will soon be able to access UK’s 
secondary cities without changing 
trains in London stations. Some 
commentators say Cross Rail is the 
largest engineering project ever 
for Europe. The underground, ‘the 
tube’, continues to face sporadic 
strikes which is disruptive for travel 
and tourism. 

Although all four major London 
airports reported record arrivals in 
2014, air transport infrastructure 
limitations and taxation are major 
demand depressors. Since the 
general elections of May 2015 have 
now passed, we may see more 
tourism friendly policy decisions. 

The last six months have been 
politically volatile in Europe. 
Greece’s EU exit was seriously 
considered, in May, the UK elected 
a Conservative government with a 
surprise majority. Several terrorist 
attacks across Europe and North 
Africa affected visitor arrivals and 
visitor perception of safety. Despite 
these potentially damaging events, 
London hotels achieved impressive 
hotel performance success. 

Due to cultural and historical 
reasons, London is and will continue 
to be an aspirational, world famous 
destination. The quality of its tourism 
offerings is extremely high due to its 
rich history and the government’s 
strict regulation of cultural 
heritage. It is a multi dimensional 
tourism destination with innovative 
entertainment, gastronomy and 
attractions. As middle classes of 
emerging economies increase 
their propensity to travel, London 
is a popular choice. The UK’s strict 
planning regulations limit hotel 
supply and slow the industry’s ability 
to respond to changes in demand, 
keeping performance indicators 
high. Despite the aviation and 
hotel taxes as well as the difficulty 
of obtaining a visa for many 
nationalities, London will remain 
one of the most robust and resilient 
hotel markets in the world. 
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EDINBURGH

Tourism Market
Edinburgh is Scotland’s capital and 
the UK’s second largest financial 
hub outside of London; it is the 
historic home to many global 
financial institutions. The medieval 
Old Town, elegant Georgian New 
Town, Edinburgh Castle and Arthur’s 
Seat, an extinct volcano and its 
surrounding parks, make Edinburgh a 
picturesque and popular destination. 
It was voted the second best UK 
destination of 2014 by TripAdvisor.

For YTD June 2015, there were 
56 million trips to Scotland, a 2% 
decrease on the same period in 
2014. There were 13 million trips 
in June 2015, an increase of 8% 
compared to June 2014 although 
expenditure dropped by 13% in June 
2015. 

In 2013, the latest year for which 
data on domestic and overseas 
visitor splits are available, 2.2 million 
domestic visitors and 1.3 million 
overseas visitors, made up 3.5 million 
visitors to Edinburgh. There were 5.4 
million domestic visitor nights and 
6.9 million overseas visitor nights, a 
total of 12.3 million visitor nights in 
2013. 

Domestic visitors stayed an average 
of 2.5 nights while overseas visitors 
stayed for 5.3 days, making the total 
average nights per visitor 3.6 nights.
Average expenditure per visit was 
GBP260 ($400) for domestic visitors 
and GBP455 ($700) per international 
guest, for an average of GBP334 
($514).The average daily expenditure 
in 2014 was GBP79.06 ($122), down 
from GBP86.94 ($134) in 2012. 

Edinburgh’s top inbound source 
markets are the USA, (14.8%), 
Germany (13.4%), France (7.4%), 
Ireland (6.8%), Australia (6.0%), 
Spain (5.0%), and Italy (4.8%). 64% 
of overseas visitors to Edinburgh 
cited holidays as their main reason 
for their visit in 2013. 21% were 
visiting friends or relatives, 10% were 
travelling for business and 1% were 
studying.

48% of domestic and overseas 
visitors stayed in a hotel or 
guesthouse, 35% stayed at friends’ or 
relatives’ houses, 3% stayed in self-
catering accommodation, another 
3% stayed in a camp or caravan, 1% 
stayed in a bed & breakfast while 1 % 
stayed in their property. 

The top attractions in 2014 were the 
National Museum of Scotland with 
1.6 million visitors, the Edinburgh 
Castle with 1.5 million visitors, and 
the Scottish National Gallery with 1.3 
million visitors. The latter increased 
visitation by 39% compared to 2013. 
2.2 million visitors attended the 
Edinburgh Fringe Festival in in 2014.
This is particularly impressive given 
Edinburgh’s full time population is 
only 1.3 million.

Hospitality Industry Performance
2014 was a record year for Edinburgh 
with growth in occupancy, ADR 
and RevPAR of 1%, 5.2% and 6.2% 
respectively. 1H 2015 occupancy was 
77.1%, a 2% increase from 1H 2014. 
The market has recovered to pre-
recession levels. In 2014, Edinburgh 
was a top three European city for 
occupancy rankings, behind London 
and ahead of Paris. 2015 occupancy is 
forecast to be the highest in Europe. 

According to VisitScotland’s 
Occupancy Survey, there is no 
difference in room occupancy 
between weekdays and weekends for 
the Edinburgh & Lothian area which 
was also the best performing area of 
all 12 regions surveyed.

MARKET OVERVIEW
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1H 2015 ADR was GBP78.70 ($123.10) 
according to STR, a 1% increase on 1H 
2014. ADR is forecast to grow by 3.5% 
in 2015 and 2.7% in 2016 according 
to Pricewaterhouse Coopers (PwC). 
The last two years saw robust growth 
with 4.3% in 2013 and 5.3% growth in 
2014.

PwC named Edinburgh among the 
top eight European cities expected 
to achieve strong growth forecasts in 
2015 and 2016. It is the only UK city, 
apart from London, in the top eight 
cities for ADR growth forecasts.
The entrance of more branded 
budget hotels with strong distribution 
channels as well as increased 
propensity to travel among domestic 
and overseas visitors led to the higher 
ADR in 2014.  

1H 2015 RevPAR was GBP60.7 
($94.95), a 3% increase on 1H 2014. 
Projected growth is 3.5% and 2.7% for 
2015 and 2016 respectively, the 9th 
highest forecast RevPAR growth of all 
major European cities.

Summer is the peak period, 
particularly July and August during 
the festival season. The post-
Christmas months of January and 
February are the quietest.

Existing Supply
There are approximately 13,000 
hotel rooms in Edinburgh as of 
quarter one 2015. 

Many new hotel openings have 
been and will continue to be, in the 
economy and upscale segments, 
there is a risk of over supply in these 
segments pulling down overall 
performance indicators in these 
segments although demand has 
kept apace with supply to date. 

Some notable openings include 
the 120 room Village Urban Resort, 
the 103 room Ibis Styles Centre St. 
Andrews while the Carlson Rezidor 
Missoni Hotel will no longer operate 
under the Missoni brand. 
 
Future Supply
Edinburgh has one of the highest 
active pipelines in Europe, 1,270 
rooms are under construction, 
representing just below 10% of 

current room supply. This high 
pipeline number is despite the strict 
heritage property regulations which 
limit new hotel supply compared to 
other Scottish cities. In 2015, 250 
rooms are due, 2016 will see 650 
rooms and 2017 will see 370 rooms. 

The Caltongate regeneration project 
includes a 150 room Premier Inn 
and a 131 room hub by Premier 
Inn. Hub by Premier Inn is also 
planning a third 157 room hotel 
in the city centre. The 175 room 
Hampton Hilton will commence 
construction in late 2015 near the 
airport. A 123 room hotel and spa at 
the Marina development in Granton 
is also under construction. Marriott 
Courtyard Edinburgh Hotel will 
have 240 rooms and will open in 
2016. Accor’s apart-hotel Adagio is 
scheduled to open in 2017. Plans for 
an all-suite hotel by the Union Canal 
Basin, called Urban Villa have been 
submitted for a 180 room “urban 
villa” concept development with 
kitchens and living rooms. 

A recovering office market is 
tightening availability of suitable 
hotel sites, especially given the 
looming shortage of grade A office 
supply.

Hospitality Market Outlook
2014 saw many high profile events 
such as the Ryder Cup and the 
Commonwealth Games. 2015 
is expected to be a slower year 
although there are still many 
events including the government’s 
Year of Food and Drink, the World 
Gymnastics Championship, and the 
Turner Prize.

Rejuvenation projects include 
the plan to replace the St James 
Centre, a mixed use project which 
will include retail, two hotels and 
apartments. The former McEwan’s 
Fountain Brewery and surrounding 
canal areas, unoccupied since 2004, 
will also be revamped. The new 
National Performance Centre for 
Sport and the National Film Studio 
may also generate demand. The 
Edinburgh International Conference 
Centre, the Assembly Rooms and 
the Usher Hall were also recently 
renovated.

Edinburgh Airport recorded 10.2 
million passengers, an annual 
record, in 2014 after expansion 
plans were completed in time 
for the inbound tourism for the 
Commonwealth Games. June 2015 
passenger movements increased 
by 10.6% compared to June 2014. 
New services by United Airlines, 
US Airways and Qatar Airways 
Dreamliner and Air Canada Rouge 
have increased long haul capacity. 
Easyjet, Jet2, Edelweiss and 
Lufthansa have also increased routes 
to Europe. 

A new tram route, connecting 
the airport to the city, carried 
1.5 million passengers in its first 
100 days of operation in 2014. 
Edinburgh Waverley, is the UK’s 
largest train station outside London 
and continues to be an important 
transport hub, generating demand 
for overnight stopover guests. The 
new Forth Crossing replacement 
project is also a key infrastructure 
project for the city.

Edinburgh is consistently one of the 
most affluent parts of the UK, its 
economic prospects are positive and 
will continue to attract both visitors 
and investors. Edinburgh hotels 
are attractive assets due to their 
reliable all year income. 2016 hotel 
performance indicator growth will 
most likely be slower than previous 
years due to increased supply.
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GL ASGOW

Tourism Market 
Glasgow is the most populous city 
in Scotland and its main commercial 
hub. 2.7 million international and 
domestic tourists visited Glasgow in 
2014, with visitors spending GBP687 
million (USD1.05 billion), up 39% 
from 2013 according to the Office 
for National Statistics (ONS) and the 
Great Britain Tourism Survey (GBTS).

Glasgow has overtaken Liverpool 
as the fifth most visited UK city 
by international tourists and 
ranked ahead of Oxford, Bristol, 
Cambridge, Leeds, York, Cardiff 
and Newcastle in 2014. Glasgow’s 
international profile was further 
improved through attendance at 
high profile events such as the 
Commonwealth Games, BBC Radio 
1’s Big Weekend and the MTV 
European Music Awards as well as 
the associated increased destination 
brand equity through media 
exposure.

International tourists stayed for 3.3 
million nights, averaging five nights 
per trip with half citing holidays as 
the reason for their visit, while 28% 
visited friends and relatives and 18% 
were business travellers.

British visitors to Glasgow spent 
GBP442 million (USD679 million) 
in 2014, more than double 
2013’s expenditure, which is an 
achievement given domestic 
tourism spend across Scotland fell 
by 0.6%.

International tourists made 622,000 
trips to Glasgow in 2014, an 
increase of 21% on 2013, spending 
GBP245 million (USD376 million), 
an increase of 32%. Europeans 
(59%) and North Americas 
(22%) made up the majority of 
international visitors last year.

Hospitality Industry Performance
Glasgow has seen very strong hotel 
performance uplift for 2014 and 
YTD 2015. 2013 to 2014 saw double 
digit increases in ADR and RevPAR 
driven by the Commonwealth 
Games and other events. 

Comparing 1H 2015 to 1H 2015, 
occupancy has increased by 1% 
to 79.7%. For the full year of 2014, 
occupancy increased by 5% to 
82.3%. 2013 also experienced a 4% 
increase on 2012. 

For H1 2015, ADR has seen strong 
growth of 8% or GBP5.30 (USD8.14) 
to GBP69.30 (USD106.39). In 2014, 
ADR increased from GBP61.30 
(USD94.11) to GBP71.9 (USD112.47), 
an impressive 17% increase. During 
the previous year, from 2012 to 
2013, ADR had only increased by 
3%. 

In 1H 2015, RevPAR increased by 
9% to GBP55.20 (USD84.74). In 
2014, RevPAR increased by 23% 
or GBP11.10 (USD17.15) in only 
one year in 2014 to GBP59.20 
(USD90.88). From 2012 to 2013, 
RevPAR had increased by 7% to 
GBP48.10 (USD73.84). 

According to the Scottish 
Occupier’s Survey, a government 
index for hotel occupancy and an 
alternative to STR data, the weekend 
/ weekday difference in occupancy 
for Glasgow & Clyde Valley is 79%/ 
75%. By the government’s index 
for occupancy for the Glasgow & 
Clyde Valley Area Tourism Board, 
occupancy was 77% for the full year 
of 2014. 

MARKET OVERVIEW
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Hotel performance indicator growth 
has been much more pronounced 
in Glasgow than Edinburgh. For YTD 
June 2015, Edinburgh RevPAR has 
only increased by 3% to GBP60.70 
compared to 9% for Glasgow, 
although Edinburgh’s RevPAR 
is GBP5 (USD7.68) higher than 
Glasgow for the same period. 

UK’s 2015 GDP forecast is forecast 
to grow by a stable 2.5%. Glasgow 
occupancy will most likely increase 
by 1% for 2015 and up to 1% for 
2016. ADR will most likely increase 
by approximately 5% for 2015 and 1 
to 5% for 2016. 

Existing Supply
There are 101 hotels in Glasgow 
with approximately 8,242 rooms 
according to AM:PM.

The most common types of 
accomodation in descending order 
are: 4 star (35% of total Glasgow 
rooms, 2,916 rooms), followed by 
budget (31%, 2,580 rooms), and 3 
star (16%, 1,351 rooms), 2 star (6%, 
500 rooms), 5 star (4%, 350 rooms), 
apartment (4%, 327) and hostel (3%, 
218 rooms). There are currently only 
two 5-star hotels in the city.

By brand type, global brands are the 
most common representing 30% of 
Glasgow hotels, 29% are UK hotel 
brands, 21% are independent while 
10% are regional brands.

Annual hotel supply increase has 
followed the rest of the UK with 
2011 and 2013 being quiet years 
while 2012 and 2014 were high 
volume years. Of the last five years, 
2012 saw the most new rooms enter 
the market with 500 new rooms. 
The lowest year was 2013 with only 
100 rooms. 2015 will see just above 
100 rooms enter the market.

Future Supply
43 hotels with a potential 5,000 
rooms may enter the market, of 
which 11 projects are on hold and 
25 are unconfirmed. The seven 
confirmed pipeline hotels have a 
total of 1,000 rooms to 2018. 

Of all confirmed and speculative 
pipeline hotel rooms, the most 

common hotel categories in 
descending order are: budget (38%, 
1,865 rooms), 4 star (31% 1,518 
rooms), 3 star (20%, 1,012 rooms), 
5 star (5%, 250 rooms), Apartment 
(5%, 246 rooms) and 2 star (1%, 65 
rooms). 

2015 openings include the 120 room 
Village Hotel which opened in July, 
the 170 room Travel Lodge and 
the 101 room Ibis Styles which will 
open in late 2015. The conversion 
of office blocks to an 88 room 
Hampton by Hilton is due to be 
completed in 2016.

Hospitality Market Outlook
Glasgow’s prospects of attracting 
international and domestic visitors 
are positive given its good transport 
connectivity. Glasgow is within an 
hour’s drive of three international 
airports and Glasgow International 
Airport is only 15 minutes from the 
city centre. It is only an hour’s flight 
from London and there are 58 flights 
to London a day. Seven million 
passengers pass through Glasgow 
International Airport annually. 
Glasgow has the largest suburban 
rail network outside London and it is 
the only UK city outside of London 
to have an underground network.
March 2015 was the busiest 
March in seven years for Glasgow 
International Airport, and the 25th 
consecutive month of growth, with 
a 22.3% increase in international 
traffic and 8.2% growth in domestic 
traffic. For the year to March 2015, 
overall passenger traffic increased 
by 6.3% on the same period in 2014. 
There are 200 flights a day and 30 
airlines serve 100 routes.

13 new routes were introduced this 
year, including direct flights to Las 
Vegas, Munich, Prague, Budapest, 
Lublin and a daily service to 
Halifax, Nova Scotia. In June, Flybe 
introduced direct flights to Cardiff. 

Key development and infrastructure 
projects are changing the landscape 
of Glasgow, creating potential hotel 
demand. GBP500 million (USD768 
million) was spent on venues and 
supporting infrastructure for the 
Commonwealth Games from which 
the city continues to benefit. 

The Pacific Quay Digital Media 
Quarter will have BBC Scotland as 
the anchor tenant and will support 
the growth of digital and new 
media industries. The International 
Financial Services District (IFSD) is a 
billion pound public-private project 
creating a city centre location for 
financial and business services. 
Glasgow Harbour will receive 
GBP1.2 billion (USD1.8 billion) 
in the next decade to create “an 
urban community of mixed-use 
development.” The SECC Precinct 
is a major renovation project valued 
at over GBP520 million (USD798 
million) to upgrade the Scottish 
Exhibition and Conference Centre 
into a larger exhibition, conference 
and entertainment complex. 
The City Science/ International 
Technology and Renewable Energy 
Zone (ITREZ) specialises in science 
and technology. The Clyde Gateway 
Urban Regeneration Company has 
designated more than two thousand 
acres as prime regeneration land to 
the east of the Glasgow city centre 
and will receive GBP140 million 
(USD214 million) in public funds 
and GBP1.5 billion (USD2.3 billion) 
in private development over the 
next two decades. These initiatives 
will further cement Glasgow’s 
position as the commercial heart 
of Scotland. Hoteliers can expect 
increases in demand from a 
wide range of corporate guests, 
macroeconomic conditions 
allowing. 

We can expect this trend of strong 
growth across Scotland’s primary 
cities to continue over the next two 
years, although at a slower pace to 
the record year of 2014. Glasgow 
has the largest GDP in Scotland 
and it is the third largest UK city by 
population, its commercial interest 
is increasingly complemented by 
its interest as a tourism and culture 
destination. Although it’s economic 
growth rate is not as fast as oil rich 
Aberdeen or Edinburgh, its tourism 
reputation and hotel performance 
have improved drastically. Glasgow 
has the capacity to further improve 
ADR and occupancy through 
destination marketing in the future. 
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INVESTOR REL ATIONS

COMMITMENT TO REGULAR AND TRANSPARENT TWO-WAY 
COMMUNICATION

FHT was successfully listed on 14 July 2014 at SGD0.88 per stapled security, 
representing the net asset value per stapled security as at that date.

At all times, the REIT Manager is committed to maintaining timely, regular 
and accurate communication with its stakeholders, which includes stapled 
securityholders, prospective investors, analysts and the media.

The REIT Manager ensures that financial results, announcements, press 
releases, presentation slides and other relevant disclosures are posted timely 
on SGX as well as on FHT’s website.

Senior management and the investor relations team conduct results briefings 
via face-to-face meetings or conference calls, provide updates through one-
on-one and group meetings, emails, roadshows, and our website. During 
such meetings and conference calls, stakeholders have the opportunity to 
understand FHT better. Upon request, we also organise property visits to 
FHT’s properties for financial analysts and institutional investors. 

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) AND EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL 
MEETING (EGM)

Both the AGM and the EGM are important meetings for the stapled 
securityholders to meet with the board of directors and the management 
of FHT. FHT convened its EGM in relation with the acquisition of Sofitel 
Sydney Wentworth on 24 June 2015. Voting for all resolutions at the EGM 
via electronic polls were duly passed with the results of the polls announced 
on the SGX and FHT websites after the event. Our first AGM will be held on 9 
December 2015, in accordance with this annual report.

INVESTOR CONFERENCES AND 
ROADSHOWS

1. SGX-Barclays Joint Singapore 
Equities Corporate Day, 
Singapore

2. DBS Non-deal roadshow, 
Singapore 

3. Morgan Stanley Non-deal 
roadshow, Tokyo

4. Morgan Stanley Non-deal 
roadshow, Hong Kong

5. Barclays HK Select Series 
2015 Asia Financial & Property 
Conference, Hong Kong 

6. Acquisition of Sofitel Sydney 
Wentworth roadshow, Singapore 

7. Acquisition of Sofitel Sydney 
Wentworth roadshow,  
Hong Kong

8. Macquarie Asean Conference 
2015, Singapore 

9. Citi-REITAS Singapore REITs & 
Sponsors Forum, Singapore

10. UBS Asean Conference 2015, 
Singapore

EQUITY RESEARCH COVERAGE

DBS Vickers Research 
UOB Kay Hian Research
Morgan Stanley Research

Fraser Suites Queens Gate
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INVESTOR REL ATIONS

TRADING PERFORMANCE FY2015 SGD CENTS PER STAPLED SECURITY

Opening price 0.88

Last Done, closing price 0.73

Highest 0.92

Lowest 0.69

Total volume of Stapled Securities traded 246,583,800

FINANCIAL CALENDAR FY2015 

IPO listing date 14 July 2014

First release of results from 14 July to 31 December 2014 29 January 2015

2Q FY2015 results 30 April 2015

EGM 24 June 2015

First distribution payment 29 June 2015

3Q FY2015 results 29 July 2015

Advanced distribution payment 28 September 2015

Full Year FY2015 results 29 October 2015

AGM   9  December 2015

Final distribution payment 29 December 2015

FINANCIAL CALENDAR FY2016
(Subject To Changes By The Manager Without Prior Notice)

1Q FY2016 results January

2Q FY2016 results April

First distribution payment June

3Q FY2016 results July

Full Year FY2016 results October

Final distribution payment December

AGM Date to be advised accordingly
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

FHT is pleased to present our 
inaugural sustainability report 
along with our first annual report.   
We recognise that sustainability 
reporting is an increasingly 
important part of the corporate 
world and we believe this approach 
creates long term value for all our 
stakeholders. Forming an integral 
part of accountability to our 
stakeholders, a sustainability report 
will be integrated into FHT’s annual 
report as part of our corporate 
engagement at the end of every 
financial year. This enables us to 
share our social and environmental 
considerations which have been 
crucial to our business as a 
hospitality real estate investment 
trust. Furthermore, this report also 
allows us to measure our progress in 
sustainable development.
 

OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY IS GUIDED BY OUR CORE VALUES OF RESPONSIVENESS, RELIABILITY, 
OWNERSHIP, COMMITMENT, TRUST, TEAMWORK, INTEGRITY AND INNOVATIVENESS.    

SUSTAINABILIT Y REPORT

SCOPE OF THIS REPORT

This first sustainability report covers 
data from 1 October 2014 to 30 
September 2015 (“FY2015”)1. It has 
been prepared in accordance with 
the international standard, the 
Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) G4 
Core requirements and includes the 
Construction and Real Estate Sector 
Disclosure. For reference to the GRI 
Index, please refer to page 90.

For this report, the REIT Manager 
reports sustainability performance 
data available for the six serviced 
residences under the Fraser brand 
and two hotels in FHT’s portfolio 
managed by Frasers Hospitality 
which are Park International London 
and Best Western Cromwell London. 
We do not attempt to include the 
other hotels in the portfolio, which 
are independently managed by 

leading hotel operators and report 
on their respective sustainability 
policies and practices (refer to About 
Frasers Hospitality Trust on page 2 
for more information). 

Senior 
Management Core Values 

Working 
Committee 

Innovativeness

Commitm
ent

Reliability

Team
w

ork

Responsiveness

Trust

O
w

n
er

sh
ip

In
te

gr
ity

WE WOULD LIKE  
TO HEAR FROM YOU

We seek to continuously 
improve our sustainability 
performance and your 
views are welcomed. Please 
email your feedback on our 
sustainability performance 
and this report to Investor 
Relations,  
ir@frasershospitality.com.

1 Note: FY2015 in this sustainability report refers to 1 October 2014 to 30 September 2015. The dates differ from the financial period FY2015 as 
defined in the rest of the annual report which refers to the period from date of listing on 14 July 2014 to 30 September 2015.

[G4-17]
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SUSTAINABILIT Y REPORT

OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY

FHT’s sustainability programme is aligned with the commercial direction of 
the FCL Group as well as with the views and concerns of our stakeholders. 

Sustainability is managed across the business through relevant policies, 
programmes and standard operating procedures (“SOPs”). These are shared 
with all employees of the REIT Manager, supported with training and agreed 
roles and responsibilities to ensure that we deliver on our business principles 
across all of our operations. 

Our management approach is risk-based. We periodically review our 
policies, report compliance levels and we adjust how we work in the event 
of any breach. The REIT Manager also ensures that all new employees are 
aware of the policies. 

As we travel on our sustainability journey we are observing the changes in 
how people live, work and spend their leisure time, and how to enhance 
their well-being, productivity and enjoyment in order to maximise 
our management of resources such as energy and water. Our aim is 
to contribute to local economies where we have presence as well as 
workplaces that bring the best out of our employees. More than that, we 
want to build a sustainable business.

Deciding On What Matters Most
For the purposes of reporting, we have recently embarked on a materiality 
assessment to define what really matters. Led by our CEO Ms Eu Chin Fen, 
this assessment involved our senior management and was guided by an 
external sustainability consultant. We analysed governance, environmental 
and social issues which are central to our business and based the assessment 
on the international standards for materiality, GRI and AA1000, and 
applied sector specific guidance from the Global Real Estate Sustainability 
Benchmark (GRESB) and the GRI G4 Construction and Real Estate Sector 
Disclosure. 

SENIOR MANAGEMENT 
ENGAGEMENT

Our CEO Ms Eu Chin Fen 
is part of the FCL Group’s 
Sustainability Steering 
Committee. This committee 
is chaired by FCL Group CEO, 
and all senior management 
executives from each 
business unit, including FHT, 
are part of this committee. 
It meets quarterly to guide 
strategic matters, approve 
action plans and review 
performance related to 
sustainability practice. FHT 
also has a representative in 
the FCL Group Sustainability 
Working Committee, which 
coordinates the day-to-day 
sustainability governance 
work. The working 
committee focuses on 
sustainability implementation 
and data management. 

OUR MATERIALITY ANALYSIS

We have identified our top ten key material issues grouped under 4 key focus areas:

Where do these impacts occur? 
With the exception of labour/management relations as well as staff retention and development, which are internally 
focused, all of the above key material issues have an impact on the organisation, internally and externally.

Material Issues

Economic Performance Governance Environment People

Economic and financial 
contribution to the business 
and its stakeholders (Refer to 
financial highlights on pages 
8 and 9, operations review 
from pages 59 to 64 and 

financial statements section 
from page 113)

Anti-Corruption

Ethical Marketing 
Communications

Environmental Compliance

Energy Use and Climate 
Change

Water Usage

Health and Safety

Labour/Management 
Relations

Staff Retention and 
Development

Local Communities

[G4-18]

[G4-19]

[G4-20; G4-21]
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Our Key Stakeholders Form of Engagement Key Topics

Investment community 
and stapled 
securityholders

Results briefings and earnings calls at least 
quarterly

Annual General Meeting, Extraordinary General 
Meeting

Local and overseas investor conferences 

Bilateral communication, one-on-one meetings 
and site visits

Emails and discussions

Financial results, key development, asset 
enhancement initiatives and investor 
relations

Trade associations Member of the REIT Association of Singapore 
(REITAS) 

As part of FCL Group:
Member of the Singapore Green Building 
Council, the Green Building Council of Australia 
and the Real Estate Developers’ Association of 
Singapore

Industry updates, dialogues and issues

Business partners – 
serviced residence/  
hotel operators

Regular site meetings, discussions, calls  
and emails

Asset management, business 
opportunities, environmental and 
social impacts, property maintenance 
programmes

Suppliers Quotations, proposals, tenders, discussions, 
regular meetings and emails 

Appropriate cost and budgeting, 
adherence to terms and conditions of 
purchasing policies

Guests Bilateral communication

Events

Surveys

Service, facilities, quality customer 
satisfaction 

Hospitality satisfaction

Regulators Briefings and consultations

Discussions

Regulatory and industry trends, ensuring 
compliance

Employees Performance appraisals 

Training, including orientation program for new 
staff

Team bonding and sports events

Internal communication through intranet, Frasers 
Connect magazine, workshops, social events, 
Frasers Hospitality Day and addresses by CEO

Performance and skills
Information update by management

Occupational health 

Staff bonding

Media Regular luncheons with relevant journalists, 
media releases, regular communication

FHT’s latest developments, financial 
results, updates on acquisition and asset 
enhancement initiatives

Local community Community engagement activities, Big Love 
community outreach projects and Frasers 
environmental month in March annually

Partnering with local welfare 
organisations, community projects, 
environmental protection and 
conservation

BEING ACCOUNTABLE TO OUR STAKEHOLDERS 

As a responsible corporate citizen, we work closely with our stakeholders as they are critical to our long term success. 
We seek to understand our key stakeholders’ key concerns through various platforms throughout the year. This 
stakeholder engagement has provided valuable information to our approach to sustainability reporting and to how we 
assess material environmental and social issues. [G4-25]

Aside from the trade associations that FHT is a member of, our CEO, Ms Eu Chin Fen is a Board Member of Singapore 
Hotel Association which is the umbrella body on key hospitality developments and best practices in the industry 
in Singapore. Detailed information on our engagement with investors can be found on pages 79 and 80 within the 
Investor Relations section while our employee engagement is addressed on page 88 in the People section.

SUSTAINABILIT Y REPORT

[G4-25]

[G4-24; G4-26; G4-27]
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SUSTAINABILITY ACROSS OUR SUPPLY CHAIN

The REIT Manager recognises that as an asset manager of hospitality assets, we have a responsibility to influence our 
value chain regarding sustainability matters, where feasible. We identify and consider, where practical, any sustainability 
opportunities or risks that may arise. For instance, we work closely with our property operators to ensure that 
environmentally sustainable equipment is considered for replacement in our properties where possible. 

Factors measuring quality of hospitality assets today also include environmental and social criteria. The property 
operators would ensure that appropriate procedures and adequate risk management on materials selection, for 
example, in outsourcing and procurement matters are in place. Currently, contracts for procurement are being revised 
to include environmental considerations. Moving forward, where possible, environmental considerations such as the 
level of green features in asset enhancement initiatives would also be assessed.

GOVERNANCE

We maintain high standards of integrity, accountability and governance. In line with FCL Group, a wide range of 
corporate policies supports the Board of Directors and the management, covering areas such as business conduct, 
insider dealing, risk management and fraud. 

We believe in good corporate governance and adhere to the Code of Corporate Governance 2012 and other applicable 
laws, rules and regulations. As a signatory to the 2015 Corporate Governance Statement of Support organised by 
Securities Investors Association Singapore, FHT has pledged its commitment to uphold high standards in corporate 
governance. For more details on Corporate Governance, please refer to pages 96 to 112.

Preventing Corruption and Fraud
In line with FCL Group’s approach, we take a zero tolerance approach to bribery and corruption. 

Code of Business Conduct Whistle-Blowing Policy Anti-Bribery Policy Internal Audit

The Code of Business 
Conduct describes the 
company’s values and 
provides clear guidelines 
on ethics and relationships, 
and thereby safeguards the 
reputation and interests 
of the company and its 
stakeholders. It covers 
a range of practices, 
from compliance 
monitoring, record 
keeping, confidentiality of 
information, conflicts of 
interest, insider trading, 
and relations with key 
stakeholders. The Code 
governs the conduct of 
every employee in the 
company. Where applicable 
and appropriate, the Code 
was also made available 
to our agents, suppliers, 
contractors, business 
affiliates/associates/alliances 
who perform services for us. 

The Whistle-Blowing 
Policy has been in place to 
encourage, and provide a 
channel to, employees and 
any other persons who are 
not employees to report in 
good faith and in confidence, 
concerns about possible 
improprieties in financial 
reporting, professional 
misconduct, irregularities or 
non-compliance with laws 
or any other matters that 
may adversely affect stapled 
securityholders’ interests in 
FHT and its reputation. The 
policy is publicly available 
on our website and enables 
independent feedback 
from stakeholders. All 
reported cases are raised 
to the Audit, Risk and 
Compliance Committee 
(“ARC Committee”), which 
ensures that independent 
investigations and 
appropriate follow-up 
actions are carried out. 

The Anti-Bribery Policy 
sets out the procedures 
put in place to prevent 
the occurrence of bribery 
and corruption, provide 
guidance on how to 
recognise and deal with 
bribery and corruption and 
guide third parties in the 
conduct of their dealings 
with FHT. Risks identified 
include acceptance 
of expensive gifts, 
luxurious entertainment 
or hospitality, direct and 
indirect benefit from third 
parties, and expensive gifts 
given to third parties.

The Internal Audit 
Department reports 
directly to the Chairman 
of the ARC Committee. 
Independent internal 
audits designed to 
improve the effectiveness 
of risk management, 
control and governance 
processes are 
implemented. With 
commitment to integrity 
and accountability, 
internal auditing provides 
value to the senior 
management as a source 
of independent advice. 
They are briefed on the 
outcome of the audits 
with recommendations. 
For further details on our 
internal audit approach, 
please refer to page 
103 of the Corporate 
Governance Section.



85

A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 2
0

15
F

R
A

S
E

R
S

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L
IT

Y
 T

R
U

S
T

CUSTOMER PRIVACY

We protect and value our customers’ privacy. For example, no CCTV is installed in meeting rooms. FHT has 
fully adopted FCL Group’s Personal Data Protection Policy and adheres to the Code of Business Conduct, 
notably on “Confidential or Proprietary Information and Intellectual Property”. Since our initial public offering, 
there has been no substantiated complaints regarding breaches of customer privacy or loss of customer data.

Managing Fair Competition and Data Confidentiality
Other than prevention of corruption and bribery, we have in place various policies to maintain the highest level of 
adherence to rules and regulations. For example, the Competition Act Compliance Manual, Personal Data Protection Act 
Policy and Securities Dealing Compliance.

Ethical Marketing 
Ethical Marketing communication is part of our responsible business practice. We adhere to relevant regulations and 
voluntary standards in the countries where we have presence. For instance, we adhere to the Singapore Code of 
Advertising Practice. We ensure that we communicate only up-to-date information and that the content of marketing 
material is true to our best knowledge. 

ENVIRONMENT

The built environment accounts for a significant proportion of global energy use and greenhouse gas emissions (“GHG”) 
emissions. Energy wasted in buildings is an unnecessary cost to business and society. Water scarcity is another key 
global issue and we have a role to play in managing water efficient buildings, conserving water where possible. 

Environmental Compliance 
We view protection of the environment seriously and have not had any fines for non-compliance of environmental 
regulation at any of our properties managed by Frasers Hospitality since listing date of 14 July 2014. 

We continously seek improvements in energy efficiency, water intensity, recycled content and waste reduction. Our 
property operators have been driving the processes to achieve higher efficiencies. Our over-riding approach is to 
avoid pollution at source where possible, by reducing energy use, water use, and waste. Such utility consumption and 
environmental performance are tracked regularly. (Continued on the following page)

SUSTAINABILIT Y REPORT

REGULAR UPDATES OF CORPORATE POLICIES

We seek to ensure that all employees are kept up to date on our policies. For example, the Code of Business 
Conduct, Whistle-Blowing Policy and Anti-Bribery Policy are made available to all staff, and are informed 
of any updates that are made. In Singapore, all executive staff received training in FY2015 on the new 
Competition Act Compliance Manual and we introduced policies and procedures on Prevention of Money 
Laundering and Countering the Financing of Terrorism.
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ENVIRONMENT (CONT’D)

We have systematically reviewed the management of environmental 
protection at each of our Frasers managed property in FY2015. An 
Environmental Committee has been established at each property with targets 
and an environmental action plan to continuously improve performance. 

A Go Green programme has been implemented in all of our serviced 
apartments to engage employees, suppliers, guests and the community. Topics 
covered include limiting the use of laundry services to conserve water and 
energy. One of the initiatives implemented for the reduction of waste is the 
removal of excessive packaging of toiletries and amenity products. 

Energy Use and Climate Change
Energy use and GHG are important sustainability assessment. Low energy 
consumption can be supported by the materials used and the equipment 
installed. When equipment for the properties are purchased, energy efficiency 
is part of our considerations. Where possible, we replace our equipment with 
better energy efficient features.

The total energy consumption for Frasers managed properties in FY2015 
compared to FY2014 was lower by 5% at 9.02 million kWh. The energy intensity 
at 156.4 kWh/m2 2 was also 5% lower compared to FY2014. Energy intensity is 
calculated by dividing the total energy consumption by the total gross floor 
area (“GFA”). Both total GHG emissions and GHG intensity were 8% lower 
in FY2015 at 4.02 million tonnes of CO

2
e and 69.7 tonnes CO

2
e/m2. GHG 

intensity is defined as total GHG emissions divided by total GFA.

Total Energy  
Consumption 
(million kWh)

Energy  
Intensity
(kWh/m2)

Total  
GHG Emissions 

(million tonnes of CO
2
e)

GHG  
Intensity 

(tonnes of CO
2
e/m2)

FY2014 FY2015 FY2014 FY2015 FY2014 FY2015 FY2014 FY2015

9.45  
(7 properties)

9.02
(7 properties)

163.8
(7 properties)

156.4
(7 properties)

4.37
(7 properties)

4.02
(7 properties)

75.7
(7 properties)

69.7
(7 properties)

2 Out of the 8 properties managed by property operator, Frasers Hospitality Pte Ltd, energy and greenhouse data are not available for Fraser 
Suites Sydney. Environmental data was based on whole building consumption. Greenhouse gas emission factors are from i) Singapore Energy 
Statistics 2015 and ii) the United Kingdom’s Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA), accessed 20 October 2015.

ENVIRONMENTAL AWARDS

Environmentally efficient properties are better positioned in the marketplace. As such we continuously seek to 
go beyond compliance. Awards are:

• Silver Award 2014 by the Green Tourism Business Scheme for Fraser Suites Edinburgh 
• Bronze in the Green Tourism Business Scheme for Best Western Cromwell London
• Building and Construction Authority’s Green Mark Gold Plus Certification for InterContinental Singapore 

(managed by IHG Group) 

CARE FOR THE 
ENVIRONMENT

In conjunction with Earth 
Hour, Frasers Hospitality 
has designated March as 
Frasers Environment Month, 
during which a series of 
initiatives and campaigns to 
contribute to the good cause 
of environment are carried 
out. In FY2015, employees of 
Fraser Suites Sydney cleaned 
up Bondi Beach. Over in 
Singapore, employees of 
Fraser Suites Singapore also 
participated in a Singapore 
beach clean up.



87

A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 2
0

15
F

R
A

S
E

R
S

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L
IT

Y
 T

R
U

S
T

Total Water Consumption
(m3)

Water Intensity
(m3/m2)

FY2014 FY2015 FY2014 FY2015

90,100 
(6 properties)

103,800
(7 properties)

1.69 
(6 properties)

1.34
(7 properties)

Water Usage 
Similarly, we support the conservation of water. Various techniques and 
technologies are installed to help deliver efficiencies without compromising 
the high standard of luxury expected. They include restricted flow taps and 
more efficient flush systems in toilets. 

The total water consumption across the managed properties in FY2015 was 
103,800 m3.3 The increase from 90,100 m3 in FY2014 was due to the addition 
of Fraser Suites Sydney in the computation of total water consumption in 
FY2015. All of our water consumption relating to the properties in the scope 
of this report were from public utilities. FHT’s water intensity was 1.34m3/m2 
for FY2015, which was an improvement from 1.69m3/m2 in FY2014. Water 
intensity is calculated by dividing total water consumption by total GFA.

3 Water data is not available for Fraser Suites Sydney (FY2014) and Fraser Place Canary Wharf (FY2014 & FY2015). For more details, also refer to 
footnote 2.

LESS  
WATER USAGE

20.7% improvement in water 
intensity in FY2015.

SUSTAINABILIT Y REPORT

PEOPLE

The REIT Manager is committed to developing skilled people who are happy in a safe work environment. Retaining 
talents and nurturing future leaders is fundamental to our long term success. We have a clear commitment to fair 
employment practices. Each employee receives training and career development, as appropriate. 

Health and Safety
Workplace Health and Safety Policy has been implemented. At all of the Frasers managed properties is a designated 
team responsible for safety and security, including fire safety. Safety is central to our crisis management and business 
continuity policies. We work with our counterparts at FCL Group level on unifying our safety culture across the 
different business units to deploy health and safety management on site and sharing best practices. 

At the Frasers managed properties, there are formal processes in place to track incident/accident data according 
to local laws usually on a monthly basis. The property operators are working towards ISO certifications for these 
management systems implementation.

In FY2015, there were no incidents of non-compliance with health and safety regulations or voluntary codes. 

As part of FHT’s transparent sustainability approach, we are additionally reporting about workplace incidents in our 
properties managed by Frasers Hospitality. In FY2015, there were 5 lost-time injuries, resulting in 141 lost days,  
a lost-time injury rate of 6.9 and a severity rate of 193.8 per million man hours. This was largely due to one incident at 
Fraser Suites Sydney. Stepping up accident prevention measures, the property operator had implemented additional 
work safety related training and frequent briefings about safety measures while ensuring employees do not work 
more than nine hours consecutively. The data reported above is in line with Singapore’s Ministry of Manpower 
definitions for incident reporting.
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Staff Retention and Development
As at 30 September 2015, the REIT Manager has appointed 14 employees in 
Singapore out of which, 29% are males while 71% are females.4 We have a 
growing workforce, with a hiring rate of 21% compared to a turnover rate of 
7%. Temporary or part-time employees are not a significant proportion of the 
workforce.

Developing Our Staff, Fostering Their Loyalty
Staff well-being, career development and social responsibility are often just 
as important to an employee as remuneration. 

The REIT Manager engages with the staff regularly, supported by team 
bonding events throughout the year and annual performance appraisals. 
Here, open door practice is encouraged where feedback on performance 
and skills can be discussed throughout the year. Part of the performance 
appraisal is the alignment of the performance with the REIT Manager’s 
values as well as an assessment of development and training needs. We 
have many staff programmes that support training and healthy lifestyle such 
as the Corporate Wellness Programme. The Frasers Day celebrated every 
year in March by the hospitality group at all properties is one of several team 
bonding activities. 

We have a system in place for career planning and development. The 
dedicated learning and development team within FCL Group’s Human 
Resource department provides assistance on training to employees to 
upgrade their skills. Each year, a learning directory is published and sent to 
all department managers to feed into the training assessment discussions at 
the performance appraisals. Learning highlights are also sent monthly to all 
staff via email. Training courses range from general skills (communication, 
computer, leadership, personal effectiveness etc.) to specific job skills. On 
average, each employee receives over 40 hours of training per year which is 
in line with the national average of recommended training hours.

In addition to the basic remuneration, we provide a number of benefits 
to our employees, including retirement saving plans, parental leave and 
medical insurance. We also offer post retirement employment, supporting 
older employees e.g. in Singapore in accordance with the Tripartite 
Guidelines on the re-employment of older employees. 

We have adopted FCL Group’s Diversity policy which is committed to equal 
opportunity and the elimination of all forms of discrimination including race, 
ethnicity, gender, physical ability, social origin and sexual orientation (as 
defined by the International Labour Organisation Convention 111, 1958). This 
is supported by our Code of Business Conduct, which contains a chapter on 
equal opportunities.

GOOD LABOUR/
MANAGEMENT 
RELATIONS

Fair Employment Practices
We have in place employment 
policies that are aligned 
with the FCL Group Code of 
Business Conduct, including 
a special chapter on equal 
employment opportunities. As 
part of the FCL Group, we have 
joined the Tripartite Alliance 
for Fair and Progressive 
Employment Practices 
(TAFEP). It promotes the 
adoption of fair, responsible 
and progressive employment 
practices. 

The five key principles of fair 
employment practices are:
1. Recruit and select 

employees on the basis 
of merit (such as skills, 
experience or ability to 
perform the job), regardless 
of age, race, gender, religion, 
marital status and family 
responsibilities, or disability.

2. Treat employees fairly and 
with respect and implement 
progressive human resource 
management systems.

3. Provide employees with 
equal opportunity to be 
considered for training and 
development based on 
their strengths and needs to 
help them achieve their full 
potential.

4. Reward employees fairly 
based on their ability, 
performance, contribution 
and experience.

5. Abide by labour laws 
and adopt the Tripartite 
Guidelines on Fair 
Employment Practices.

Good labour/management 
relations contribute to business 
success, staff well-being and, 
ultimately, to community 
cohesion. 

During regular staff meetings, 
any relevant issue such as 
sustainability and governance 
is discussed as required. 
Employees are given sufficient 
notice to adjust to any 
operational changes. 4 All employee data in this sustainability report is from Frasers Hospitality Asset Management, 

the Manager of FH-REIT, a wholly-owned subsidiary of FCL.
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Local Communities
We add value to the local communities through involvement and investment. All of the REIT Manager’s employees 
are hired from the local community. 

In FY2015, Frasers Hospitality group formed a new committee for corporate social responsibility which guides the 
community engagement programmes. In March 2015, the global theme was “Creating memorable experiences”, 
under which employees of each property organised their own activities. FHT’s properties are also occasionally used 
for community building activities. 

The hotels that are independently managed are also active members of their respective local communities, 
contributing according to their respective sustainability practices. In FY2015 for example, InterContinental Singapore 
donated over 160 mooncakes to Nanyang Polytechnic for underprivileged families and partnered with St Lukes 
Eldercare to take the elderly to Gardens by the Bay. The Westin Kuala Lumpur initiates several activities to support 
the UNICEF Check Out For Children Challenge yearly in October. ANA Crowne Plaza Kobe organises a monthly 
cleaning of Flower Road which is the area around Shin-Kobe station. As part of the supply chain, local communities 
benefit from our hotels and serviced residences from employment opportunities, community activities and 
increased tourism activities. 

Community Engagement
Project Fresh Start – Bringing Hope Home
We believe that developing a well-rounded sustainability program is central to our business. As this is our inaugural 
annual report, besides highlighting our key sustainability framework of the core issues, we would like to take this 
opportunity to share with our stapled securityholders, our part in local community engagement. In August 2015, 
our team participated in our first community initiative through Project Fresh Start under Big Love Child Protection 
Specialist Centre. Programs under Big Love provide a more child-centric, family-focused and community-based 
support for families known for child protection concerns. Project Fresh Start is built on the importance of a clean 
living environment where the home is the beginning of life, where children first form their characters and derive 
their strength.

Clean Environment, Fresh Beginnings
Over and above financial assistance, Project Fresh Start aims to organise and clean the homes of families referred 
for issues of child abuse, neglect and welfare. The team revamped and rejuvenated the home for a family with two 
young children in Singapore to provide the children with better living conditions. 

For the project, the team repainted the walls of the house, scrubbed surfaces of floors, kitchen and bathroom. 
Furniture were wiped clean and pest control was arranged to clear the roach infestation. A new refrigerator and 
a washing machine were also purchased to replace broken appliances while new mattresses and pillows were 
delivered to complete the home. 

SUSTAINABILIT Y REPORT
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GRI CONTENT INDEX (G4 CORE)

GENERAL STANDARD DISCLOSURES

STANDARD DISCLOSURE TITLE

 STRATEGY AND ANALYSIS  PAGE REFERENCE

G4-1 Statement from the most senior decision-maker of the organisation about 
the relevance of sustainability to the organisation and the organisation’s 
strategy for addressing sustainability. 

Letter to Stapled Securityholders, 
p.14

ORGANISATIONAL PROFILE  

G4-3 Name of the organisation. About Frasers Hospitality Trust, p.2

G4-4 Primary brands, products, and services. About Frasers Hospitality Trust, p.2 

G4-5 Location of the organisation’s headquarters. Corporate Information, inner back 
cover

G4-6 Number of countries where the organisation operates, and names of 
countries where either the organisation has significant operations or that 
are specifically relevant to the sustainability topics covered in the report.

About Frasers Hospitality Trust, p.2

G4-7 Nature of ownership and legal form. About Frasers Hospitality Trust, p.2

G4-8 Markets served (including geographic breakdown, sectors served, and 
types of customers and beneficiaries).

About Frasers Hospitality Trust, p.2

G4-9 Scale of the organisation About Frasers Hospitality Trust, p.2

Financial Highlights, p.8-9

Staff Retention and Development, 
p.88

G4-10 a. total number of employees by employment contract and gender.

b. total number of permanent employees by employment type and 
gender.

c. total workforce by employees and supervised workers and by gender.

d.  total workforce by region and gender.

e. Report whether a substantial portion of the organisation’s work is 
performed by workers who are legally recognised as self-employed, 
or by individuals other than employees or supervised workers, 
including employees and supervised employees of contractors.

f. any significant variations in employment numbers (such as seasonal 
variations in employment in the tourism or agricultural industries).

Staff Retention and Development, 
p. 88

No substantial work is performed 
by workers who are legally 
recognized as self-employed. 
There is no significant variation in 
employment numbers.

G4-11 Employees covered by collective bargaining agreements. There are no collective bargaining 
agreements in place. 

G4-12 The organisation’s supply chain. Sustainability across our Supply 
Chain, p. 84

G4-13 Significant changes during the reporting period regarding the 
organisation’s size, structure, ownership, or its supply chain

Not applicable - first sustainability 
report

G4-14 Whether and how the precautionary approach or principle is addressed by 
the organisation. 

Our Approach to Sustainability, 
p. 82

Environment, p. 85

G4-15 Externally developed economic, environmental and social charters, 
principles, or other initiatives to which the organisation subscribes or 
which it endorses.

Our Approach to Sustainability. 
p. 82

Environment, p. 85/86

Governance, p. 84/85

Good Labour/Management 
Relations, p. 88

Developing Our Staff, Fostering 
Their Loyalty, p.88

G4-16 Memberships of associations (such as industry associations) and national 
or international advocacy organisations

Being Accountable to Our 
Stakeholders, p. 83
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IDENTIFIED MATERIAL ASPECTS AND BOUNDARIES

G4-17 All entities included or not included in organisation’s financial statements Portfolio Summary, p.28

Scope of this Report, p.81

Notes to the Financial Statements, 
p. 139

G4-18 Process for defining Report Content Our Approach to Sustainability, 
p. 82

G4-19 The material Aspects identified in the process for defining report content Our Materiality Analysis, p. 82

G4-20 For each material Aspect, Aspect Boundary within the organisation Our Materiality Analysis, p. 82

G4-21 Aspect Boundary outside the organisation Our Materiality Analysis, p. 82

G4-22 Effect of any restatements of information provided in previous reports, 
and the reasons for such restatements. 

Not applicable - first sustainability 
report

G4-23 Significant changes from previous reporting periods in the Scope and 
Aspect Boundaries.

Not applicable - first sustainability 
report

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

G4-24 Stakeholder groups engaged by the organisation Being Accountable to Our 
Stakeholders, p. 83

G4-25 Basis for identification and selection of stakeholders with whom to 
engage

Being Accountable to Our 
Stakeholders, p. 83

G4-26 Approach to stakeholder engagement, including frequency of 
engagement by type and by stakeholder group

Being Accountable to Our 
Stakeholders, p. 83

Environment, p. 85

People, p. 87-89

Investor Relations, p. 79

G4-27 Key topics and concerns raised through stakeholder engagement, and 
how the organisation has responded

Being Accountable to Our 
Stakeholders, p. 83

Environment, p. 85

People, p. 87-89

Investor Relations, p. 79

 REPORT PROFILE  

G4-28 Reporting period for information provided Scope of this Report, p. 81

G4-29 Date of most recent previous report Not applicable - first sustainability 
report

G4-30 Reporting cycle Sustainability Reporting, p. 81

G4-31 Contact point for questions regarding the report or its contents We would like to hear from you, 
p. 81

G4-32 Report on ‘In accordance’ option, GRI Content Index, reference to 
External Assurance

Scope of this Report, p. 81

G4-33 Policy and current practice with regard to seeking external assurance for 
the report

We recognise the merits of 
independent assurance and we 
will be clarifying our policy on this 
in future.

 GOVERNANCE  

G4-34 Governance structure of the organisation Corporate Structure, p.15

Board of Directors, p.18-21

Management Team, p. 22-23

Senior Management Engagement, 
p. 82

Governance, p. 84/85

Risk Management, p. 94/95

G4-58 Internal and external mechanisms for reporting concerns about ethical 
and lawful behavior, and matters related to organisational integrity, such as 
escalation through line management, whistleblowing mechanisms or hotlines

Preventing Corruption and Fraud, 
p.84/85

In FY2015, no matters were raised.

GRI CONTENT INDEX (G4 CORE)
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SPECIFIC STANDARD DISCLOSURES

CATEGORY: ECONOMIC 

 ASPECT: ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE  

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Financial Review, p.56-57

G4-EC1 Direct economic value generated and distributed Financial Review, p. 56-57

Financial Statements, p. 114 
onwards

G4-EC3 Coverage of the organisation’s defined benefit plan obligations Employees are covered by 
Singapore's mandatory social 
security savings plan, the Central 
Provident Fund (CPF).

CATEGORY: ENVIRONMENTAL

 ASPECT: ENERGY  

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Environment, p. 85-87

G4-EN3 Energy consumption within the organisation Energy Use and Climate Change, 
p. 86

G4-EN5 Energy intensity Energy Use and Climate Change, 
p. 86

G4-EN6 Reduction of energy consumption Energy Use and Climate Change, 
p. 86

G4-CRE1 Building energy intensity Energy Use and Climate Change, 
p. 86

 ASPECT: WATER  

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Environment, p. 85-87

G4-EN8 Total water withdrawal by source Water Usage Conservation, p.87

G4-CRE2 Building water intensity Water Usage Conservation, p.87

 ASPECT: EMISSIONS  

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Environment, p. 85-87

G4-EN16 Energy indirect greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions (Scope 2) Energy Use and Climate Change, 
p. 86

G4-EN18 Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions intensity Energy Use and Climate Change, 
p. 86

G4-EN19 Reduction of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions Energy Use and Climate Change, 
p. 86

G4-CRE3 Greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions intensity from buildings Energy Use and Climate Change, 
p. 86

CATEGORY: SOCIAL 

SUB-CATEGORY: LABOUR PRACTICES AND DECENT WORK 

 ASPECT: EMPLOYMENT  

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach People, p. 87-88

G4-LA1 Total number and rates of new employee hires and employee turnover by 
age group, gender and region

Staff Retention and Development, 
p. 88

G4-LA2 Benefits provided to full-time employees that are not provided to 
temporary or part-time employees, by significant locations of operation

Not applicable. No temporary or 
part-time employees.

 ASPECT: LABOUR/MANAGEMENT RELATIONS  

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach People, p. 87-88

Good Labour/Management 
Relations, p. 88

G4-LA4 Minimum notice periods regarding operational changes, including 
whether these are specified in collective agreements

Good Labour/Management 
Relations, p. 88

The number of weeks varies.
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 ASPECT: OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY  

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Health and Safety, p. 87

G4-LA5 Workforce represented in formal joint management-worker health and 
safety committees that help monitor and advise on occupational health 
and safety programs

There are no health-safety 
committees at group level.

G4-LA6 Type of injury and rates of injury, occupational diseases, lost days, and 
absenteeism, and total number of work-related fatalities, by region and by 
gender

Health and Safety, p. 87

G4-CRE6 Percentage of the organisation operating in verified compliance with an 
internationally recognised health and safety management system.

There is no data tracking for the 
percentage of employees working 
in verified compliance with an 
Internationally Recognised Health 
& Safety Management System. 

 ASPECT: TRAINING AND EDUCATION  

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Developing Our Staff, Fostering 
Their Loyalty, p.88

G4-LA9 Training per year per employee by gender, and by employee category Developing Our Staff, Fostering 
Their Loyalty, p.88

G4-LA10 Programs for skills management and lifelong learning that support the 
continued employability of employees and assist them in managing 
career endings

Developing Our Staff, Fostering 
Their Loyalty, p.88

G4-LA11 Employees receiving regular performance and career development 
reviews, by gender and by employee category

Developing Our Staff, Fostering 
Their Loyalty, p.88

SUB-CATEGORY: SOCIETY 

 ASPECT: LOCAL COMMUNITIES  

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Local Communities, p. 89

Community Engagement, p. 89

G4-SO1 Operations with implemented local community engagement, impact 
assessments, and development programs

Local Communities, p. 89

Community Engagement, p. 89

G4-CRE7 Persons voluntarily and involuntarily displaced and/or resettled by 
development, broken down by project

FHT has only invested in 
completed properties. It has not 
been involved in the development 
phase of these properties. 

 ASPECT: ANTI-CORRUPTION  

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Preventing Corruption and Fraud, 
p. 84/85

G4-SO3 Operations asessed for risks related to corruption and the significant risks 
identified

Risk Management, p. 94/95

Preventing Corruption and Fraud, 
p. 84/85

G4-SO4 Communication and training on anti-corruption policies and procedures Preventing Corruption and Fraud, 
p. 84/85

G4-SO5 Confirmed incidents of corruption and actions taken No confirmed incidents.

 ASPECT: MARKETING COMMUNICATIONS  

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Ethical Marketing, p. 85

G4-PR7 Total number of incidents of non-compliance with regulations and 
voluntary codes concerning marketing communications, including 
advertising, promotion, and sponsorship, by type of outcomes

No incidents.

 SUB-CATEGORY: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

 ASPECT: CUSTOMER HEALTH AND SAFETY  

G4-DMA Generic Disclosures on Management Approach Health and Safety, p.87 

G4-PR2 Incidents of non-compliance with regulations and voluntary codes 
concerning the health and safety impacts of products and services during 
their life cycle

Health and Safety, p.87 

GRI CONTENT INDEX (G4 CORE)
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RISK MANAGEMENT

ENTERPRISE-WIDE RISK 
MANAGEMENT

The objective of enterprise-wide 
risk management (“ERM”) is to 
identify key risks and put in place 
controls, and to allocate appropriate 
resources to proactively manage 
the identified risks. Enterprise-wide 
risk reporting is facilitated through 
a web-based Corporate Risk 
Scorecard system which enables the 
reporting of risks and risk status on 
a common platform in a consistent 
and cohesive manner. The ERM 
framework covers key areas such as 
investment, financial management 
and operating activities. Risks are 
reported and monitored using a 
Risk Scorecard which captures risks, 
mitigating measures, timeline for 
action items and risk ratings. Where 
applicable, Key Risk Indicators 
(“KRIs”) are established to monitor 
risks. The Risk Scorecard and KRIs 
are presented in the form of a Key 
Risk Dashboard and reviewed by 
the Management and the REIT 
Manager’s ARC Committee on a 
regular basis.

Risk tolerance statements setting 
out the nature and extent of 
significant risks which the REIT 
Manager is willing to take in 
achieving its strategic objectives 
in respect of FH-REIT have been 
formalised and adopted. The risk 
tolerance statements are reviewed 
periodically.

The REIT Manager has implemented 
a Comfort Matrix Framework, 
which provides an overview of 
the mitigating measures, and 
assurance processes of key financial, 
compliance, IT and operational risks.

KEY RISKS IN FY2015

Investment Risk

All investment proposals are 
evaluated against a comprehensive 
set of investment criteria and due 
diligence is carried out to mitigate 

potential investment risks. The 
acquisition must be aligned with 
FHT’s investment mandate. The 
evaluation process for all investment 
activities includes consideration of 
the location, guest mix, building 
condition, competitive conditions, 
expected investment return, 
long-term sustainability of asset 
performance and growth potential. 

Regulatory and Compliance Risk

FHT has global operations and is 
subject to the laws and regulations 
of the markets it operates in.

FHT comprises FH-REIT, a 
Singapore-based REIT, and FH-BT, 
a Singapore-based business trust 
registered under the Business Trust 
Act (“BTA”). The REIT Manager and 
the Trustee-Manager, being the 
responsible entities of FH-REIT 
and FH-BT, respectively, each has 
their own board of directors (which 
comprise the same persons) and its 
own set of procedures in relation to 
corporate governance.

Due to the different legislative 
and regulatory requirements in 
relation to a REIT as compared 
with a business trust, the corporate 
governance procedures and 
disclosure requirements in relation 
to the REIT Manager are different 
from those in relation to the 
Trustee-Manager.

The Managers have in place 
policies and procedures to facilitate 
compliance with applicable laws 
and regulations. Management keeps 
abreast of latest developments 
in relevant laws and regulations 
through training and attending talks 
and briefings.

Foreign Currency Risk

The entities within the stapled group 
normally conduct their business 
in their respective functional 
currencies. 

The stapled group’s foreign 
currency risk mainly relates to its 
Australian dollar (“AUD”), Sterling 
pounds (“GBP”), Malaysian ringgit 
(“MYR”) and Japanese yen (“JPY”) 
denominated investments and 
distribution income and interest 
income from its foreign subsidiaries. 
The REIT Manager monitors the 
stapled group’s foreign currency 
exposures on an ongoing basis and 
limits its exposure to fluctuations in 
exchange rates by using derivative 
financial instruments or other 
suitable financial products. 

It is the Managers’ policy to hedge 
the stapled group’s anticipated 
foreign currency exposure in 
respect of distribution income, net 
of anticipated payments required in 
the same currency, from its foreign 
subsidiaries at least six months 
forward by using foreign currency 
forward exchange contracts and 
certain currency derivatives. 

Investment in overseas assets are 
hedged naturally to the extent that 
borrowings are taken up in their 
respective foreign currency. The net 
position of the foreign exchange 
risk of these investments in overseas 
assets are not hedged as such 
investments are long term in nature. 

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the 
fair value of future cash flows of 
FHT’s financial instruments will 
fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates. 

FHT’s exposure to changes in 
interest rates relate primarily to its 
interest-earning financial assets 
and interest-bearing borrowings. 
Interest rate risk is actively managed 
by the REIT Manager on an ongoing 
basis with the primary objective 
of limiting the extent to which net 
interest expense could be affected 
by adverse movements in interest 
rates. The REIT Manager adopts a 
policy of fixing the interest rates 
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for a portion of its outstanding 
borrowings via the use of derivative 
financial instruments or other 
suitable financial products. 
Interest rate derivatives in respect of 
FHT’s borrowings have been entered 
into to achieve an appropriate mix 
of fixed and floating rate exposures 
within FHT’s policy. Generally, the 
maturities of these interest rate 
derivatives follow the maturities of 
the related borrowings. 

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the potential financial 
loss resulting from the failure of 
a customer or a counterparty to 
settle its financial and contractual 
obligations with the stapled group, 
as and when they fall due.

FHT’s objective is to seek continual 
revenue growth while minimising 
losses incurred due to increased 
credit risk exposure. The REIT 
Manager has established credit 
limits for lessees and monitors 
their balances on an ongoing basis. 
Credit evaluations are performed 
by the REIT Manager before lease 
agreements are entered into with 
the lessees. Credit risk is also 
mitigated by the security deposits 
held for each lessee.

The security deposits were received 
in cash and is equivalent to eight 
months of the monthly Fixed Rent 
under the Master Lease Agreements.

In addition, Frasers Centrepoint 
Limited and TCC Land International 
Limited have granted a Corporate 
Guarantee to FH-REIT for the 
performance of the Master 
Lessees and Retail Master Lessee 
respectively. Upon default, the 
Corporate Guarantors will pay the 
rent and other sums payable under 
the Master Lease Agreement and 
the Retail Master Lease Agreement 
respectively.

Cash and cash equivalents are 
placed with financial institutions 

which are regulated. The credit 
risk related to derivative financial 
instruments arises from the 
potential failure of counterparties 
to meet their obligations under the 
contracts. It is the stapled group’s 
policy to enter into derivative 
financial instrument transactions 
with credit worthy counterparties. 

The stapled group has no significant 
concentration of credit risk at 
reporting date. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk is represented 
by the carrying amount of each 
financial asset in the Statements of 
Financial Position.

Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the 
FHT will encounter difficulty in 
meeting its financial obligations 
due to shortage of funds. The REIT 
Manager monitors and maintains a 
level of cash and cash equivalents 
deemed adequate to finance FH-
REIT’s operations for a reasonable 
period, including the servicing 
of financing obligations, and to 
mitigate the effects of fluctuations 
in cash flows. The debt maturities 
of the borrowings are spread 
out to mitigate financing risks. In 
addition, a sufficient level of working 
capital is maintained to meet the 
requirements of FHT’s operations. 
The REIT Manager also monitors and 
observes the CIS Code issued by 
the MAS concerning limits on total 
borrowings. 

Operational Risks

FHT relies on the serviced residence 
and hotel operators for the day-
to-day running of the operations. 
It reduces its operational risks 
through the engagement of 
reputable serviced residence and 
hotel operators with operational 
experience in the respective 
markets. The REIT Manager actively 
oversees the performance of 
the assets and the operators and 
perform benchmarking of the 

assets’ performance vis-à-vis their 
competitors. The interests of these 
operators are aligned with FHT’s 
through a 100% variable fee model 
which links performance of the 
assets to fees payable to operators.

Fraud Risk

A Whistle Blowing Policy and Manual 
of Authority for the approval of 
purchases and payment are in place 
to mitigate fraud risk. FHT is subject 
to regular internal audit reviews 
scheduled based on the internal 
audit work plans approved by the 
REIT Manager’s ARC Committee.

RISK MANAGEMENT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

Frasers Hospitality Trust (“FHT”) is a stapled group comprising Frasers Hospitality Real Estate Investment Trust (“FH-
REIT”) and Frasers Hospitality Business Trust (“FH-BT”).

The units in FH-REIT and the units in FH-BT are stapled together under the terms of a stapling deed dated 20 June 
2014 (“Stapling Deed”) entered into between Frasers Hospitality Asset Management Pte. Ltd., as manager of FH-REIT 
(“REIT Manager”), The Trust Company (Asia) Limited, as trustee of FH-REIT (“REIT Trustee”), and Frasers Hospitality 
Trust Management Pte. Ltd., as trustee-manager of FH-BT (“Trustee-Manager”, and together with the REIT Manager, 
the “Managers”), to form Stapled Securities (“Stapled Securities”, and each a “Stapled Security”). Each Stapled Security, 
consisting of one FH-REIT and one FH-BT unit, is treated as a single instrument. The Stapled Securities are listed on the 
Mainboard of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”).

FH-REIT is a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) constituted in Singapore by a trust deed dated 12 June 2014 made 
between the REIT Manager and the REIT Trustee, as amended and restated by an amending and restating deed dated 
20 June 2014 (“FH-REIT Trust Deed”). It is a collective investment scheme under the Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 
289 of Singapore (the “SFA”).

The REIT Manager has been issued a Capital Markets Services Licence (“CMS Licence”) issued by the Monetary Authority 
of Singapore (“MAS”) to carry out REIT management activities as required under the licensing regime for REIT managers 
under the Securities and Futures Act (“SFA”).

FH-BT is a business trust constituted in Singapore by a trust deed dated 20 June 2014 (“FH-BT Trust Deed”, and 
together with the FH-REIT Trust Deed and the Stapling Deed, the “Trust Deeds”) made by the Trustee-Manager. FH-BT 
is registered as a business trust under the Business Trusts Act, Chapter 31A of Singapore (the “BTA”). FH-BT has been 
dormant since it was listed.

The Managers are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Frasers Centrepoint Limited (“FCL”). 

Due to the different legislative and regulatory requirements in relation to a REIT as compared with a business trust, the 
corporate governance procedures and disclosure requirements in relation to a REIT Manager are different from those 
in relation to the Trustee-Manager.

The Managers ensure that the business of FHT is carried on and conducted in a proper and efficient manner adhering 
to the principles and guidelines of the Code of Corporate Governance 2012 (the “CG Code”) and other applicable laws 
and regulations, including the listing rules of SGX-ST, the Code on Collective Investment Schemes (the “Code on CIS”), 
the BTA and the SFA. 

The Managers are committed to high standards of corporate governance in the business and operations of FHT for the 
benefit of the holders of the Stapled Securities. This corporate governance report (“CG Report”) provides an insight on 
the Managers’ corporate governance framework and practices in compliance with the principles and guidelines of the 
CG Code. Deviations from the CG Code are explained. 

BOARD MATTERS

Principle 1: The Board’s Conduct of Affairs

The REIT Manager and the Trustee-Manager have their own boards of directors. The board of directors of each of the 
REIT Manager and the Trustee-Manager comprise the same persons. 

The Trustee-Manager has general powers of management over the business and assets of FH-BT and its main 
responsibility is to manage FH-BT’s assets and liabilities for the benefit of the holders of FH-BT units as a whole.
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The MAS has granted the Trustee-Manager an exemption from compliance with Sections 10(2)(a) and 11(1)(a) of the BTA 
to act in the best interests of the holders of FH-BT unit holders only, subject to (i) the FH-BT units remaining stapled 
to the FH-REIT units and (ii) the Trustee-Manager and the Trustee-Manager Directors acting in the best interests of all 
Stapled Securityholders as a whole.

FH-BT is currently dormant. For as long as FH-BT is dormant, the primary role of the Trustee-Manager Board will be to 
ensure that the Trustee-Manager complies with the requirements under the Listing Manual, the BTA and the Business 
Trust Regulations 2005 (“BTR”) (except where waivers have been obtained) as well as the FH-BT Trust Deed and the 
Stapling Deed. 

The REIT Manager has general powers of management over the assets of FH-REIT. Its main responsibility is to manage 
FH-REIT’s assets and liabilities for the benefit of the holders of FH-REIT units and is responsible for formulating the 
business plans in relation to FH-REIT’s properties. 

The REIT Manager Board oversees the business affairs of FH-REIT and the REIT Manager, and assumes responsibility for 
their strategic direction and plans. In carrying out its responsibilities, the REIT Manager Board is involved strategically in 
the establishment of performance objectives for both FH-REIT and the REIT Manager, financial planning, budget creation 
and monitoring, material operational initiatives, investment and asset enhancement initiatives, financial and operational 
performance reviews, the establishment of risk management practices and risk monitoring, and establishment and 
monitoring of corporate governance and compliance practices. 

The REIT Manager Board is assisted in its financial reporting, corporate governance and risk management responsibilities 
by the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee (the “ARC Committee”). A Nominating Committee (“Nominating 
Committee”) also assists the REIT Manager Board in succession planning and reviewing independence of directors. 
More information on the ARC Committee and Nominating Committee can be found in this Report.

The Managers’ Boards meet at least once every quarter and on such other occasions that necessitate their involvement. 
The Managers’ Articles of Association allows for such meetings to be conducted via telephone, video conference or 
any other form of electronic or instantaneous communication. Where required, time is set aside after scheduled Board 
meetings for discussions amongst the members of the Managers’ Boards without the presence of Management, in line 
with the guidelines of the CG Code, as this facilitates a more effective check on Management.

The number of Board, REIT Manager Nominating Committee and REIT Manager ARC Committee meetings held for 
the financial period from 14 July 2014 (date of listing) to 30 September 2015 (“the financial period”), as well as the 
attendance of each Board member at these meetings, are set out below:

Directors’ Attendance at REIT Manager’s Board and Board Committee Meetings held during the financial period 

Director
Board  

Meetings

Nominating 
Committee  

Meetings 

ARC  
Committee  

Meetings

Mr Law Song Keng 5/5 1/1 4/4
Mr Chua Phuay Hee 5/5 – –
Mr Liew Choon Wei 5/5 1/1 4/4
Dr David Wong See Hong 5/5 – 4/4
Mr Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi 3/5 1/1 –
Mr Lim Ee Seng 5/5 – –
Mr Choe Peng Sum 5/5 – –

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

98

A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 2
0

15
F

R
A

S
E

R
S

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L
IT

Y
 T

R
U

S
T

Directors’ Attendance at Trustee-Manager’s Board Meetings held during the financial period 

Director
Board  

Meetings

Mr Law Song Keng 5/5
Mr Chua Phuay Hee 5/5
Mr Liew Choon Wei 5/5
Dr David Wong See Hong 5/5
Mr Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi 3/5
Mr Lim Ee Seng 5/5
Mr Choe Peng Sum 5/5

To ensure that business and operational efficacy is maintained without compromising the standard of corporate 
governance, a Manual of Authority (“MOA”) approved by the REIT Manager Board in consultation with the Chief 
Executive Officer (“CEO”) has been implemented. The MOA sets out the levels of authorisation and their respective 
approval limits for a range of transactions, including but not limited to investments, asset enhancement initiatives, and 
operating and capital expenditures. Transactions and matters which require the REIT Manager Board’s approval are 
clearly set out in the MOA. 

Dr David Wong See Hong, Mr Liew Choon Wei and Mr Choe Peng Sum, have attended a programme to orientate each 
of them on acting as a director of the manager of a publicly-listed REIT and BT. The other Directors of the Managers 
have each served as a director of other public-listed companies and/or a manager of a publicly-listed REIT or business 
trust and are familiar with the rules and responsibilities of a director of a publicly-listed company and/or manager or 
trustee-manager of a publicly-listed REIT or business trust.

The REIT Manager’s Board is also regularly updated on new laws affecting FHT’s business, as well as changes in 
applicable regulations. During the financial period, the REIT Manager’s Board was briefed and/or updated on (1) MAS’ 
proposed enhancements and response to the regulatory regime governing REITs and REIT managers, (2) Directors’ 
duties and other applicable regulatory updates and (3) comfort matrix and internal controls.

In addition to talks conducted by relevant professionals, members of the Board are encouraged to attend relevant 
courses and seminars so as to keep themselves updated on developments and changes in FHT’s operating environment, 
and to be members of the Singapore Institute of Directors (“SID”) and for them to receive journal updates and training 
from SID to stay abreast of relevant developments in financial, legal and regulatory requirements, and the business 
environment and outlook.

A formal letter setting out a director’s duties and obligations to the Managers and the Stapled Securityholders as a 
whole is issued to each director. 

Principle 2: Board Composition and Guidance

The composition of the Board as at 30 September 2015 is as follows:

Mr Law Song Keng Chairman, Non-Executive Independent
Mr Chua Phuay Hee Non-Executive Independent
Mr Liew Choon Wei Non-Executive Independent
Dr David Wong See Hong Non-Executive Independent
Mr Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi Non-Executive Non-Independent
Mr Lim Ee Seng Non-Executive Non-Independent
Mr Choe Peng Sum Non-Executive Non-Independent
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The Board comprises seven members, the majority of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors. All Board 
members are non-executive Directors. 

Directors exercise their judgement independently and objectively in the interests of all Stapled Securityholders as a 
whole. 

The REIT Manager’s Nominating Committee determines the independence of the Directors annually based on the 
definitions and the guidelines of independence set out in and in accordance with the CG Code. In its review for the 
financial year ended 30 September 2015, the Board determined the following with respect to the independence of 
directors:

Mr Law Song Keng Independent
Mr Chua Phuay Hee Independent
Mr Liew Choon Wei Independent
Dr David Wong See Hong Independent
Mr Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi Non-Independent
Mr Lim Ee Seng Non-Independent
Mr Choe Peng Sum Non-Independent

The Board is of the view that the current size and composition of the Board is appropriate for the scope and nature of 
the operations of the Managers and FHT and facilitates effective decision-making. In line with the CG Code, the Board 
is also of the view that the current size of the Board is not so large as to be unwieldy. In this regard, the Board has 
taken into account the requirements of the business of the Managers and FHT and the need to avoid undue disruptions 
from changes to the composition of the Board, the REIT’s Manager’s Nominating Committee and the REIT Manager’s 
ARC Committee. The Board considers that its present size, composition and balance between Non-Executive and 
Independent Directors, are appropriate and allows for a balanced exchange of views, robust deliberations and debates 
among members, and effective oversight over Management. The current composition gives the Board the ability to 
consider and make decisions objectively and independently on issues relating to FHT and the Managers. Under the 
current composition, no one individual or group dominates the Board’s decisions or its process. 

The composition of the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure that the Board has the appropriate size and mix of 
expertise and experience. There is a strong and independent element on the Board.

With the background, skills, experience and core competencies of its members, the Board collectively has the critical 
skills and expertise needed in the strategic direction and planning of the business of FHT. The diversity of skills, expertise 
and experience of its members bring to the Board independent and objective perspective, thereby enabling balanced 
and well-considered decisions to be made. 

Principle 3: Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the CEO of the REIT Manager (the latter being also the CEO of the Trustee-Manager) are 
separate to ensure an appropriate balance of power and authority. The levels of authority and the approval limits under 
the MOA reflects such a separation. This separation of roles promotes greater accountability from Management and 
allows the Board to exercise its independence in its oversight of and deliberations with Management. The Chairman, 
who is an independent and a non-executive director, is not related to the CEO. There is no business relationship 
between him and the CEO. 

The Chairman leads the Board and ensures its effectiveness by, among other things, steering effective, productive and 
comprehensive discussions amongst Board members and the Management team on strategic, business and other 
key issues pertinent to the business and operations of FHT and the Managers. With the full support of the Board, the 
Company Secretary and Management, the Chairman spearheads the Managers’ drive to promote, attain and maintain 
high standards of corporate governance and transparency. 

The CEO has full executive responsibilities over the business direction and operations of the Managers, and is 
responsible for the execution of the Board’s adopted strategies and policies. The CEO leads the Management team in 
the management of FHT and is accountable to the Board for the conduct and performance of the Management team.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Principle 4: Board Membership

The role of the Nominating Committee is to make recommendations to the REIT Manager Board on all board 
appointments and on relevant matters relating to: 
(a) the review of board succession plans for directors, in particular, the Chairman and for the Chief Executive Officer; 
(b)  the development of a process for evaluation of the performance of the REIT Manager Board, its board committees 

and directors; 
(c)  the review of training and professional development programs for the REIT Manager Board; and 
(d)  the appointment and re-appointment of directors (including alternate directors, if applicable). Directors of the 

Manager are not subject to periodic retirement by rotation. 

Its responsibilities also include, but are not limited to, the following:
• determining annually, and as and when circumstances require, if a director is independent, in accordance with 

the provisions of the CG Code;
• where a director has multiple board representations, deciding if the director is able to and has been adequately 

carrying out his duties as a director of the REIT Manager, taking into consideration the director’s number of listed 
company board representations and other principal commitments and whether the director has given sufficient 
time and attention to the affairs of the REIT Manager and FH-REIT;

• carry out the process for assessing the effectiveness of the REIT Manager Board as a whole and its board 
committees and for assessing the contribution by the Chairman and each individual director to the effectiveness 
of the REIT Manager Board; and

• decide how the REIT Manager Board’s performance may be evaluated and propose objective performance 
criteria to the REIT Manager Board.

The Nominating Committee of the REIT Manager is required to be comprised of three or more members, at least a 
majority of whom, including the chairman of the Nominating Committee, should be independent.

The members of the REIT Manager’s Nominating Committee are Mr Law Song Keng (Chairman), Mr Liew Choon Wei 
and Mr Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi, a majority of whom are independent directors. 

The Board proactively seeks to maintain an appropriate balance of expertise, skills and attributes among the Directors, 
and this is reflected in the diversity of backgrounds and competencies of the current Directors. Such competencies 
include banking, finance, accounting and other relevant industry knowledge, entrepreneurial and management 
experience, and familiarity with regulatory requirements and risk management. This benefits Management as it allows 
them to tap on the broad range of views and perspectives and the breadth of experience of the Directors.

The Nominating Committee shall make recommendations to the Board on all Board appointments, re-appointments 
and composition of the Board, taking into account the balance between executive and non-executive directors, 
independent and non-independent directors, as well as the scope and nature of the operations of FHT, the requirements 
of the business and the need to avoid undue disruptions from changes to the composition of the Board and Board 
committees. In relation thereto, the Nominating Committee shall consider the composition and progressive renewal of 
the Board and each director’s competencies, commitment, contribution and performance.

The CG Code requires the REIT Manager’s Board to determine the maximum number of Board representations on 
other listed companies that the Directors may hold and disclose it in the annual report. 

Details of such directorships held, other principal commitments of and key information on the Managers’ Directors are 
found in pages 18 to 21 of this Annual Report. 

In determining whether each Director is able to devote sufficient time to discharge his duties to FHT, the REIT Manager’s 
Nominating Committee has taken cognisance of the CG Code’s requirement, but is of the view that its assessment 
should not be restricted to the number of listed board representations held by the Director per se. Contributions made 
by the Director to and during Board and Board Committee meetings as well as whether the Director has given sufficient 
time and attention to the affairs of the REIT Manager and FH-REIT shall be taken into account.
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Principle 5: Board Performance

The REIT Manager’s Nominating Committee makes recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the 
development of a process to evaluate the performance of the Board, Board committees and directors. Members of 
the Board will be required to assess the Board’s performance, which includes areas such as the Board’s composition 
and processes, effectiveness in its management of FHT’s performance, and other objective performance criteria which 
allow for comparison with the REIT Manager’s peers and advisers, how the Board enhanced long–term unitholder 
value for FH-REIT.

The findings of the assessment will be reviewed by the Board with a view to improving its overall effectiveness in 
carrying out its role. 

The REIT Manager’s Board is of the view that in the financial period, it operated effectively and each of its members 
contributed to its overall effectiveness and commits to maintain such effectiveness.
 
Principle 6: Access to Information

It is the Management’s commitment that the Board, the REIT Manager’s Nominating Committee and the REIT 
Manager’s ARC Committee are provided with complete, timely and adequate information, both prior to Board and 
Board committee meetings and on an ongoing basis so as to allow the Board and Board committee members to 
discharge their duties. Prior to each Board meeting and Board committee meeting, papers on matters to be discussed 
are sent to Board members and Board committee members ahead of such meetings, so that such matters may be 
considered and discussed thoroughly and fully, prior to the making of any decision. Management may be requested to 
attend Board meetings so as to be at hand to answer any questions or contribute to any discussions. Presentations are 
made by Management at the Board meetings to facilitate deliberations and discussions. 

For matters which require the Board’s decision outside such meetings, board papers will be circulated through the 
Company Secretary for the Board’s consideration, with discussions and clarifications taking place between members 
of the Board and Management, where required, before approval is granted.

Directors at their discretion may seek and obtain independent professional advice, where necessary, in the furtherance 
of their duties, and any expenses and costs associated thereto are borne by the Managers, subject to the costs being 
approved by the Chairman in advance as being reasonable.

Directors have separate and independent access to the Company Secretary*, who attends all Board meetings and 
advises the Board on relevant corporate governance issues, facilitates orientation programmes for the new Directors 
and assists with their professional development as required. The Company Secretary ensures compliance with Board 
procedures and relevant rules and regulations. Under the direction of the Chairman, the Company Secretary is 
responsible for ensuring good information flow between the Board and Management. Direct communication between 
the CEO, the Chairman and members of the Board is encouraged by the Board, and the Board may at its discretion 
communicate with Management if it so wishes. 

* Mr Anthony Cheong Fook Seng was appointed Company Secretary on 15 January 2014. Mr Piya Treruangrachada was appointed Joint 
Company Secretary on 30 April 2014. Since the cessation of Mr Anthony Cheong Fook Seng’s appointment on 1 September 2014, Mr Piya 
Treruangrachada remains as the sole Company Secretary.
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REMUNERATION MATTERS

Principle 7: Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies

Principle 8: Level and Mix of Remuneration

Principle 9: Disclosure on Remuneration

The remuneration of Directors, the CEO and employees of the Managers are paid by the Manager from the fees it 
receives from FHT, and not by FHT. 

For the financial period ended 30 September 2015, the Managers adopted the remuneration policies and practices 
of FCL, which has a remuneration committee (the “FCL RC”) that oversees, inter alia, the framework of remuneration, 
compensation and benefits for key executives of the Managers, including the CEO. The level and mix of remuneration 
and benefits, policies and practices of the FCL group, which includes the Managers, are reviewed by the FCL RC on an 
annual basis. In undertaking such reviews, the FCL RC takes into consideration the performance of the Managers as 
part of the FCL group, and that of individual employees. It also reviews and approves the framework for salary reviews, 
performance bonuses and incentives for senior managers of the Managers as part of the FCL group-wide review. 

The Managers’ compensation framework comprises fixed pay and short term and long-term incentives. Executive 
remuneration is linked to, inter alia, individual performance based on an annual appraisal of each individual employee 
of the Managers. 

During the financial period, the only executive officers and employees of the Trustee-Manager are the CEO and Chief 
Financial Officer (“CFO”) who are also the CEO and CFO of the REIT Manager respectively. As FH-BT was dormant 
during the financial period, no compensation was payable to them as the CEO and CFO of the Trustee-Manager.

The remuneration of non-executive Directors takes into account their level and quality of contribution and their 
respective responsibilities, including attendance and time spent at Board meetings and Board Committee meetings. 
Directors are paid a basic fee and attendance fees for attending Board meetings. Non-Executive Directors who perform 
services through Board Committees are paid additional basic and attendance fees for such services. No Director 
decides his own fees. Directors’ fees are reviewed periodically to benchmark such fees against the amounts paid by 
other major listed REITs. 

The Directors’ fees for the financial period ended 30 September 2015 are shown in the table below. 

Director
FY2014

(pro-rated)
FY2015

Mr Law Song Keng (Chairman of Board, Nominating Committee and ARC 
Committee)

SGD 40,000 SGD 153,000 

Mr Chua Phuay Hee SGD 15,000 SGD 54,000 
Mr Liew Choon Wei (Member, Nominating Committee and ARC Committee) SGD 21,667 SGD 80,500 
Dr David Wong See Hong (Member, ARC Committee) SGD 20,000 SGD 72,000 
Mr Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi (Member, Nominating Committee) SGD 16,667 SGD 55,500 
Mr Lim Ee Seng1 SGD 15,000 SGD 54,000 
Mr Choe Peng Sum1 SGD 15,000 SGD 52,500

1 Directors’ fees are paid to FCL Management Services Pte. Ltd.

As FH-BT was dormant during the financial period, no compensation was payable to them as directors of the Trustee-
Manager.

None of the Directors of the REIT Manager and Trustee-Manager Board has entered or proposed to enter into service 
agreements with the REIT Manager and Trustee-Manager or any subsidiary or any subsidiary entity of FHT which 
provides benefits upon termination of employment, retirement and post-employment benefits.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Principle 10: Accountability

The REIT Manager prepares the financial statements of FH-REIT in accordance with the recommendations of the 
Statement of Recommended Accounting Practice 7 “Reporting Framework for Unit Trusts” (“RAP 7”) issued by the 
Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants and the applicable requirements of the Code on CIS issued by the MAS 
and the provisions of FH-REIT Trust Deed. RAP 7 requires the accounting principles to generally comply with the 
recognition and measurement principles of the Singapore Financial Reporting Standards prescribed by the Accounting 
Standards Council. 

The Trustee-Manager prepares the financial statements of FH-BT in compliance with the principles of the Singapore 
Financial Reporting Standards and the provisions of the BTA and the FH-BT Trust Deed.

The Board, with the support of Management, is responsible for providing a balanced and understandable assessment 
of FHT’s performance, position and prospects. Financial reports are provided to the Board on a quarterly basis and 
monthly accounts will be made available to the Directors on request. Quarterly and annual financial reports and other 
material information are disseminated to the Stapled Securityholders through announcements released via SGXNET, 
FHT’s corporate website and where applicable, media releases and analysts’ briefings. Such financial reports are 
reviewed by the Board before dissemination.

Principle 11:  Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Managers have established a sound system of risk management and internal controls comprising procedures 
and processes to safeguard FHT’s assets and the Stapled Securityholders’ interests. The ARC Committee reviews 
and reports to the REIT Manager’s Board on the adequacy and effectiveness of such controls, including financial, 
compliance, operational and information technology controls, and risk management procedures and systems, taking 
into consideration the recommendations of both internal and external auditors. 

Internal Controls
The ARC Committee, through the assistance of internal and external auditors, reviews and reports to the Board on 
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Managers’ system of controls, including financial (eg. for capital expenditure, 
investments and divestments, and borrowings), compliance, operational and information technology controls. In 
assessing the effectiveness of internal controls, the ARC Committee ensures primarily that key objectives are met, 
material assets are properly safeguarded, fraud or errors in the accounting records are prevented or detected, accounting 
records are accurate and complete, and reliable financial information is prepared in compliance with applicable internal 
policies, laws and regulations.

Risk Management
The REIT Manager’s Board, through the ARC Committee, reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the REIT Manager’s 
risk management framework to ensure that robust risk management and mitigating controls are in place. The Manager 
has adopted an enterprise-wide risk management (“ERM”) framework to enhance its risk management capabilities. 
Key risks, control measures and management actions are continually identified, reviewed and monitored as part of the 
ERM process. Financial and operational key risk indicators are in place to track key risk exposures. Apart from the ERM 
process, key business risks are thoroughly assessed by Management and each significant transaction is comprehensively 
analysed so that Management understands the risks involved before it is embarked upon. An outline of the Manager’s 
ERM framework and progress report is set out on pages 94 and 95 of this Annual Report.

Periodic updates are provided to the ARC Committee on FH-REIT’s and the REIT Manager’s risk profile. These updates 
would involve an assessment of FH-REIT’s and the REIT Manager’s key risks by risk categories, its current status, the 
effectiveness of any mitigating measures taken, and any proposals and action plans by Management to manage such 
risks. 

In addition to the ERM framework, a comfort matrix of key risks, by which relevant material financial, compliance and 
operational (including information technology) risks of FH-REIT and the REIT Manager have been documented to assist 
the Board to assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the existing internal controls. The comfort matrix is prepared 
with reference to the strategies, policies, processes, systems and reporting processes connected with the management 
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of such key risks and presented to the Board and the ARC Committee. Risk tolerance statements setting out the nature 
and extent of significant risks which the REIT Manager is willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives have been 
formalised and adopted. 

The Board has received assurance from the CEO and the CFO of the Managers that as at 30 September 2015:

(a) the financial records of FHT have been properly maintained and the financial statements for the financial period 
ended 30 September 2015 give a true and fair view of FHT’s operations and finances; 

(b) the system of internal controls in place for FHT is adequate and effective as at 30 September 2015 to address 
financial, operational, compliance and information technology risks which the Managers consider relevant and 
material to FHT’s operations; and

(c) the risk management system in place for FHT is adequate and effective as at 30 September 2015 to address risks 
which the Managers consider relevant and material to FHT’s operations.

Opinion of the Board on Internal Controls and Risk Management Framework
Based on the internal controls established and maintained by the Managers, reviews performed by internal and external 
auditors, reviews performed by Management and the ARC Committee, and assurance from the CEO and CFO of 
the Managers, the Board, with the concurrence of the ARC Committee, is of the opinion that the internal controls in 
place for FHT, were adequate and effective as at 30 September 2015 to address financial, operational, compliance and 
information technology risks, which the Managers consider relevant and material to FHT’s operations.

Based on the risk management framework established and assurance from the CEO and the CFO of the Managers, the 
Board is of the view that the risk management system in place for FHT was adequate and effective as at 30 September 
2015 to address risks which the Managers consider relevant and material to FHT’s operations.

The Board notes that the system of internal controls and risk management provides reasonable, but not absolute, 
assurance that the FHT will not be adversely affected by any event that could be reasonably foreseen as it works to 
achieve its business objectives. 

In this regard, the Board also notes that no system of internal controls and risk management can provide absolute 
assurance against the occurrence of material errors, poor judgment in decision making, human error, losses, fraud or 
other irregularities. 

Principle 12: Audit Committee

Based on its written terms of reference, the ARC Committee is to monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of the REIT 
Manager’s internal controls, review the quality and reliability of information prepared for inclusion in financial reports, 
and will be responsible for the nomination of external auditors and reviewing the adequacy of external audits in respect 
of cost, scope and performance. It is authorised to investigate any matter in relation thereto whenever it deems 
necessary.

The ARC Committee has full access to, and has the full cooperation of, Management, with full authority and discretion 
to invite any Director or employee of the Manager to attend its meetings. The ARC Committee is able to call upon the 
Manager’s resources to enable it to discharge its functions effectively. 

The ARC Committee’s responsibilities include:
• reviewing the significant financial reporting issues and judgments so as to ensure the integrity of the financial 

statements of FH-REIT and any formal announcements relating to FH-REIT’s financial performance;
• reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of the Manager’s internal controls, including financial, compliance 

and risk management controls and procedures and reporting findings thereon to the Board at least annually;
• reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal audit function, including its resources, audit plans and 

the scope and effectiveness of the internal audit procedures;
• reviewing, on an annual basis, the independence and objectivity of the external auditors and where the external 

auditors also provide a substantial volume of non-audit services to FH-REIT, keeping the nature and extent of 
such services under review, seeking to balance the maintenance of objectivity and value for money; and

• making recommendations to the REIT Manager Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of 
external auditors and approving the remuneration and terms of engagement of external auditors.
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In performing its functions, the ARC Committee meets with the internal and external auditors at least on an annual 
basis without the presence of the executive officers of the REIT Manager. All audit findings and recommendations are 
presented to the ARC Committee for discussion.

The ARC Committee reviews the internal and external audit plans for FHT and the REIT Manager and the assistance 
given by Management to the auditors. 

Updates on changes in accounting standards and treatment are prepared by external auditors and circulated to 
members of the ARC Committee periodically.

The ARC Committee comprises Non-Executive Directors, all of whom are independent:

Mr Law Soon Keng Chairman
Mr Liew Choon Wei Member
Dr David Wong See Hong Member

The Board is of the view that the members of the ARC Committee collectively possess the accounting and related 
financial management expertise and experience required for the ARC Committee to discharge its responsibilities and 
assist the Board in its oversight over Management in the design, implementation and monitoring of risk management 
and internal control systems.

The MAS has granted the Trustee-Manager an exemption from compliance with Section 15(1) of the BTA to the extent 
that Section 15(1) of the BTA requires an audit committee to be constituted when FH-BT is dormant, subject to the 
conditions that (i) the exemption shall only be in effect for so long as FH-BT is dormant, and (ii) immediately upon 
the Trustee-Manager becoming aware that FH-BT will become active, the Trustee-Manager shall ensure that an audit 
committee in compliance with the requirements of the BTA and the BTR is constituted before FH-BT becomes active.

External Auditors
Ernst and Young LLP (“E&Y”) was appointed by the Managers as external auditors of FHT for the financial period. The 
REIT Manager and Trustee-Manager confirm that they comply with Rules 712 and 715 of the Listing Manual in relation 
to the appointment of E&Y as the auditor of FHT. The ARC Committee has conducted a review of all non-audit services 
provided by E&Y during the financial period. A substantial portion of such services was for one-off IPO-related work. 
The ARC Committee is satisfied that given the nature and extent of non-audit services provided and the fees for such 
services, neither the independence nor the objectivity of E&Y is put at risk. For details of the fees paid to E&Y, please 
refer to Note 5 to the Financial Statements. 

E&Y attended the ARC Committee meetings every quarter for the financial period, and where appropriate has met with 
the ARC Committee without the presence of Management to discuss their findings, if any.

E&Y will not be seeking re-appointment and will retire at the end of FHT’s Annual General Meeting on 9 December 
2015.

It is proposed that at the forthcoming FHT Annual General Meeting KPMG LLP (“KPMG”) be appointed as auditors of 
FHT in place of the retiring auditors and that the Managers be authorised to fix their remuneration. 

The ARC Committee of the REIT Manager has reviewed and deliberated on the proposed change of auditors and is of 
the view that the proposed change in auditor is in line with the proposed change of auditors to KPMG by FCL, FHT’s 
Sponsor and indirect controlling Stapled Securityholder. The appointment by FHT of the same external auditor would 
also be more efficient for FHT from a reporting perspective. It would be timely to effect a change of external auditors 
commencing from the financial year ending 30 September 2016. 

The ARC Committee of the REIT Manager has therefore recommended the appointment of KPMG as new auditors for 
the financial year ending 30 September 2016. 

In recommending KPMG as the new auditors for approval, the ARC Committee of the REIT Manager considered factors 
such as the adequacy of resources, the experience of supervisory and professional staff to be assigned to the audit, the 
size and complexity of FHT and its business and operations, and are satisfied that the incoming auditors will be able 
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to meet the audit requirements and statutory obligations of FHT. With respect to FH-BT, the Board of Directors of the 
Trustee-Manager has taken into account the ARC Committee’s recommendation of KPMG.

Whistle Blowing Policy
A Whistle-Blowing Policy is in place to provide an avenue through which employees and any other persons may report 
in good faith and in confidence any concerns in financial and other matters, and for independent investigation of such 
matters and appropriate follow-up action. All whistle-blower complaints will be reviewed by the ARC Committee to 
ensure that investigations and follow-up actions are carried out, if needed. 

Principle 13: Internal Audit

The REIT Manager has in place an internal audit function (“IA”) established within the FCL Group to independently 
examine and evaluate the activities of the REIT Manager, focusing on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal 
controls, risk management and corporate governance processes. 

The IA is independent of the activities that it audits. The Head of IA who is a Certified Fraud Examiner and a Fellow of 
the Institute of Singapore Certified Accountants (ISCA), CPA Australia and ACCA, reports directly to the Chairman of 
the ARC Committee. 

The Head of IA and the IA staff are members of the Institute of Internal Auditors, Singapore, and have adopted and 
complied with the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing (Standards) set by the 
Institute of Internal Auditors, Inc. To ensure that the internal audits are effectively performed, it recruits and employs 
suitably qualified staff with the requisite skills and experience. Such staff are also given relevant training and development 
opportunities to update their technical knowledge and auditing skills. All IA staff received relevant technical training and 
attended seminars organised by the Institute of Internal Auditors, Singapore and other professional bodies.

The IA operates within the framework stated in its Terms of Reference as contained in the Internal Audit Charter 
approved by the ARC Committee. It adopts a risk-based audit methodology to develop its audit plans, and its activities 
are aligned to key risks of FHT. Based on risk assessments performed, greater focus and appropriate review intervals 
are set for higher risk activities, and material internal controls, including compliance with FHT and the REIT Manager’s 
policies, procedures and regulatory responsibilities. 

During the financial period, IA conducted its audit reviews based on the approved internal audit plans. All audit reports 
detailing audit findings and recommendations are provided to Management who would respond on the actions to be 
taken. Each quarter, IA submits to the ARC Committee a report on the status of the audit plan and on audit findings 
and actions taken by Management on such findings. Key findings are highlighted at the ARC Committee meetings for 
discussion and follow-up action. The ARC Committee monitors the timely and proper implementation of required 
corrective, preventive or improvement measures undertaken by Management. 

The ARC Committee is satisfied that for the financial period, the internal audit function is adequately resourced to 
perform its functions, and has appropriate standing within FH-REIT and the REIT Manager to perform its functions 
effectively. 

STAPLED SECURITYHOLDER RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Principle 14:  Stapled Securityholder Rights

The Managers believe in treating all Stapled Securityholders fairly and equitably. It aspires to keep all Stapled 
Securityholders and other stakeholders and analysts in Singapore and beyond informed of FHT’s activities, including 
material changes (if any) in FHT’s business which are likely to affect the price or value of its Stapled Securities, in a timely 
and consistent manner. 

Stapled Securityholders are also given the opportunity to participate effectively and vote at general meetings of FHT, 
where relevant rules and procedures governing such meetings (for instance, how to vote) are clearly communicated.
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Principle 15: Communication with Stapled Securityholders

The Managers are committed to regular, effective and fair communication with all Stapled Securityholders. It has a 
dedicated investor relations team which handles communications with investors, the investment community, analysts 
and the media. 

In the financial period, the Managers participated in regular conferences, conference calls, meetings, deal, and non-deal 
roadshows and met with more than 100 existing and potential investors and analysts in Bangkok, Tokyo, Hong Kong 
and Singapore. These are excellent avenues for the Managers to keep investors updated on the latest performances, 
developments, strategies and outlook for FHT. At the same time, it is also a forum for the Managers to better understand 
the matters which are key to investors. 

Briefings for analysts and luncheon for investors are generally held in conjunction with the release of FHT’s half-year 
and full-year financial results. To ensure transparency, press releases and presentation slides are released to SGX-ST 
via SGXNET, and posted on FHT’s website at www.frasershospitalitytrust.com. Both announcements through FHT’s 
website and the SGXNET are the principal media of communication with Stapled Securityholders.

FHT is also a signatory to the 2015 Corporate Governance Statement of Support organised by SIAS where FHT has 
pledged its commitment to uphold high standards in corporate governance. 

Principle 16:  Conduct of Stapled Securityholder Meetings

The SGX-ST granted FHT waivers from Listing Rule 707(1) and (2) which sets out the requirements for the holding of 
the annual general meeting for the financial year ended 30 September 2014 (“FY2014”) and the issuance of the annual 
report for FY 2014 subject to FH-REIT preparing its first annual report commencing from the period from the listing 
date up to 30 September 2015.

A copy of FHT’s first Annual Report is sent to all Stapled Securityholders.

At the first annual general meeting (“AGM”) of FHT to be held on 9 December 2015, Stapled Securityholders will be invited 
to vote on each of the resolutions by poll, using an electronic voting system. This will allow all Stapled Securityholders 
present or represented at the AGM to vote on a per unit, one vote basis. The voting result will be screened at the AGM 
and announced to the SGX-ST after the AGM. 

As and when an extraordinary general meeting is convened, a circular will be sent to each Stapled Securityholder. 
The circular will contain details of the matters proposed for Stapled Securityholders’ consideration and approval. An 
extraordinary general meeting to approve, inter alia, the acquisition of a 75-year leasehold interest in Sofitel Sydney 
Wentworth as a related party transaction was held on 24 June 2015 and a circular dated 9 June 2015 was sent to 
Stapled Securityholders in relation thereto.

Board members and Management are in attendance at Stapled Securityholders’ meetings where Stapled Securityholders 
are given the opportunity to raise questions and clarify any issues they may have relating to the resolutions to be 
passed. The external auditors are also present to address queries about the conduct of audit and the preparation and 
content of the auditors’ report.

Dealings in Stapled Securities
The REIT Manager has adopted a Dealing Policy on securities trading which provides guidance with regard to dealings 
in the Stapled Securities by its Directors, officers and employees. Directors, officers and employees are prohibited from 
dealing in the Stapled Securities:
• in line with the Listing Rule 1207(19)(c) on Dealings in Securities, two weeks before the date of announcement of 

quarterly financial statements and one month before the date of announcement of full-year results (“Prohibition 
Period”); and 

• at any time while in possession of unpublished material or price sensitive information.

Directors, officers and employees are also directed to refrain from dealing in Stapled Securities on short-term 
considerations. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

108

A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 2
0

15
F

R
A

S
E

R
S

 H
O

S
P

IT
A

L
IT

Y
 T

R
U

S
T

Prior to the commencement of the Prohibition Period, Directors, officers and employees will be reminded not to 
trade during this period or whenever they are in possession of unpublished price sensitive information. Outside of the 
Prohibition Period, any trades must be reported to the Board within 48 hours. Every quarter, each Director, officer or 
employee is required to complete and submit a declaration form to the Compliance Officer to report any trades he/
she has made in Stapled Securities in the previous quarter and confirm that no trades were made during the Prohibition 
Period. A quarterly report will be provided to the ARC Committee. Any non-compliance with the Dealing Policy such as 
trading within the Prohibition Period will be reported to the ARC Committee for its review and instructions.

Conflicts of Interest
The REIT Manager has instituted the following procedures to deal with potential conflicts of interest issues:
• The REIT Manager will not manage any other REIT which invests in the same type of properties as FH-REIT;
• All key executive officers will be employed by the REIT Manager and will not hold executive positions in any 

other entities;
• All resolutions in writing of the REIT Manager Directors in relation to matters concerning FH-REIT must be 

approved by a majority of the directors, including at least one director independent from management and 
business relationships with the REIT Manager;

• At least a majority of the REIT Manager Board shall comprise such independent directors;
• In respect of matters in which a REIT Manager Director or his associates (as defined in the Listing Manual) has an 

interest, direct or indirect, such interested director will abstain from voting. In such matters, the quorum must 
comprise a majority of the REIT Manager Directors and must exclude such interested director;

• In respect of matters in which FCL has an interest, direct or indirect, for example, in matters relating to:
– potential acquisitions of additional properties or property-related investments by FH-REIT in competition 

with FCL ; and/or
– competition for tenants between properties owned by FH-REIT and properties owned by FCL,
any nominees appointed by FCL to the REIT Manager’s Board to represent its interests will abstain from 
deliberations and voting on such matters. In such matters, the quorum must comprise a majority of the REIT 
Manager Directors independent from management and business relationships with the REIT Manager and must 
exclude nominee directors of FCL;

• Save as to resolutions relating to the removal of the REIT Manager, the REIT Manager and its associates are 
prohibited from voting or being counted as part of a quorum for any meeting of the holders of FH-REIT’s units 
convened to approve any matter in which the REIT Manager and/or any of its associates has an interest, and 
for so long as the REIT Manager is the manager of FH-REIT, the controlling shareholders of the REIT Manager 
and of any of its associates are prohibited from voting or being counted as part of a quorum for any meeting 
of the holders of FH-REIT units convened to consider a matter in respect of which the relevant controlling 
shareholders of the REIT Manager and/or of any of its associates have an interest; and

• It is also provided in the FH-REIT Trust Deed that if the REIT Manager is required to decide whether or not to take 
any action against any person in relation to any breach of any agreement entered into by the REIT Trustee for 
and on behalf of FH-REIT with an Interested Person (as defined in the Listing Manual) and/or, as the case may 
be, an Interested Party (as defined in the Code of CIS) (collectively, a “Related Party”) of the REIT Manager, the 
REIT Manager shall be obliged to consult with a reputable law firm (acceptable to the REIT Trustee) which shall 
provide legal advice on the matter. If the said law firm is of the opinion that the REIT Trustee, on behalf of FH-
REIT, has a prima facie case against the party allegedly in breach under such agreement, the REIT Manager shall 
be obliged to take appropriate action in relation to such agreement. The REIT Manager Directors will have a duty 
to ensure that the REIT Manager so complies. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the REIT Manager shall inform the 
REIT Trustee as soon as it becomes aware of any breach of any agreement entered into by the REIT Trustee for 
and on behalf of FH-REIT with a Related Party of the REIT Manager and the REIT Trustee may take such action 
as it deems necessary to protect the rights of the holders of FH-REIT units and/or which is in the interests of the 
holders of FH-REIT units. Any decision by the REIT Manager not to take action against a Related Party of the REIT 
Manager shall not constitute a waiver of the REIT Trustee’s right to take such action as it deems fit against such 
Related Party.
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Related Party Transactions
There is no general mandate obtained for interested party transactions as defined in Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual 
(“IPTs” and each an “IPT”) under Rule 920 of the Listing Manual.

All IPTs in relation to FH-REIT are undertaken on normal commercial terms and the Board, with the assistance of 
the ARC Committee, ensures that such IPTs are not prejudicial to the interests of FH-REIT and the minority Stapled 
Securityholders. This may entail obtaining (where practicable) quotations from parties unrelated to the REIT Manager, 
or obtaining one or more valuations from independent professional valuers (in accordance with the Code on CIS).

All IPTs are entered in a register maintained by the REIT Manager, including any quotations from unrelated parties and 
independent valuations forming the bases on which such IPTs are entered into. The REIT Manager incorporates into its 
internal audit plan a review of all IPTs recorded in the register. The review includes the examination of the nature of the 
IPTs and its supporting documents or such other data deemed necessary by the ARC Committee. The ARC Committee 
reviews the internal audit reports to ascertain that internal procedures and the relevant provisions of the Listing Manual 
and the Code on CIS are complied with by Management in its dealings on IPTs. The REIT Trustee, in its capacity as 
trustee of FH-REIT, has the right to review any such relevant internal audit reports to ascertain that the requirements 
under the Code on CIS have been complied with.

Directors of the REIT Manager who are interested in a proposed IPT to be entered into by FH-REIT are required to 
abstain from any deliberations or decisions in relation to that IPT. 

Any IPT proposed to be entered into between FH-REIT and a Related Party of the REIT Manager or FH-REIT (which 
includes relevant associates thereof), would require the REIT Trustee to satisfy itself that such IPT is conducted on 
normal commercial terms, is not prejudicial to the interests of the Stapled Security holders, and is in accordance with all 
applicable requirements of the Code on CIS and the Listing Manual. Further, the REIT Trustee has the ultimate discretion 
under the FH-REIT Trust Deed to decide whether or not to enter into such a transaction.

Further, the following procedures will be undertaken:
• any transaction (either individually or as part of a series or if aggregated with other transactions involving the 

same Related Party during the same financial year) equal to or exceeding SGD100,000 in value but less than 
3.0% of the value of FH-REIT’s net tangible assets (based on the latest audited accounts) will be subject to review 
by the ARC Committee at regular intervals;

• any transaction (either individually or as part of a series or if aggregated with other transactions involving the 
same Related Party during the same financial year) equal to or exceeding 3.0% but below 5.0% of the value 
of FH-REIT’s net tangible assets (based on the latest audited accounts) will be subject to the review and prior 
approval of the ARC Committee. Such approval shall only be given if such transaction is on normal commercial 
terms and is consistent with similar types of transactions made by the REIT Trustee with third parties which are 
unrelated to the REIT Manager; and

• any transaction (either individually or as part of a series or if aggregated with other transactions involving the 
same Related Party during the same financial year) equal to or exceeding 5.0% of the value of FH-REIT’s net 
tangible assets (based on the latest audited accounts) will be reviewed and approved prior to such transaction 
being entered into, on the basis described in the preceding paragraph, by the ARC Committee which may, as 
it deems fit, request advice on the transaction from independent sources or advisers, including the obtaining 
of valuations from independent professional valuers. Further, under the Listing Manual and the Property Funds 
Appendix of the Code on CIS, such transaction would have to be approved by the Stapled Securityholders at a 
meeting duly convened.

Save for the transactions described under the sections “Management and Corporate Governance – FH-REIT – Related 
Party Transactions – Related Party Transactions in connection with the Setting Up of FH-REIT” and “Management 
and Corporate Governance – FH-REIT – Related Party Transactions – Future Related Party Transactions” in FHT’s 
Prospectus dated 30 June 2014, FH-REIT will comply with Rule 905 of the Listing Manual by announcing any Interested 
Person Transaction in accordance with the Listing Manual if such transaction, by itself or when aggregated with other 
Interested Person Transactions entered into with the same Interested Person (as defined in the Listing Manual) during 
the same financial year, is 3.0% or more of the value of FH-REIT’s latest audited net tangible assets.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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GUIDELINES FOR DISCLOSURE

Guideline Questions How has the Company complied?

General (a) Has the Company complied with all the principles 
and guidelines of the Code on CIS (or “Code”)? If 
not, please state the specific deviations and the 
alternative corporate governance practices adopted 
by the Company in lieu of the recommendations in 
the Code.

(b) In what respect do these alternative corporate 
governance practices achieve the objectives of 
the principles and conform to the guidelines in the 
Code? 

Please refer to the disclosures and 
references in this table for specific 
deviations from the Code.

The Managers have adopted alternative 
corporate governance practices which 
reflect the fact the Managers themselves 
are not listed entities but that the entities 
which they manage, FH-REIT and FH-BT, 
are listed and managed externally by the 
Managers.

Board Responsibility

Guideline 1.5 What are the types of material transactions which 
require approval from the Board? 

Please refer to pages 96-99 in this Annual 
Report which makes reference to the 
MOA.

Members of the Board 

Guideline 2.6 (a) What is the Board’s policy with regard to diversity in 
identifying director nominees?

(b) Please state whether the current composition of the 
Board provides diversity on each of the following 
– skills, experience, gender and knowledge of the 
Company, and elaborate with numerical data where 
appropriate. 

 (c) What steps has the Board taken to achieve the 
balance and diversity necessary to maximise its 
effectiveness? 

Please refer to pages 96-99 in this Annual 
Report.

Please refer to pages 96-99 in this Annual 
Report.

Please refer to pages 96-99 in this Annual 
Report.

Guideline 4.6 Please describe the board nomination process for the 
Company in the last financial year for (i) selecting and 
appointing new directors and (ii) re-electing incumbent 
directors. 

No new directors were appointed or re-
elected in the financial period.

Guideline 1.6 (a) Are new directors given formal training? If not, 
please explain why.

(b) What are the types of information and training 
provided to (i) new directors and (ii) existing 
directors to keep them up-to-date? 

Please refer to page 98 in this Annual 
Report.

Please refer to pages 98, 101 and 103 in 
this Annual Report.

Guideline 4.4 (a) What is the maximum number of listed company 
board representations that the Company has 
prescribed for its directors? What are the reasons for 
this number?

(b) If a maximum number has not been determined, 
what are the reasons? 

(c) What are the specific considerations in deciding on 
the capacity of directors? 

Please refer to page 100 in this Annual 
Report.

Please refer to page 100 in this Annual 
Report.

Please refer to page 100 in this Annual 
Report.

Board Evaluation

Guideline 5.1 (a) What was the process upon which the Board 
reached the conclusion on its performance for the 
financial year? 

(b) Has the Board met its performance objectives?

Please refer to page 101 in this Annual 
Report.

Please refer to page 101 in this Annual 
Report.

Independence of Directors

Guideline 2.1 Does the Company comply with the guideline on the 
proportion of independent directors on the Board? If 
not, please state the reasons for the deviation and the 
remedial action taken by the Company. 

Please refer to pages 98 and 99 in this 
Annual Report.
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Guideline 2.3 (a) Is there any director who is deemed to be 
independent by the Board, notwithstanding the 
existence of a relationship as stated in the Code that 
would otherwise deem him not to be independent? 
If so, please identify the director and specify the 
nature of such relationship. 

(b) What are the Board’s reasons for considering him 
independent? Please provide a detailed explanation. 

Please refer to page 99 in this Annual 
Report.

Not applicable.

Guideline 2.4 Has any independent director served on the Board 
for more than nine years from the date of his first 
appointment? If so, please identify the director and 
set out the Board’s reasons for considering him 
independent. 

No.

Disclosure on Remuneration

Guideline 9.2 Has the Company disclosed each director’s and 
the CEO’s remuneration as well as a breakdown (in 
percentage or dollar terms) into base/fixed salary, 
variable or performance-related income/bonuses, 
benefits in kind, stock options granted, share-based 
incentives and awards, and other long-term incentives? 
If not, what are the reasons for not disclosing so? 

The aggregate remuneration of all 
directors for the financial period was 
disclosed.

Please refer to page 102 in this Annual 
Report.

Guideline 9.3 (a) Has the Company disclosed each key management 
personnel’s remuneration, in bands of SGD250,000 
or in more detail, as well as a breakdown (in 
percentage or dollar terms) into base/fixed salary, 
variable or performance-related income/bonuses, 
benefits in kind, stock options granted, share-
based incentives and awards, and other long-term 
incentives? If not, what are the reasons for not 
disclosing so? 

(b) Please disclose the aggregate remuneration paid to 
the top five key management personnel (who are 
not directors or the CEO). 

The remuneration of Directors, the CEO 
and employees of the Managers are paid 
by the Manager from the fees it receives 
from FHT, and not by FHT. 

Not applicable.

Guideline 9.4 Is there any employee who is an immediate family 
member of a director or the CEO, and whose 
remuneration exceeds SGD50,000 during the year? 
If so, please identify the employee and specify the 
relationship with the relevant director or the CEO. 

No.

Guideline 9.6 (a) Please describe how the remuneration received by 
executive directors and key management personnel 
has been determined by the performance criteria.

(b) What were the performance conditions used to 
determine their entitlement under the short-term 
and long-term incentive schemes?

(c) Were all of these performance conditions met? If 
not, what were the reasons? 

Please refer to page 102 in this Annual 
Report.

Please refer to page 102 in this Annual 
Report.

Please refer to page 102 in this Annual 
Report.

Risk Management and Internal Controls 

Guideline 6.1 What types of information does the Company provide to 
independent directors to enable them to understand its 
business, the business and financial environment as well 
as the risks faced by the Company? How frequently is 
the information provided? 

Please refer to pages 101 and 103 in this 
Annual Report.

Guideline 13.1 Does the Company have an internal audit function? If 
not, please explain why. 

Please refer to page 106 in this Annual 
Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Guideline 11.3 (a) In relation to the major risks faced by the Company, 
including financial, operational, compliance, 
information technology and sustainability, please 
state the bases for the Board’s view on the adequacy 
and effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls 
and risk management systems.

(b) In respect of the past 12 months, has the Board 
received assurance from the CEO and the CFO 
as well as the internal auditor that: (i) the financial 
records have been properly maintained and the 
financial statements give true and fair view of the 
Company’s operations and finances; and (ii) the 
Company’s risk management and internal control 
systems are effective? If not, how does the Board 
assure itself of points (i) and (ii) above? 

Please refer to pages 103-104 in this 
Annual Report.

Please refer to pages 103-104 in this 
Annual Report.

Guideline 12.6 (a) Please provide a breakdown of the fees paid in total 
to the external auditors for audit and non-audit 
services for the financial year. 

(b) If the external auditors have supplied a substantial 
volume of non-audit services to the Company, 
please state the bases for the Audit Committee’s 
view on the independence of the external auditors. 

Please refer to Note 5 of the Notes to 
the Financial Statements in this Annual 
Report.

Please refer to page 105  
in this Annual Report.

Guideline 15.4 (a) Does the Company regularly communicate with 
shareholders and attend to their questions? How 
often does the Company meet with institutional and 
retail investors?

(b) Is this done by a dedicated investor relations team 
(or equivalent)? If not, who performs this role?

(c) How does the Company keep shareholders 
informed of corporate developments, apart from 
SGXNET announcements and the annual report?

Please refer to pages 106-107 in this 
Annual Report.

Please refer to page 107 in this Annual 
Report.

Please refer to pages 106-107 in this 
Annual Report.

Guideline 15.5 If the Company is not paying any dividends for the 
financial year, please explain why. 

Not applicable.
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REPORT OF THE TRUSTEE OF 
FRASERS HOSPITALIT Y REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST

FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

The Trust Company (Asia) Limited (the “REIT Trustee”) is under a duty to take into custody and hold the assets of 
Frasers Hospitality Real Estate Investment Trust (“FH-REIT”) in trust for the holders (“Stapled Securityholders”) of units 
in FH-REIT. In accordance with the Securities and Futures Act (Chapter 289), its subsidiary legislation and the Code on 
Collective Investment Schemes and the Listing Manual (collectively referred to as the “Regulations”), the REIT Trustee 
shall monitor the activities of Frasers Hospitality Asset Management Pte. Ltd. (the “REIT Manager”) for compliance with 
the limitations imposed on the investment and borrowing powers as set out in the Amended and Restated Trust Deed 
(“Trust Deed”) dated 20 June 2014 between the REIT Manager and the REIT Trustee in each annual accounting period 
and report thereon to Stapled Securityholders in an annual report which shall contain the matters prescribed by the 
laws and regulations as well as recommendations of Statement of Recommended Accounting Practice 7 “Reporting 
Framework for Units Trust” issued by the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants and the provisions of the Trust 
Deed. 

To the best knowledge of the REIT Trustee, the REIT Manager has, in all material respects, managed FH-REIT during the 
financial period covered by these financial statements set out on pages 128 to 189, in accordance with the limitations 
imposed on the investment and borrowing powers set out in the Trust Deed, laws and regulations and otherwise in 
accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed. 

For and on behalf of the REIT Trustee,
The Trust Company (Asia) Limited

Sin Li Choo
Director

Singapore 
5 November 2015
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In the opinion of the directors of Frasers Hospitality Asset Management Pte. Ltd., the financial statements of FH-REIT 
and its subsidiaries (collectively “FH-REIT Group”), set out on pages 128 to 189, comprising the Portfolio Statement 
and Statements of Financial Position as at 30 September 2015, the Statements of Total Return, Distribution Statements, 
Statements of Changes in Stapled Securityholders’ Funds and Statements of Cash Flows for the financial period 
then ended, and Notes to the Financial Statements are drawn up so as to present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position and portfolio position of FH-REIT Group as at 30 September 2015, the total returns, changes in 
Stapled Securityholders’ funds, distributable income and cash flows of FH-REIT Group for the financial period from 
20 June 2014 (Date of Constitution) to 30 September 2015, in accordance with the recommendations of Statement 
of Recommended Accounting Practice 7 “Reporting Framework for Unit Trusts” issued by the Institute of Singapore 
Chartered Accountants and the provisions of the Amended and Restated Trust Deed dated 20 June 2014 between the 
REIT Manager and The Trust Company (Asia) Limited. At the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to 
believe that FH-REIT Group will be able to meet its financial obligations as and when they materalise.

For and on behalf of the REIT Manager, 
Frasers Hospitality Asset Management Pte. Ltd.

Lim Ee Seng
Director

Choe Peng Sum
Director

Singapore 
5 November 2015

STATEMENT BY THE MANAGER OF 
FRASERS HOSPITALIT Y REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST

FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015
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The Directors of Frasers Hospitality Trust Management Pte. Ltd., the trustee-manager of Frasers Hospitality Business 
Trust (“FH-BT”) (the “Trustee-Manager”), are pleased to present their report to the Stapled Securityholders of Frasers 
Hospitality Trust (the “Trust” or “FHT”) for the financial period from 20 June 2014 (Date of Constitution) to 30 September 
2015, together with the audited financial statements of FH-BT for the financial period from 20 June 2014 (Date of 
Constitution) to 30 September 2015. 

DIRECTORS 

The directors of the Trustee-Manager in office at the date of this report are: 

Mr Law Song Keng (Chairman) (appointed on 10 June 2014)
Mr Chua Phuay Hee (appointed on 10 June 2014)
Mr Liew Choon Wei (appointed on 10 June 2014)
Dr David Wong See Hong (appointed on 10 June 2014)
Mr Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi (appointed on 10 June 2014) 
Mr Lim Ee Seng (appointed on 13 January 2014)
Mr Choe Peng Sum (appointed on 13 January 2014)

ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE STAPLED SECURITIES AND DEBENTURES

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the financial period was the Trustee-Manager a party to any arrangement 
whose objective was to enable any or all Directors of the Trustee-Manager to acquire benefits by means of the 
acquisition of Stapled Securities, or debentures of, FH-BT.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN STAPLED SECURITIES OR DEBENTURES OF FHT

According to the register kept by the Trustee-Manager for the purpose of Section 76 of the Singapore Business Trusts 
Act, Chapter 31A (the “Act”), particulars of interests of Directors who hold office at the end of the financial period in 
FHT are as follows:

Number of Stapled Securityholdings

20 June 2014  
(Date of constitution) 30 September 2015

Name of Director Direct Deemed Direct Deemed

Mr Law Song Keng Nil Nil 416,590 Nil

Mr Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi Nil Nil Nil 535,841,000

Mr Lim Ee Seng Nil Nil 400,000 Nil

Mr Choe Peng Sum Nil Nil 400,000 Nil

The Directors’ interests in the Stapled Securities of FHT as at 21 October 2015 were the same as those at 30 September 
2015.

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEE-MANAGER OF 
FRASERS HOSPITALIT Y BUSINESS TRUST

FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015
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REPORT OF THE TRUSTEE-MANAGER OF 
FRASERS HOSPITALIT Y BUSINESS TRUST

FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

DIRECTORS’ CONTRACTUAL BENEFITS

During the financial period from 20 June 2014 to 30 September 2015, no Director of the Trustee-Manager has received 
or became entitled to receive a benefit in FH-BT by reason of a contract made by the Trustee-Manager, on behalf of 
FH-BT or a related corporation with the Director, or with a firm of which such Director is a member or with a company 
in which such Director has a substantial financial interest, except that the Directors served as directors or employees of 
related corporations and received remuneration in that capacity from related corporations.

STAPLED SECURITY OPTIONS

During the financial period, there were:

(i) no options granted by the Trustee-Manager to any person to take up unissued Stapled Securities in FHT; and 

(ii)  no Stapled Securities issued by virtue of any exercise of option to take up unissued Stapled Securities in FHT.

There were no unissued units of FHT under option as at the end of the financial period. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The Monetary Authority of Singapore (the “MAS”) has granted the Trustee-Manager a waiver from compliance with 
Section 15(1) of the Business Trusts Act (the “BTA”) to the extent that Section 15(1) requires an audit committee to be 
constituted, subject to the conditions that (i) the exemption shall only be in effect for so long as FH-BT is dormant, and 
(ii) immediately upon the Trustee-Manager becoming aware that FH-BT will become active, the Trustee-Manager shall 
ensure that an Audit Committee in compliance with the requirements of the BTA and the Business Trusts Regulations 
(the “BTR”) is constituted before FH-BT becomes active.

AUDITOR

The retiring auditor, Ernst & Young LLP, will not be seeking re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 
KPMG LLP has expressed its willingness to accept appointment as auditor. 

For and on behalf of the Trustee-Manager, 
Frasers Hospitality Trust Management Pte. Ltd.

Lim Ee Seng
Director

Choe Peng Sum
Director

Singapore 
5 November 2015
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STATEMENT BY THE TRUSTEE-MANAGER OF 
FRASERS HOSPITALIT Y BUSINESS TRUST

FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

In the opinion of the directors, 

(a) The financial statements of FH-BT as set out on pages 128 to 189 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view 
of the financial position of FH-BT as at 30 September 2015, and of the financial performance, changes in Stapled 
Securityholders’ funds and cash flows of FH-BT, for the financial period from 20 June 2014 (Date of constitution) 
to 30 September 2015 in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Business Trusts Act, Chapter 31A (the 
“Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards; and 

(b) At the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that FH-BT will be able to pay its debts as 
and when they fall due. 

In accordance with Section 86(2) of the Act, the Directors of the Trustee-Manager further certify that: 

– the interested person transactions are not detrimental to the interests of all the Stapled Securityholders as a 
whole based on the circumstances at the time of the transactions; and 

– the Board of Directors of the Trustee-Manager is not aware of any violation of duties of the Trustee-Manager which 
would have a materially adverse effect on the business of FH-BT or the interests of the Stapled Securityholders 
as a whole. 

For and on behalf of the Trustee-Manager, 
Frasers Hospitality Trust Management Pte. Ltd. 

Lim Ee Seng
Director

Choe Peng Sum
Director

Singapore 
5 November 2015
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I, the Chief Executive Officer of Frasers Hospitality Trust Management Pte. Ltd., as Trustee-Manager of Frasers Hospitality 
Business Trust (“FH-BT”) (the “Trustee-Manager”), in my personal capacity, certify that I am not aware of any violation 
of duties of the Trustee-Manager which would have a materially adverse effect on the business of FH-BT or on the 
interests of all the Stapled Securityholders of the Trust as a whole. 

Eu Chin Fen
Chief Executive Officer

Singapore 
5 November 2015

STATEMENT BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF 
THE TRUSTEE-MANAGER

FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015
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Frasers Hospitality Business Trust (“FH-BT”) has been dormant since the listing of Frasers Hospitality Trust (“FHT”) on the 
Main Board of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”) on 14 July 2014.

Although FH-BT is dormant, the board of directors of the Trustee-Manager (the “Trustee-Manager Board”) is committed 
to comply with the requirements under the Listing Manual, the Singapore Business Trusts Act, Chapter 31A (the “BTA”) 
and the Business Trusts Regulations 2005 (the “BTR”) (except where waivers have been obtained from the Monetary 
Authority of Singapore (the “MAS”) and disclosed in the Initial Public Offering (“IPO”) prospectus of FHT), the Securities 
and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore (the “SFA”) as well as the FH-BT Trust Deed and the Stapling Deed.

When FH-BT becomes active, the key roles of the Trustee-Manager Board will be to:

•	 guide	the	corporate	strategy	and	directions	of	the	Trustee-Manager;

•	 ensure	 that	 senior	 management	 discharges	 business	 leadership	 and	 demonstrates	 the	 highest	 quality	 of	
management skills with integrity and enterprise;

•	 oversee	the	proper	conduct	of	the	Trustee-Manager;	and

•	 	ensure	that	measures	relating	to	corporate	governance,	financial	regulations	and	other	required	policies	are	in	
place and enforced.

The Trustee-Manager has the dual responsibilities of safeguarding the interests of the holders of FH-BT units (the 
“FH-BT Unitholders”), and managing the business conducted by FH-BT. The Trustee-Manager has general powers 
of management over the business and assets of FH-BT and its main responsibility is to manage FH-BT’s assets and 
liabilities for the benefit of the FH-BT Unitholders as a whole.

The Trustee-Manager, in exercising its powers and carrying out its duties as FH-BT’s trustee-manager, is required to:

•	 treat	the	FH-BT	Unitholders	in	the	same	class	fairly	and	equally	and	FH-BT	Unitholders	who	hold	FH-BT	units	in	
different classes (if any) fairly;

•	 ensure	that	all	payments	out	of	the	FH-BT	Trust	Property	are	made	in	accordance	with	the	BTA,	the	FH-BT	Trust	
Deed and the Stapling Deed; 

•	 report	to	the	MAS	any	contravention	of	the	BTA	or	the	Securities	and	Futures	(Offers	of	Investments)	(Business	
Trusts) (No. 2) Regulations 2005 by any other person that:

–  relates to FH-BT; and

– has had, has or is likely to have, a material adverse effect on the interests of all the FH-BT Unitholders, or 
any class of FH-BT Unitholders;  

as a whole, as soon as practicable after the Trustee-Manager becomes aware of the contravention;

•	 ensure	that	the	FH-BT	Trust	Property	is	properly	accounted	for	and	ensure	that	the	FH-BT	Trust	Property	is	kept	
distinct from the property held in its own capacity.

In the event that FH-BT becomes active, the Trustee-Manager will:

•	 at	 all	 times	 act	 honestly	 and	 exercise	 reasonable	 diligence	 in	 the	 discharge	of	 its	 duties	 as	 FH-BT’s	 trustee	
manager in accordance with the BTA and the FH-BT Trust Deed;

•	 act	 in	 the	 best	 interests	 of	 all	 FH-BT	Unitholders	 as	 a	whole	 and	 give	 priority	 to	 the	 interests	 of	 all	 FH-BT	
Unitholders as a whole over its own interests in the event of a conflict between the interests of all FH-BT 
Unitholders as a whole and its own interests;

•	 not	make	improper	use	of	any	information	acquired	by	virtue	of	its	position	as	FH-BT’s	trustee-manager	to	gain,	
directly or indirectly, an advantage for itself or for any other person to the detriment of the FH-BT Unitholders;

•	 hold	the	FH-BT	Trust	Property	on	trust	for	all	FH-BT	Unitholders	as	a	whole	in	accordance	with	the	terms	of	the	
FH-BT Trust Deed;

STATEMENT ON THE POLICIES AND PRACTICES IN REL ATION TO 
THE MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE OF THE TRUST
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•	 adhere	with	the	business	scope	of	FH-BT	as	set	out	in	the	FH-BT	Trust	Deed;

•	 review	interested	person	transactions	in	relation	to	FH-BT;	and

•	 review	expense	and	cost	allocations	payable	to	the	Trustee-Manager	in	its	capacity	as	trustee-manager	of	FH-
BT out of the Trust Property of FH-BT, and ensure that fees and expenses charged to FH-BT are appropriate and 
in accordance with the FH-BT Trust Deed.

The MAS has granted the Trustee-Manager waivers from compliance with Sections 10(2)(a) and 11(1)(a) of the BTA to the 
extent that sections 10(2)(a) and 11(1)(a) of the BTA require the Trustee-Manager and the Trustee-Manager Directors to 
act in the best interests of the FH-BT Unitholders as a whole only, subject to the conditions that:

(i) the FH-BT Units remain stapled to the FH-REIT Units; and

(ii) the Trustee-Manager and the Trustee-Manager Directors shall act in the best interests of all the Stapled 
Securityholders as a whole.

Trust Property is Properly Accounted for

In the event that FH-BT becomes active, the trust property of FH-BT shall be properly accounted for and kept distinct 
from the property of the Trustee-Manager in its own capacity. Different bank accounts shall be maintained for the 
Trustee-Manager in its personal capacity and its capacity as trustee-manager of FH-BT.

Adherence to the Business Scope of FH-BT

In the event that FH-BT becomes active, the Trustee-Manager Board shall review and approve all authorised businesses 
undertaken by FH-BT so as to ensure its adherence to the business scope as set out in the FH-BT Trust Deed.

Such authorised businesses include:

(i) the acquisition, disposition and ownership of Authorised Investments (as defined in the FH-BT Trust Deed) and 
all activities, concerns, functions and matters reasonably incidental thereto;

(ii) ownership of subsidiaries which are engaged in the acquisition, disposition and ownership of Authorised 
Investments of FH-BT and all activities, concerns, functions and matters reasonably incidental thereto; and

(iii) any business, undertaking or activity associated with, incidental and/or ancillary to the carrying on of the 
businesses referred to in paragraphs (i) and (ii), including the management and leasing of the Authorised 
Investments of FH-BT.

Management of Business Risk

The following will be put in place by the Trustee-Manager to manage business risk when FH-BT becomes active:

•	 The	Trustee-Manager	Board	will	meet	quarterly	or	more	 frequently	 if	necessary	and	will	 review	the	 financial	
performance of FH-BT against a previously approved budget. The Trustee-Manager Board will also review the 
business risks of FH-BT, examine liability management and will act upon any comments from both the internal 
and external auditors of FH-BT.

•	 In	assessing	business	risk,	the	Trustee-Manager	Board	will	consider	the	economic	environment	and	risks	relevant	
to the property industry. It will review management reports and feasibility studies on individual development 
projects prior to approving major transactions. The management will meet regularly to review the operations of 
the Trustee-Manager and FH-BT and discuss any disclosure issues.

Interested Person Transactions and Potential Conflicts of Interest

In general, transactions between:

•	 an	entity	at	risk	(in	this	case,	the	Trustee-Manager	(acting	in	its	capacity	as	the	trustee	manager	of	FH-BT)	or	any	
of the subsidiaries or associated companies of FH-BT); and

STATEMENT ON THE POLICIES AND PRACTICES IN REL ATION TO 
THE MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE OF THE TRUST
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•	 any	of	the	Interested	Persons	(namely	the	Trustee-Manager	(acting	in	its	personal	capacity),	a	related	corporation	
or related entity of the Trustee-Manager (other than a subsidiary or subsidiary entity of FH-BT), an associated 
company or associated entity of the Trustee-Manager (other than an associated company or associated entity 
of FH-BT) (as defined in the Securities and Futures (Offers of Investments) (Business Trusts) (No. 2) Regulations 
2005), a Director, Chief Executive Officer or controlling shareholder of the Trustee-Manager, a controlling 
Stapled Securityholder or an associate of any such Director, Chief Executive Officer, controlling shareholder or 
controlling Stapled Securityholder); 

would constitute an Interested Person Transaction.

The Trustee-Manager’s Internal Control System

The Trustee-Manager will establish an internal control system to ensure that all future Interested Person Transactions:

•	 will	be	undertaken	on	normal	commercial	terms;	and

•	 will	not	be	prejudicial	to	the	interests	of	FH-BT	and	Stapled	Securityholders.

The Trustee-Manager will maintain a register to record all Interested Person Transactions which are entered into by 
FH-BT and the bases, including any quotations from unrelated parties obtained to support such bases, on which they 
are entered into.

The Trustee-Manager will also incorporate into its internal audit plan a review of all Interested Person Transactions 
entered into by FH-BT.

Where matters concerning FH-BT relate to transactions entered into or to be entered into by the Trustee-Manager 
for and on behalf of FH-BT with a Related Party of the Trustee-Manager (which would include relevant associates 
thereof) or FH-BT, the Trustee-Manager is required to consider the terms of such transactions to satisfy itself that such 
transactions are conducted:

•	 on	normal	commercial	terms;

•	 are	not	prejudicial	to	the	interests	of	FH-BT	and	Stapled	Securityholders;	and

•	 in	accordance	with	all	applicable	requirements	of	the	Listing	Manual	and	the	BTA	relating	to	the	transaction	in	
question.

If the Trustee-Manager is to sign any contract with a Related Party of the Trustee-Manager or FH-BT, the Trustee-
Manager will review the contract to ensure that it complies with the provisions of the Listing Manual and the BTA 
relating to Interested Person Transactions (as may be amended from time to time) as well as such other guidelines as 
may from time to time be prescribed by the MAS and the SGX-ST to apply to business trusts.

Save for the Interested Person Transactions as disclosed in the IPO prospectus of FHT under “Management and 
Corporate Governance – FH-BT – Interested Person Transactions and Potential Conflicts of Interest – Interested 
Person Transactions in Connection with the Setting up of FH-BT”, FH-BT will comply with Rule 905 of the Listing 
Manual by announcing any Interested Person Transaction in accordance with the Listing Manual if such transaction, 
by itself or when aggregated with other Interested Person Transactions entered into with the same Interested Person 
during the same financial year, is 3.0% or more of FH-BT’s latest audited net tangible assets. The aggregate value of all 
Interested Person Transactions which are subject to Rules 905 and 906 of the Listing Manual in a particular financial 
year will be disclosed in FHT’s annual report for the relevant financial year.

Potential Conflicts of Interest

The Trustee-Manager has instituted the following procedures to deal with conflict of interest issues:

•	 all	 resolutions	 in	 writing	 of	 the	 Trustee-Manager	 Directors	 in	 relation	 to	matters	 concerning	 FHT	must	 be	
approved by a majority of the Trustee-Manager Directors, including at least one Independent Trustee-Manager 
Director;

•	 all	key	executive	officers	will	be	employed	by	the	Trustee-Manager	and	will	not	hold	executive	positions	in	other	
entities;

STATEMENT ON THE POLICIES AND PRACTICES IN REL ATION TO 
THE MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE OF THE TRUST
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•	 in	respect	of	matters	in	which	a	Trustee-Manager	Director	or	his	associate	(as	defined	in	the	Listing	Manual)	has	
an interest, direct or indirect, such interested director will abstain from voting. In such matters, the quorum must 
comprise a majority of the Trustee-Manager Directors and must exclude such interested director;

•	 in	respect	of	matters	in	which	the	Sponsor	has	an	interest,	direct	or	indirect,	any	nominees	appointed	by	the	
Sponsor to the Trustee-Manager Board to represent its/their interests will abstain from voting. In such matters, 
the quorum must comprise a majority of the Independent Trustee-Manager Directors and must exclude any 
nominee directors of the Sponsor; and

•	 where	matters	 concerning	 FH-BT	 relate	 to	 transactions	 entered	 into	 or	 to	 be	 entered	 into	 by	 the	 Trustee-
Manager for and on behalf of FH-BT with a Related Party of the Trustee-Manager (which would include relevant 
associates thereof) or FH-BT, the Trustee-Manager Board is required to consider the terms of the transactions to 
satisfy itself that the transactions are conducted on normal commercial terms, are not prejudicial to the interests 
of FH-BT and Stapled Securityholders and are in compliance with all applicable requirements of the Listing 
Manual and the BTA relating to the transaction in question. If the Trustee-Manager is to sign any contract with 
a Related Party of the Trustee-Manager or FH-BT, the Trustee-Manager will review the contract to ensure that 
it complies with the provisions of the Listing Manual and the BTA relating to Interested Person Transactions (as 
may be amended from time to time) as well as any other guidelines as may from time to time be prescribed by 
the MAS and SGX-ST that apply to business trusts.

It should be noted that under Section 6(3) of the BTA, the Trustee-Manager is prohibited from carrying on any business 
other than the management and operation of FH-BT as its trustee manager.

FEES PAYABLE TO THE TRUSTEE-MANAGER

Management Fee

The Trustee-Manager shall be entitled under the FH-BT Trust Deed to:

(i) a management fee comprising a Base Fee of 0.3% per annum of the value of the FH-BT Trust Property; and

(ii) a Performance Fee of 5.5% of the aggregate Distributable Income of FHT in the relevant financial year (calculated 
before accounting for the REIT Performance Fee and the BT Performance Fee); 

payable in the event that FH-BT becomes active. 
  
There should be no double-counting of fees. In the event that both the Trustee-Manager and the REIT Manager 
are entitled to the Performance Fee, such fees payable to both the Trustee-Manager and the REIT Manager will be 
apportioned based on the respective proportionate contributions of FH-REIT and FH-BT in the Performance Fee. For 
the avoidance of doubt, the maximum Performance Fee payable to both the Trustee-Manager and the REIT Manager 
collectively is 5.5% per annum of the aggregate Distributable Income of FHT in the relevant financial year (calculated 
before accounting for the Performance Fee but after accounting for the Base Fee).
  
For the purpose of calculating the management fee, if FH-BT holds only a partial interest in an investment from which 
such profit is derived, such profit shall be pro-rated in proportion to the partial interest held.
  
The management fee is payable to the Trustee-Manager in the form of cash and/or Stapled Securities or, as the case 
may be, FH-BT Units as the Trustee-Manager may elect.

Trustee Fee

Under the FH-BT Trust Deed, 0.1% per annum of the value of the FH-BT Trust Property and subject to a minimum fee 
of SGD 10,000 per month, if any, shall be paid to the Trustee-Manager as trustee fees, provided that the value of the 
FH-BT Trust Property is at least SGD 50.0 million and FH-BT is active.

For the period under review, no management fee and trustee fee were paid to the Trustee-Manager as FH-BT remained 
dormant.

STATEMENT ON THE POLICIES AND PRACTICES IN REL ATION TO 
THE MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE OF THE TRUST
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EXPENSES CHARGED TO FH-BT

The Trustee-Manager Board will carry out quarterly reviews to ensure that the expenses payable to the Trustee-Manager 
out of the FH-BT Trust Property are appropriate and in accordance with the FH-BT Trust Deed, in the event FH-BT 
becomes active.

For the period under review, no expenses were paid to the Trustee-Manager from the FH-BT Trust Property as FH-BT 
remained dormant.

ACQUISITION FEE AND DIVESTMENT FEE PAYABLE TO THE TRUSTEE-MANAGER 

The Trustee-Manager is entitled to:

•		 an	 acquisition	 fee	of	 0.5%	 for	 acquisitions	 from	Related	Parties	 and	 1.0%	 for	 all	 other	 cases	 (or	 such	 lower	
percentage as may be determined by the Trustee-Manager in its absolute discretion) of any of the following as 
is applicable (subject to there being no double counting):

(i)  in the case of an acquisition of real estate, the acquisition price of any real estate purchased by FH-BT, 
whether directly or indirectly through one or more SPVs, plus any other payments in addition to the 
acquisition price made by FH-BT or its SPVs to the vendor in connection with the purchase of the real 
estate (pro-rated if applicable to the proportion of FH-BT’s interest);

(ii)  in the case of an acquisition of the equity interests of any vehicle holding directly or indirectly the real 
estate, the underlying value of any real estate which is taken into account when computing the acquisition 
price payable for the equity interests of any vehicle holding directly or indirectly the real estate, purchased 
by FH-BT, whether directly or indirectly through one or more SPVs, plus any other payments made by 
FH-BT or its SPVs to the vendor in connection with the purchase of such equity interests (pro-rated if 
applicable to the proportion of FH-BT’s interest); or

(iii)  the acquisition price of any investment purchased by FH-BT, whether directly or indirectly through one 
or more SPVs, in any debt securities of any property corporation or other SPV owning or acquiring real 
estate or any debt securities which are secured whether directly or indirectly by the rental income from 
real estate.

•		 a	divestment	fee	of	0.5%	of	any	of	the	following	as	is	applicable	(subject	to	there	being	no	double-counting):

(i)  the sale price of any real estate sold or divested, whether directly or indirectly through one or more SPVs, 
by FH-BT, plus any other payments in connection with the sale or divestment of the real estate (pro-rated 
if applicable to the proportion of FH-BT’s interest);

(ii)  the underlying value of any real estate which is taken into account when computing the sale price for 
the equity interests in any vehicle holding directly or indirectly the real estate, sold or divested by FH-BT, 
whether directly or indirectly through one or more SPVs, plus any other payments received by the FH-BT 
or its SPVs from the purchaser in connection with the sale or divestment of such equity interests (pro-
rated if applicable to the proportion of FH-BT’s interest); or

(iii)  the sale price of the investment sold or divested by FH-BT, whether directly or indirectly through one 
or more SPVs, in any debt securities of any property corporation or other SPV owning or acquiring real 
estate or any debt securities which are secured whether directly or indirectly by the rental income from 
real estate.

The acquisition fee and divestment fee are payable to the Trustee-Manager in the form of cash and/or Stapled Securities 
or, as the case may be, FH-BT Units as the Trustee-Manager may elect, and in such proportion as may be determined 
by the Trustee-Manager provided that in respect of any acquisition and sale or divestment of real estate assets from/
to Related Parties, such a fee should be in the form of Stapled Securities at prevailing market price(s) instead of cash. 
The Stapled Securities issued to the Trustee-Manager as its acquisition or divestment fee should not be sold within one 
year from the date of their issuance.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE BTA AND THE LISTING MANUAL

The Trustee-Manager will engage the services of and obtain advice from professional advisers and consultants from 
time to time to ensure compliance with the requirements of the BTA and the Listing Manual in the event that FH-BT 
becomes active.

STATEMENT ON THE POLICIES AND PRACTICES IN REL ATION TO 
THE MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE OF THE TRUST
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Under Regulation 12(1) of the BTR, the Trustee-Manager Board is required to comprise:

•	 at	 least	 a	 majority	 of	 Trustee-Manager	 Directors	 who	 are	 independent	 from	 management	 and	 business	
relationships with the Trustee-Manager;

•	 at	 least	 one-third	 of	 Trustee-Manager	 Directors	 who	 are	 independent	 from	 management	 and	 business	
relationships with the Trustee-Manager and from every Substantial shareholder of the Trustee-Manager; and

•	 at	least	a	majority	of	Trustee-Manager	Directors	who	are	independent	from	any	single	Substantial	shareholder	
of the Trustee-Manager.

The Trustee-Manager Board consists of seven members, four of whom are Independent Directors for the purposes of 
the BTA, being independent from management and business relationships with the Trustee-Manager and from every 
Substantial Shareholder of the Trustee-Manager. 

They are: 

Mr Law Song Keng  (Chairman and Independent Director)
Mr Chua Phuay Hee  (Independent Director)
Mr Liew Choon Wei  (Independent Director)
Dr David Wong See Hong  (Independent Director)
Mr Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi  (Non-Executive Director)
Mr Lim Ee Seng  (Non-Executive Director)
Mr Choe Peng Sum  (Non-Executive Director)

In addition to compliance with requirements under the BTA, the composition of the Trustee-Manager Board is 
determined using the following principles:

•	 the	Chairman	of	the	Trustee-Manager	Board	should	be	a	non-executive	Director;	and

•	 the	Trustee-Manager	Board	should	consist	of	Directors	with	a	broad	range	of	commercial	experience.

None of the Trustee-Manager Directors would, by definition under the BTR, be independent from a Substantial 
Shareholder as the Managers are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Sponsor.

However, due to the structure of FHT, appointing a Trustee-Manager Board which is the same as the REIT Manager 
Board would avoid any differences or deadlock in the operation of FHT. Operationally, the structure of FHT would 
require a high degree of co-operation between the Managers.

The MAS has granted an exemption from the requirement under Regulations 12(1)(a) and 12(1)(b) of the BTR to 
the extent that Regulations 12(1)(a) and 12(1)(b) require the Trustee-Manager Directors to (a) be independent from 
management and business relationships with the Trustee-Manager and (b) be independent from management and 
business relationships with the Trustee-Manager and from every Substantial Shareholder of the Trustee-Manager, 
namely, the Sponsor, subject to the following conditions: 

(i) the Trustee-Manager shall ensure that the FH-BT Units remain stapled to the FH-REIT Units;

(ii) the Trustee-Manager shall ensure that, in relation to the composition of the Trustee-Manager Board:

(1)  the Trustee-Manager Directors are also the REIT Manager Directors;

(2)  at least a majority of the Trustee-Manager Directors shall be independent from management and business 
relationships with the Managers; and

(3)  at least one-third of the Trustee-Manager Directors shall be independent from management and business 
relationships with the Managers and from every Substantial Shareholder of the Managers; and

(iii)  the Stapling Deed shall contain covenants binding the Managers to exercise all due diligence and vigilance to 
safeguard the rights and interests of the Stapled Securityholders in the event of a conflict between the interests 
of the Managers and their respective shareholders, and that of the Stapled Securityholders.

The composition of the Trustee-Manager Board will be reviewed regularly to ensure that the Trustee-Manager Board 
has the appropriate mix of expertise and experience. 

STATEMENT ON COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited:

(i) the financial statements of Frasers Hospitality Real Estate Investment Trust (“FH-REIT”) and its subsidiaries (“FH-
REIT Group”), which comprise the Statement of Financial Position and Portfolio Statement as at 30 September 
2015, the Statement of Total Return and Statement of Comprehensive Income, Distribution Statements, 
Statement of Changes in Stapled Securityholders’ Funds and Statement of Cash Flows for the financial period 
from 20 June 2014 (date of constitution) to 30 September 2015, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information; 

(ii) the financial statements of Frasers Hospitality Business Trust (“FH-BT”), which comprise the Statement of 
Financial Position as at 30 September 2015, the Statement of Total Return and Statement of Comprehensive 
Income, Statement of Changes in Stapled Securityholders’ Funds and Statement of Cash Flows for the financial 
period from 20 June 2014 (date of constitution) to 30 September 2015, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information;

(iii) the consolidated financial statements of Frasers Hospitality Trust (“FHT”), which comprise the Statement of 
Financial Position and Portfolio Statement as at 30 September 2015, the Statement of Total Return and Statement 
of Comprehensive Income, Distribution Statements, Statement of Changes in Stapled Securityholders’ Funds 
and Statement of Cash Flows for the financial period from 20 June 2014 (date of constitution) to 30 September 
2015, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information;

as set out on pages 128 to 189. Frasers Hospitality Trust, which comprises FH-REIT Group and FH-BT, is hereinafter 
referred to as the “Stapled Group”. 

FH-REIT Manager’s responsibilities for the financial statements

Frasers Hospitality Asset Management Pte. Ltd., the Manager of FH-REIT (the “REIT Manager”), is responsible for the 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements of FH-REIT and the Stapled Group in accordance with 
the recommendations of the Statement of Recommended Accounting Practice 7 “Reporting Framework for Unit 
Trusts” issued by the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants, and for such internal control as the REIT Manager 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

FH-BT Trustee-Manager’s responsibilities for the financial statements

Frasers Hospitality Trust Management Pte. Ltd., the Trustee-Manager of FH-BT (the “Trustee-Manager”), is responsible 
for the preparation of financial statements for FH-BT that give a true and fair view in accordance with the provisions 
of the Singapore Business Trusts Act, Chapter 31A (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, and for 
devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that 
assets that are part of the trust property of the registered business trust are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised 
use or disposition; and transactions by the Trustee-Manager entered into on behalf of or purported to be entered into 
on behalf of the registered business trust are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the 
preparation of true and fair accounts to maintain accountability of assets. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
TO THE STAPLED SECURITYHOLDERS OF FRASERS HOSPITALITY REAL 

ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST AND FRASERS HOSPITALITY BUSINESS TRUST
CONSTITUTED IN THE REPUBLIC OF SINGAPORE PURSUANT TO THE TRUST DEEDS DATED 12 JUNE 

2014 AND 20 JUNE 2014 RESPECTIVELY
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risks assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the REIT Manager and the Trustee-
Manager, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

OPINION 

In our opinion:

(a) the financial statements of FH-REIT Group and FHT present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position and 
portfolio of FH-REIT and FHT as at 30 September 2015 and the total return, changes in Stapled Securityholders’ 
funds, distributable income and cash flows of the FH-REIT Group and FHT for the period from 20 June 2014 (date 
of constitution) to 30 September 2015 in accordance with the recommendations of Statement of Recommended 
Accounting Practice 7 “Reporting Framework for Unit Trusts” issued by the Institute of Singapore Chartered 
Accountants and the provisions of the FH-REIT Trust Deed and the Stapling Deed; and

(b) the financial statements of FH-BT are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Act and Singapore 
Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of FH-BT as at 30 September 
2015 and of the financial performance, changes in Stapled Securityholders’ funds and cash flows of FH-BT for the 
period from 20 June 2014 (date of constitution) to 30 September 2015. 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Trustee-Manager on behalf of 
FH-BT have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act. 
 

ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants
Singapore 

5 November 2015

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
TO THE STAPLED SECURITYHOLDERS OF FRASERS HOSPITALITY REAL 

ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST AND FRASERS HOSPITALITY BUSINESS TRUST
CONSTITUTED IN THE REPUBLIC OF SINGAPORE PURSUANT TO THE TRUST DEEDS DATED 12 JUNE 

2014 AND 20 JUNE 2014 RESPECTIVELY
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FH-REIT was constituted on 12 June 2014 and was inactive until FHT’s listing on SGX-ST on 14 July 2014. FH-BT has 
been dormant since its date of registration. FHT is a Stapled Group comprising units in FH-REIT stapled to units in FH-BT 
pursuant to the Stapling Deed dated 20 June 2014. The Statements of Total Return and Statements of Comprehensive 
Income comprise results for FH-REIT and its subsidiaries (collectively “FH-REIT Group”), FH-BT and the Stapled Group 
commencing from its date of listing on 14 July 2014.

FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
Note $’000 $’000 $’000

Master lease rental 12 128,745 128,745 – 
Gross revenue 128,745 128,745 –

Property tax (10,532) (10,532) –
Property insurance (1,194) (1,194) –
Property management fees (7,431) (7,431) –
Other property expenses (3,867) (3,867) –
Property operating expenses (23,024) (23,024) –

Net property income 105,721 105,721 –

Acquisition fee paid in Stapled Securities 19 (1,164) (1,164) –
REIT Manager’s management fees 3(a) (9,560) (9,560) –
Other management fees 3(b) (2,227) (2,227) –
Trustees’ fees 4 (502) (502) –
Administrative and other expenses 5 (7,317) (7,315) (2)
Non-capitalisable expenses in relation to Initial Public 

Offering (“IPO”) 6(a) (27,201) (27,201) –
Non-capitalisable expenses in relation to asset acquisition 

and Private Placement 6(b) (13,398) (13,398) –
Other income 528 528 –
Payment top-up 7 6,790 6,790 –
Finance income 300 300 –
Amortisation of debt upfront costs 8(a) (1,917) (1,917) –
Finance costs 8(b) (17,758) (17,758) –

Total return before foreign exchange differences, fair 
value changes and tax 32,295 32,297 (2)

Foreign exchange gain, net 2,584 2,584 –
Net change in fair value of investment properties 12 116,671 116,671 –
Net change in fair value of derivative financial instruments 1,744 1,744 –
Realised gain on derivative financial instruments 159 159 –

Total return for the period before tax 153,453 153,455 (2)

Taxation 9 (17,986) (17,986) –

Total return for the period after tax, attributable to 
Stapled Securityholders of the Trust 135,467 135,469 (2)

Earnings per Stapled Security (cents)
Basic and diluted 10 11.04 11.04 –*

* Denotes amount less than 1 cent

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF TOTAL RETURN AND STATEMENTS OF 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015
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FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
Note $’000 $’000 $’000

Total return for the period after tax 135,467 135,469 (2)

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to total 

return:
Fair value change of cash flow hedges 21(a) 6,599 6,599 –
Foreign currency translation differences 21(b) (59,450) (59,450) –

Total comprehensive income for the period, net of tax, 
representing total comprehensive income for the period 
attributable to Stapled Securityholders of the Trust 82,616 82,618 (2)

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF TOTAL RETURN AND STATEMENTS OF 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015
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FH-REIT was constituted on 12 June 2014 and was inactive until FHT’s listing on SGX-ST on 14 July 2014. FH-BT has 
been dormant since its date of registration. FHT is a stapled group comprising units in FH-REIT stapled to units in FH-BT 
pursuant to the Stapling Deed dated 20 June 2014. The Distribution Statements comprise results for FH-REIT and its 
subsidiaries (collectively “FH-REIT Group”) and the Stapled Group commencing from its date of listing on 14 July 2014.

FHT FH-REIT Group
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
Reconciliation of total return to income available for distribution Note $’000 $’000

Total return for the period after tax of FH-REIT 135,469 135,469

Non-tax deductible/(non-taxable) items and other adjustments:
Amortisation of debt upfront costs 8(a) 1,917 1,917
Acquisition fee paid in Stapled Securities 19 1,164 1,164
Foreign exchange gain, net (2,106) (2,106)
Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries written off 5 4,296 4,296
Issuance costs (IPO and Private Placement) not deductible 2,215 2,215
Net change in fair value of investment properties 12 (116,671) (116,671)
Net change in fair value of derivative financial instruments (1,744) (1,744)
Other management fees paid and payable in Stapled Securities 1,874 1,874
Property management fees paid and payable in Stapled Securities 7,429 7,429
REIT Manager’s management fees paid and payable in Stapled Securities 3(a) 9,560 9,560
Realised gain on derivative financial instruments (24) (24)
Stamp duties on acquisition of investment properties 38,384 38,384
FH-REIT Trustee’s fee 4 298 298
Other adjustments 11,666 11,666
Net effect of (non-taxable)/non-tax deductible items and other 

adjustments (41,742) (41,742)

Income available for distribution to Stapled Securityholders 93,727 93,727

Distribution of 3.69 cents per Stapled Security for the period from 14 July 
2014 to 31 March 2015 31 44,450 44,450

Distribution of 2.30 cents per Stapled Security for the period from 1 April 
2015 to 5 July 2015 31 27,737 27,737

Proposed Distribution of 1.5745 cents per Stapled Security for the period 
from 6 July 2015 to 30 September 2015 31 21,540 21,540

Income available for distribution to Stapled Securityholders 93,727 93,727

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTION STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015
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FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2015

Note $’000 $’000 $’000

Non-current Assets
Investment properties 12 1,960,393 1,960,393 –
Derivative financial instruments 18 8,631 8,631 –

1,969,024 1,969,024 –

Current Assets
Prepayments 2,439 2,439 –
Other assets 211 211 –
Trade and other receivables 13 7,529 7,529 –
Derivative financial instruments 18 196 196 –
Cash and cash equivalents 14 52,308 52,298 10

62,683 62,673 10

Total Assets 2,031,707 2,031,697 10

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 15 23,967 23,965 2
Deferred income 16 667 667 –
Derivative financial instruments 18 484 484 –
Income tax payables 5,410 5,410 –

30,528 30,526 2

Non-current Liabilities
Borrowings 17 785,003 785,003 –
Rental deposits 17,099 17,099 –
Deferred income 16 10,783 10,783 –
Deferred tax liabilities 9 16,012 16,012 –

828,897 828,897 –

Total Liabilities 859,425 859,423 2

Net Assets Attributable to Stapled Securityholders 1,172,282 1,172,274 8

Stapled Securityholders’ Funds
Stapled Securities in issue 19 1,185,539 1,185,529 10
Issue costs 20 (23,686) (23,686) –
Revenue reserves 63,280 63,282 (2)
Hedging reserve 21(a) 6,599 6,599 –
Foreign currency translation reserve 21(b) (59,450) (59,450) –

1,172,282 1,172,274 8

Number of Stapled Securities in issue (’000) 19 1,357,379 1,357,379 1,357,379

Net asset value per Stapled Security (cents) 86.36 86.36 –*

* Denotes amount less than 1 cent

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2015
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FH REIT was constituted on 12 June 2014 and was inactive until FHT’s listing on SGX-ST on 14 July 2014. FH-BT has 

been dormant since its date of registration. FHT is a Stapled group comprising units in FH-REIT stapled to units in FH-BT 

pursuant to the Stapling Deed dated 20 June 2014. Statements of changes in Stapled Securityholders’ Funds comprise 

movements commencing from the date of listing to 30 September 2015.

Attributable to Stapled Securityholders of the Trust

20 Jun 2014 to 30 Sep 2015
FHT Note

Stapled 
Securities 

in issue
Issue 
costs

Revenue 
reserves

Hedging 
reserve

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve Total

(Note 19) (Note 20)
(Note 
21(a))

(Note 
21(b))

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 20 Jun 2014 (Date of constitution) – – – – – –

Total return for the period, net of tax – – 135,467 – – 135,467

Other comprehensive income
Fair value change of cash flow hedges 21(a) – – – 6,599 – 6,599
Foreign currency translation 

differences 21(b) – – – – (59,450) (59,450)
Total comprehensive income for the 

period, net of tax – – 135,467 6,599 (59,450) 82,616

Contributions by and distributions to 
Stapled Securityholders

Issuance of new Stapled Securities 19 1,049,513 – – – – 1,049,513
Private Placement 19 123,000 – – – – 123,000
Issue costs 20 – (23,686) – – – (23,686)
REIT Manager’s management fees paid 

in Stapled Securities 19 5,544 – – – – 5,544
Other management fees paid in 

Stapled Securities 19 917 – – – – 917
Property management fees paid in 

Stapled Securities 19 4,185 – – – – 4,185
Distribution reinvestment plan 19 1,216 – – – – 1,216
Acquisition fee paid in Stapled 

Securities 19 1,164 – – – – 1,164
Distributions to Stapled Securityholders 31 – – (72,187) – – (72,187)
Total contributions by and distributions 

to Stapled Securityholders 1,185,539 (23,686) (72,187) – – 1,089,666

At 30 Sep 2015 1,185,539 (23,686) 63,280 6,599 (59,450) 1,172,282

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STAPLED SECURITYHOLDERS’ FUNDS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015
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FH REIT was constituted on 12 June 2014 and was inactive until FHT’s listing on SGX-ST on 14 July 2014. FH-BT has 

been dormant since its date of registration. FHT is a Stapled group comprising units in FH-REIT stapled to units in FH-BT 

pursuant to the Stapling Deed dated 20 June 2014. Statements of changes in Stapled Securityholders’ Funds comprise 

movements commencing from the date of listing to 30 September 2015.

Attributable to Stapled Securityholders of the Trust

20 Jun 2014 to 30 Sep 2015
FH-REIT Group Note

Stapled 
Securities 

in issue Issue costs
Revenue 
reserves

Hedging 
reserve

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve Total

(Note 19) (Note 20)
(Note 
21(a))

(Note 
21(b))

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 20 Jun 2014 (Date of constitution) – – – – – –

Total return for the period, net of tax – – 135,469 – – 135,469

Other comprehensive income
Fair value change of cash flow hedges 21(a) – – – 6,599 – 6,599
Foreign currency translation 

differences 21(b) – – – – (59,450) (59,450)
Total comprehensive income for the 

period, net of tax – – 135,469 6,599 (59,450) 82,618

Contributions by and distributions to 
Stapled Securityholders

Issuance of new Stapled Securities 19 1,049,503 – – – – 1,049,503
Private Placement 19 123,000 – – – – 123,000
Issue costs 20 – (23,686) – – – (23,686)
REIT Manager’s management fees paid 

in Stapled Securities 19 5,544 – – – – 5,544
Other management fees paid in 

Stapled Securities 19 917 – – – – 917
Property management fees paid in 

Stapled Securities 19 4,185 – – – – 4,185
Distribution reinvestment plan 19 1,216 – – – – 1,216
Acquisition fee paid in Stapled 

Securities 19 1,164 – – – – 1,164
Distributions to Stapled Securityholders 31 – – (72,187) – – (72,187)
Total contributions by and distributions 

to Stapled Securityholders 1,185,529 (23,686) (72,187) – – 1,089,656

At 30 Sep 2015 1,185,529 (23,686) 63,282 6,599 (59,450) 1,172,274

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STAPLED SECURITYHOLDERS’ FUNDS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015
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FH REIT was constituted on 12 June 2014 and was inactive until FHT’s listing on SGX-ST on 14 July 2014. FH-BT has 
been dormant since its date of registration. FHT is a Stapled group comprising units in FH-REIT stapled to units in FH-BT 
pursuant to the Stapling Deed dated 20 June 2014. Statements of changes in Stapled Securityholders’ Funds comprise 
movements commencing from the date of listing to 30 September 2015.

Attributable to Stapled Securityholders of the Trust

20 Jun 2014 to 30 Sep 2015
FH-BT Note

Stapled 
Securities 

in issue Issue costs
Revenue 
reserves

Hedging 
reserve

Foreign 
currency 

translation 
reserve Total

(Note 19) (Note 20)
(Note 
21(a))

(Note 
21(b))

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

At 20 Jun 2014 (Date of constitution) – – – – – –

Total return for the period, net of tax – – (2) – – (2)

Contributions by and distributions to 
Stapled Securityholders

Issuance of new Stapled Securities 19 10 – – – – 10
Total contributions by and distributions 

to Stapled Securityholders 10 – – – – 10

At 30 Sep 2015 10 – (2) – – 8

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STAPLED SECURITYHOLDERS’ FUNDS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015
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FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
20 June 2014 to 30 September 2015

Note $’000 $’000 $’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Total return before tax 153,453 153,455 (2)
Adjustments for:
Amortisation of debt upfront costs 8(a) 1,917 1,917 –
Acquisition fee paid in Stapled Securities 19 1,164 1,164 –
Effect of recognising rental income on a straight-line 

basis over the lease term 12 (610) (610) –
Finance costs 8(b) 17,758 17,758 –
Finance income (300) (300) –
Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries written off 5 4,296 4,296 –
Net change in fair value of derivative financial instruments (1,744) (1,744) –
Net change in fair value of investment properties 12 (116,671) (116,671) –
Other management fees paid and payable in Stapled 

Securities 1,874 1,874 –
Property management fees paid and payable in Stapled 

Securities 7,431 7,431 –
REIT Manager’s management fees paid and payable in 

Stapled Securities 3(a) 9,560 9,560 –
Unrealised gain on foreign exchange (100) (100) –
Non-capitalisable expenses in relation to IPO 6(a) 27,201 27,201 –
Non-capitalisable expenses in relation to asset acquisition  

and Private Placement 6(b) 13,398 13,398 –
Cash generated from/(used in) operations before 

working capital changes 118,627 118,629 (2)
Changes in working capital:
Prepayments (2,439) (2,439) –
Trade and other receivables (6,705) (6,705) –
Trade and other payables (26,914) (26,916) 2
Rental deposits 16,555 16,555 –
Deferred income 12,151 12,151 –
Cash generated from operations 111,275 111,275 –
Tax paid (65) (65) –
Interest income received 300 300 –

Net cash generated from operations 111,510 111,510 –

CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Costs incurred on acquisition of investment properties (38,451) (38,451) –
Acquisition of investment properties 12 (1,758,874) (1,758,874) –
Additions to investment properties (12,096) (12,096) –
Acquisition of subsidiaries (107,883) (107,883) –
Acquisition of other assets (193) (193) –

Net cash used in investing activities (1,917,497) (1,917,497) –

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015
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FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
20 June 2014 to 30 September 2015

Note $’000 $’000 $’000

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Distributions paid to Stapled Securityholders (70,971) (70,971) –
Finance cost paid (13,299) (13,299) –
Issuance of new Stapled Securities upon IPO 19 1,049,513 1,049,503 10
Issuance of new Stapled Securities for Private Placement 19 123,000 123,000 –
Issue costs in relation to IPO (23,247) (23,247) –
Issue costs in relation to Private Placement (2,284) (2,284) –
Proceeds from borrowings, net of debt upfront costs 841,148 841,148 –
Repayment of borrowings (45,976) (45,976) –

Net cash generated from financing activities 1,857,884 1,857,874 10

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 51,897 51,887 10
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 

financial period – – –
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash 

equivalents 411 411 –

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial 
period 52,308 52,298 10

For the purpose of the Statements of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
30 September 2015

Note $’000 $’000 $’000

Cash and bank balances 14 46,102 46,092 10
Fixed deposits 14 6,206 6,206 –
Cash and cash equivalents 14 52,308 52,298 10

FHT was constituted on 20 June 2014 and was inactive until its listing on SGX-ST on 14 July 2014. FH-BT has been 
dormant since its date of constitution. The Statements of Cash Flows relate to the period commencing from 20 June 
2014 to 30 September 2015.

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015
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30 Sep 2015

Property
Acquisition 

date Tenure Location
Existing 

use
Latest 

valuation
Valuation 

date

At 
valuation/ 

carrying 
value

Percentage 
of net 
assets

$’000 $’000 %

InterContinental 

Singapore

14 July 

2014

75 year leasehold 

expiring in 2089

80 Middle Road,

Singapore 188966

Hotel 535,000 30 

September 

2015

535,000 45.64

Fraser Suites 

Singapore

14 July 

2014

75 year leasehold 

expiring in 2089

491A River Valley Road, 

Singapore 248372

Serviced 

Residences

310,000 30 

September 

2015

310,000 26.44

The Westin Kuala 

Lumpur

14 July 

2014

Freehold 199, Jalan Bukit 

Bintang, Kuala Lumpur, 

55100, Malaysia

Hotel 144,241 30 

September 

2015

144,241 12.30

ANA Crowne 

Plaza Kobe

14 July 

2014

Freehold 1-Chrome, Kitano-Cho 

Chuo-Ku, Kobe,  

650-0002, Japan

Hotel 163,002 30 

September 

2015

163,002 13.90

Sofitel Sydney 

Wentworth

7 July 2015 75 year leasehold 

expiring in 2090

61-101 Phillip Street, 

Sydney, NSW 2000, 

Australia

Hotel 227,250 30 

September 

2015

227,250 19.40

Novotel 

Rockford 

Darling 

Harbour

14 July 

2014

84 year leasehold 

expiring in 2098

17 Little Pier Street 

Darling Harbour,  

NSW 2000, Australia

Hotel 73,080 30 

September 

2015

73,080 6.23

Fraser Suites 

Sydney

14 July 

2014

75 year leasehold 

expiring in 2089

488 Kent Street, 

Sydney, NSW 2000, 

Australia

Serviced 

Residences

109,670 30 

September 

2015

109,670 9.36

Park 

International 

London

14 July 

2014

75 year leasehold 

expiring in 2089

117-129 Cromwell 

Road, South 

Kensington, London, 

SW7 4DS, United 

Kingdom

Hotel 87,546 30 

September 

2015

87,546 7.47

Best Western 

Cromwell 

London

14 July 

2014

75 year leasehold 

expiring in 2089

108, 110 and 112 

Cromwell Road, 

London, SW7 4ES, 

United Kingdom

Hotel 40,008 30 

September 

2015

40,008 3.41

PORTFOLIO STATEMENT
AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2015
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30 Sep 2015

Property
Acquisition 

date Tenure Location
Existing 

use
Latest 

valuation
Valuation 

date

At 
valuation/ 

carrying 
value

Percentage 
of net 
assets

$’000 $’000 %

Fraser Place 

Canary Wharf

14 July 

2014

75 year leasehold 

expiring in 2089

80 Boardwalk Place, 

London E14 5SF, 

United Kingdom

Serviced 

Residences

89,482 30 

September 

2015

89,482 7.63

Fraser Suites 

Queens Gate

14 July 

2014

75 year leasehold 

expiring in 2089

39B Queens Gate 

Gardens, London SW7 

5RR, United Kingdom

Serviced 

Residences

130,781 30 

September 

2015

130,781 11.16

Fraser Suites 

Glasgow

14 July 

2014

75 year leasehold 

expiring in 2089

1-19 Albion Street 

Glasgow G1 1LH, 

Scotland, United 

Kingdom

Serviced 

Residences

20,434 30 

September 

2015

20,434 1.74

Fraser Suites 

Edinburgh

14 July 

2014

75 year leasehold 

expiring in 2089

12-26 St Giles Street, 

Edinburgh EH1 1 PT, 

Scotland, United 

Kingdom

Serviced 

Residences

29,899 30 

September 

2015

29,899 2.55

Portfolio of investment properties 1,960,393 1,960,393 167.23

Other net liabilities (788,111) (788,111) (67.23)

Net assets 1,172,282 1,172,282 100.00

Independent valuation of the investment properties was undertaken by Jones Lang LaSalle based on discounted cash 
flow method and gross realisation method. The independent valuers have the appropriate professional qualifications and 
experience in the location and category of the property being valued. 

The net changes in fair values of these investment properties have been recognised in the Statements of Total Return in 
accordance with the Stapled Group’s accounting policies. 

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

PORTFOLIO STATEMENT
AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2015
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

1. GENERAL

 Frasers Hospitality Trust (“FHT”) is a stapled trust comprising Frasers Hospitality Real Estate Investment Trust 
(“FH-REIT”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “FH-REIT Group”) and Frasers Hospitality Business Trust (“FH-BT”) 
(collectively, the “Stapled Group”). [G4-17]

FH-REIT is a Singapore-domiciled real estate investment trust constituted in Singapore pursuant to the Trust 
Deed dated 12 June 2014 which was amended by an amending and restating deed dated 20 June 2014 
(collectively, the “FH-REIT Trust Deed”). The FH-REIT Trust Deed was entered between Frasers Hospitality Asset 
Management Pte. Ltd. (the “REIT Manager”) and The Trust Company (Asia) Limited as trustee of FH-REIT (the 
“REIT Trustee”). The REIT Trustee is under a duty to take into custody and hold the assets of FH-REIT in trust for 
the Stapled Securityholders of FH-REIT. 

FH-BT is a Singapore-domiciled business trust constituted in Singapore by a Trust Deed dated 20 June 2014 
(“FH-BT Trust Deed”) and is managed by Frasers Hospitality Trust Management Pte. Ltd. (the “Trustee-Manager”). 

The securities in each of FH-REIT and FH-BT are stapled together under the terms of a stapling deed dated 20 
June 2014 entered into between the REIT Manager, the REIT Trustee and the Trustee-Manager (the “Stapling 
Deed”) and cannot be traded separately. Each stapled security in FHT (the “Stapled Security”) comprises a unit of 
FH-REIT (the “FH-REIT unit”) and a unit of FH-BT (the “FH-BT unit”).

FH-REIT’s and FH-BT’s first financial year financial statements cover the period from 20 June 2014, the date of 
constitution as a real estate investment trust and a business trust respectively, to 30 September 2015. 

FHT was formally admitted to the Official List of the Main Board of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading 
Limited (“SGX-ST”) on 14 July 2014 (the “Listing Date”). 

The registered office of the REIT Manager and the Trustee Manager is located at 438 Alexandra Road, #21-00 
Alexandra Point, Singapore 119958 and principal place of business is located at 491B River Valley Road, #16-01 
Valley Point, Singapore 248373. 

The principal activity of FH-REIT is to invest in income producing real estate in Singapore, Australia, United 
Kingdom, Japan and Malaysia, used for hospitality purposes, with the primary objective of achieving an attractive 
level of return from rental income and for long-term capital growth. 

With the adoption of FRS 110 Consolidated Financial Statements (which came into effect for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2014), for financial reporting purposes, the Stapled Group is regarded as a 
subsidiary of Frasers Centrepoint Limited.

Consequently, the penultimate and ultimate holding company are Frasers Centrepoint Limited and TCC Assets 
Limited. The penultimate and ultimate holding company are incorporated in Singapore and the British Virgin 
Islands respectively. 

As at the reporting date, FH-BT is dormant.
 
 FH-REIT has entered into several service agreements in relation to the management of FH-REIT and its properties 

operations. The fee structures of these services are as follows: 
 
 (a)(i) REIT Manager’s management fees

Pursuant to the FH-REIT Trust Deed, the REIT Manager is entitled to management fees comprising a 
Base Fee of 0.3% per annum of the value of the FH-REIT’s Deposited Property (as defined in the FH-REIT 
Trust Deed) and Performance Fee of 5.5% per annum of the Distributable Income of FHT in the relevant 
financial year (calculated before accounting for the FH-REIT Performance Fee and FH-BT Performance 
Fee but after accounting for the FH-REIT Base Fee and the FH-BT Base Fee).

For the purpose of calculating the Base Fee, if FH-REIT holds only a partial interest in any FH-REIT 
Deposited Property, such FH-REIT Deposited Property shall be pro-rated in proportion to the partial 
interest held.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

1. GENERAL (CONT’D)

 (a)(i) REIT Manager’s management fees (cont’d)

The REIT manager may elect to receive the Base Fee and Performance Fee in cash or Stapled Securities, 
or a combination of cash and Stapled Securities. Any portion of management fees payable in the form 
of Stapled Securities shall be payable quarterly in arrears (in relation to the Base Fee) or semi-annually 
(in relation to the Performance Fee) in arrears and any portion of management fees payable in cash shall 
be payable monthly in arrears (in relation to the Base Fee) or semi-annually in arrears (in relation to the 
Performance Fee).

As provided for in the FH-REIT Trust Deed, the price of a Stapled Security issued shall be computed based 
on the volume weighted average price of a Stapled Security for the last 10 business days immediately 
preceding the relevant period in which the fees accrue.

Any increase in the rate or any change in the structure of the REIT Manager’s management fees must be 
approved by an Extraordinary Resolution at a meeting of the holders of FH-REIT Units duly convened and 
held in accordance with the provisions of the FH-REIT Trust Deed.

The REIT Manager’s change in its election to receive cash or Stapled Securities or a combination 
of cash and Stapled Securities is not considered as a change in the structure of the REIT Manager’s 
management fees.

 (ii) Acquisition fee and divestment fee payable to the REIT Manager

The REIT Manager is entitled to:

•	 an	acquisition	fee	of	0.5%	for	acquisitions	from	related	parties	and	1.0%	for	all	other	cases	(or	such	
lower percentage as may be determined by the REIT Manager in its absolute discretion) of any of 
the following as is applicable (subject to there being no double-counting):

(i) the acquisition price of any real estate (excluding stamp duty) purchased by FH-REIT, 
whether directly or indirectly through a holding of shares, units or any other interests in 
one or more Special Purpose Vehicles (“SPVs”), plus any other payments in addition to 
the acquisition price made by FH-REIT or its SPVs to the vendor in connection with the 
purchase of the real estate (pro-rated if applicable to the proportion of FH-REIT’s interest);

(ii) the underlying value of any real estate which is taken into account when computing the 
acquisition price payable for the equity interests of any vehicle holding directly or indirectly 
the real estate, purchased by FH-REIT, whether directly or indirectly through a holding of 
shares, units or any other interest in one or more SPVs, plus any other payments made by 
FH-REIT or its SPVs to the vendor in connection with the purchase of such equity interests 
(pro-rated, if applicable to the proportion of FH-REIT’s interest); or

(iii) the acquisition price of any investment purchased by FH-REIT, whether directly or indirectly 
through one or more SPVs, in any debt securities of any property corporation or other SPV 
owning or acquiring real estate or any debt securities which are secured whether directly 
or indirectly by the rental income from real estate.

•	 a	divestment	fee	of	0.5%	of	any	of	the	following	as	is	applicable	(subject	to	there	being	no	double-
counting):

(i) the sale price of any real estate sold or divested by FH-REIT, whether directly or indirectly 
through one or more SPVs, plus any other payments in addition to the sale price received 
by FH-REIT or its SPVs from the purchaser in connection with the sale or divestment of the 
real estate (pro-rated if applicable to the proportion of FH-REIT’s interest);

(ii) the underlying value of any real estate which is taken into account when computing the 
sale price for the equity interests in any vehicle holding directly or indirectly the real estate, 
sold or divested by FH-REIT, whether directly or indirectly through one or more SPVs, plus 
any other payments received by FH-REIT or its SPVs from the purchase in connection with 
the sale or divestment of such equity interests (pro-rated if applicable to the proportion of 
FH-REIT’s interest); or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

1. GENERAL (CONT’D)

 (a)(ii) Acquisition fee and divestment fee payable to the REIT Manager (cont’d)

(iii) the sale price of the investment sold or divested by FH-REIT, whether directly or indirectly 
through one or more SPVs, in any debt securities of any property corporation or other SPV 
owning or acquiring real estate or any debt securities which are secured whether directly 
or indirectly by the rental income from real estate.

The REIT Manager may elect to receive the acquisition fee and divestment fee in the form of cash and/or 
Stapled Securities provided that in respect of any acquisition and sale or divestment of real estate assets 
from/to related parties, such a fee should be in the form of Stapled Securities.

 (b)(i) Managed Investment Trust (“MIT”) Manager’s management fees

Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreements for MIT Australia and each underlying MIT Sub-
Trust, the MIT Manager is entitled to a management fee comprising a Base Fee of 0.3% per annum of the 
total value of MIT Australia’s trust property and a Performance Fee of 5.5% of MIT Australia’s aggregate 
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation in the relevant financial year.

There is no double-counting of management fees under the Investment Management Agreements.

 (ii) Acquisition fee and divestment fee payable to the MIT Manager

In consideration for MIT Manager providing services under each of the Investment Management 
Agreements in connection with MIT Australia and the underlying sub-trusts, the MIT Manager will be 
entitled to:

•	 an	acquisition	fee	of	0.5%	for	acquisitions	from	related	parties	and	1.0%	for	all	other	cases	of:

(i) the acquisition price of any real estate purchased by MIT Australia whether directly or 
indirectly through one or more special purpose vehicles, plus any other payments in 
addition to the acquisition price made by MIT Australia or a special purpose vehicle to the 
vendor in connection with the purchase of the real estate (pro-rated, if applicable, to the 
proportion of MIT Australia’s interest);

(ii) the underlying value of any real estate which is taken into account when computing the 
acquisition price payable for the equity interests of any vehicle holding directly or indirectly 
the real estate purchased by MIT Australia whether directly or indirectly through one or 
more special purpose vehicles, plus any other payments made by MIT Australia or a special 
purpose vehicle to the vendor in connection with the purchase of such equity interests 
(prorated, if applicable, to the proportion of MIT Australia’s interest); or

(iii) the acquisition price of any investment purchased by MIT Australia, whether directly or 
indirectly through one or more special purpose vehicles, in any debt securities of any 
property corporation or other special purpose vehicle owning or acquiring real estate or 
any debt securities which are secured whether directly or indirectly by the rental income 
from real estate;

•	 a	divestment	fee	of	0.5%	of:

(i) the sale price of any real estate sold or divested by MIT Australia whether directly or indirectly 
through one or more special purpose vehicles, plus any other payments in addition to the 
sale price received by MIT Australia or a special purpose vehicle from the purchaser in 
connection with the sale or divestment of the property (pro-rated, if applicable, to the 
proportion of MIT Australia’s interest);

(ii) the underlying value of any real estate which is taken into account when computing the 
sale price for the equity interests in any vehicle holding directly or indirectly the real estate, 
sold or divested by MIT Australia, whether directly or indirectly through one or more special 
purpose vehicles, plus any other payments received by MIT Australia or its special purpose 
vehicles from the purchases in connection with the sale or divestment of such equity 
interests (pro-rated, if applicable, to the proportion of the MIT Australia’s interest); or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

1. GENERAL (CONT’D)

 (b)(ii) Acquisition fee and divestment fee payable to the MIT Manager (cont’d)

(iii) the sale price of any investment sold or divested by MIT Australia, whether directly or 
indirectly through one or more special purpose vehicles, in any debt securities of any 
property corporation or other special purpose vehicle owning or acquiring real estate or 
any debt securities which are secured whether directly or indirectly by the rental income 
from real estate; and

The MIT Manager will also be entitled to be reimbursed for certain expenses properly incurred in relation 
to performance of its role under the Investment Management Agreements. Except for the development 
management fee (which may only be paid in cash), the MIT Manager’s fees may be paid out of the trust’s 
income or capital, or by an issue of Stapled Securities, or by a combination of these sources as elected 
by the MIT Trustee subject to and in accordance with the direction of the REIT Manager and the Trustee-
Manager.

For the avoidance of doubt, the base fee, performance fee, acquisition fee, divestment fee and 
development management fee payable to the REIT Manager shall be reduced by the amount of the 
relevant fee payable to the MIT Manager.

 
 (c) Kobe Asset Manager’s management fees

Pursuant to the Asset Management Agreement for Kobe Excellence TMK, the Kobe Asset Manager is 
entitled to an annual management fee of Japanese Yen (“JPY”) 14.0 million (exclusive of consumption 
tax), payable quarterly in arrears. 

 
 (d) Asset-Based Securities (“ABS”) Servicer fees

Pursuant to the ABS Servicing Agreement for Notable Vision Sdn. Bhd, a Servicer Fee (exclusive of 
applicable service tax or goods and services tax (“GST”)), of Malaysian Ringgit (“MYR”) 360,000 per annum, 
is payable in arrears on a semi-annual basis to the REIT Manager for the provision of its services as 
Servicer.

 (e) FH-REIT Trustee’s fees

Pursuant to the FH-REIT Trust Deed, the FH-REIT Trustee’s fee is charged to a scaled basis of up to 0.015% 
per annum of the value of the FH-REIT Deposited Property, subject to a minimum of SGD 15,000 per 
month, excluding out-of-pocket expenses and GST. 

The FH-REIT Trustee’s fees are payable monthly in arrears. 

  
 (f) MIT’s and MIT Sub-Trustee’s fees

Pursuant to the Investment Management Agreements, the MIT Trustee’s fees and MIT Sub-trustee’s fees 
are Australian Dollars (“AUD”) 55,000 per annum and AUD 15,000 per annum per sub-trust respectively, 
excluding out-of-pocket expenses and GST. As there are three MIT Sub-trusts , the aggregate fee payable 
to the MIT Sub-trustee for the three MIT Sub-trusts is AUD 45,000 per annum. 

The Trustee’s fees and the MIT Sub-trustee’s fees are payable quarterly in arrears. The fees are adjustable 
yearly by reference to the Australian Consumer Price Index.

  
 (g) Tokutei Mokuteki Kaisha (“TMK”) Trustee’s fees

The TMK Trustee’s fee is JPY 5.4 million per annum and payable quarterly in arrears. 

  
 (h) Malaysian Bond Trustee’s fees

The Malaysian Bond Trustee’s fee is MYR 60,000 per annum and payable in advance on an annual basis. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

1. GENERAL (CONT’D)

(i) Property Management fees

Property management fees payable to Serviced Residence operators, which are companies controlled by 
a substantial Stapled Securityholder, comprise:

(i) Management Services Fees

Pursuant to the Serviced Residences Management Agreements, the management services fees 
are as follows: 

(I) a base management fee of 1.0% per annum of the gross operating revenue of the Serviced 
Residences; 

(II) a marketing fee of 1.0% per annum of the gross operating revenue of the Serviced 
Residences; and

(III) an incentive of 8.0% per annum of gross operating profit of the Serviced Residences. 

(ii) Trademark Licence Fees

Pursuant to the Serviced Residences Licence Agreement, trademark licence fee is 1.0% per annum 
of the gross operating revenue of the Serviced Residences.

The Serviced Residences operators may receive the management services and trademark licence fees in 
cash or Stapled Securities or a combination of both (as the REIT Manager or Trustee-Manager may elect).

(iii) Technical Services Fees

Pursuant to the Master Technical Services Agreement and the Individual Technical Services 
Agreement, the technical services fees will be an amount mutually agreed upon subject to a cap of 
United States Dollar (“USD”) 1,500 per Serviced Residence unit which is exclusive of reimbursable 
expenses. The technical services fees shall be payable when technical services relating to 
conceptualising, planning, designing, decorating, furnishing and equipping Serviced Residences 
are provided in connect with any development, re-development, refurbishment, retrofitting, 
addition and alteration and renovation works. 

(j) Trustee-Manager fees

The Trustee-Manager is entitled to the following fees:

(i) a management fee comprising a Base Fee of 0.3% per annum of the value of the FH-BT’s Trust 
Property and Performance Fee of 5.5% per annum of the Distributable Income of FHT in the 
relevant financial period, payable in the event that FH-BT becomes active; and 

There should be no double-counting of fees. In the event that both the Trustee-Manager and the 
REIT Manager are entitled to the Performance Fee, such fees payable to both the Trustee-Manager 
and the REIT Manager will be apportioned based on the respective proportionate contributions 
of FH-REIT and FH-BT in the Performance Fee. For the avoidance of doubt, the maximum 
Performance Fee payable to both the Trustee-Manager and the REIT Manager collectively is 5.5% 
per annum of the aggregate Distributable Income of FHT in the relevant financial year (calculated 
before accounting for the Performance Fee).

 (ii) a trustee fee of a maximum of 0.1% per annum of the value of the FH-BT Trust Property, subject to 
a minimum fee of SGD 10,000 per month provided that the value of the FH-BT Trust Property is at 
least SGD 50.0 million, payable in the event that FH-BT becomes active. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

1. GENERAL (CONT’D)

 (j) Trustee-Manager fees (cont’d)

(iii)  an acquisition fee of 0.5% for acquisitions from Related Parties and 1.0% (or such lower percentage 
as may be determined by the Trustee-Manager in its absolute discretion) of all other cases of any 
of the following (subject there be no double-counting):

– the acquisition price of any real estate purchased by FH-BT, whereby directly or indirectly 
through one or more SPVs, plus any other payments in addition to the acquisition price 
made by FH-BT or its SPVs to the vendor in connection with the purchase of the real estate 
(pro-rated if applicable to the proportion of FH-BT’s interest);

– the equity interest of any vehicle holding directly or indirectly the real estate, the underlying 
value of any real estate which is taken into account when computing the acquisition price 
payable for the equity interests of any vehicle holding directly or indirectly the real estate, 
purchased by FH-BT whether directly or indirectly through one or more SPVs, plus any 
other payments made by FH-BT or its SPVs to the vendor in connection with the purchase 
of such equity interests (pro-rated if applicable to the proportion of FH-BT’s interest); or

– the acquisition price of any investment purchased by FH-BT, whether directly or indirectly 
through one or more SPVs, in any debt securities of any property corporation or other SPV 
owning or acquiring real estate or any debt securities which are secured whether directly 
or indirectly by the rental income from real estate.

(iv)  a divestment investment fee of 0.5% for of all other cases of any of the following (subject there be 
no double-counting):

– the sale price of any real estate sold or divested, whether directly or indirectly through one 
or more SPVs, by FH-BT, plus any other payments in connection with the sale or divestment 
of the real estate (pro-rated if applicable to the proportion of FH-BT’s interest); 

– the underlying value of any real estate which is taken into account when computing the 
sale price for the equity interest in any vehicle holding directly or indirectly the real estate, 
sold or divested by FH-BT, whether directly or indirectly through one or more SPVs, plus 
any other payments received by the FH-BT or its SPVs from the purchaser in connection 
with the sale or divestment of such equity interest (pro-rated if applicable to the proportion 
of FH-BT’s interest); 

– the sale price of the investment sold or divested by FH-BT, whether directly or indirectly 
through one or more SPVs, in any debt securities of any property corporation or other SPV 
owning or acquiring real estate or debt securities which are secured whether directly or 
indirectly by the rental income from real estate.

 The acquisition fee and divestment fee are payable to the Trustee-Manager in the form of cash and/or 
Stapled Securities, provided that in respect of any acquisition and sale or divestment of real estate assets 
from/to related parties, such a fee should be in the form of Stapled Securities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of FHT comprise the FH-REIT Group and FH-BT.

The financial statements of FH-REIT Group and the Stapled Group have been prepared in accordance with the 
recommendations of Statement of Recommended Accounting Practice (“RAP”) 7 “Reporting Framework for Unit 
Trusts” issued by the Institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants, the applicable requirements of the Code 
on Collective Investment Schemes (the “CIS Code”) issued by the Monetary Authority of Singapore (the “MAS”) 
and the provisions of the FH-REIT Trust Deed and the Stapling Deed. RAP 7 requires the accounting policies to 
generally comply with the principles relating to recognition and measurement under the Singapore Financial 
Reporting Standards (“FRS”). 

The financial statements of FH-BT have been prepared in accordance with FRS. 

The financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars (“SGD”), which is the functional currency of FH-REIT 
and FH-BT and rounded to the nearest thousand ($’000), unless otherwise stated, and have been prepared on a 
historical cost basis except as disclosed in the accounting policies below. 

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently by the Stapled Group.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates 

The preparation of financial information in conformity with RAP 7 requires the Manager to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. These estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period 
in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. 

 (a)  Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Valuation of investment properties

The Stapled Group’s investment properties are stated at their estimated market values, which are 
determined annually. The fair values are based on independent professional valuations conducted 
annually. The fair value of investment properties is determined using discounted cash flow method and 
gross realisation method. These estimated market values may differ from the prices at which the Stapled 
Group’s investment properties could be sold at a particular time, since actual selling prices are negotiated 
between willing buyers and sellers. Also, certain estimates require an assessment of factors not within 
the directors’ control, such as overall market conditions. As a result, actual results of operations and 
realisation of these investment properties could differ from the estimates set forth in these financial 
statements, and the difference could be significant. The carrying amount of investment properties is as 
disclosed in the Statements of Financial Position.

 (b)  Critical judgements made in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the Stapled Group’s accounting policies, the Manager has made the following 
judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have significant effects on the amounts 
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (cont’d)

 (b)  Critical judgements made in applying accounting policies (cont’d)

Income taxes

The Stapled Group has exposure to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant assumptions 
are required in determining the group-wide provision for income taxes. The ultimate determination of 
taxability of income and deductibility of expenses from certain transactions are uncertain during the 
course of business. The tax computations arising from business combinations would also be subjected 
to uncertainty and final assessment by tax authorities. The Stapled Group recognises the liabilities for 
expected tax issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax 
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recognised, such differences 
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made. 
The carrying amounts of provision for taxation, deferred tax assets and liabilities are as disclosed in the 
Statements of Financial Position.

The tax computation of subsidiaries newly acquired through business combinations would also be 
subject to uncertainty and formal assessment by tax authorities.

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

In the current financial period, the Stapled Group has adopted all the new and revised standards which are 
effective for annual financial periods beginning on or after 20 June 2014. The adoption of these standards did 
not have any significant effect on the financial performance or position of the Stapled Group.

2.3 Standards issued but not yet effective

The Stapled Group has not adopted the following standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective:

Description

Effective for annual 
periods beginning 

on or after

Amendments to FRS 19 Defined Benefits Plans: Employee Contributions 1 July 2014

Improvements to FRS(s) (January 2014)
(a) Amendments to FRS 102 Share Based Payment 1 July 2014
(b) Amendments to FRS 103 Business Combinations 1 July 2014
(c) Amendments to FRS 108 Operating Segments 1 July 2014
(d) Amendments to FRS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and FRS 38 Intangible Assets 1 July 2014
(e) Amendments to FRS 24 Related Party Disclosures 1 July 2014

Improvements to FRS(s) (February 2014)
(a) Amendments to FRS 103 Business Combinations 1 July 2014
(b) Amendments to FRS 113 Fair Value Measurement 1 July 2014
(c) Amendments to FRS 40 Investment Property 1 July 2014

Improvements to FRS(s) (November 2014)
(a) FRS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 1 January 2016
(b) FRS 19 Employee Benefits 1 January 2016
(c) FRS 34 Interim Financial Reporting 1 January 2016

Amendments to FRS 16 and FRS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation 
and Amortisation 

1 January 2016

Amendments to FRS 1: Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2016
FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2017
FRS 109 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018

The Management of the REIT Manager and the Trustee-Manager expect that the adoption of the standards 
above will have no material impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.4 Basis of consolidation and business combinations

(a) Stapling

Where entities enter into a stapling arrangement, the stapling arrangement is accounted for as a business 
combination under the acquisition method. 

(b) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries (including special purpose entities) are entities over which the Stapled Group has the power 
to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The Stapled 
Group generally has such power when it directly or indirectly, holds more than 50% of the issued share 
capital, or controls more than half of the voting power, or controls the composition of the board of 
directors.

(c) Consolidation 

The financial year of FH-REIT Group and FH-BT ends on 30 September unless otherwise stated. The 
consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Stapled Group made 
up to 30 September. The financial statements of FH-REIT’s subsidiaries are prepared using consistent 
accounting policies. Adjustment are made to any dissimilar material accounting policies to conform 
to the Stapled Group’s significant accounting policies.  A list of the FH-REIT’s subsidiaries is shown in  
Note 22.

All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-
group transactions and dividends are eliminated in full.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Stapled Group 
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.



148

F
R

A
S

E
R

S
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
L

IT
Y

 T
R

U
S

T
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 2
0

15

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.4 Basis of consolidation and business combinations (cont’d)

(d) Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method. Identifiable assets acquired, 
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair 
values at the acquisition date. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in 
which the costs are incurred and the services are received.

When the Stapled Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed 
for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic 
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the 
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration, which is deemed 
to be an asset or liability, will be recognised in accordance with FRS 39 either in the Statements of Total 
Return or as changes to other comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is classified as 
Stapled Securityholders’ Funds, it is not remeasured until it is finally settled within Stapled Securityholders’ 
Funds.

In business combinations achieved in stages, previously held equity interests in the acquiree are 
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date and any corresponding gain or loss is recognised in the 
Statements of Total Return.

The Stapled Group elects for each individual business combination, whether non-controlling interest 
in the acquiree (if any), that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate 
share of net assets in event of liquidation, is recognised on the acquisition date at fair value, or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Other components of 
non-controlling interests are measured on their acquisition date at fair value, unless another measurement 
basis is required by another FRS.

Any excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration transferred in the business combination, 
the amount of non-controlling interest in the acquiree (if any), and the fair value of the Stapled Group’s 
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), over the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable 
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially 
measured at cost. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment 
losses. In instances where the latter amount exceeds the former, the excess is recognised as gain on 
bargain purchase in the Statements of Total Return on the acquisition date.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to 
owners of the Trust and are presented separately in the Statements of Total Return and within the Stapled 
Securityholders’ Funds in the Statements of Financial Position, separately from the Stapled Securityholders’ 
Funds attributable to Stapled Securityholders of the Trust. Changes in the Trust’s ownership interest in 
a subsidiary that does not result in a loss of control are accounted for as transactions within Stapled 
Securityholders’ Funds. In such circumstances, the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any 
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the 
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in Stapled Securityholders’ Funds and attributable to 
Stapled Securityholders of the Trust.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.4 Basis of consolidation and business combinations (cont’d)

(e) Property acquisition and business combinations

Where the property is acquired, via corporate acquisitions or otherwise, the Manager considers the 
substance of the assets and activities of the acquired entity in determining whether the acquisition 
represents the acquisition of a business.

The Stapled Group accounts for an acquisition as business combination where an integrated set of 
activities is acquired in addition to the property. More specifically, consideration is made of the extent 
to which significant processes are acquired and, in particular, the extent of services provided by the 
subsidiary (e.g. maintenance, cleaning, security, bookkeeping, hotel operations, etc.).

When acquisitions of subsidiaries is not judged to be an acquisition of a business, they are not treated as 
business combinations. Rather, the cost to acquire the corporate entity is allocated between the assets 
and liabilities of the acquired entity based on their relative fair values at the acquisition date, and no 
goodwill or deferred tax is recognised.

2.5 Foreign currencies

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the Stapled Group are measured using the 
currency that best reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant 
to the entity (the “functional currency”). The financial statements of FH-REIT Group, FH-BT and the 
Stapled Group are presented in Singapore dollars, which is the functional currency of FH-REIT, FH-BT 
and the Stapled Group.

(b) Foreign currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional currencies of each entity 
at rates of exchange approximating those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are revalued at the rates ruling at the reporting 
date.

Non-monetary items measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are recorded using the exchange 
rates ruling at the date of the initial transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured 
at fair value in a foreign currency are revalued using the exchange rates at the date that the fair value 
was measured. Foreign currency differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or revaluing 
monetary items are recognised in the Statements of Total Return, except for exchange differences 
arising from monetary items that form part of the Trust’s net investment in foreign subsidiaries, which are 
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and accumulated under foreign currency translation 
reserve in Stapled Securityholders’ Funds and recognised in the Statements of Total Return on disposal 
of the subsidiary. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.5 Foreign currencies (cont’d)

(c) Foreign currency translation

The results and financial positions of foreign operations are translated into Singapore dollars using the 
following procedures: 

(i) Assets and liabilities are translated to Singapore dollars at exchange rates at the end of the reporting 
period; and

(ii) Income and expenses are translated to Singapore dollars at the average exchange rates for the 
period, which approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. 

All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in 
the foreign currency translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of exchange differences recognised in 
other comprehensive income relating to the foreign operation is recognised in the Statements of Total 
Return as a component of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of foreign operations are treated as assets 
and liabilities of the foreign operations and translated at the closing rates at the date of the Statements 
of Financial Position.

2.6 Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation, or both, rather 
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, or in the ordinary 
course of business. 

Investment properties are measured at cost on initial recognition. Cost includes expenditure that is directly 
attributable to the acquisition of the investment properties. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value. Any gains or losses arising 
from changes in fair values of the investment properties are recognised in the Statements of Total Return in the 
period in which they arise.

Fair value is determined at each reporting date in accordance with the FH-REIT Trust Deed. In addition, the 
investment properties are to be valued by independent professional valuers at least once a year, in accordance 
with the CIS Code issued by MAS. 

Subsequent expenditure relating to the investment properties that has already been recognised is added to the 
carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits, in excess of originally assessed 
standard of performance of the existing asset, will flow to the Stapled Group. All other subsequent expenditure 
is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. 

Investment properties are de-recognised when they have been disposed of or when the investment property 
is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or 
losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in the Statements of Total Return 
in the year of retirement or disposal. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.7 Financial assets

Financial assets within the scope of FRS 39 are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. 
Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Stapled Group becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the financial instrument.

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial assets 
not at fair value through profit and loss, directly attributable transaction costs. The Stapled Group determines 
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re -evaluates 
this designation at each financial year end.

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payment that are not quoted in an active market are 
classified as loans and receivables. Such assets are initially recognised at fair value, plus directly attributable 
costs, and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are 
recognised in the Statements of Total Return when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, and 
through the amortisation process.

Available-for-sale financial assets are those that are not classified in any of the other categories. After initial 
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss 
recognised in other comprehensive income, except that impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and 
losses on monetary instruments and interest calculated using the effective interest method are recognised 
in Statements of Total Return. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive 
income is reclassified from the Stapled Securityholders’ Funds to Statements of Total Return as a reclassification 
adjustment when the financial asset is derecognised.

2.8 Receivables

Trade and other receivables, including amounts due from related companies and loans to related companies, 
are classified and accounted for as loans and receivables under FRS 39. The accounting policy is stated in Note 
2.7.

An allowance is made for uncollectible amounts when there is objective evidence that the Stapled Group will 
not be able to collect the debt. Bad debts are written off when identified. Further details of accounting policy 
for impairment of financial assets are stated in Note 2.15.

2.9 Other assets

Other assets comprise operating supplies such as linen, silverware, glassware and chinaware. They are stated at 
cost less accumulated amortisation. 

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand and in banks and fixed deposits which are held to maturity are classified and accounted for as 
loans and receivables under FRS 39. The accounting policy is stated in Note 2.7.

For the purpose of the Statements of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and deposits 
in banks.

2.11 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities within the scope of FRS 39 are recognised when, and only when, the Stapled Group becomes 
a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method.

Gains and losses are recognised in the Statements of Total Return when the liabilities are derecognised, and 
through the amortisation process.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.12 Rental deposits and deferred income

Rental deposits are received from master lessees of the investment properties. The accounting policy for rental 
deposits as a financial liability is set out in Note 2.11.

2.13 Borrowings 

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value (net of transaction costs) and subsequently carried at amortised 
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in 
Statements of Total Return over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. 

2.14 Derivative financial instruments

The Stapled Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge against risks associated with foreign currency 
and interest rate fluctuations. Foreign exchange forward contracts are used to hedge its risks associated 
primarily with foreign currency fluctuations. Interest rate swap contracts are used to hedge its risks associated 
with interest rate fluctuations. It is the Stapled Group's policy not to trade in derivative financial instruments.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are 
subsequently re-measured at their fair value. The changes in fair value of any derivative instruments that do not 
qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the Statements of Total Return.

The Stapled Group applies hedge accounting for certain hedging relationships which qualify for hedge 
accounting. For the purpose of hedge accounting, these hedges are classified as cash flow hedges. At the 
inception of a hedge relationship, the Stapled Group formally designates and documents the hedge relationship 
to which the Stapled Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy 
for undertaking the hedge. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes 
in cash flow and are assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective 
throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated. Hedges which meet the strict criteria 
for hedge accounting are accounted for as follows:

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised directly as other comprehensive 
income in hedging reserve, while any ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Statements of Total 
Return. Amounts recognised as other comprehensive income are transferred to the Statements of Total Return 
when the hedged transaction affects the Statements of Total Return, such as when the hedged financial income 
or financial expense is recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. Where the hedged item is the cost of a non-
financial asset or non-financial liability, the amounts recognised as other comprehensive income are transferred 
to the initial carrying amount of the non-financial asset or liability. If the forecast transaction or firm commitment 
is no longer expected to occur, amounts previously recognised in Stapled Securityholders’ Funds are transferred 
to the Statements of Total Return. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised 
without replacement or rollover, or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, amounts previously recognised 
in other comprehensive income remain in other comprehensive income until the forecast transaction or firm 
commitment occurs.

The fair value of forward foreign currency contracts is calculated by reference to current forward foreign 
exchange rates for contracts with similar maturity profiles. The fair value of interest rate swap contracts is 
determined by reference to market values for similar instruments.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statements of Financial Position 
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset and there is intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.15 Impairment

(a) Non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Stapled Group’s non-financial assets, other than investment properties, are 
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such 
indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are estimated. An impairment loss is recognised if the 
carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-generating unit (“CGU”) exceeds its estimated recoverable 
amount. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the greater of its fair value less costs of 
disposal and its value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit. For the purpose of impairment 
testing, assets that generate cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash 
inflows of other assets or cash generating unit.

Impairment losses are recognised in the Statements of Total Return. Impairment losses recognised in 
prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or no 
longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine 
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or 
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. 

(b) Non-derivative financial assets

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to 
determine whether there is any objective evidence that is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective 
evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss 
event has a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be measured reliably. 

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default or delinquency by a debtor, 
indications that debtors or issuers will enter bankruptcy, adverse changes in the payment status of 
borrowers or issuers in the Stapled Group, economic conditions that correlate with defaults or the 
disappearance of an active market for a security. 

2.16 Stapled Securityholders’ funds

Stapled Securityholders’ funds represent the Stapled Secuityholders’ residual interest in the Stapled Group’s net 
assets upon termination. 

Expenses incurred in connection with the initial public offering and private placement of Stapled Securities on 
the SGX-ST are deducted directly against Stapled Securityholders’ funds. 

2.17 Leases 

As lessor – operating lease

Leases where, the Stapled Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are 
classified as operating leases. 

Lease income from operating leases is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Initial 
direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and 
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. The accounting policy for rental income is 
stated in Note 2.19(a). Variable rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.18 Distribution policy

Distributions of FHT comprise distributions from FH-REIT and FH-BT.

FH-REIT’s distribution policy is to distribute 100% of the Distributable Income (“DI”) to the Stapled Securityholders 
for the period from the Listing Date (14 July 2014) to 30 September 2015, and at least 90% of the DI thereafter.

In the event that FH-BT becomes active and profitable, FH-BT’s distribution policy will be to distribute as much 
of its income as practicable, and the declaration and payment of distributions by FH-BT will be at the sole 
discretion of the Board of Directors of the Trustee-Manager.

Distributions are made on a semi-annual basis, with the amount calculated as at 31 March and 30 September 
each year for the six-month period ending on each of the said dates. In accordance with the Trust Deeds, the 
Managers are required to pay distributions within 90 days of the end of each distribution period. Distributions, 
when paid, will be in Singapore dollars.

For the financial period from Listing Date to 31 March 2015, the distribution was paid to Stapled Securityholders 
on 29 June 2015.

2.19 Revenue 

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Stapled Group 
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is made. Revenue is measured at the 
fair value of consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment 
and excluding taxes or duties. 

(a) Master lease rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in the Statements of Total Return on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease, except where an alternative basis is more representative of 
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets. The aggregate costs of incentives provided to 
leases are recognised as a reduction of rental income over the lease term on a straight-line basis. Variable 
rent, which comprises gross turnover rental, is recognised as income in the accounting period on an 
accrual basis in the period in which it is earned. No variable rent is recognised if there are uncertainties 
that may result in the possible reversal of amounts recognised.

Currently, all master lease rental agreements are entered into with related parties. 

(b) Dividend and distribution income

Dividend and distribution income is recognised in the Statements of Total Return on the date when the 
right to receive payment is established. 

(c) Finance income

Finance income relates to interest income, and is recognised as it accrues in the Statements of Total 
Return, using the effective interest method. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.19 Revenue (cont’d)

(d) Payment top-up

Payment top-up is drawndown when certain criteria are met as defined in the payment top-up deed and 
recognised as and when it is received.

2.20 Expenses 

(a) Property operating expenses

Property operating expenses are recognised on an accrual basis in the period that expenses are incurred.

(b) REIT Manager’s fees

Fees paid or payable to the REIT Manager are recognised on an accrual basis based on the applicable 
formula as set out in Note 1(a). 

During the current financial period, the REIT-Manager has elected to receive 100% of the Base and 
Performance Fees in the form of Stapled Securities.

(c) Trust expenses

Trust expenses are recognised on an accrual basis. Included in trust expenses are the REIT Trustee’s fees, 
MIT and MIT Sub-Trustee’s fees, TMK Trustee’s fees, Malaysian Bond Trustee’s fees and Trustee-Manager’s 
trustee fees (when FH-BT becomes active) which are based on the applicable formulae as set out in 
Notes 1(e), (f), (g), (h) and (j)(ii). 

(d) Trustee-Manager’s fees

Fees paid or payable to the Trustee-Manager are recognised on an accrual basis based on the applicable 
formula as set out in Note 1(j)(i). FH-BT remained dormant in the current financial period and there are no 
fees paid/payable to the Trustee-Manager.

2.21 Borrowing costs

Finance costs consist of interest expense on borrowings and debt upfront costs. Interest expense is recognised 
in Statements of Total Return in the period it occurs using the effective interest method. Debt upfront costs are 
amortised using the straight line method over the tenure of the underlying bank loan.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.22 Taxes

(a) Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

(b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the end of the reporting 
period between the tax assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, except:

– Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or 
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of transaction, affects 
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and 

– In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, where the 
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the 
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax 
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax 
losses can be utilised except:

– Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial 
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the 
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable or loss; and 

– In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred 
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will 
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary 
differences can be utilised. 

 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred 
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are 
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax 
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when 
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction or event. The deferred tax 
effect will be: 

– Recognised in the Statements of Total Return, if the underlying transaction or event is recognised 
in the Statements of Total Retun, 

– Recognised directly in Stapled Securityholders’ Funds, if the underlying transaction or event is 
recognised in Stapled Securityholders’ Funds, and

– Recognised as an adjustment to goodwill (or negative goodwill) if the underlying transaction or 
event arises from a business combination. 



F
R

A
S

E
R

S
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
L

IT
Y

 T
R

U
S

T
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 2
0

15

157

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.22 Taxes (cont’d)

(b) Deferred tax (cont’d)

Deferred tax asset and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legal enforceable right exists to set off current 
income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable 
entity and the same tax authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate 
recognition at that date, would be recognised subsequently if new information about facts and 
circumstances changed. The adjustment would either be treated as a reduction to goodwill (as long as it 
does not exceed goodwill) if it is incurred during the measurement period or in the Statements of Total 
Return. 

FH-REIT has obtained the Tax Transparency Ruling and the Foreign Sourced Income Tax Exemption 
Rulings (collectively, the “Tax Rulings”) from the Inland Revenue Authority of Singapore (“IRAS”) in 
respect of Singapore taxation on certain income from the Singapore investment properties and from 
the properties located overseas, respectively. In accordance with the Tax Rulings, the Singapore taxation 
consequences for FH-REIT and that of the Stapled Securityholders are described below and in Note 9.

Taxable Income of FH-REIT

Except as detailed in Note 9, the REIT Trustee will be subject to Singapore income tax at the prevailing 
corporate tax rate on Taxable Income of FH-REIT.

The current Singapore corporate tax rate is 17.0%.

(c) Sales tax

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of sales tax except: 

– Where the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the 
taxation authority, in which case the sales tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the 
asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

– Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of sales tax included. 

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of 
receivables or payables on the Statements of Financial Position. 

2.23 Earnings per Stapled Security

The Stapled Group presents basic and diluted earnings per Stapled Security data for its Stapled Securities. Basic 
earnings per Stapled Security is calculated by dividing the total return attributable to Stapled Securityholders 
of the Stapled Group by the weighted average number of Stapled Securities outstanding during the financial 
period. 

No dilutive instruments were issued during the financial period. The diluted earnings per Stapled Security is the 
same as basic earnings per Stapled Security. 

2.24 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Stapled Group that engages in business activities from which it 
may earn revenue and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of 
the Stapled Group’s other components. 

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by Chief Operating 
Decision Makers (“CODMs”) that are used to make strategic decisions. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

2.24 Segment reporting (cont’d)

CODMs include the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Asset Managers and the Investment 
Manager. CODMs review the Stapled Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance and operations 
of the Group. Management has determined the operating segments based on these assessments. The CODMs 
consider the business segment from a geographic perspective as it is based on the management and internal 
reporting structure. 

Segment results and asset include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that are allocated on 
a reasonable basis. Unallocated items mainly comprise interest income, finance expenses, trust expenses and 
non-capitalisable expenses in relation to IPO, asset acquisition and Private Placement.

Segment capital expenditure is the total costs incurred on investment properties during the financial period. 

2.25 Contingencies

A contingent liability is:

(a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Stapled Group; or

(b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because: 

(i) It is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation; or 

(ii) The amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. 

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only 
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Stapled Group. 

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised on the Statements of Financial Position of the Stapled Group, 
except for contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination that are present obligations and which the 
fair values can be reliably determined. 

2.26 Derecognition of financial instruments
 

 (a) Financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flow from the asset have 
expired.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the 
sum of the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and 
any cumulative gain or loss that has been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in 
the Statements of Total Return.

 (b) Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
has expired.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different 
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is 
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference 
in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statements of Total Return.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

3. MANAGEMENT FEES

FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
$’000 $’000 $’000

(a) REIT Manager’s management fees 
– Base fees 5,403 5,403  –
– Performance fees 4,157 4,157 –

9,560 9,560 –

(b) Other management fees
– MIT Manager’s base fees 876 876 –
– MIT Manager’s performance fees 998 998 –
– Kobe Asset Manager’s management fees 192 192 –
– ABS Servicer fees 161 161 –

2,227 2,227 –

During the financial period, REIT Manager and MIT Manager fees were paid or payable in Stapled Securities. An 
aggregate of 13,773,000 units were issued or are issuable to the Managers as satisfaction of the management 
fees incurred during the financial year.

4. TRUSTEES’ FEES 

FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
$’000 $’000 $’000

Trustees’ fees
– FH-REIT Trustee’s fees 298 298 –
– Other trustee fees 204 204 –

502 502 –

5. ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER EXPENSES

FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
$’000 $’000 $’000

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries written-off 4,296 4,296 –
Audit fees paid to auditor of the Trust 269 268 1
Audit fees paid to other auditors 77 77 –
Non-audit fees paid to auditor of the Trust 20 20 –
Non-audit fees paid to other auditors 296 296 –
Other Trust expenses 2,359 2,358 1

7,317 7,315 2

The goodwill had arose from the acquisition of the entities that hold ANA Crowne Plaza Kobe. The goodwill was  
written-off as its carrying value was in excess of the recoverable value (Note 11(a)).

Professional fees of SGD 882,000 and SGD 85,000 were paid to FHT auditors for services performed for the 
purposes of the Initial Public Offering and Private Placement respectively. The fees have been capitalised as part 
of issue costs (Note 20).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

6. NON-CAPITALISABLE EXPENSES

FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
$’000 $’000 $’000

(a) In relation to IPO
– Stamp duties 25,333 25,333 –
– Other expenses 1,868 1,868 –

27,201 27,201 –

(b) In relation to asset acquisition and Private Placement
– Stamp duties 13,051 13,051 –
– Other expenses 347 347 –

13,398 13,398 –

Non-capitalisable expenses relate to one-off items of income or expense of such size, nature or incidence that 
their disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of FHT for the period arising from non-recurring and 
non-operating transactions.

During the financial period, FH-REIT Group incurred stamp duties in relation to the acquisition of the United 
Kingdom (“UK”) and Australia properties which were expensed off. In addition, other non-capitalisable issuance 
expenses relating to the Initial Public Offering of FHT and the Private Placement of Stapled Securities during the 
financial period were also expensed off.

7. PAYMENT TOP-UP

 FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
$’000 $’000 $’000

Payment top-up for:
– InterContinental Singapore 5,470 5,470 –
– Fraser Suites Singapore 1,320 1,320 –

6,790 6,790 –

BCH Hotel Investment Pte Ltd (“BCH”), the vendor of InterContinental Singapore (“ICSG”) is committed to provide 
payment top-up of an aggregate amount of SGD 8.05 million to FH-REIT. SGD 8.05 million was estimated based 
on the expected loss of food and beverage and room revenue arising from the refurbishments in ICSG.

The drawdown of payment top-up amounts during the refurbishment of ICSG ensures that cash flows would 
not be temporarily reduced during this period. In line with the progress of the refurbishment, as of 30 September 
2015, the payment top-up drawn down amounted to SGD 5.47 million. The balance of the payment top-up 
amounting to SGD 2.58 million will be drawn down progressively until the second quarter of the next financial 
year, which is the expected date of completion of the refurbishment of ICSG.

Fraser Suites Singapore underwent a major refurbishment in 2012 and was rebuilding its customer base. River 
Valley Apartments Pte. Ltd., one of the three vendors of Fraser Suites Singapore, is committed to provide a 
payment top-up to FH-REIT amounting to SGD 1.65 million, for the period from Listing Date to 30 November 
2015. This amount is to provide FH-REIT with stabilized cash flow from the property, which is not expected to 
perform to its optimal level due to the rebuilding of the customer base. As of 30 September 2015, the payment 
top-up drawn down amounted to SGD 1.32 million. The balance of the payment top-up amounting to SGD 
330,000 will be fully drawn down by 30 November 2015.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

8. FINANCE COSTS

FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
$’000 $’000 $’000

(a) Amortisation of debt upfront costs 1,917 1,917 –

(b) Finance costs
– Interest expense on loans and borrowings 17,295 17,295 –

– Others 463 463 –
17,758 17,758 –

9. TAXATION

For Singapore income tax purposes, FHT is not a taxable entity. Instead, FH-REIT and FH-BT are subject to tax 
separately based on their own characteristics as a real estate investment trust and a registered business trust 
respectively.

FH-REIT has been granted tax exemption under Section 13(12) of the Singapore Income Tax Act in respect of 
certain foreign-sourced income derived from their respective overseas subsidiaries, subject to meeting certain 
conditions. 

FH-BT which is registered as a business trust in Singapore under the Business Trust Act will be treated like a 
company under the one-tier corporate tax system for Singapore income tax purposes. Consequently, FH-BT 
will be assessed to Singapore income tax on its taxable income, if any, at the prevailing corporate tax rate in 
accordance with the Income Tax Act. 

The income tax expense is in respect of taxes paid by FH-REIT’s operations in Singapore, Australia, UK, Japan 
and Malaysia. 

Subject to full compliance with the terms and conditions of the above Tax Rulings, the taxation of the FH-REIT 
Group is as follows:

(i) Tax Ruling 1

FH-REIT has obtained the Tax Transparency Ruling from the IRAS in respect of the “Specified Taxable 
Income” (as defined herein) derived from the InterContinental Singapore and Fraser Suites Singapore 
(collectively the “Singapore investment properties”). Such income includes rent and income from or 
ancillary to the management or holding of the Singapore investment properties, as well as interest 
income from the placement of cash surpluses in bank deposits and investment in debt securities, but not 
gains from the disposal of the Singapore investment properties.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Tax Transparency Ruling, the REIT will not be taxed on Specified 
Taxable Income distributed to the Stapled Securityholders in the year in which the income was derived. 
Instead, the REIT Trustee and the REIT Manager would undertake to deduct income tax at source at 
the prevailing corporate tax rate from distributions made to certain Stapled Securityholders out of such 
Specified Taxable Income.

The application of the Tax Transparency Ruling is conditional upon the REIT Trustee and the REIT Manager 
fulfilling certain terms and conditions including distribution of at least 90.0% of Specified Taxable Income 
by the REIT Trustee to the Stapled Securityholders in the year in which the income is derived by the REIT 
Trustee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

9. TAXATION (CONT’D)

(ii) Tax Ruling 2

FH-REIT has obtained a Foreign Sourced Income Tax Exemption Ruling from the IRAS on the Singapore 
taxation of trust distributions from MIT Australia in respect of the Australian properties. Pursuant to the 
ruling, the REIT Trustee will be exempted from Singapore income tax on trust distributions received 
from MIT Australia, up to 31 March 2015, unless otherwise extended (extended to 31 March 2020 in 
Budget 2015). Such income will be regarded as Tax Exempt Income of FH-REIT under Section 13(12) of 
the Income Tax Act. The Foreign-Sourced Income Tax Exemption Ruling is granted subject to certain 
conditions.

In addition, pursuant to a letter from the IRAS, the foreign-sourced distributions and interest income to 
be received in FHT Australia Pte. Ltd. (a subsidiary of FH-REIT) from MIT Australia, will also be exempt 
from Singapore income tax, subject to certain conditions. The tax exemption shall expire on 31 March 
2015, unless otherwise extended (extended to 31 March 2020 in Budget 2015).

(iii) Singapore sourced dividends

Dividend income received by FH-REIT from the Singapore subsidiaries will not be subject to Singapore 
income tax in the hands of the REIT Trustee. They will be regarded as Tax Exempt Income of FH-REIT.

(iv) Return on capital to FH-REIT

Any return of capital received by FH-REIT from its Singapore subsidiaries and/or MIT Australia is capital in 
nature and hence, is not taxable in the hands of the REIT Trustee.

Tax expense 

The major components of tax expense for the financial period ended 30 September 2015 are:

FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
$’000 $’000 $’000

Statements of Total Return

Current tax expense:
– Current period income tax 5,051 5,051 –

Deferred tax expense:
– Origination and reversal of temporary differences 11,612 11,612 –

Withholding tax expense 1,323 1,323 –
17,986 17,986 –
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

9. TAXATION (CONT’D)

Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the applicable corporate 
tax rate for the financial period ended 30 September 2015 is as follows:

FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
$’000 $’000 $’000

Total Return for the period before tax 153,453 153,455 (2)

Tax at the domestic rates applicable to profits in the 
countries where the Stapled Group operates 38,739 38,739 –*

Adjustments:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 7,289 7,289 –
Income not subject to tax (32,479) (32,479) –
Tax transparency (4,563) (4,563) –
Deferred tax assets not recognised 7,654 7,654 –
Withholding tax 1,323 1,323 –
Others 23 23 –

17,986 17,986 –

  * Denotes amount less than $1,000.

The above reconciliation is prepared by aggregating separate reconciliations for each national jurisdiction.

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities as at 30 September 2015 are shown on the Statements of Financial Position as follows:

FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
$’000 $’000 $’000

Deferred tax liabilities (non-current):
Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries 4,301 4,301
Fair value gain on investment properties 11,698 11,698 –
Others 13 13 –

16,012 16,012 –
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

9. TAXATION (CONT’D)

The movements in the deferred tax liabilities are as follows: 

FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
$’000 $’000 $’000

At 20 Jun 2014 (Date of constitution) – – –
Arising from acquisition of subsidiaries 4,296 4,296 –
Tax charged to Statements of Total Return 11,612 11,612 –
Translation differences 104 104 –
At 30 Sep 2015 16,012 16,012 –

The items recognised in the other comprehensive income are not subjected to tax.

10. EARNINGS PER STAPLED SECURITY 

The calculation of basic earnings per unit of Stapled Security is based on: 

FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015
20 Jun 2014 to 

30 Sep 2015

Total Return for the period after tax ($’000) 135,467 135,469 (2)

Weighted average number of Stapled Securities in issue 
during the period (‘000) 1,226,592 1,226,592 1,226,592

Earnings per Stapled Security (cents) 11.04 11.04 –*

  * Denotes amount less than 1 cent

Diluted earnings per Stapled Security are the same as the basic earnings per Stapled Security as there are no 
dilutive instruments in issue during the financial period. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

11. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Acquisition of Excellence Prosperity TMK Pte. Ltd. and Kobe Excellence TMK

On 14 July 2014 (the “acquisition date”), the REIT Trustee, in its capacity as trustee of FH-REIT, acquired 
100% equity interest in Excellence Prosperity TMK Pte. Ltd. (“EPTMK”) and its subsidiary Kobe Excellence 
TMK (“KETMK”), collectively known as EPTMK Group, from Excellence Prosperity Singapore Pte. Ltd.. 

KETMK holds the trust beneficiary interest in “ANA Crowne Plaza Kobe”, a hotel located in Kobe, Japan. 
The consideration of EPTMK Group is approximately JPY 6.16 billion (approximately SGD 75.5 million), 
and was arrived at on a “willing-buyer-willing-seller” basis, taking into account the net asset value of 
EPTMK Group as at 13 July 2014 of approximately JPY 5.79 billion (approximately SGD 71.2 million).

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of EPTMK Group as at the acquisition date were: 

Fair value 
recognised on 

acquisition

$’000

Investment property 137,204
Deferred tax assets 87
Amount due from a related party 597
Other receivables 24
Cash and cash equivalents 8,188

146,100

Other payables and accruals 1,483
Amount due to a related company 40,307
Income tax payable 13
Deferred tax liabilities 4,296
Bank borrowings 28,787

74,886

Total identifiable net assets at fair value 71,214
Goodwill arising from acquisition 4,296
Total consideration 75,510

Consideration transferred for the acquisition of EPTMK Group

Cash paid (partially funded by bank borrowings and proceeds of IPO) 13,382
Consideration paid in Stapled Securities on 14 July 2014 (70,600,000 Stapled Securities 
of FHT @ SGD 0.88 per Stapled Security) 62,128
Total consideration transferred 75,510

Effect of the acquisition of EPTMK Group on cash flows

Total consideration 75,510
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiaries acquired (8,188)
Add: Bank borrowings assumed 28,787
Net cash outflow on acquisition 96,109
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

11. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

(a) Acquisition of Excellence Prosperity TMK Pte. Ltd. and Kobe Excellence TMK (cont’d)
 
Transaction costs

Transaction costs relating to the acquisition of the businesses have been recognised in the “Non-
capitalisable expenses in relation to IPO” line item in the FH-REIT Group’s and the Stapled Group’s 
Statements of Total Return. 

Goodwill arising from acquisition 

The goodwill of SGD 4,296,000 represents excess purchase consideration paid over the fair value of its 
identifiable net assets and is written off in “Administrative and other expenses” in the FH-REIT Group’s and 
the Stapled Group’s Statements of Total Return for financial period ended 30 September 2015. None of 
the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

Impact of the acquisition on profit or loss

From the acquisition date, EPTMK Group has contributed SGD 18,244,000 of gross revenue and SGD 
13,658,000 to the profit for the year of FH-REIT Group and the Stapled Group. If the business combination 
had taken place at the date of constitution, the contribution to the gross revenue and net profit of FH-
REIT Group and the Stapled Group would have been SGD 18,696,000 and SGD 13,997,000 respectively. 

(b) Acquisition of Excellence Prosperity Japan KK

On 14 July 2014 (the “acquisition date”), FHT Japan Pte. Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of FH-REIT, 
acquired 100% equity interest in Excellence Prosperity Japan KK (“EPJKK”). EPJKK is an investment holding 
company that invested 50.48% of Redeemable Preference Shares in Kobe Excellence TMK.

The purchase consideration of EPJKK is approximately JPY 1.0 billion (approximately SGD 11.98 million), 
and was arrived at on a “willing-buyer-willing-seller” basis, taking into account the net asset value of 
EPJKK as at 13 July 2014. 

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of EPJKK as at the acquisition date were: 

Fair value 
recognised on 

acquisition

$’000

Deferred tax assets 182
Amount due from a related company 39,306
Other receivables 241
Cash and cash equivalents 208

39,937

Other payables and accruals 336
Loan from Vendor 27,550
Income tax payable 69

27,955

Total identifiable net assets at fair value 11,982
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

11. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

(b) Acquisition of Excellence Prosperity Japan KK (cont’d)

Fair value 
recognised on 

acquisition

$’000

Consideration transferred for the acquisition of EPJKK

Cash paid (funded by proceeds of IPO) 11,982

Effect of the acquisition of EPJKK on cash flows

Total consideration 11,982
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary acquired (208)
Net cash outflow on acquisition 11,774

Transaction costs

Transaction costs related to the acquisition of the businesses have been recognised in the “Non-
capitalisable expenses in relation to IPO” line item in the FH-REIT Group’s and the Stapled Group’s 
Statements of Total Return. 

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 

FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2015

$’000 $’000 $’000

Statements of Financial Position:
At 20 Jun 2014 (Date of constitution) – – –
Acquisition of investment properties 1,758,874 1,758,874 –
Acquisition of subsidiary (Note 11(a)) 137,204 137,204 –
Subsequent capital expenditure incurred on investment 

properties 15,317 15,317 –
Net change in fair value of investment properties 116,671 116,671 –
Translation differences (67,673) (67,673) –
At 30 Sep 2015 1,960,393 1,960,393 –

Statements of Total Return:
Gross rental revenue from investment properties:
– Minimum lease payments 59,212 59,212 –
–  Variable rent based on lessees’ gross operating profits 68,923 68,923 –
–  Effect of recognising rental income on a straight-line 

basis over lease term 610 610 –
128,745 128,745 –

Net change in fair value of investment properties 116,671 116,671 –

Total property operating expenses, recognised in the Statements of Total Return, represent direct operating 
expenses arising from investment properties that generated rental income. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

The investment properties held by FH-REIT Group at 30 September 2015 are as follows: 

Description of 
Properties Held by Title Location Existing use

Carrying 
value Valuation date
$’000

InterContinental 

Singapore

FH-REIT 75 year leasehold 

expiring in 2089

80 Middle Road, 

Singapore 188966

Hotel 535,000 30 September 2015

Fraser Suites 

Singapore

FH-REIT 75 year leasehold 

expiring in 2089

491A River Valley Road, 

Singapore 248372

Serviced 

Residences

310,000 30 September 2015

The Westin Kuala 

Lumpur

FH-REIT (1) Freehold 199, Jalan Bukit Bintang, 

Kuala Lumpur, 55100, 

Malaysia

Hotel 144,241 30 September 2015

ANA Crowne 

Plaza Kobe

FH-REIT (1) Freehold 1-Chrome, Kitano-Cho 

Chuo-Ku, Kobe,  

650-0002, Japan

Hotel 163,002 30 September 2015

Sofitel Sydney 

Wentworth

FH-REIT (1) 75 year leasehold 

expiring in 2090

61-101 Phillip Street, 

Sydney, NSW 2000, 

Australia

Hotel 227,250 30 September 2015

Novotel Rockford 

Darling Harbour

FH-REIT (1) 84 year leasehold 

expiring in 2098

17 Little Pier Street 

Darling Harbour,  

NSW 2000, Australia

Hotel 73,080 30 September 2015

Fraser Suites 

Sydney

FH-REIT (1) 75 year leasehold 

expiring in 2089

488 Kent Street, Sydney, 

NSW 2000, Australia

Serviced 

Residences

109,670 30 September 2015

Park International 

London

FH-REIT (1) 75 year leasehold 

expiring in 2089

117-129 Cromwell Road, 

South Kensington, 

London, SW7 4DS, 

United Kingdom

Hotel 87,546 30 September 2015

Best Western 

Cromwell 

London

FH-REIT (1) 75 year leasehold 

expiring in 2089

108, 110 and 112 

Cromwell Road, 

London, SW7 4ES, 

United Kingdom

Hotel 40,008 30 September 2015

Fraser Place 

Canary Wharf

FH-REIT (1) 75 year leasehold 

expiring in 2089

80 Boardwalk Place, 

London E14 5SF,  

United Kingdom

Serviced 

Residences

89,482 30 September 2015

Fraser Suites 

Queens Gate

FH-REIT (1) 75 year leasehold 

expiring in 2089

39B Queens Gate 

Gardens, London SW7 

5RR, United Kingdom

Serviced 

Residences

130,781 30 September 2015

Fraser Suites 

Glasgow

FH-REIT (1) 75 year leasehold 

expiring in 2089

1-19 Albion Street 

Glasgow G1 1LH, 

Scotland,  

United Kingdom

Serviced 

Residences

20,434 30 September 2015

Fraser Suites 

Edinburgh

FH-REIT (1) 75 year leasehold 

expiring in 2089

12-26 St Giles Street, 

Edinburgh EH1 1 PT, 

Scotland,  

United Kingdom

Serviced 

Residences

29,899 30 September 2015

(1) Held through intermediate companies/entities in Australia, Malaysia, Jersey and Japan.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

The net changes in fair value of these investment properties have been recognised in the Statements of Total 
Return in accordance with the Stapled Group’s accounting policies. 

Independent valuation of the investment properties was undertaken by the following valuers:

Country Independent valuer

Singapore Jones Lang LaSalle Property Consultants Pte Ltd
Malaysia Jones Lang Wootton
Japan Jones Lang LaSalle K.K.
Australia Jones Lang LaSalle Advisory Services Pty Ltd
United Kingdom Jones Lang LaSalle Limited

The REIT Manager is responsible for the selection of valuers. In accordance with the CIS Code, the Stapled 
Group will rotate the valuers at least once every two years. In relying on the valuation reports, the REIT Manager 
had exercised its judgement and was satisfied that the independent valuers have the appropriate professional 
qualifications and experience in the location and category of the properties being valued, and the valuation 
estimates were reflective of the current market conditions. Details of valuation techniques and inputs used are 
disclosed in Note 27.

Investment property pledged as security

As at 30 September 2015, The Westin Kuala Lumpur is mortgaged to secure the Medium Term Notes issued by 
a subsidiary (Note 17).



170

F
R

A
S

E
R

S
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
L

IT
Y

 T
R

U
S

T
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 2
0

15

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2015

$’000 $’000 $’000

Accrued receivables 5,286 5,286 –
Net VAT*/GST receivable 1,556 1,556 –
Accrued interest income 16 16 –
Deposits 36 36 –
Amount due from a related party 182 182 –
Other receivables 453 453 –

7,529 7,529 –
Less: Net VAT/GST receivable (1,556) (1,556) –

5,973 5,973 –
Add: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 14) 52,308 52,298 10
Total loans and receivables 58,281 58,271 10

* VAT: value-added tax

Accrued receivables are from related companies of the REIT Manager and relate to receivables from the master 
lessees of FH-REIT Group’s properties. 

No receivables are past due at the reporting date.

14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2015

$’000 $’000 $’000

Cash at bank 46,102 46,092 10
Fixed deposits 6,206 6,206 –
Cash and cash equivalents 52,308 52,298 10

Fixed deposits are placed for varying periods of between one week and three months at interest rates ranging 
from 0.15% to 3.07% per annum.

Cash and cash equivalents denominated in foreign currencies are disclosed in Note 26(a).



F
R

A
S

E
R

S
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
L

IT
Y

 T
R

U
S

T
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 2
0

15

171

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

15. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2015

$’000 $’000 $’000

Trade payables
– Related companies of the REIT Manager 2,949 2,949 –
– Third parties 422 422 –

Other payables 
– Interest payable 4,009 4,009 –
– Accrued REIT management fees payable in units 4,016 4,016 –
– Accrued MIT management fees payable in units 665 665 –
– Accrued property management fees payable in 

units 920 920 –
– Amount due to REIT Manager –* –* –
– Amounts due to related companies of the REIT 

Manager 5 5 –
– Net VAT/GST payable 2,694 2,694 –
– Other accruals 8,287 8,285 2

23,967 23,965 2
Less: 
Net VAT/GST payable (2,694) (2,694) –
Trade payables to related companies of the REIT 

Manager, payable in units (2,949) (2,949) –
Accrued REIT management fees payable in units (4,016) (4,016) –
Accrued MIT management fees payable in units (665) (665) –
Accrued property management fees payable in units (920) (920) –

12,723 12,721 2
Add: 
Borrowings (non-current) (Note 17) 785,003 785,003 –
Rental deposits (non-current) 17,099 17,099 –
Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 814,825 814,823 2

* Denotes amount less than $1,000

Trade payables

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 day terms.

Amounts due to related companies

Amounts due to related companies are non-trade related, unsecured, interest free, repayable in cash and are 
repayable on demand. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

16. DEFERRED INCOME

FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2015

$’000 $’000 $’000

Cost
At 20 Jun 2014 (Date of constitution) – – –
Additions 12,151 12,151 –
Translation differences (95) (95) –
At 30 Sep 2015 12,056 12,056 –

Accumulated amortisation
At 20 Jun 2014 (Date of constitution) – – –
Charge for the financial period (610) (610) –
Translation differences 4 4 –
At 30 Sep 2015 (606) (606) –

Net deferred income 11,450 11,450 –

Represented by:
Current 667 667 –
Non-current 10,783 10,783 –

11,450 11,450 –

Deferred income (current) relates to one month’s advanced fixed rental income received from a related company 
of the REIT Manager, which is prepaid on a monthly basis. 

Deferred income (non-current) relates to the difference between the considerations received for security 
deposits and its fair value on initial recognition, and is credited to the Statements of Total Return as the effect of 
recognising rental income on a straight-line basis over the individual lease term.

17. BORROWINGS

FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2015

$’000 $’000 $’000

Non-current
Medium term notes (secured) 30,932 30,932 –
Bonds (unsecured) 27,359 27,359 –
Bank loans (unsecured) 732,329 732,329 –
Less: transaction costs capitalised (5,617) (5,617) –
Total borrowings 785,003 785,003 –

Medium Term Notes (secured)

A Medium Term Note – Senior Bond of MYR 95.0 million (equivalent to SGD 30.9 million) – with a 5 year maturity 
commencing on 14 July 2014 is secured by The Westin Kuala Lumpur. The interest rate on the Senior Bond is 
4.9% per annum.

Bonds (unsecured)

During the financial period, Kobe Excellence TMK issued unsecured Japanese Yen-denominated bonds of  
JPY 2.35 billion. The bonds carry a variable interest rate of London Interbank Offered Rates (“LIBOR”) + 1.28% per 
annum and mature 5 years from 14 July 2014. FH-REIT’s interest in the ANA Crowne Plaza Kobe in Japan is held 
via a TMK structure. TMK structures are required to issue preference shares and bonds to fund the acquisition 
of assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

17. BORROWINGS (CONT’D)

Bank loans (unsecured)

(i) The Term Loan Facilities (“TLF”) of SGD 615.0 million are unsecured and have been fully drawn down to 
finance the acquisition of the investment properties during the IPO. The TLF comprises the following 
tranches: Tranche A – up to SGD 115.0 million; and Tranche B – up to SGD 500.0 million.

 Tranche A has a loan maturity period of 3 years from the date of first drawdown, and Tranche B has a loan 
maturity period of 5 years from the date of first drawdown. The date of first drawdown for both tranches 
was 14 July 2014.

(ii) During the current financial period, FH-REIT’s subsidiary (held via FHT Australia Trust), FHT Sydney Trust 
3, secured a new AUD 117.2 million term loan facility. On 7 July 2015, FHT Sydney Trust 3 fully utilised the 
facility to partially finance the acquisition of Sofitel Sydney Wentworth. The loan is due 3 years from the 
drawdown date.

The Trust Company (Asia) Limited (in its capacity as trustee for FH-REIT) has provided a corporate 
guarantee to the lending bank in respect of the AUD 117.2 million loan.

As at 30 September 2015, FH-REIT has uncommitted Multi-Currency Short-Term Loan Facility of SGD 20.0 
million which remained unutilised.

As at 30 September 2015, FH-REIT Group has an uncommitted Short-Term Revolving Credit Facility of MYR 4.0 
million (equivalent to SGD 1.3 million) for the purpose of funding the Debt Service Reserve Account (if required) 
in relation to the Medium Term Note, which remained unutilised. A commitment fee amounting to 0.375% per 
annum of the undrawn facility is payable to the lender.

Terms and debt repayment structure

Currency
Interest rate 

range
Year of 

maturity Face Value

Carrying Value

30 Sep 2015

% $’000 $’000

FHT and FH-REIT Group
Medium term notes (secured) MYR 4.90 2019 30,932 30,882
Bonds (unsecured) JPY 1.37 – 1.41 2019 27,359 27,359
Bank loans (unsecured) AUD 3.29 2018 117,329 117,006
Bank loans (unsecured) SGD 0.94 – 1.96 2017 – 2019 615,000 609,756
Total loan and borrowings  

(gross)/(net of transaction costs) 790,620 785,003

Included in the borrowings as at 30 September 2015 were borrowings of SGD 437.7 million which together with 
interest rate swaps have been designated as cash flow hedges (Note 18). 

FH-REIT Group’s bank loans bear floating interest rates at swap-offer rate (“SOR”) plus margin ranging from 0.7% 
to 1.0% for the Singapore dollar denominated loans and at Australian dollar bank bill swap bid rate (“BBSY”) plus 
margin of 1.1% for the Australian dollar denominated loan. The interest rate range disclosed above excludes the 
effects of the related interest rate derivative instruments entered into by FH-REIT and its subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

18. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Fair Values

30 Sep 2015 Year of maturity

Contract/ 
Nominal 
Amount Assets Liabilities

$’000 $’000 $’000

FHT and FH-REIT Group
Non-hedging instrument
Currency forward (sell) 2015 – 2016 AUD 6,920 126 –
Currency forward (sell) 2015 – 2016 GBP 4,097 – (296)
Currency forward (sell) 2015 – 2016 JPY 311,844 – (175)
Currency forward (sell) 2016 MYR 5,200 70 –
Currency forward (buy) 2015 AUD 730 – (13)
Cross-currency swap 2019 JPY 8,850,130 2,032 –

2,228 (484)
Cash flow hedge
Interest rate swaps 2017 – 2019 SGD 437,743 6,599 –
Total 8,827 (484)

Current 196 (484)
Non-current 8,631 –
Total 8,827 (484)

(a) Currency forwards (non-hedging instrument)

Forward currency contracts are used by FH-REIT Group to hedge foreign currency risks arising from 
the receipts of distributions and interest income from overseas subsidiaries where certainty exists 
over the amounts at the time of hedging.

(b) Interest rate swaps and cross-currency swap are used by FH-REIT Group to hedge its exposure to 
interest rate risk associated with movements in interest rates which impact the borrowing costs of 
FH-REIT Group.

(i) Cross-currency swap (non-hedging instrument)

During the current financial period, FH-REIT entered into a cross-currency swap to exchange 
the floating-rate Singapore dollar loan of SGD 108.8 million for fixed-rate Japanese Yen loan.

(ii) Interest rate swaps (cash flow hedge)

FH-REIT entered into interest rate swaps to exchange the floating-rate interest on Singapore 
dollar denominated loans into fixed rate loans. These interest rate swaps have been assessed 
to be highly effective and no ineffectiveness has been recognised in the Statements of Total 
Return.

(c) As at 30 September 2015, the fixed interest rates of the outstanding interest rate swaps and cross-
currency swap range between 1.080% to 1.695% while the floating interest rates are linked to the 
Singapore dollar SOR as applicable to FH-REIT Group’s borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

19. STAPLED SECURITIES IN ISSUE

Number 
of Stapled 
Securities

FHT
Number 

of Stapled 
Securities

FH-REIT 
Group Number 

of Stapled 
Securities

FH-BT

30 Sep 
2015

30 Sep 
2015

30 Sep 
2015

’000 $’000 ’000 $’000 ’000 $’000

At 20 Jun 2014 (Date of constitution) – – – – – –
Issuance of Stapled Securities

Initial Public Offering 1,192,628 1,049,513 1,192,618 1,049,503 10 10
Private Placement 150,000 123,000 150,000 123,000 – –
REIT Management fees paid in 

Stapled Securities 6,226 5,544 6,226 5,544 – –
Other management fees paid in 

Stapled Securities 1,029 917 1,029 917 – –
Property management fees paid in 

Stapled Securities 4,711 4,185 4,711 4,185 – –
Distribution reinvestment plan 1,365 1,216 1,365 1,216 – –
Acquisition fee paid in Stapled 

Securities 1,420 1,164 1,420 1,164 – –
At 30 Sep 2015 1,357,379 1,185,539 1,357,369 1,185,529 10 10

Stapled Securities to be issued
REIT Management fees payable in 

Stapled Securities 5,245 4,016 5,245 4,016 – –
Other management fees payable in 

Stapled Securities 1,273 957 1,273 957 – –
Property management fees payable 

in Stapled Securities 4,129 3,244 4,129 3,244 –
–

Total issued and issuable Stapled 
Securities 1,368,026 1,193,756 1,368,016 1,193,746 10 10

Each unit of FH-REIT is stapled together with a unit of FH-BT under the terms of the Stapling Deed dated 20 
June 2014 entered into between the REIT Manager, the REIT Trustee and the Trustee-Manager and cannot be 
traded separately. Each Stapled Security represents an undivided interest in FH-REIT and FH-BT.

A holder of the Stapled Securities has no equitable or proprietary interest in the underlying assets of FHT and is 
not entitled to the transfer to it of any asset (or any part thereof) or of any real estate, any interest in any asset 
and real estate-related assets (or any part thereof) of FHT. 

Under the FH-REIT Trust Deed, every FH-REIT Stapled Security carries the same voting rights. Similarly, under 
the FH-BT Trust Deed, every FH-BT Stapled Security carries the same voting rights. Each Stapled Security carries 
one vote. 

The holders of the Stapled Securities are entitled to receive distributions as and when declared by FHT. 

All issued Stapled Securities are fully paid. 

Initial Public Offering

FHT had at listing date issued 1,192,628,000 units of Stapled Securities at SGD 0.88 each. These proceeds were 
mainly used for the acquisition of properties and subsidiaries of purchase consideration SGD 1,049,513,000.

Private Placement

During the financial period, there was a Private Placement of 150 million units of new Stapled Securities at  
SGD 0.82 per new Stapled Security (the “Private Placement”). These proceeds were mainly used for the acquisition 
of Sofitel Sydney Wentworth. 1,419,941 new Stapled Securities were issued to the MIT Manager as settlement of 
the acquisition fee for the acquisition of Sofitel Sydney Wentworth.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

20. ISSUE COSTS

FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2015

$’000 $’000 $’000

At 20 Jun 2014 (Date of constitution) – – –
Issue costs (excluding goods and services tax) 

comprise the following:
– Professional and other fees(1) 13,512 13,512 –
– Financial advisory fee, underwriting fee and selling 

commission 10,174 10,174 –
At 30 Sep 2015 23,686 23,686 –

(1)  Includes solicitors’ fees and fees for the reporting accountants, tax advisers and independent valuers and other professionals in connection 
with the Initial Public Offering and Private Placement.

Issue costs have been deducted directly against the proceeds from the issuance of the Stapled Securities. 

21. RESERVES

(a) Hedging reserve

FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2015

$’000 $’000 $’000

At 20 Jun 2014 (Date of constitution) – – –
Net fair value gain on interest rate swaps 6,599 6,599 –
At 30 Sep 2015 6,599 6,599 –

Hedging reserve represents the cumulative fair value changes of derivative instruments until they are 
disposed of. The fair value changes that are recognised in other comprehensive income are not subjected 
to tax.

(b) Foreign currency translation reserve

FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2015

$’000 $’000 $’000

At 20 Jun 2014 (Date of constitution) – – –
Net currency translation differences arising 

from translation from functional currency to 
presentation currency (59,450) (59,450) –

At 30 Sep 2015 (59,450) (59,450) –

The foreign currency translation reserve represents exchange differences arising from the translation of 
the financial statements of foreign operations whose functional currencies are different from Singapore 
dollars.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

22. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 

The subsidiaries of FHT and FH-REIT are as follows:

Name of subsidiary
Country of 

constitution 
Principal activities/  
place of business

Effective equity 
held by FHT
30 Sep 2015

%

Held by FH-REIT
Excellence Prosperity TMK Pte. Ltd.(1) Singapore Investment holding

Singapore
100

FHT Australia Pte. Ltd.(1) Singapore Investment holding
Singapore

100

FHT Australia Trust(2) Australia Investment holding
Australia

100(4)

FHT Japan Pte. Ltd.(1) Singapore Investment holding
Singapore

100

FHT Malaysia Pte. Ltd.(1) Singapore Investment holding
Singapore

100

FHT UK Pte. Ltd.(1) Singapore Investment holding
Singapore

100

Held by FH-REIT subsidiaries 
FHT Australia Trust(2) Australia Investment holding 

Australia
100(4)

FHT Sydney Trust 1(2) Australia Property holding 
Australia

100

FHT Sydney Trust 2(2) Australia Property holding 
Australia

100

FHT Sydney Trust 3(2) Australia Property holding 
Australia

100

FHT London 1 Ltd(3) Jersey Channel 
Islands

Property holding 
Jersey

100

FHT London 2 Ltd(3) Jersey Channel 
Islands

Property holding
 Jersey

100

FHT London 3 Ltd(3) Jersey Channel 
Islands

Property holding 
Jersey

100

FHT London 4 Ltd(3) Jersey Channel 
Islands

Property holding 
Jersey

100

FHT Scotland 1 Ltd(3) Jersey Channel 
Islands

Property holding 
Jersey

100

FHT Scotland 2 Ltd(3) Jersey Channel 
Islands

Property holding 
Jersey

100

Kobe Excellence TMK(2) Japan Property holding 
Japan

100

Excellence Prosperity (Japan) KK(2) Japan Investment holding 
Japan

100

Notable Vision Sdn. Bhd.(2) Malaysia Property holding 
Malaysia

100(5)

(1)  Audited Ernst & Young LLP Singapore
(2)  Audited by member firms of Ernst & Young Global in the respective countries
(3)  Audited by KPMG LLP Nottingham
(4)  Held by FH-REIT and FHT Australia Pte. Ltd. in shareholdings of 50.3% and 49.7% respectively.
(5)   This structured entity is consolidated in the financial statements in accordance with FRS 110 - Consolidated Financial Statements as the 

Stapled Group is able to demonstrate control on its investment in the structured entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

23. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those related party information elsewhere in the financial statements, the following significant 
transactions between the Stapled Group and related parties took place during the financial period at terms 
agreed between parties:

FHT and FH-REIT Group
20 Jun 2014 to 30 

Sep 2015
Description $’000

With related companies of the Managers
– Acquisition of investment properties (1,758,874)
– Rental income received and receivable 128,135
– Reimbursement of expenses paid/payable on behalf (4,638)

With the REIT Manager
– Base management fees paid/payable (5,403)
– Performance management fees paid/payable (4,157)
– Reimbursement of expenses paid/payable on behalf (684)
– Servicer fees paid/payable (161)

With the MIT Manager
– Base management fees paid/payable (876)
– Performance management fees paid/payable (998)
– Acquisition fees paid (1,164)

With the Property Manager 
– Property management fees paid/payable (7,431)

With the Trustee
– FH-REIT Trustee’s fees paid/payable (298)
– Other trustee fees paid/payable (204)

24. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

(a) Operating lease commitments – lessor

FH-REIT Group leases out its investment properties to related companies. Non-cancellable operating 
lease rental receivables are as follows:

FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2015

$’000 $’000 $’000

Within one year 53,125 53,125 –
Between one to five years 196,999 196,999 –
More than five years 560,972 560,972 –

811,096 811,096 –

(b) Financial guarantee contracts

As at 30 September 2015, FH-REIT has provided a corporate guarantee of AUD 117.2 million (SGD 117.3 
million) in respect of the term loan of a subsidiary (Note 17).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

24. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONT’D)

(c) Capital commitments

Capital expenditures contracted for as at the end of the reporting period but not recognised in the 
financial statements are as follows:

FHT and FH-REIT Group
30 Sep 2015

$’000

Commitments in respect of:
– contracted capital expenditure for investment properties 11,203

25. CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

The table below summarises the accounting classification of FHT’s, FH-REIT Group’s and FH-BT’s financial 
assets and liabilities at the reporting date:

FHT FH-REIT Group FH-BT
30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2015

$’000 $’000 $’000

Loans and receivables
Trade and other receivables (Note 13) 5,973 5,973 –
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 14) 52,308 52,298 10

58,281 58,271 10

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments (Note 18) 2,228 2,228 –

Financial assets at fair value - hedging instruments
Derivative financial instruments (Note 18) 6,599 6,599 –

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Trade and other payables (Note 15) 12,723 12,721 2
Borrowings (Note 17) 785,003 785,003 –
Rental deposits 17,099 17,099 –

814,825 814,823 2

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Derivative financial instruments (Note 18) 484 484 –

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management is integral to the business of the Stapled Group. The Stapled Group has a system of controls 
in place to create an acceptable balance between the cost of risks occurring and the cost of managing the 
risks. The management continually monitors the Stapled Group’s risk management process to ensure that an 
appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved. 

The Managers are responsible for setting the objectives and underlying principles of financial risk management 
for the Stapled Group. This is supported by comprehensive internal processes and procedures which are 
formalised in the Manager’s organisational and reporting structure, operating manuals and delegation of 
authority guidelines. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee of the Manager oversees how management monitors compliance 
with the Stapled Group’s risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk 
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Stapled Group. The Audit, Risk and Compliance 
Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and adhoc 
reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit, Risk and 
Compliance Committee. The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee then reports to the Board of Directors 
on any inadequacies, deficiencies or matters of concern of which the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee 
becomes aware or that it suspects, arising from its review of the Stapled Group’s risk management policies and 
procedures.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The entities within the Stapled Group normally conduct their business in their respective functional 
currencies.

The Stapled Group’s foreign currency risk mainly relates to its AUD, Sterling Pounds (“GBP”), MYR and 
JPY denominated investments, distribution income and interest income from its foreign subsidiaries. The 
REIT Manager monitors the Stapled Group’s foreign currency exposures on an ongoing basis and limits 
its exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates by using derivative financial instruments 
or other suitable financial products.

It is the Managers’ policy to hedge the Stapled Group’s anticipated foreign currency exposure in respect 
of distribution income, net of anticipated payments required in the same currency, from its foreign 
subsidiaries at least six months forward by using foreign currency forward exchange contracts.

Investments in overseas assets are hedged naturally to the extent that borrowings are taken up in their 
respective foreign currency. The net position of the foreign exchange risks of these investments in 
overseas assets are not hedged as such investments are long term in nature. 

The Stapled Group’s exposures to foreign currencies are as follows: 

Singapore 
Dollar

Australian 
Dollar

Sterling 
Pound

Malaysian 
Ringgit

Japanese  
Yen

At 30 Sep 2015 SGD’000 SGD’000 SGD’000 SGD’000 SGD’000

FHT and FH-REIT Group
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 91 2 1,206 – –
Derivative financial instruments – 126 – 70 2,032

91 128 1,206 70 2,032

Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments (13) – (296) – (175)

(13) – (296) – (175)

Net currency exposure 78 128 910 70 1,857

As at 30 September 2015, the Stapled Group had outstanding foreign currency contracts with notional 
amount of approximately SGD 21,796,000. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(a) Foreign currency risk (cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis

A 10% strengthening of the Singapore dollar against the following currencies during the financial period 
would have decrease the total return by the amounts as shown below. This analysis assumes that all other 
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

Singapore 
Dollar

Australian 
Dollar

Sterling 
Pound

Malaysian 
Ringgit

Japanese  
Yen

At 30 Sep 2015 SGD’000 SGD’000 SGD’000 SGD’000 SGD’000

FHT and FH-REIT Group
Decrease in total return for the financial 

period
– 10% strengthening of the Singapore 

dollar (8) (13) (91) (7) (186)

A 10% weakening of the Singapore dollar against the above currencies during the financial period would 
have had the equal but opposite effect on the total return by the amounts shown above, on the basis that 
all other variables remain constant.

(b) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the Stapled Group’s financial 
instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 

The Stapled Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates relate primarily to its interest-earning financial 
assets and interest-bearing borrowings. Interest rate risk is managed by the Managers on an ongoing 
basis with the primary objective of limiting the extent to which net interest expense could be affected 
by adverse movements in interest rates. The REIT Manager adopts a policy of fixing the interest rates for 
a portion of its outstanding borrowings via the use of derivative financial instruments or other suitable 
financial products. 

Interest rate derivatives in respect of the Stapled Group’s borrowings have been entered into to achieve 
an appropriate mix of fixed and floating rate exposures within the Stapled Group’s policy. Generally, the 
maturities of these interest rate derivatives follow the maturities of the related borrowings. 

As at 30 September 2015, the Stapled Group had interest rate derivatives with notional contract amount 
of SGD 437,743,000. 

Sensitivity analysis

A 100 basis points increase/(decrease) in the interest rates on the portion of the Stapled Group’s 
borrowings where hedged accounting is not applied, with all other variables held constant, would 
decrease/(increase) the Stapled Group’s total return before tax for the financial period by SGD 1,235,000.

(c) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the potential financial loss resulting from the failure of a customer or a counterparty to settle 
its financial and contractual obligations with the Stapled Group, as and when they fall due. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(c) Credit risk (cont’d)

The Stapled Group’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses incurred due 
to increased credit risk exposure. The REIT Manager has established credit limits for lessees and monitors 
their balances on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are performed by the REIT Manager before lease 
agreements are entered into with the lessees. Credit risk is also mitigated by the security deposits held for 
each lessee. The security deposits were received in cash and is equivalent to eight months of the monthly 
Fixed Rent under the Master Lease Agreements.

In addition, Frasers Centrepoint Limited and TCC Land International Limited have granted a corporate 
guarantee to FH-REIT for the performance of the Master Lessees and Retail Master Lessee respectively. 
Upon default, the corporate guarantors will pay the rent and other sums payable under the Master Lease 
Agreement and the Retail Master Lease Agreement respectively.

Information regarding financial assets that are either past due or impaired is disclosed in Note 13. 

Cash and cash equivalents are placed with reputable financial institutions. The credit risk related to derivative 
financial instruments arises from the potential failure of counterparties to meet their obligations under 
the contracts. It is the Stapled Group’s policy to enter into derivative financial instrument transactions 
with credit worthy counterparties. 

Credit Risk Concentration Profile

At the end of the reporting period, approximately 70.2% of the Stapled Group’s trade and other receivables 
were due from related companies of the REIT Manager. Other than this, the Stapled Group has no 
significant concentration of credit risk at the reporting date. The maximum exposure to credit risk is 
represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the Statements of Financial Position.

(d) Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Stapled Group will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations 
due to shortage of funds. The REIT Manager monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents 
deemed adequate to finance the Stapled Group’s operations for a reasonable period, including the 
servicing of financing obligations, and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. In addition, 
the REIT Manager also monitors and observes the CIS Code issued by the MAS concerning limits on total 
borrowings. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(d) Liquidity risk (cont’d)

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Stapled Group’s significant financial assets and 
liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations: 

FHT

Within one 
year

Between one 
and five years

More than 
five years Total

At 30 Sep 2015 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 14) 52,308 – – 52,308
Trade and other receivables (Note 13) 5,973 – – 5,973
Derivative financial instruments (Note 18) 196 8,631 – 8,827

58,477 8,631 – 67,108

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (Note 15) (12,723) – – (12,723)
Derivative financial instruments (Note 18) (484) – – (484)
Borrowings (gross) (Note 17) – (790,620) – (790,620)
Interest payable on borrowings (18,788) (44,423) – (63,211)
Rental deposits – – (17,099) (17,099)

(31,995) (835,043) (17,099) (884,137)
Net undiscounted financial assets/ 

(liabilities) 26,482 (826,412) (17,099) (817,029)

FH-REIT Group
Within one 

year
Between one 
and five years

More than 
five years Total

At 30 Sep 2015 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 14) 52,298 – – 52,298
Trade and other receivables (Note 13) 5,973 – – 5,973
Derivative financial instruments (Note 18) 196 8,631 – 8,827

58,467 8,631 – 67,098

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (Note 15) (12,721) – – (12,721)
Derivative financial instruments (Note 18) (484) – – (484)
Borrowings (gross) (Note 17) – (790,620) – (790,620)
Interest payable on borrowings (18,788) (44,423) – (63,211)
Rental deposits – – (17,099) (17,099)

(31,993) (835,043) (17,099) (884,135)
Net undiscounted financial assets/ 

(liabilities) 26,474 (826,412) (17,099) (817,037)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(d) Liquidity risk (cont’d)

FH-BT
Within one 

year
Between one 
and five years

More than 
five years Total

At 30 Sep 2015 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 14) 10 – – 10

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables (Note 15) (2) – – (2)
Net undiscounted financial assets 8 – – 8

27. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

(a) Fair value hierarchy 

The Stapled Group classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the 
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following 
levels:  

Level 1  – 

Level 2  – 

Level 3  –

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable from the asset 
or liability, either directly (i.e. as price) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and 

Inputs from the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs)

There have been no transfers between levels during the financial period ended 30 September 2015. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

27. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

(b) Classifications and fair values

The following table shows an analysis of each class of assets and liabilities measured at fair value at the 
end of the reporting period: 

Fair value
Carrying 
amount

Level 2 Level 3 Total Total

At 30 Sep 2015 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

FHT and FH-REIT Group
Financial assets 
Currency forward contracts 196 – 196 196
Interest rate swaps 6,599 – 6,599 6,599
Cross-currency swap 2,032 – 2,032 2,032

8,827 – 8,827 8,827

Non-financial assets
Investment properties – 1,960,393 1,960,393 1,960,393

Financial liabilities 
Currency forward contracts (484) – (484) (484)

(c) Level 2 fair value measurements

Foreign currency forward contracts, interest rate swaps and cross-currency swap are valued using 
present value calculations by applying market observable inputs existing at each reporting date into 
forward pricing and swap models. The models incorporate various inputs including the credit quality of 
counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates, interest rate curves and forward rate curves.

(d) Level 3 fair value measurements

(i) Information about significant unobservable inputs

The valuation techniques used in the level 3 fair value measurements are disclosed in the Portfolio 
Statement. 

The information table presents the valuation techniques and key inputs that were used to determine 
the fair value of investment properties categorised under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Valuation techniques Key unobservable inputs
Range of unobservable 

inputs
Relationship of unobservable 

inputs to fair value

Discounted cash  
flow analysis

– Discount rate 6.25% – 11.00% The estimated fair values 
vary inversely against the 
discount rate.

– Capitalisation rate 4.00% – 8.25% The estimated fair values 
vary inversely against the 
capitalisation rate.

Gross realisation 
method

Direct comparison 
approach

Transacted price 
of comparable 
properties $5,175 
to $17,167 psm

The estimated fair values 
with different adjustment 
factors used.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

27. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

(d) Level 3 fair value measurements (cont’d)

(ii) Movement in Level 3 assets measured at fair value

The movements of Level 3 assets, which comprise investment properties, have been disclosed in 
Note 12.

(iii) Valuation policies and procedures

The significant non-financial assets of the Stapled Group categorised within Level 3 of the fair 
value hierarchy are investment properties. Generally, the fair values of investment properties are 
determined annually by independent professional valuers. 

The independent professional valuers are experts who possess the relevant credentials and 
knowledge on the subject of property valuation, valuation methodologies and FRS 113 fair value 
measurement guidance to perform the valuation. For valuations performed by the independent 
professional valuers, the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies and assumptions 
adopted are reviewed along with the appropriateness and reliability of the inputs (including those 
developed internally by the Stapled Group) used in the valuations. 

In selecting the appropriate valuation models and inputs to be adopted for each valuation that 
uses significant non-observable inputs, the independent professional valuers are required to 
recalibrate the valuation models and inputs to actual market transactions (which may include 
transactions entered into by the Stapled Group with third parties as appropriate) that are relevant 
to the valuation if such information are reasonably available. For valuations that are sensitive to 
the unobservable inputs used, the independent professional valuers are required, to the extent 
practicable, to use a minimum of two valuation approaches to allow for cross-checks.

Significant changes in fair value measurements from period to period are evaluated for 
reasonableness. Key drivers of the changes are identified and assessed for reasonableness against 
relevant information from independent sources, or internal sources if necessary and appropriate.

In accordance with the Stapled Group’s reporting policies, the valuation process and the results 
of the independent valuations and directors’ valuation are reviewed at least once a year by the 
Board Executive Committee and the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee before the results are 
presented to the Board of Directors for approval.

(e) Other financial assets and liabilities 

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one year (including 
trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, security deposits and trade and other payables) 
are assumed to approximate their fair values due to their short term nature. 

The carrying amount of non-current variable-rate-interest-bearing borrowings approximate their fair 
values as they are floating rate instruments that are re-priced to market interest rate on or near the 
reporting date. 

(f) Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying 
amounts are not reasonable approximation of fair value

Rental deposits payable (non-current)

No disclosure of fair value is made for rental deposits payable as it is not practicable to determine their 
fair values with sufficient reliability since the balances have no fixed terms of repayment. The Stapled 
Group does not anticipate that the carrying amounts recorded at the end of the financial year would be 
significantly different from the values that would eventually be received or settled.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

28. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 

The primary objective of the Stapled Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains an optimal 
capital structure to support the business and maximise Stapled Securityholders’ value. 

Under the Property Fund Guidelines of the CIS Code, the aggregate gearing should not exceed 45.0% of the 
deposited property. 

The gearing ratio is calculated as gross borrowings divided by total assets, based on the latest valuations. 

FHT and FH-REIT Group
30 Sep 2015

Total borrowings (gross) (Note 17) ($’000) 790,620
Total assets ($’000) 2,031,707
Gearing ratio (%) 38.91

FHT is in compliance with all externally imposed capital requirements for the financial period ended 30 
September 2015. 

29. OPERATING SEGMENTS

Segment information is presented in respect of the Stapled Group’s geographical segments. For the purpose 
of the assessment of segment performance, the Stapled Group’s CODMs have focused on its investment 
properties which in turn are segregated based on geographical areas. This forms the basis of identifying 
operating segments of the Stapled Group under FRS 108 Operating Segments. 

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are as described in Note 2.24. Segment property income 
represents income generated from its tenants/sub-lessees and income earned by each segment after allocating 
property operating expenses. This is the measure reporting to the CODMs for the purpose of assessment of 
segment performance. 

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance, the CODMs monitor the non-financial assets as well as 
financial assets attributable to each segment. 

Segment results and assets include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated 
on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly interest income, finance expenses, trust expenses and 
non-capitalisable expenses in relation to IPO, asset acquisition and Private Placement. Information regarding 
the Stapled Group’s reportable segments is presented in the following tables. 

Segment information in respect to the Stapled Group’s business segments is not presented, as the Stapled 
Group’s activities for the financial period ended 30 September 2015 relate wholly to investing in real estate and 
real estate-related assets in the hospitality sector in Singapore, Australia, Malaysia, Japan and the UK. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

29. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT’D)

(a) Information about reportable segments 

Singapore Australia Malaysia Japan UK Total

20 Jun 2014 to 30 Sep 2015 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Gross revenue 39,916 24,198 10,918 18,244 35,469 128,745
Property operating expenses (6,967) (4,787) (868) (3,156) (7,246) (23,024)
Segment net property income 32,949 19,411 10,050 15,088 28,223 105,721

Acquisition fee – (1,164) – – – (1,164)
Net change in fair value of 

investment properties 7,710 16,937 (4,403) 30,064 66,363 116,671
Payment top-up 6,790 – – – – 6,790
Other income 507 21 – – – 528

Unallocated items:
– Finance income 300
– Trust expenses (21,523)
– Non-capitalisable expenses 

in relation to IPO, asset 
acquisition and Private 
Placement (40,599)

– Finance costs (17,758)
– Exchange differences, net 2,584
– Net change in fair value 

of derivative financial 
instruments 1,744

– Realised gain on derivative 
financial instruments 159

Total return for the period,  
before tax 153,453

Taxation (17,986)
Total return for the period 135,467

Reportable segmental non-current 
assets 853,630 410,001 144,241 163,002 398,150 1,969,024

Reportable segmental current assets 14,979 8,356 2,527 21,745 15,076 62,683
Total assets for reportable segments 868,609 418,357 146,768 184,747 413,226 2,031,707

Capital expenditure 13,240 86 – 1,655 336 15,317

(b) Reconciliation of reportable total return

FHT

30 Sep 2015

$’000

Total return
Total return for reportable segments 228,546
Unallocated items (93,079)
Consolidated Total Return 135,467
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD FROM 20 JUNE 2014 (DATE OF CONSTITUTION) TO 30 SEPTEMBER 2015

30. FINANCIAL RATIOS

FHT FH-REIT Group
30 Sep 2015 30 Sep 2015

% %

Expense to weighted average net assets (1)

– with performance fee of REIT Manager 1.46 1.46
– without performance fee of REIT Manager 0.97 0.97
Portfolio turnover ratio (2) 22.25 22.25

(1)  The expense ratios are computed in accordance with the guidelines of the Investment Manager Association of Singapore. The expenses 
used in the computation relate to the expenses of the Stapled Group and FH-REIT Group, excluding property expenses, interest expense, 
tax expense of each entity and extraordinary items where applicable.

(2)  The portfolio turnover ratios are computed based on the lesser of purchases or sales of underlying investment properties of the Stapled 
Group and FH-REIT Group expressed as a percentage of daily average net asset value.

31. DISTRIBUTION TO STAPLED SECURITYHOLDERS 

FHT and FH-REIT Group

30 Sep 2015

$’000

Distribution declared and paid during the financial period:
Distribution of 3.69 cents per Stapled Security paid on 29 June 2015 44,450
Advanced distribution of 2.30 cents per Stapled Security paid on 28 September 2015 27,737

72,187

Proposed but not recognised as liability as at the end of the financial period: 
Distribution of 1.5745 cents per Stapled Security payable on 29 December 2015 21,540

32. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 3 November 2015 FH-REIT issued 3,198,148 new Stapled Securities at a price of SGD 85.30 cents per Stapled 
Security in payment of the REIT Manager’s base fees, MIT Manager’s base fees and property management fees 
for the period from 1 April 2015 to 30 June 2015.

On 3 November 2015 FH-REIT issued 1,964,289 new Stapled Securities at a price of SGD 73.67 cents per Stapled 
Security in payment of the REIT Manager’s base fees and MIT Manager’s base fees for the period from 1 July 
2015 to 30 September 2015, 3,088,093 new Stapled Securities at a price of SGD 73.67 cents per Stapled Security 
in payment of the REIT Manager’s performance fees and MIT Manager’s performance fees for the period from 1 
April 2015 to 30 September 2015 and 2,397,019 new Stapled Securities at a price of SGD 73.67 cents per Stapled 
Security in payment of the property management fees for the period from 1 July 2015 to 30 September 2015.

On 29 October 2015 the REIT Manager declared a distribution of SGD 21,540,000 or SGD 1.5745 cents per 
Stapled Security to Stapled Securityholders in respect of the period from 6 July 2015 to 30 September 2015.

33. COMPARATIVES

There are no comparative figures as this is the first set of financial statements for the FH-REIT Group, FH-BT and 
the Stapled Group since the date of constitution.

34. AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Managers on 5 
November 2015. 
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their statement together with the audited financial statements of Frasers 
Hospitality Trust Management Pte. Ltd. (the “Company”) for the financial year ended 30 September 2015.  

1. DIRECTORS

 The directors of the Company in office at the date of this statement are:

 Mr Law Song Keng
 Mr Chua Phuay Hee
 Mr Liew Choon Wei
 Dr Wong See Hong
 Mr Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi
 Mr Lim Ee Seng
 Mr Choe Peng Sum

2. ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND DEBENTURES

 Neither at the end of, nor at any time during, the financial year was the Company a party to any arrangement 
whose object was to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of an acquisition of 
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, save as disclosed in this statement.

 

3. DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(a) The following directors who held office at the end of the financial year had, according to the register required 
to be kept under Section 164 of the Companies Act (Chapter 50 of Singapore), interest in the following shares 
in, or debentures of, the Company or its related corporations:

Direct Interest Deemed Interest

Name of Director
As at

1 Oct 2014
As at

30 Sep 2015
As at

1 Oct 2014
As at

30 Sep 2015

Lim Ee Seng
– Frasers Centrepoint Limited

•		Ordinary	Shares  739,712  1,879,300  –  –
•		Replacement	FCL	Award	for	Fraser	and	

Neave, Limited Restricted Share Plan 
(“F&N RSP”)

(Year 3)  –  –  – 
 

 147,879 1, 2

•		Replacement	FCL	Award	for	F&N	RSP (Year 4)  –  –  –  298,250 1, 3

•		Replacement	FCL	Award	for	Fraser	and	
Neave, Limited Performance Share Plan

(Year 4)  –  –  –  557,032 1, 4

•		Conditional	award	of	restricted	shares (Year 1)  –  –  –  861,941 5

•		Conditional	award	of	performance	shares (Year 1)  –  –  –  709,678 6

•		Conditional	award	of	restricted	shares (Year 2)  –  –  –  905,307 7

•		Conditional	award	of	performance	shares (Year 2)  –  –  –  517,318 8

– Fraser and Neave, Limited
•		Ordinary	Shares  369,856  369,856  –  –
•		Conditional	award	of	restricted	shares (Year 2)  –  –  51,641  9 – 1

•		Conditional	award	of	restricted	shares (Year 3)  –  –  76,900 10 – 1

•		Conditional	award	of	performance	shares (Year 3)  –  –  187,892 11 – 1

•		Conditional	award	of	restricted	shares (Year 4)  –  –  212,558  12 – 1

•		Conditional	award	of	performance	shares (Year 4)  –  –  171,764 13 – 1

– FCL Treasury Pte. Ltd.
•	 S$600,000,000	4.88%	Subordinated	

Perpetual Securities (Series 3)
 1,000,000  1,000,000  –  –

•	 S$700,000,000	5%	Subordinated	
Perpetual Securities (Series 5)

 –  500,000 14 –  –

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
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3. DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES (CONT’D)

Direct Interest Deemed Interest

Name of Director
As at

1 Oct 2014
As at

30 Sep 2015
As at

1 Oct 2014
As at

30 Sep 2015

Choe Peng Sum
– Frasers Centrepoint Limited

•		Ordinary	Shares  184,098  443,118  –  –
•		Replacement	FCL	Award	for	Fraser	and	

Neave, Limited Restricted Share Plan 
(“F&N RSP”)

(Year 3)  –  –  – 
 

 46,441 1, 15

•		Replacement	FCL	Award	for	F&N	RSP	 (Year 4)  –  –  –  75,250 1, 16

•		Replacement	FCL	Award	for	Fraser	and	
Neave, Limited Performance Share Plan

(Year 4)  –  –  –  88,314 1, 17

•		Conditional	award	of	restricted	shares (Year 1)  –  –  –  199,500 18

•		Conditional	award	of	performance	shares (Year 1)  –  –  –  96,000 19

•		Conditional	award	of	restricted	shares (Year 2)  –  –  –  223,200 20

•		Conditional	award	of	performance	shares (Year 2)  –  –  –  74,400 21

– Fraser and Neave, Limited
•		Ordinary	Shares  92,049  92,049  –  –
•		Conditional	award	of	restricted	shares (Year 2)  –  –  13,563 22  – 1

•		Conditional	award	of	restricted	shares (Year 3)  –  –  24,150 23  – 1

•		Conditional	award	of	performance	shares (Year 3)  –  –  32,380 24  – 1

•		Conditional	award	of	restricted	shares (Year 4)  –  –  53,625  25  – 1

•		Conditional	award	of	performance	shares (Year 4)  –  –  27,232  26  – 1

 1 As disclosed in the Introductory Document dated 28 October 2013 for the listing of Frasers Centrepoint Limited (“FCL”), outstanding awards 
of shares in Fraser and Neave, Limited (“F&N”) under the F&N Restricted Share Plan (“F&N RSP”) and F&N Performance Share Plan (“F&N 
PSP”) were cancelled on 3 October 2014 and replaced with awards of shares in FCL under the FCL Restricted Share Plan (“FCL RSP”) and 
FCL Performance Share Plan (“FCL PSP”) respectively. 

 2 Reflects a deemed interest in 147,879 shares in FCL after vesting and release in accordance with the rules of the FCL RSP.

 3 Reflects a deemed interest in 298,250 shares in FCL after vesting and release in accordance with the rules of the FCL RSP.

 4 Reflects a deemed interest in up to 557,032 shares in FCL arising from the grant of a conditional award of performance shares under the FCL 
PSP.  The actual number of FCL shares to be delivered will range from 0% to 200% of the adjusted base award of 278,516 shares, depending 
on the level of achievement of performance targets set over a three-year performance period.

 5 Reflects a deemed interest in up to 861,941 shares in FCL arising from the grant of a conditional award of performance shares under the FCL 
RSP.  The actual number of FCL shares to be delivered will range from 0% to 150% of the adjusted base award of 574,627 shares, depending 
on the level of achievement of performance targets set over a three-year performance period.

 6 Reflects a deemed interest in up to 709,678 shares in FCL arising from the grant of a conditional award of performance shares under the FCL 
PSP.  The actual number of FCL shares to be delivered will range from 0% to 200% of the adjusted base award of 354,839 shares, depending 
on the level of achievement of performance targets set over a three-year performance period.

 7 Reflects a deemed interest in up to 905,307 shares in FCL arising from the grant of a conditional award of performance shares under the FCL 
RSP.  The actual number of FCL shares to be delivered will range from 0% to 150% of the adjusted base award of 603,538 shares, depending 
on the level of achievement of performance targets set over a three-year performance period.

 8 Reflects a deemed interest in up to 517,318 shares in FCL arising from the grant of a conditional award of performance shares under the FCL 
PSP.  The actual number of FCL shares to be delivered will range from 0% to 200% of the adjusted base award of 258,659 shares, depending 
on the level of achievement of performance targets set over a three-year performance period.

 9 Reflects a deemed interest in 51,641 shares in F&N after release in accordance with the rules of the F&N RSP.

 10 Reflects a deemed interest in 76,900 shares in F&N after vesting and release in accordance with the rules of the F&N RSP.

 11 Reflects a deemed interest in up to 187,892 shares in F&N arising from the grant of a conditional award of performance shares under 
the F&N PSP and after adjustment of capital reduction by F&N.  The actual number of F&N shares to be delivered will range from 0% to 
200% of the adjusted base award of 93,946 shares, depending on the level of achievement of performance targets set over a three-year 
performance period.

 12 Reflects a deemed interest in up to 212,558 shares in F&N arising from the grant of a conditional award of restricted shares under the F&N 
RSP and after adjustment due to capital reduction by F&N.  The actual number of F&N shares to be delivered will range from 0% to 150% of 
the adjusted base award of 141,705 shares, depending on the level of achievement of performance targets set over a two-year performance 
period.

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
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3. DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND DEBENTURES (CONT’D)

 13 Reflects a deemed interest in up to 171,764 shares in F&N arising from the grant of a conditional award of performance shares under the 
F&N PSP and after adjustment due to capital reduction by F&N.  The actual number of F&N shares to be delivered will range from 0% to 
200% of the adjusted base award of 85,882 shares, depending on the level of achievement of performance targets set over a three-year 
performance period.

 14 The interest arose from the subscription for S$500,000 in aggregate principal amount of the $700,000,000 5% subordinated perpetual 
securities issued by FCL Treasury Pte. Ltd. on 9 March 2015.

 15 Reflects a deemed interest in 46,441 shares in FCL after vesting and release in accordance with the rules of the FCL RSP.

 16 Reflects a deemed interest in 75,250 shares in FCL after vesting and release in accordance with the rules of the FCL RSP.

 17 Reflects a deemed interest in up to 88,314 shares in FCL arising from the grant of a conditional award of performance shares under the FCL 
PSP.  The actual number of FCL shares to be delivered will range from 0% to 200% of the adjusted base award of 44,157 shares, depending 
on the level of achievement of performance targets set over a three-year performance period.

 18 Reflects a deemed interest in up to 199,500 shares in FCL arising from the grant of a conditional award of performance shares under the FCL 
RSP.  The actual number of FCL shares to be delivered will range from 0% to 150% of the adjusted base award of 133,000 shares, depending 
on the level of achievement of performance targets set over a three-year performance period.

 19 Reflects a deemed interest in up to 96,000 shares in FCL arising from the grant of a conditional award of performance shares under the FCL 
PSP.  The actual number of FCL shares to be delivered will range from 0% to 200% of the adjusted base award of 48,000 shares, depending 
on the level of achievement of performance targets set over a three-year performance period.

 20 Reflects a deemed interest in up to 223,200 shares in FCL arising from the grant of a conditional award of performance shares under the FCL 
RSP.  The actual number of FCL shares to be delivered will range from 0% to 150% of the adjusted base award of 148,800 shares, depending 
on the level of achievement of performance targets set over a three-year performance period.

 21 Reflects a deemed interest in up to 74,400 shares in FCL arising from the grant of a conditional award of performance shares under the FCL 
PSP.  The actual number of FCL shares to be delivered will range from 0% to 200% of the adjusted base award of 37,200 shares, depending 
on the level of achievement of performance targets set over a three-year performance period.

 22 Reflects a deemed interest in 13,563 shares in F&N after release in accordance with the rules of the F&N RSP.

 23 Reflects a deemed interest in 24,150 shares in F&N after vesting and release in accordance with the rules of the F&N RSP.

 24 Reflects a deemed interest in up to 32,380 shares in F&N arising from the grant of a conditional award of performance shares under the F&N 
PSP after adjustment due to capital reduction by F&N.  The actual number of F&N shares to be delivered will range from 0% to 200% of the 
adjusted base award of 16,190 shares, depending on the level of achievement of performance targets set over a three-year performance 
period.

 25 Reflects a deemed interest in up to 53,625 shares in F&N arising from the grant of a conditional award of restricted shares under the F&N 
RSP and after adjustment due to capital reduction by F&N.  The actual number of F&N shares to be delivered will range from 0% to 150% of 
the adjusted base award of 35,750 shares, depending on the level of achievement of performance targets set over a two-year performance 
period.

 26 Reflects a deemed interest in up to 27,232 shares in F&N arising from the grant of a conditional award of performance shares under the F&N 
PSP after adjustment due to capital reduction by F&N.  The actual number of F&N shares to be delivered will range from 0% to 200% of the 
adjusted base award of 13,616 shares, depending on the level of achievement of performance targets set over a three-year performance 
period.

(b) Except as disclosed in this statement, no director who held office at the end of the financial year had interest in 
shares in or debentures of the Company, or its related corporations, either at the beginning of the financial year, 
or date of appointment if later, or at the end of the financial year.

4. AUDIT COMMITTEE

 The MAS has granted the Company a waiver from compliance with Section 15(1) of the Business Trusts Act (“BTA”) 
to the extent that Section 15(1) requires an audit committee to be constituted, subject to the conditions that (i) 
the exemption shall only be in effect for so long as Frasers Hospitality Business Trust (“FH-BT”) is dormant, and 
(ii) immediately upon the Company becoming aware that FH-BT will become active, the Company shall ensure 
that an Audit Committee in compliance with the requirements of the BTA and the Business Trusts Regulations is 
constituted before FH-BT becomes active.

DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT

5. AUDITOR

 The retiring auditor, Ernst & Young LLP, will not be seeking re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting. KPMG LLP has expressed its willingness to accept appointment as auditor.

6. OPINION OF THE DIRECTORS

In the opinion of the Directors,

(i) the accompanying balance sheet, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity 
and statement of cash flows together with the notes thereto are drawn up so as to give a true and fair 
view of the financial position of the Company as at 30 September 2015 and of the financial performance, 
changes in equity and cash flow of the Company for the year ended on that date; and

(ii) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to 
pay its debts as and when they fall due as the immediate holding company has agreed to provide financial 
support to the Company to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Lim Ee Seng
Director

Choe Peng Sum
Director

Singapore
5 November 2015
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REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of FRASERS HOSPITALITY TRUST MANAGEMENT PTE. LTD. 
(the “Company”) which comprise the balance sheet of the Company as at 30 September 2015, the statement of changes 
in equity, the statement of comprehensive income and statement of cash flows of the Company for the financial year 
ended 30 September 2015 , and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with 
the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, 
and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance 
that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised 
and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain 
accountability of assets.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risk of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true 
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Company as at 30 September 2015 and of the financial performance of the business, changes in equity and cash flow 
of the Company for the financial year ended 30 September 2015.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company have been properly 
kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Public Accountants and 
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

5 November 2015

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF FRASERS HOSPITALITY TRUST MANAGEMENT PTE. LTD.
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Note
Year ended

30 September 2015
13 January 2014* to 
30 September 2014

$'000 $'000

Other Items of Expenses
Administrative expenses 4 (5) (7)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (5) (7)
Taxation – –
LOSS AFTER TAXATION (5) (7)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax – –
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD (5) (7)

* Date of incorporation

The accompanying accounting polices and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2015
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Note 2015 2014
$'000 $'000

CURRENT ASSETS
Other receivables 5 10 10

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables 6 12 7

NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (2) 3

NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (2) 3

Financed by:-
Share capital 7 10 10
Accumulated losses (12) (7)

TOTAL (SHAREHOLDER’S DEFICIT)/ EQUITY (2) 3 

The accompanying accounting polices and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

BAL ANCE SHEET 
AS AT 30 SEPTEMBER 2015
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Share
Capital Accumulated Total

(Note 7)  Losses Equity
$'000 $'000 $'000

2015
At 1 Oct 2014 10 (7) 3
Loss for the period – (5) (5)
Other comprehensive income – – –
Total comprehensive income for the period – (5) (5)

At 30 Sep 2015 10 (12) (2)

2014
At incorporation –* – –*
Issuance of shares during the year 10 – 10
Loss for the period – (7) (7)
Other comprehensive income – – –
Total comprehensive income for the period – (7) (7)

At 30 Sep 2014 10 (7) 3

* Denotes amount less than $1,000

The accompanying accounting polices and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUIT Y 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2015
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Year ended
30 September 2015

13 January 2014* to 
30 September 2014

$'000 $'000

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation (5) (7)
Operating cash flow before working capital changes (5) (7)
Change in other payables – 2
Net cash used in operating activities (5) (5)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Change in amount due from immediate holding company – (10)
Change in amount due to related companies 5 5
Proceeds from issuance of capital – 10
Net cash generated from financing activities 5 5

Net change in cash and cash equivalents, representing cash and cash 
equivalents at beginning of year/incorporation and at end of year/period – –

* Date of incorporation

The accompanying accounting polices and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2015
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
30 SEPTEMBER 2015

The following Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements:

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Frasers Hospitality Trust Management Pte. Ltd. (the “Company”) is a limited liability company. It is a wholly owned 
subsidiary of Frasers Centrepoint Limited. The two companies are domiciled and incorporated in Singapore. 
TCC Assets Limited, incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, is the ultimate holding company.

The registered office is located at 438 Alexandra Road, #21-00 Alexandra Point, Singapore 119958 and principal 
place of business of the Company is located at 491B River Valley Road, #16-01, Valley Point, Singapore 248373.

The principal activities of the Company are those relating to investment advisory, property fund management 
and to act as trustee-manager for Frasers Hospitality Business Trust, a trust listed on the Singapore Exchange 
Securities Trading Limited. 

Related companies in the financial statements refer to the Frasers Centrepoint Limited group of companies and 
the entities related to the shareholders of TCC Assets Limited.

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis as the immediate 
holding company will provide financial support to meet the liabilities of the Company as and when they fall due.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”).

The financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis except as disclosed in the accounting policies 
below.

The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollars (“$” or “S$”). All financial information presented in 
Singapore Dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.

Since incorporation, the Company has adopted all FRS that are relevant and effective for the financial period.

3.2 Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of the revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities 
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the balance sheet date. Uncertainty about these assumptions and 
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or 
liability affected in the future periods. Management is of the opinion that there is no significant judgement made 
in applying accounting policies and no estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
30 SEPTEMBER 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

3.3 Functional currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency that best reflects 
the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the entity (the “functional 
currency”). The financial statements of the Company are presented in Singapore Dollars, the functional currency 
of the Company.

3.4 Financial assets

Financial assets within the scope of FRS 39 are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. 
Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the financial instrument.

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial assets 
not at fair value through profit and loss, directly attributable transaction costs. 

The Company determines the classification of its financial assets after initial recognition and, where allowed and 
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at each financial year end.

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payment that are not quoted in an active market are 
classified as loans and receivables. Such assets are initially recognised at fair value, plus directly attributable 
costs, and subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are 
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when the loans and receivables are derecognised or 
impaired and through the amortisation process.

3.5 Receivables

Trade and other receivables, including amount due from immediate holding company are classified and 
accounted for as loans and receivables under FRS 39. The accounting policy is stated in Note 3.4.

An allowance is made for uncollectible amounts when there is objective evidence that the Company will not 
be able to collect the debt. Bad debts are written off when identified. Further details of accounting policy for 
impairment of financial assets are stated in Note 3.8.

3.6 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities within the scope of FRS 39 are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair 
value plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when the liabilities are 
derecognised, and through the amortisation process. 

3.7 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event 
and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no 
longer probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is 
reversed. Where the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax 
rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in 
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
30 SEPTEMBER 2015

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

3.8 Impairment 

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset 
or group of financial assets is impaired.

If there is any objective evidence that the an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost 
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount 
and the present value of estimated cash flow discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. 
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss 
is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets has been incurred, 
the Company considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the 
debtor and default or significant delay in payments. 

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment 
loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

3.9 Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

 (a) Financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flow from the asset have 
expired.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the 
sum of the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and 
any cumulative gain or loss that has been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

 (b) Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or has 
expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, 
and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income.

4. OTHER ITEMS OF EXPENSES

Year ended
30 September 2015

13 January* 2014 to 
30 September 2014

$'000 $'000

Included in other items of expenses are:

Administrative expenses
– Professional fees (2) (2)
– Registration & filing fees – (2)
– Incorporation fees – (3)
– Trade subscription & publication (2) –
– Miscellaneous expenses (1) –

  * Date of incorporation
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
30 SEPTEMBER 2015

5. OTHER RECEIVABLES

2015 2014

$'000 $'000

Other receivables (current)
Amount due from immediate holding company 10 10
Total loans and receivables 10 10

The amount due from immediate holding company is non-trade related, unsecured, interest free and is repayable 
on demand in cash. 

6. OTHER PAYABLES

2015 2014

$'000 $'000

Other payables (current)
Accruals 2 2
Amounts due to related companies 10 5
Total other payables (current) 12 7
Total financial liabilities carried at
 amortised cost 12 7

Related companies balances

Amounts due to related companies are non-trade related, unsecured, interest free, and are repayable on demand 
in cash.

7. SHARE CAPITAL

2015 2014

$'000 $'000

Issued and fully paid 
At 1 Oct 2014/incorporation (10,000 (2014: 1) ordinary shares) 10 –*
Issued during the year
 (Nil (2014: 9,999) ordinary shares) – 10
As at 30 Sep 10 10

* Denotes amount less than $1,000

The holder of ordinary shares is entitled to receive dividends as and when declared by the Company. All ordinary 
shares carry one vote per share without restriction.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
30 SEPTEMBER 2015

8.  STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Company has not adopted the following standards that have been issued but not yet effective:

Description

Effective for annual 
periods beginning 

on or after

Amendments to FRS 19 Defined Benefits Plans: Employee Contributions 1 July 2014

Improvements to FRS(s) (January 2014)
(a) Amendments to FRS 102 Share Based Payment 1 July 2014
(b) Amendments to FRS 103 Business Combinations 1 July 2014
(c) Amendments to FRS 108 Operating Segments 1 July 2014
(d) Amendments to FRS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and FRS 38 Intangible Assets 1 July 2014
(e) Amendments to FRS 24 Related Party Disclosures 1 July 2014

Improvements to FRS(s) (February 2014)
(a) Amendments to FRS 103 Business Combinations 1 July 2014
(b) Amendments to FRS 113 Fair Value Measurement 1 July 2014
(c) Amendments to FRS 40 Investment Property 1 July 2014

Improvements to FRS(s) (November 2014)
(a) FRS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 1 January 2016
(b) FRS 19 Employee Benefits 1 January 2016
(c) FRS 34 Interim Financial Reporting 1 January 2016

Amendments to FRS 16 and FRS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation 
and Amortisation 

1 January 2016

Amendments to FRS 1: Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2016
FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2017
FRS 109 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018

The Company expects that the adoption of the standards above will have no material impact on the financial 
statements in the period of initial application.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
30 SEPTEMBER 2015

9. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use of financial instruments. The 
key financial risks include credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company has risk management policies and guidelines governing all investments, which set out its overall 
business strategies, its tolerance for risk and its general risk management philosophy and has established 
processes to monitor and control hedging transactions in a timely and accurate manner. All investment 
opportunities are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors to ensure that the Company’s policy guidelines 
are adhered to.

 (a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a counter party 
default on its obligations.

At the balance sheet date, the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that the 
counterparties fail to perform their obligations is represented by the carrying amount of each class of 
financial assets recognised in the balance sheet.

As at 30 September 2015, all (2014: 100%) of the Company’s receivables were due from immediate 
holding company. The Directors believe that there is no significant credit risk as this company is of good 
credit standing. 

 (b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to 
a shortage of funds. 

Consequently, the Company is dependent on the immediate holding company to provide funds to meet 
its obligations as and when they fall due.

The Company’s financial assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date as presented in the Company’s 
balance sheet represent the contractual undiscounted cash flow due within one year.

10. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Determination of fair value

The Company does not have any assets and liabilities that are carried at fair value at the end of the reporting 
period.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities by classes that are not carried at fair value and whose carrying 
amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value

Other receivables and payables

The carrying amounts of these financial assets and liabilities are reasonable approximation of fair values due to 
their short term nature.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
30 SEPTEMBER 2015

11. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s capital management objective is to ensure that it maintains a healthy capital ratio. The Company 
manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To 
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholder, return 
capital or issue new shares.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year/period ended 30 September 
2015 and 30 September 2014.

The Company monitors capital using the net liabilities of the Company, which is total assets less total liabilities. 
The net (liabilities)/assets of the Company as at 30 September 2015 and 2014 were (SGD 2,000) and SGD 3,000 
respectively. As the Company is in a net liabilities position, the immediate holding company has agreed to 
provide funds to meet its obligations as and when they fall due.

12. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Company was incorporated on 13 January 2014. Accordingly, comparative amounts for the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income, Cash Flow Statement and the related notes are not in respect of comparable periods.

The current financial year covers 12 months from 1 October 2014 to 30 September 2015 while the comparative 
period covered 9 months from 13 January 2014 to 30 September 2014.

13. AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements for the financial year ended 30 September 2015 were authorised for issue in accordance 
with a resolution of the directors on 5 November 2015.
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STATISTICS OF STAPLED SECURIT YHOLDERS

ISSUED AND FULLY PAID-UP STAPLED SECURITIES 
AS AT 26 OCTOBER 2015

1,357,378,521 Stapled Securities (voting rights: one vote per Stapled Security)
Market Capitalisation S$1,045,181,461 (based on closing price of SGD 0.77 per Stapled Security as at 26 October 2015)

TOP 20 STAPLED SECURITYHOLDERS
AS AT 26 OCTOBER 2015

NO. NAME
NO. OF STAPLED 

SECURITIES %

1 DBS Nominees (Private) Limited  733,534,023 54.04
2 FCL Investments Pte. Ltd.      262,378,000 19.33
3 Citibank Nominees Singapore Pte Ltd  57,751,451 4.25
4 Meren Pte Ltd                  25,557,000 1.88
5 Raffles Nominees (Pte) Limited  24,467,173 1.80
6 HL Bank Nominees (Singapore) Pte Ltd  22,777,383 1.68
7 DBS Vickers Securities (Singapore) Pte Ltd  16,471,453 1.21
8 UOB Kay Hian Private Limited  12,311,625 0.91
9 BNP Paribas Nominees Singapore Pte Ltd  10,015,000 0.74
10 United Overseas Bank Nominees (Private) Limited  9,810,694 0.72
11 Frasers Hospitality Asset Management Pte Ltd  8,674,530 0.64
12 HSBC (Singapore) Nominees Pte Ltd  6,335,601 0.47
13 DBSN Services Pte. Ltd.  6,299,864 0.46
14 RHB Securities Singapore Pte. Ltd.  5,035,242 0.37
15 Morgan Stanley Asia (Singapore) Securities Pte Ltd  4,771,927 0.35
16 Frasers Hospitality Pte Ltd    4,710,669 0.35
17 Liew Chee Kong                 3,010,000 0.22
18 OCBC Securities Private Limited  2,530,767 0.19
19 BNP Paribas Securities Services Singapore Branch  2,400,000 0.18
20 Shaw Vee King                  2,082,957 0.15

TOTAL 1,220,925,359 89.94

DISTRIBUTION OF STAPLED SECURITYHOLDINGS
AS AT 26 OCTOBER 2015

SIZE OF HOLDINGS
NO. OF STAPLED 

SECURITYHOLDERS %
NO. OF STAPLED 

SECURITIES %

1  -  99 9 0.08 412 0.00
100  -  1,000 2,273 20.89 2,260,705 0.17
1,001  -  10,000 6,906 63.47 41,559,128 3.06
10,001  -  1,000,000 1,663 15.28 79,644,067 5.87
1,000,001 AND ABOVE 30 0.28 1,233,914,209 90.90
TOTAL 10,881 100.00 1,357,378,521 100.00
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STATISTICS OF STAPLED SECURIT YHOLDERS

SUBSTANTIAL STAPLED SECURITYHOLDERS
AS AT 26 OCTOBER 2015

Direct Interest Deemed Interest
Total Number of 

Units Held %Substantial Stapled Securityholders                      
Number of 

Units %
Number of 

Units %

FCL Investments Pte. Ltd. 262,378,000 19.33% – – 262,378,000 19.33%
Frasers Centrepoint Limited(1) – – 275,763,199 20.32% 275,763,199 20.32%
Thai Beverage Public Company Limited(2) – – 275,763,199 20.32% 275,763,199 20.32%
International Beverage Holdings Limited(3) – – 275,763,199 20.32% 275,763,199 20.32%
InterBev Investment Limited(4) – – 275,763,199 20.32% 275,763,199 20.32%
Siriwana Company Limited(5) – – 275,763,199 20.32% 275,763,199 20.32%
Maxtop Management Corp.(6) – – 275,763,199 20.32% 275,763,199 20.32%
Risen Mark Enterprise Ltd.(7) – – 275,763,199 20.32% 275,763,199 20.32%
Golden Capital (Singapore) Limited(8) – – 275,763,199 20.32% 275,763,199 20.32%
MM Group Limited(9) – – 275,763,199 20.32% 275,763,199 20.32%
TCC Assets Limited(10) – – 275,763,199 20.32% 275,763,199 20.32%
Charoen Sirivadhanabhakdi(11) – – 275,763,199 20.32% 275,763,199 20.32%
Khunying Wanna Sirivadhanabhakdi(12) – – 275,763,199 20.32% 275,763,199 20.32%
TCC Hospitality Limited (now known as
TCC Group Investments Limited) 535,841,000 39.48% – – 535,841,000 39.48%
Atinant Bijananda(13) – – 535,841,000 39.48% 535,841,000 39.48%
Thapana Sirivadhanabhakdi(13) – – 535,841,000 39.48% 535,841,000 39.48%
Wallapa Traisorat(13) – – 535,841,000 39.48% 535,841,000 39.48%
Thapanee Techajareonvikul(13) – – 535,841,000 39.48% 535,841,000 39.48%
Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi(13) – – 535,841,000 39.48% 535,841,000 39.48%

Notes:

(1) Frasers Centrepoint Limited (“FCL”) holds a 100% direct interest in each of Frasers Hospitality Asset Management Pte. Ltd. (“FHAM”), Frasers Hospitality 
Pte. Ltd. (“FHPL”) and FCL Investments Pte. Ltd. (“FCLI”); and FHAM, FHPL and FCLI hold Stapled Securities in FHT. FCL therefore has a deemed 
interest in the Stapled Securities in FHT in which each of FHAM, FHPL and FCLI has an interest, by virtue of Section 4 of the Securities and Futures 
Act (Chapter 289 of Singapore).

(2) Thai Beverage Public Company Limited (“ThaiBev”) holds a 100% direct interest in International Beverage Holdings Limited (“IBHL”);
− IBHL holds a 100% direct interest in InterBev Investment Limited (“IBIL”);
− IBIL holds a greater than 20% interest in FCL; 
− FCL holds a 100% direct interest in each of FHAM, FHPL and FCLI; and
− FHAM, FHPL and FCLI hold Stapled Securities in FHT.
ThaiBev therefore has a deemed interest in the Stapled Securities in FHT in which FCL has an interest, by virtue of Section 4 of the Securities and 
Futures Act (Chapter 289 of Singapore).

(3) IBHL holds a 100% direct interest in IBIL;
− IBIL holds a greater than 20% interest in FCL; 
− FCL holds a 100% direct interest in each of FHAM, FHPL and FCLI; and
− FHAM, FHPL and FCLI hold Stapled Securities in FHT. 
IBHL therefore has a deemed interest in the Stapled Securities in FHT in which FCL has an interest, by virtue of Section 4 of the Securities and Futures 
Act (Chapter 289 of Singapore).

(4) IBIL holds a greater than 20% interest in FCL; 
− FCL holds a 100% direct interest in each of FHAM, FHPL and FCLI; and
− FHAM, FHPL and FCLI hold Stapled Securities in FHT. 
IBIL therefore has a deemed interest in the Stapled Securities in FHT in which FCL has an interest, by virtue of Section 4 of the Securities and Futures 
Act (Chapter 289 of Singapore).

 (5) Sriwana Company Limited (“SCL”) holds a greater than 20% interest in ThaiBev; 
− ThaiBev holds a 100% direct interest in IBHL;
− IBHL holds a 100% direct interest in IBIL;
− IBIL holds a greater than 20% interest in FCL; 
− FCL holds a 100% direct interest in each of FHAM, FHPL and FCLI; and
− FHAM, FHPL and FCLI hold Stapled Securities in FHT.
SCL therefore has a deemed interest in the Stapled Securities in FHT in which FCL has an interest, by virtue of Section 4 of the Securities and Futures 
Act (Chapter 289 of Singapore). 
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SUBSTANTIAL STAPLED SECURITYHOLDERS (CONT’D)
AS AT 26 OCTOBER 2015

(6) Maxtop Management Corp. (“MMC”) together with Risen Mark Enterprise Ltd. (“RM”) and Golden Capital (Singapore) Limited (“GC”) collectively holds 
a greater than 20% interest in ThaiBev; 
− ThaiBev holds a 100% direct interest in IBHL;
− IBHL holds a 100% direct interest in IBIL;
− IBIL holds a greater than 20% interest in FCL; 
− FCL holds a 100% direct interest in each of FHAM, FHPL and FCLI; and
− FHAM, FHPL and FCLI hold Stapled Securities in FHT.
MMC therefore has a deemed interest in the Stapled Securities in FHT in which FCL has an interest, by virtue of Section 4 of the Securities and Futures 
Act (Chapter 289 of Singapore). 

(7) RM together with MMC and GC collectively holds a greater than 20% interest in ThaiBev; 
− ThaiBev holds a 100% direct interest in IBHL;
− IBHL holds a 100% direct interest in IBIL;
− IBIL holds a greater than 20% interest in FCL; 
− FCL holds a 100% direct interest in each of FHAM, FHPL and FCLI; and
− FHAM, FHPL and FCLI hold Stapled Securities in FHT.
RM therefore has a deemed interest in the Stapled Securities in FHT in which FCL has an interest, by virtue of Section 4 of the Securities and Futures 
Act (Chapter 289 of Singapore). 

(8) GC together with MMC and RM collectively holds a greater than 20% interest in ThaiBev; 
− ThaiBev holds a 100% direct interest in IBHL;
− IBHL holds a 100% direct interest in IBIL;
− IBIL holds a greater than 20% interest in FCL; 
− FCL holds a 100% direct interest in each of FHAM, FHPL and FLCI; and
− FHAM, FHPL and FCLI hold Stapled Securities in FHT.
GC therefore has a deemed interest in the Stapled Securities in FHT in which FCL has an interest, by virtue of Section 4 of the Securities and Futures 
Act (Chapter 289 of Singapore). 

(9) MM Group Limited (“MM”) holds a 100% direct interest in each of MMC, RM and GC; 
− MMC, RM and GC collectively holds a greater than 20% interest in ThaiBev;
− ThaiBev holds a 100% direct interest in IBHL;
− IBHL holds a 100% direct interest in IBIL;
− IBIL holds a greater than 20% interest in FCL; 
− FCL holds a 100% direct interest in each of FHAM, FHPL and FCLI; and
− FHAM, FHPL and FCLI hold Stapled Securities in FHT.
MM therefore has a deemed interest in the Stapled Securities in FHT in which FCL has an interest, by virtue of Section 4 of the Securities and Futures 
Act (Chapter 289 of Singapore). 

(10) TCC Assets Limited (“TCCA”) holds a majority interest in FCL; 
− FCL holds a 100% direct interest in each of FHAM, FHPL and FCLI; and
− FHAM, FHPL and FCLI hold Stapled Securities in FHT. 
TCCA therefore has a deemed interest in the Stapled Securities in FHT in which FCL has an interest, by virtue of Section 4 of the Securities and Futures 
Act (Chapter 289 of Singapore). 

 
(11) Charoen Sirivadhanabhakdi and his spouse, Khunying Wanna Sirivadhanabhakdi, each owns 50% of the issued and paid-up share capital of TCCA;

− TCCA holds a majority interest in FCL; 
− FCL holds a 100% direct interest in FHAM, FHPL and FCLI; and
− FHAM, FHPL and FCLI hold Stapled Securities in FHT.
Charoen Sirivadhanabhakdi therefore has a deemed interest in the Stapled Securities in FHT in which FCL has an interest, by virtue of Section 4 of 
the Securities and Futures Act (Chapter 289 of Singapore). 

(12) Khunying Wanna Sirivadhanabhakdi and her spouse, Charoen Sirivadhanabhakdi, each owns 50% of the issued and paid-up share capital of TCCA;
− TCCA holds a majority interest in FCL; 
− FCL holds a 100% direct interest in FHAM, FHPL and FCLI; and
− FHAM, FHPL and FCLI hold Stapled Securities in FHT. 
Khunying Wanna Sirivadhanabhakdi therefore has a deemed interest in the Stapled Securities in FHT in which FCL has an interest, by virtue of Section 
4 of the Securities and Futures Act (Chapter 289 of Singapore).

(13) Each of Atinant Bijananda, Thapana Sirivadhanabhakdi, Wallapa Traisorat, Thapanee Techajareonvikul and Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi holds 20% of the 
issued share capital of TCC Hospitality Limited (now known as TCC Group Investments Limited) (“TCCG”);
- TCCG holds Stapled Securities in FHT. 
Each of Atinant Bijananda, Thapana Sirivadhanabhakdi, Wallapa Traisorat, Thapanee Techajareonvikul and Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi therefore has 
a deemed interest in the Stapled Securities in FHT in which TCCG has an interest, by virtue of Section 4 of the Securities and Futures Act (Chapter 
289 of Singapore).

STATISTICS OF STAPLED SECURIT YHOLDERS
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STAPLED SECURITYHOLDINGS OF DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGERS
AS AT 21 OCTOBER 2015

Number of Stapled Securities Held
Name of Director Direct Interest Deemed Interest

Mr Law Song Keng 416,590 –
Mr Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi – 535,841,000
Mr Lim Ee Seng 400,000 –
Mr Choe Peng Sum 400,000 –

FREE FLOAT

Based on information made available to the Manager as at 26 October 2015, approximately 40.1% of the Stapled 
Securities are held in the hands of the public. Rule 723 of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST has accordingly been 
complied with.

STATISTICS OF STAPLED SECURIT YHOLDERS
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The transactions entered into with interested persons for the financial period from 20 June 2014 (Date of Constitution) 
to 30 September 2015 which fall within the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-
ST”) and the Property Funds Appendix of the Code on Collective Investment Schemes (excluding transactions of less 
than $100,000 each) are as follows:

Names of Interested Persons

Aggregate value of all Interested 
Person Transactions during the 

financial period under review 
(excluding transactions of less 

than $100,000 and transactions 
conducted under shareholders’ 
mandate pursuant to Rule 920) 

$’000

Aggregate value of 
all Interested Person 
Transactions during 
the financial period 
under review under 

shareholders’ mandate 
pursuant to Rule 920 

(excluding transactions 
less than $100,000)

$’000

Frasers Hospitality Asset Management Pte. Ltd.
– Management fees paid and payable1 (9,560) –
– Reimbursement of expenses paid on behalf of FH-REIT (684) –
– Servicer fees paid and payable (161) –

FHT Australia Management Pty Ltd
– Management fees paid and payable1 (1,874) –
–  Acquisition fees in relation to the acquisition of Sofitel 

Sydney Wentworth1 (1,164) –

Frasers Sydney Wentworth Trust
– Purchase consideration for Sofitel Sydney Wentworth2 (232,870) –

Frasers Hospitality Pte. Ltd.
–  Management, marketing and trademark licence fees paid 

and payable1 (4,128) –

Frasers Hospitality UK Ltd.
–  Management, marketing and trademark licence fees paid 

and payable1 (3,303) –

BCH Hotel Investment Pte. Ltd.
– Purchase consideration for InterContinental Singapore3 (497,051) –
– Rental income from InterContinental Singapore4, 16 22,400 –
–  Payment top-up16 (Please refer to Note 7 “Payment Top-Up” 

in FHT’s financial statements) 5,470 –

River Valley Apartments Pte. Ltd.
River Valley Shopping Centre Pte. Ltd.
River Valley Tower Pte. Ltd.
– Purchase consideration for Fraser Suites Singapore3 (327,000) –

River Valley Apartments Pte. Ltd.
– Rental  income from Fraser Suites Singapore5, 16 17,372 –
–  Payment top-up16 (Please refer to Note 7 “Payment Top-Up” 

in FHT’s financial statements) 1,320 –

Fairdace Limited
– Purchase consideration for Fraser Place Canary Wharf3 (67,024) –
– Purchase consideration for Fraser Suites Glasgow3 (15,958) –
– Rental income from Fraser Place Canary Wharf6, 16 8,596 –
– Rental income from Fraser Suites Glasgow6, 16 2,778 –
– Reimbursement of expenses paid on behalf of FH-REIT (650) –

Queensgate Garden (CI) Limited
– Purchase consideration for Fraser Suites Queens Gate3 (98,494) –

39QGG Management Limited
– Rental income from Fraser Suites Queens Gate7, 16 10,460 –
– Reimbursement of expenses paid on behalf of FH-REIT (567) –

INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS
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Names of Interested Persons

Aggregate value of all Interested 
Person Transactions during the 

financial period under review 
(excluding transactions of less 

than $100,000 and transactions 
conducted under shareholders’ 
mandate pursuant to Rule 920) 

$’000

Aggregate value of 
all Interested Person 
Transactions during 
the financial period 
under review under 

shareholders’ mandate 
pursuant to Rule 920 

(excluding transactions 
less than $100,000)

$’000

Global-Link Investments Limited
– Purchase consideration for Park International London3 (83,514) –
– Purchase consideration for Best Western Cromwell London3 (36,172) –

P I Hotel Management Limited
– Rental income from Best Western Cromwell London8, 16 3,056 –
– Rental income from Park International London8, 16 7,211 –
– Reimbursement of expenses paid on behalf of FH-REIT (1,449) –

Frasers (St. Giles Street) Edinburgh Limited
– Purchase consideration for Fraser Suites Edinburgh3 (24,469) –

Frasers (St. Giles Street) Management Limited
– Rental income from Fraser Suites Edinburgh9, 16 3,121 –
– Reimbursement of expenses paid on behalf of FH-REIT (311) –

Frasers Town Hall Residences Pty Ltd
– Purchase consideration for Fraser Suites Sydney3 (121,788) –

Frasers Town Hall Residences Operations Pty Ltd
– Rental income from Fraser Suites Sydney10, 16 12,311 –
– Reimbursement of expenses paid on behalf of FH-REIT (492) –

Frasers Town Hall Land Pty Ltd
– Reimbursement of expenses paid on behalf of FH-REIT (509) –

Crape Myrtle (PTC) Limited ATF Viewgrand Trust B
–  Purchase consideration for Novotel Rockford Darling 

Harbour3 (77,662) –

Golden Shower Development (PTC) Limited ATF Viewgrand 
Trust C
– Rental income from Novotel Rockford Darling Harbour11, 16 4,499 –

Frasers Sydney ML Hotel Pty Ltd
– Rental income from Novotel Rockford Darling Harbour11, 16 2,671 –

JBB Hotels Sdn Bhd
– Purchase consideration for The Westin Kuala Lumpur3 (176,872) –
– Rental income from The Westin Kuala Lumpur12, 16 10,918 –
– Reimbursement of expenses paid on behalf of FH-REIT (215) –

Excellence Prosperity (Singapore) Pte Ltd
–  Acquisition of interest in Kobe Excellence TMK and 

Excellence Prosperity Japan KK13, 16 (116,279) –

K.K. Shinkobe Holding
– Rental income from ANA Crowne Plaza Kobe14, 16 18,244 –

Y.K. Toranomon Properties
– Rental income from ANA Crowne Plaza Kobe14, 16 2,380 –

Ananke Holdings Pty Ltd
– Rental income from Sofitel Sydney Wentworth15 4,498 –

INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS
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Names of Interested Persons

Aggregate value of all Interested 
Person Transactions during the 

financial period under review 
(excluding transactions of less 

than $100,000 and transactions 
conducted under shareholders’ 
mandate pursuant to Rule 920) 

$’000

Aggregate value of 
all Interested Person 
Transactions during 
the financial period 
under review under 

shareholders’ mandate 
pursuant to Rule 920 

(excluding transactions 
less than $100,000)

$’000

– Reimbursement of expenses paid on behalf of FH-REIT (372) –

The Trust Company (Asia) Limited
– Trustee’s fees (298) –

The Trust Company (Australia) Limited
– Trustee’s fees (122) –

Please also refer to Note 23 ‘Significant related party transactions’ in FHT’s financial statements.

Management fees, servicer fees and Trustee’s fees payable to Frasers Hospitality Asset Management Pte. Ltd. (also 
referred to as “REIT Manager”), FHT Australia Management Pty Ltd (also referred to as “MIT Manager”), Frasers Hospitality 
Pte. Ltd. (“FHPL”), Frasers Hospitality UK Ltd. (“FHUK”) and The Trust Company (Australia) Limited on the basis of, and 
in accordance with the terms and conditions set out in the FH-REIT Trust Deed dated 20 June 2014 (as amended), the 
FHT Australia Trust Deed dated 20 June 2014 and/or the Prospectus dated 30 June 2014 are not subject to Rules 905 
and 906 of the SGX-ST’s Listing Manual. Accordingly, such fees are not subject to aggregation and other requirements 
under Rules 905 and 906 of the SGX-ST’s Listing Manual. 

Except as disclosed above, there were no other interested person transactions (excluding transactions of less than 
$100,000 each) entered into during the financial year under review nor any material contracts entered into by FHT 
that involved the interests of the Chief Executive Officer, any Director or any controlling Stapled Securityholder of FHT.

Notes

1 A summary of the number of Stapled Securities issued for the payment of the REIT and MIT management fees and acquisition fees to the REIT 
Manager and MIT Manager and serviced residence management fees to FHPL and FHUK during the financial period from 20 June 2014 (Date of 
Constitution) to 30 September 2015 is as follows:

Issue date
Stapled Security  

Units issued
Value
$’000

Frasers Hospitality Asset Management Pte. Ltd.

14 July 2014 to 30 September 2014 5 May 2015 1,270,309 1,129

1 October 2014 to 31 December 2014 5 May 2015 2,583,052 2,295

1 January 2015 to 31 March 2015 5 May 2015 2,372,764 2,120

FHT Australia Management Pty Ltd 

14 July 2014 to 30 September 2014 5 May 2015 176,383 157

1 October 2014 to 31 December 2014 5 May 2015 483,300 430

1 January 2015 to 31 March 2015 5 May 2015 368,781 330

Acquisition fees 9 July 2015 1,419,941 1,164

Frasers Hospitality Pte. Ltd. 

14 July 2014 to 30 September 2014 5 May 2015 826,236 734

1 October 2014 to 31 December 2014 5 May 2015 899,205 794

1 January 2015 to 31 March 2015 5 May 2015 982,501 878

Frasers Hospitality UK Ltd. 

14 July 2014 to 30 September 2014 5 May 2015 765,745 680

1 October 2014 to 31 December 2014 5 May 2015 658,106 581

1 January 2015 to 31 March 2015 5 May 2015 578,876 517

The REIT Manager has been nominated by the MIT Manager to receive 1,028,464 and 1,419,941 Stapled Securities respectively which the MIT 
Manager is entitled to receive as payment of its fees and pursuant to the nomination agreements between the REIT Manager and MIT Manager dated 
5 May 2015 and 30 September 2015, in connection with such nomination, the REIT Manager will pay to the MIT Manager approximately SGD2.08 
million, being an amount equal to the aggregate issue price of such Stapled Securities.
 
FHPL has been nominated by FHUK to receive 2,002,727 Stapled Securities which FHUK is entitled to receive as payment of its fees and pursuant to 
the nomination agreement between FHUK and FHPL dated 5 May 2015, in connection with such nomination, FHPL will pay to FHUK approximately 
SGD1.78 million, being an amount equal to the aggregate issue price of such Stapled Securities.

INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS
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2 The Trust Company (PTAL) Limited (“Sub-Trustee”), in its capacity as trustee of FHT Sydney Trust 3, entered into a 75-year agreement (“75-year Lease 
Agreement”) with Frasers Sydney Wentworth Trust, to acquire a 75-year leasehold interest in Sofitel Sydney Wentworth.  In connection with this 
acquisition, FHT Sydney Trust 3 has also entered into a sale and purchase agreement (“FF&E Agreement”) with Frasers Sydney Wentworth Trust under 
which it acquired the furniture, furnishings & equipment relating to Sofitel Sydney Wentworth.  The aggregate consideration paid under the 75-year 
Lease Agreement and the FF&E Agreement amounted to AUD224 million (approximately SGD233 million).

3 In connection with the IPO of FHT, the Trust Company (Asia) Limited (“REIT Trustee”) in its capacity as trustee of FH-REIT, and its subsidiaries 
entered into various agreements with related companies of the REIT Manager to acquire the investment properties comprising FHT’s initial portfolio 
(the “Initial Portfolio Properties”). The acquisition of the Initial Portfolio Properties, with each acquisition constituting an “interested person/party 
transaction” are deemed to have been specifically approved by Stapled Securityholders upon purchase of the Stapled Securities of FHT’s IPO. (See 
pages 342 and 343 of FHT’s Prospectus dated 30 June 2014).

4 A master lease agreement was entered into between the REIT Trustee, in its capacity as trustee of FH-REIT, and BCH Hotel Investments Pte. Ltd., 
pursuant to which FH-REIT granted a master lease to BCH Hotel Investments Pte. Ltd. in respect of InterContinental Singapore for an initial period 
of 20 years from 14 July 2014 with an option exercisable by the master lessee to obtain an additional lease for a further 20 years on the same terms 
and conditions (save for amendments required due to any change in law).

5 A master lease agreement was entered into between the REIT Trustee, in its capacity as trustee of FH-REIT, and River Valley Apartments Pte. Ltd., 
pursuant to which FH-REIT granted a master lease to River Valley Apartments Pte. Ltd. in respect of Fraser Suites Singapore for an initial period of 20 
years from 14 July 2014 with an option exercisable by the master lessee to obtain an additional lease for a further 20 years on the same terms and 
conditions (save for amendments required due to any change in law).

6 A master lease agreement was entered into between FHT London 1 Limited and FHT Scotland 2 Limited and Fairdace Limited, pursuant to which 
master leases were granted to Fairdace Limited in respect of Fraser Place Canary Wharf and Fraser Suites Glasgow respectively for an initial period 
of twenty years from 14 July 2014 with an option exercisable by the master lessee to obtain an additional lease for a further 20 years on the same 
terms and conditions (save for amendments required due to any change in law).

7 A master lease agreement was entered into between FHT London 2 Limited and 39QGG Management Limited, pursuant to which a master lease 
was granted to 39QGG Management Limited in respect of Fraser Suites Queens Gate for an initial period of 20 years from 14 July 2014 with an 
option exercisable by the master lessee to obtain an additional lease for a further 20 years on the same terms and conditions (save for amendments 
required due to any change in law).

8 A master lease agreement was entered into between FHT London 3 Limited and FHT London 4 Limited with P I Hotel Management Limited, pursuant 
to which master leases were granted to P I Hotel Management Limited in respect of Park International London and Best Western Cromwell London 
respectively for an initial period of 10 years from 14 July 2014 with an option exercisable by the master lessee to obtain an additional lease for a 
further 10 years on the same terms and conditions and including an option to renew for a further two successive 10-year terms.

9 A master lease agreement was entered into between FHT Scotland 1 Limited and Frasers (St Giles Street) Management Limited, pursuant to which a 
master lease was granted to Frasers (St Giles Street) Management Limited in respect of Fraser Suites Edinburgh for an initial period of 20 years from 
14 July 2014 with an option exercisable by the master lessee to obtain an additional lease for a further 20 years on the same terms and conditions 
(save for amendments required due to any change in law).

10 A master lease agreement was entered into between The Trust Company (PTAL) Limited (“Sub-Trustee”), in its capacity as trustee of FHT Sydney Trust 
1, and Frasers Town Hall Residences Operations Pty Ltd, pursuant to which a master lease was granted to Frasers Town Hall Residences Operations 
Pty Ltd in respect of Fraser Suites Sydney for an period of 20 years from 14 July 2014 with an option exercisable by the master lessee to obtain an 
additional lease for a further 20 years on the same terms and conditions (save for amendments required due to any change in law).

11 A master lease agreement was entered into between the Sub-Trustee, in its capacity as trustee of FHT Sydney Trust 2, and Golden Shower 
Development (PTC) Limited ATF Viewgrand Trust C, pursuant to which a master lease was granted to Golden Shower Development (PTC) Limited 
ATF Viewgrand Trust C in respect of Novotel Rockford Darling Harbour for an initial period of 20 years from 14 July 2014 with an option exercisable 
by the master lessee to obtain an additional lease for a further 20 years on the same terms and conditions (save for amendments required due to 
any change in law).  On 1 April 2015, the master lease agreement was novated, with Frasers Sydney ML Hotel Pty Ltd taking over as the master lessee.  
Frasers Sydney ML Hotel Pty Ltd is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Sponsor.

12 A tenancy agreement was entered into between Notable Vision Sdn Bhd and JBB Hotels Sdn Bhd, pursuant to which a tenancy was granted to JBB 
Hotels Sdn Bhd in respect of The Westin Kuala Lumpur for an initial period of 3 years from 14 July 2014 with two options exercisable by the tenant 
to renew the tenancy for a further 3 years each on the same terms and conditions (save for amendments required due to any change in law).

13 The REIT Trustee in its capacity as trustee of FH-REIT, and FHT Japan Pte Ltd, a subsidiary of FH-REIT, entered into share purchase agreements to 
acquire the issued share capital of Excellence Prosperity TMK and Excellence Prosperity Japan KK on 14 July 2014 respectively from Excellence 
Prosperity (Singapore) Pte Ltd for a combined consideration of JPY 7.7 billion.

14 A master lease agreement was entered into between Kobe Excellence TMK (through its Trustee) and K.K. Shinkobe Holding, pursuant to which a 
master lease was granted to K.K. Shinkobe Holding in respect of the hotel component of ANA Crowne Plaza Kobe for a fixed period of 10 years from 
14 July 2014. A retail master lease agreement was entered into between Kobe Excellence TMK (through its Trustee) and Y.K. Toranomon Properties in 
respect of the retail component of ANA Crowne Plaza Kobe for a perpetual lease term from 14 July 2014.  Under the retail master lease agreement, 
the rental income would cover the costs incurred by Kobe Excellence TMK arising from legal ownership, whereas the retail master lessee assumes 
the economic benefits or losses attributable to the retail component.

15 A master lease agreement was entered into between the Sub-Trustee, in its capacity as trustee of FHT Sydney Trust 3, and Ananke Holdings Pty Ltd, 
pursuant to which a master lease was granted to Ananke Holdings Pty Ltd in respect of Sofitel Sydney Wentworth for an period of 20 years from 7 
July 2015 with an option exercisable by the master lessee to obtain an additional lease for a further 20 years on the same terms and conditions (save 
for amendments required due to any change in law).

16 The master lease agreements and tenancy agreement referred to in Notes 4 to 14 above and the Payment Top-Up Deeds made between the REIT 
Trustee and BCH Hotel Investment Pte. Ltd. and River Valley Apartments Pte. Ltd. respectively, which constitute “interested party transactions”, were 
entered into in connection with the IPO of FHT and are deemed to have been specifically approved by Stapled Securityholders and are therefore not 
subject to Rules 905 and 906 of the Listing Manual to the extent that there is no subsequent change to the rates and/or bases of the fees charged 
thereunder which will adversely affect FH-REIT. (See pages 342 and 343 of FHT’s Prospectus dated 30 June 2014)

INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS
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FRASERS HOSPITALITY TRUST
A stapled group comprising: 

FRASERS HOSPITALITY REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST
(a real estate investment trust constituted on 12 June 2014  
under the laws of the Republic of Singapore)

FRASERS HOSPITALITY BUSINESS TRUST
(a business trust constituted on 20 June 2014  
under the laws of the Republic of Singapore)

 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 1st Annual General Meeting of Frasers Hospitality Trust (“FHT”), comprising Frasers 
Hospitality Real Estate Investment Trust (“FH-REIT”) and Frasers Hospitality Business Trust (“FH-BT”) will be held at 2.00 
p.m. on Wednesday, 9 December 2015 at Level 2, Alexandra Point, 438 Alexandra Road, Singapore 119958, for the 
following purposes:

ROUTINE BUSINESS 

RESOLUTION (1)

1.  To receive and adopt the Report of the Trustee-Manager issued by Frasers Hospitality Trust Management Pte. 
Ltd., as trustee-manager of FH-BT (the “Trustee-Manager”), the Statement by the Chief Executive Officer of the 
Trustee-Manager, the Report of the Trustee issued by  The Trust Company (Asia) Limited, as trustee of FH-REIT 
(the “REIT Trustee”), the Statement by the Manager issued by Frasers Hospitality Asset Management Pte. Ltd., as 
manager of FH-REIT (the “REIT Manager”) and the Audited Financial Statements of FHT, FH-BT and FH-REIT for the 
financial period ended 30 September 2015 and the Auditor’s Report thereon.

RESOLUTION (2)

2.  To appoint KPMG LLP (“KPMG”) as Auditors of FHT comprising FH-REIT and FH-BT to hold office until the conclusion 
of the next Annual General Meeting of FHT in place of the retiring Auditors, Ernst & Young LLP (“E&Y”), and to 
authorise the REIT Manager and the Trustee-Manager (collectively, the “Managers”), to fix their remuneration. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Ordinary Resolution, with or without any modifications:

RESOLUTION (3)

3.  That authority be and is hereby given to the REIT Manager and the Trustee-Manager, to 

(a) (i) issue new units in FH-REIT (“FH-REIT Units”) and new units in FH-BT (“FH-BT Units”, together with FH-
REIT Units, the “Stapled Securities”) whether by way of rights, bonus or otherwise; and/or 

 (ii) make or grant offers, agreements or options (collectively, “Instruments”) that might or would require 
Stapled Securities to be issued, including but not limited to the creation and issue of (as well as adjustments 
to) securities, warrants, debentures or other instruments convertible into Stapled Securities, 

at any time and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes and to such persons as the REIT 
Manager and the Trustee-Manager may in their absolute discretion deem fit; and

(b)  issue Stapled Securities in pursuance of any Instrument made or granted by the REIT Manager and the Trustee-
Manager while this Resolution was in force (notwithstanding that the authority conferred by this Resolution 
may have ceased to be in force), 

DBS Bank Ltd. is the Sole Global Coordinator and Issue Manager for the initial public offer of Stapled Securities in FHT (the “Offering”). 

DBS Bank Ltd., Morgan Stanley Asia (Singapore) Pte., Standard Chartered Securities (Singapore) Pte. Limited and United Overseas 

Bank Limited are the Joint Bookrunners and Underwriters for the Offering.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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provided that:

(1)  the aggregate number of Stapled Securities to be issued pursuant to this Resolution (including Stapled 
Securities to be issued in pursuance of Instruments made or granted pursuant to this Resolution) shall not 
exceed fifty per cent. (50%) of the total number of issued Stapled Securities (as calculated in accordance 
with sub-paragraph (2) below), of which the aggregate number of Stapled Securities to be issued other than 
on a pro rata basis to holders of the Stapled Securities in FHT (“Stapled Securityholders”) does not exceed 
twenty per cent (20%) of the total number of issued Stapled Securities (as calculated in accordance with sub-
paragraph (2) below);  

(2) subject to such manner of calculation as may be prescribed by Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited 
(the “SGX-ST”) for the purpose of determining the aggregate number of Stapled Securities that may be issued 
under sub-paragraph (1) above, the total number of issued Stapled Securities shall be based on the number of 
issued Stapled Securities at the time this Resolution is passed, after adjusting for:

(a) any new Stapled Securities arising from the conversion or exercise of any Instruments which are 
outstanding at the time this Resolution is passed; and

(b) any subsequent bonus issue, consolidation or subdivision of Stapled Securities;

(3) in exercising the authority conferred by this Resolution, the REIT Manager and Trustee-Manager shall comply 
with the provisions of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST for the time being in force (unless such compliance 
has been waived by the SGX-ST), the Business Trusts Act, Chapter 31A of Singapore for the time being in force 
(unless otherwise exempted or waived by The Monetary Authority of Singapore), trust deed constituting FH-
REIT (as amended) (the “REIT Trust Deed”) for the time being in force (unless otherwise exempted or waived 
by The Monetary Authority of Singapore), the trust deed constituting FH-BT (the “BT Trust Deed”) for the time 
being in force (unless otherwise exempted or waived by The Monetary Authority of Singapore) and the stapling 
deed (the “Stapling Deed”) entered into between the REIT Manager, the REIT Trustee and the Trustee-Manager 
for the time being in force (unless otherwise exempted or waived by the Monetary Authority of Singapore); 

(4) unless revoked or varied by Stapled Securityholders in a general meeting, the authority conferred by this 
Resolution shall continue in force until (i) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of FHT or (ii) the 
date by which the next Annual General Meeting of FHT is required by the applicable law or regulations to be 
held, whichever is earlier;

(5) where the terms of the issue of the Instruments provide for adjustment to the number of Instruments or Stapled 
Securities into which the Instruments may be converted in the event of rights, bonus or other capitalisation 
issues or any other events, the REIT Manager and the Trustee-Manager may issue additional Instruments or 
Stapled Securities pursuant to such adjustment notwithstanding that the authority conferred by this Resolution 
may have ceased to be in force at the time the Instruments or Stapled Securities are issued; and

(6) the REIT Manager, the Trustee-Manager, any director of the REIT Manager or the Trustee-Manager (each a 
“Director” and collectively, the “Directors”) and the REIT Trustee, be and are hereby severally authorised to 
complete and do all such acts and things (including executing all such documents as may be required) as the 
REIT Manager, the Trustee-Manager, such Director, or, as the case may be, the REIT Trustee may consider 
expedient or necessary or in the interest of FHT, FH-BT and FH-REIT to give effect to the authority conferred 
by this Resolution.

 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Frasers Hospitality Asset Management Pte. Ltd.
(as manager of Frasers Hospitality Real Estate Investment Trust)
(Company Registration No. 201331351D)

Frasers Hospitality Trust Management Pte. Ltd.
(as trustee-manager of Frasers Hospitality Business Trust)
(Company Registration No. 201401270M)

Piya Treruangrachada
Company Secretary
20 November 2015

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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NOTES:

(1) Stapled Securityholders entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint not 
more than two proxies to attend and vote in his/her/their stead. A proxy need not be a Stapled Securityholder.

(2) Where a Stapled Securityholder appoints more than one proxy, he/she/they must specify the proportion of his/
her/their holding (expressed as a percentage of the whole) to be represented by each proxy. Where a Stapled 
Securityholder appoints two proxies and does not specify the proportion of his/her/their stapled securityholding 
to be represented by each proxy, then the Stapled Securities held by the Stapled Securityholder are deemed to 
be equally divided between the proxies.

(3) The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies (as the case may be) must be deposited with the Company 
Secretary of the Managers at the registered office of the Managers at 438 Alexandra Road, #21-00, Alexandra 
Point, Singapore 119958, not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the Annual General Meeting.

EXPLANATORY NOTE:

Resolution 2

The Ordinary Resolution 2 above is to approve the appointment of KPMG as Auditors of FHT in place of the retiring 
Auditors, E&Y, and to authorise the Managers to fix their remuneration.

E&Y, the retiring Auditors, have served as external Auditors of FHT since the constitution of FHT. FHT’s proposed change 
in Auditor is in line with the proposed change of auditors to KPMG by Frasers Centrepoint Limited, FHT’s Sponsor and 
indirect controlling stapled securityholder. The appointment by FHT of the same external Auditor would also be more 
efficient for FHT from a reporting perspective. The Managers are therefore of the view that it would be timely to effect 
a change of external Auditor from the financial year ending 30 September 2016.

The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee of the REIT Manager1 has reviewed and deliberated on the proposed 
change of Auditors and has recommended that KPMG be appointed in place of the retiring Auditors, after taking into 
consideration the suitability of KPMG and the requirements of Rule 712(1), Rule 712(2) and Rule 715 of the Listing Manual 
of the SGX-ST.

The Directors have taken into account the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee’s recommendation, and considered 
factors such as the adequacy of the resources and experience of KPMG and the persons to be assigned to the audit, 
KPMG’s audit engagements, the size and complexity of FHT and its subsidiaries, and the number and experience of 
KPMG’s supervisory and professional staff to be assigned to the audit, and is satisfied that KPMG will be able to meet 
the audit requirements of FHT. Accordingly, the Directors recommend the appointment of KPMG as the Auditors of FHT 
in place of the retiring Auditors, E&Y. 

In accordance with the requirements of Rule 1203(5) of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST:

i. the outgoing Auditors, E&Y, have confirmed that they are not aware of any professional reasons why the new 
Auditors, KPMG, should not accept appointment as Auditors of FHT;

ii. the REIT Trustee and the Managers confirm that there were no disagreements with the outgoing Auditors, E&Y, on 
accounting treatments during the financial period from on 20 June 2014 to 30 September 2015; 

iii. the REIT Trustee and the Managers confirm that, other than as set out above, it is not aware of any circumstances 
connected with the proposed change of Auditors that should be brought to the attention of Stapled Securityholders; 
and

iv. the Managers confirm that Rule 712 and Rule 715 of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST are complied with in relation 
to the appointment of KPMG.

1 The Monetary Authority of Singapore has granted the Trustee-Manager an exemption from compliance with Section 15(1) of the Business Trusts Act, 
Chapter 31A of Singapore (“BTA”) to the extent that Section 15(1) of the BTA requires an audit committee to be constituted when FH-BT is dormant, 
subject to the conditions that (i) the exemption shall only be in effect for so long as FH-BT is dormant, and (ii) immediately upon the Trustee-Manager 
becoming aware that FH-BT will become active, the Trustee-Manager shall ensure that an audit committee in compliance with the requirements of 
the BTA and the Business Trusts Regulations is constituted before FH-BT becomes active.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING



218

F
R

A
S

E
R

S
 H

O
S

P
IT

A
L

IT
Y

 T
R

U
S

T
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 A
N

N
U

A
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 2
0

15

Resolution 3

The Ordinary Resolution 3 above, if passed, will empower the REIT Manager and the Trustee-Manager from the date of 
this Annual General Meeting until the date of the next Annual General Meeting, to issue Stapled Securities and to make 
or grant instruments (such as securities, warrants or debentures) convertible into Stapled Securities and issue Stapled 
Securities pursuant to such instruments, up to a number not exceeding 50% of the total number of issued Stapled 
Securities,  of which up to 20% may be issued other than on a pro rata basis to Stapled Securityholders.

For determining the aggregate number of Stapled Securities that may be issued, the percentage of issued Stapled 
Securities will be calculated based on the issued Stapled Securities at the time the Ordinary Resolution 3 above is 
passed, after adjusting for new Stapled Securities arising from the conversion or exercise of any Instruments which 
are outstanding at the time this Resolution is passed and any subsequent bonus issue, consolidation or subdivision of 
Stapled Securities.

Fund raising by issuance of new Stapled Securities may be required in instances of property acquisitions or debt 
repayments.  In any event, if the approval of Stapled Securityholders is required under the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST, 
the REIT Trust Deed, the BT Trust Deed and the Stapling Deed or any applicable laws and regulations in such instances, 
the REIT Manager and the Trustee-Manager will then obtain the approval of Stapled Securityholders accordingly.

PERSONAL DATA PRIVACY:

By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to attend, speak and vote at the Annual 
General Meeting and/or any adjournment thereof, a Stapled Securityholder (i) consents to the collection, use and 
disclosure of the Stapled Securityholder’s personal data by the Managers and the REIT Trustee (or their agents) for the 
purpose of the processing and administration by the Managers and the REIT Trustee (or their agents) of proxies and 
representatives appointed for the Annual General Meeting (including any adjournment thereof) and the preparation and 
compilation of the attendance lists, minutes and other documents relating to the Annual General Meeting (including 
any adjournment thereof), and in order for the Managers and the REIT Trustee (or their agents) to comply with any 
applicable laws, listing rules, regulations and/or guidelines (collectively, the “Purposes”), (ii) warrants that where the 
Stapled Securityholder discloses the personal data of the Stapled Securityholder’s proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to 
the Managers and the REIT Trustee (or their agents), the Stapled Securityholder has obtained the prior consent of such 
proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the collection, use and disclosure by the Managers and the REIT Trustee (or their 
agents) of the personal data of such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the Purposes, and (iii) agrees that the Stapled 
Securityholder will indemnify the Managers and the  REIT Trustee (or their agents) in respect of any penalties, liabilities, 
claims, demands, losses and damages as a result of the Stapled Securityholder’s breach of warranty.

Important Notice

The value of the Stapled Securities and the income derived from them, if any, may fall or rise. The Stapled Securities 
are not obligations of, deposits in, or guaranteed by, the Managers, the REIT Trustee or any of its affiliates. An 
investment in Stapled Securities is subject to investment risks, including the possible loss of the principal amount 
invested. 

Investors should note that they have no right to request the Managers to redeem their Stapled Securities while the 
Stapled Securities are listed. It is intended that Stapled Securityholders may only deal in their Stapled Securities 
through trading on the SGX-ST. Listing of the Stapled Securities on the SGX-ST does not guarantee a liquid market 
for the Stapled Securities. 

The past performance of FHT and the Managers is not necessarily indicative of the future performance of FHT and 
the Managers. 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING



FRASERS HOSPITALITY TRUST
A stapled group comprising:

FRASERS HOSPITALITY REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT TRUST
(a real estate investment trust constituted on 12 June 2014  
under the laws of the Republic of Singapore)

FRASERS HOSPITALITY BUSINESS TRUST
(a business trust constituted on 20 June 2014  
under the laws of the Republic of Singapore)

PROXY FORM
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

I/We ______________________________ (Name) ______________________________ (NRIC/Passport Number/
Company Registration Number, where applicable) of ___________________________________________ (Address) 
being a being a holder/s of units in Frasers Hospitality Real Estate Investment Trust (“FH-REIT”) and units in Frasers 
Hospitality Business Trust (“FH-BT”) (collectively, “Stapled Securities”), hereby appoint:

Name Address NRIC/Passport Number

Proportion of Stapled Securityholding
No. of Stapled 

Securities %

and/or (delete as appropriate)

Name Address NRIC/Passport Number

Proportion of Stapled Securityholding
No. of Stapled 

Securities %

or both of whom failing, the Chairman of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) as my/our proxy/proxies to attend and to 
vote for me/us on my/our behalf and if necessary, to demand a poll, at the AGM to be held at 2.00 p.m. on Wednesday, 
9 December 2015 at Level 2, Alexandra Point, 438 Alexandra Road, Singapore 119958, and any adjournment thereof. 

I/We direct my/our proxy/proxies to vote for or against the resolutions to be proposed at the AGM as indicated 
hereunder. If no specific direction as to voting is given, the proxy/proxies may vote or abstain from voting at his/her/
their discretion, as he/she/they may on any other matter arising at the AGM.

NOTE: The Chairman of the AGM will be exercising his right under paragraph 10 of Schedule 1 to the trust deed 
constituting FH-REIT (as amended) and paragraph 3.5.1 of Schedule 1 to the trust deed constituting FH-BT to demand 
a poll in respect of each of the resolutions to be put to the vote of Stapled Securityholders at the AGM and at any 
adjournment thereof. Accordingly, each resolution at the AGM will be voted on by way of poll.

NO. RESOLUTIONS RELATING TO:
No. of Votes

For*
No. of Votes

Against*

ROUTINE BUSINESS
1. To receive and adopt the Trustee-Manager’s Report, the Statement by the 

Chief Executive Officer of the Trustee-Manager, the REIT Trustee’s Report, 
the REIT Manager’s Statement and the Audited Financial Statements of FHT, 
FH-BT and FH-REIT for the financial period ended 30 September 2015 and 
the Auditor’s Report thereon

2. To appoint KPMG LLP as Auditors of FHT comprising FH-REIT and FH-BT 
to hold office until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting in 
place of the retiring Auditors, Ernst & Young LLP, and to authorise the REIT 
Manager and the Trustee-Manager to fix their remuneration
SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. To authorise the REIT Manager and the Trustee-Manager to issue Stapled 
Securities and to make or grant convertible instruments

*     If you wish to exercise all your votes “For” or “Against”, please tick (ü) within the relevant box provided. Alternatively, 
please indicate the number of votes as appropriate.

Dated this        day of     2015

Total number of  
Stapled Securities held

_____________________________________________
Signature(s) of Stapled Securityholder(s)/Common Seal

PERSONAL DATA PRIVACY

By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s), the Stapled Securityholder accepts and agrees to the personal data privacy 
terms set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting dated  20 November 2015.

#



IMPORTANT: PLEASE READ THE NOTES TO PROXY FORM BELOW
NOTES TO PROXY FORM

1. A stapled securityholder of Frasers Hospitality Trust (“FHT”, and a stapled securityholder of FHT, “Stapled Securityholder”) 
entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint one or two proxies to attend and vote in his/her stead. A proxy need 
not be a Stapled Securityholder. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies (as the case may be) must be deposited with the 
Company Secretary of the Managers at the registered office of the Managers at 438 Alexandra Road, #21-00, Alexandra Point, 
Singapore 119958, not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the AGM.

2. Where a Stapled Securityholder appoints more than one proxy, he/she must specify the proportion of his/her holding (expressed 
as a percentage of the whole) to be represented by each proxy. Where a Stapled Securityholder appoints two proxies and does 
not specify the proportion of his/her stapled securityholding to be represented by each proxy, then the Stapled Securities held 
by the Stapled Securityholder are deemed to be equally divided between the proxies.

3. Completion and return of this instrument appointing a proxy or proxies shall not preclude a Stapled Securityholder from attending 
and voting at the meeting. Any appointment of a proxy or proxies shall be deemed to be revoked if a Stapled Securityholder 
attends the meeting in person, and in such event, the Managers reserve the right to refuse to admit any person or persons 
appointed under this instrument of proxy, to the meeting.

4.  A Stapled Securityholder should insert the total number of Stapled Securities held. If the Stapled Securityholder has Stapled 
Securities entered against his/her name in the Depository Register maintained by The Central Depository (Pte) Limited (“CDP”), 
he/she should insert that number of Stapled Securities. If the Stapled Securityholder has Stapled Securities registered in his/
her name in the Register of Stapled Securityholers, he/she should insert that number of Stapled Securities. If the Stapled 
Securityholder has Stapled Securities entered against his/her name in the said Depository Register and registered in his/her 
name in the Register of Stapled Securityholders, he/she should insert the aggregate number of Stapled Securities. If no number 
is inserted, this form of proxy will be deemed to relate to all the Stapled Securities held by the Stapled Securityholder.

5.  If the Stapled Securityholder is shown to not have any Stapled Securities entered against his name as at 48 hours before the time 
fixed for the AGM, the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies (the “Proxy Form”) will be rejected. 

6.  The Proxy Form must be under the hand of the appointor or of his/her attorney duly authorised in writing. Where the Proxy 
Form is executed by a corporation, it must be executed either under its common seal or under the hand of its attorney or a duly 
authorised officer.

7.  Where a Proxy Form is signed on behalf of the appointor by an attorney or a duly authorised officer, the power of attorney or 
other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of such power or authority must (failing previous 
registration with the Managers) be lodged with the Proxy Form; failing which the instrument may be treated as invalid.

8. The Managers shall be entitled to reject a Proxy Form which is incomplete, improperly completed or illegible or where the true 
intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specified on and/or attached to the 
Proxy Form. In addition, in the case of Stapled Securities entered in the Depository Register, the Managers may reject a Proxy 
Form if the Stapled Securityholder, being the appointor, is not shown to have Stapled Securities entered against his/her name in 
the Depository Register as at 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the AGM, as certified by CDP to the Managers.

9.  All Stapled Securityholders will be bound by the outcome of the AGM regardless of whether they have attended or voted at the AGM.

10.  The Chairman of the AGM will be exercising his right under paragraph 10 of Schedule 1 to the trust deed constituting FH-REIT 
(as amended) and paragraph 3.5.1 of Schedule 1 to the trust deed constituting FH-BT to demand a poll in respect of each of 
the resolutions to be put to the vote of Stapled Securityholders at the AGM and at any adjournment thereof. Accordingly, each 
resolution at the AGM will be voted on by way of a poll.

11.  On a poll, every Stapled Securityholder who is present in person or by proxy shall have one vote for every Stapled Security of 
which he/she is the Stapled Securityholder. A person entitled to more than one vote need not use all his/her votes or cast them 
the same way.

1st fold here

2nd fold here

3rd fold here

Company Secretary

Frasers Hospitality Asset Management Pte. Ltd.
(as manager of Frasers Hospitality Real Estate Investment Trust)

Frasers Hospitality Trust Management Pte. Ltd.
(as trustee-manager of Frasers Hospitality Business Trust)

438 Alexandra Road  
#21-00 Alexandra Point  

Singapore 119958

Affix 
Postage 
Stamp
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corPorate inFormation

ManagEr of fh-rEit

Frasers Hospitality Asset Management Pte. Ltd.

trustEE-ManagEr of fh-bt

Frasers Hospitality Trust Management Pte. Ltd.

rEgistErEd addrEss of rEit ManagEr 
and trustEE-ManagEr

438 Alexandra Road
#21-00 Alexandra Point
singapore 119958
Tel: (65) 6276 4882
Fax: (65) 6276 6328
www.frasershospitalitytrust.com

dirEctors of thE rEit ManagEr 
and trustEE-ManagEr

mr law Song keng
chairman and Independent Director

mr chua Phuay hee
Independent Director

mr liew choon wei
Independent Director

Dr David wong See hong
Independent Director

mr Panote Sirivadhanabhakdi
Non-Executive Director

mr lim ee Seng
Non-Executive Director

mr choe Peng Sum
Non-Executive Director

audit, risk and coMpliancE coMMittEE 
of thE rEit ManagEr 

Mr Law song Keng (chairman)
Mr Liew choon Wei 
Dr David Wong see Hong 

noMinating coMMittEE of thE rEit ManagEr 

Mr Law song Keng (chairman)
Mr Liew choon Wei 
Mr Panote sirivadhanabhakdi

coMpany sEcrEtary

Mr Piya Treruangrachada

trustEE

The Trust company (Asia) Limited
8 Marina Boulevard
#05-02
Marina Bay Financial centre
singapore 018981
Tel: (65) 6645 0830
Fax: (65) 6438 0255

unit rEgistrar and unit transfEr officE

Boardroom corporate & Advisory services Pte. Ltd.
50 Raffles Place
#32-01 singapore Land Tower
singapore 048623
Tel: (65) 6536 5355
Fax: (65) 6536 1360

auditor

Ernst & young LLP
One Raffles Quay
North Tower, Level 18
singapore 048583
Tel: (65) 6535 7777
Fax: (65) 6532 7662
Partner-in-charge: Mr simon yeo
Appointed: Financial year 2015

principal bankErs

Bank of china Limited, singapore Branch
DBs Bank Ltd
The Hongkong and shanghai Banking corporation Limited 
commonwealth Bank of Australia
United Overseas Bank Limited, Tokyo Branch
standard chartered Bank Malaysia Berhad



FraSerS hoSPitality aSSet manaGement Pte. ltD.
As Manager of Frasers Hospitality Real Estate Investment Trust
company  Reg i s t ra t ion  Number :  201331351D

FraSerS hoSPitality truSt manaGement Pte. ltD.
As Trustee-Manager of Frasers Hospitality Business Trust
company  Reg i s t ra t ion  Number :  201401270M

438 Alexandra Road
#21-00, Alexandra Point
singapore 119958
Tel : +65 6276 4882
Fax : +65 6276 6328

www.frasershospital itytrust.com


